COMMON COUNCIL MEETING NOTICE

Pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes §19.84, notice is hereby given to the public and news media that
a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of De Pere will be held on July 16, 2013 at
7:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, Second Floor of De Pere City Hall, 335 South
Broadway, De Pere, W1 54115.

This meeting can be viewed LIVE on TW Cable Channel 4; AT&T U-verse Channel 99; www.depere.tv.
This meeting is also rebroadcast on TV throughout the week and available on demand at www.depere.tv,

AGENDA FOR SAID MEETING:
1. Roll call.

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

3. Approval of the minutes of the July 2, 2013 regular meeting of the Common Couneil.
4. Public comment upon matters not on agenda or other announcements.
5. Recommendation from the Finance/Personnel Committee to approve:

A, Funding for emergency repair to Legion Baby Pool from unassigned General
Fund Reserves.

0. Recommendation from the License Committee:

A. Application for a Class “B” Beer & “Class B” Liquor License for Firehouse Bar
& Grill, 338 Main Street.

B. Application for a Premise Description Change for Pubhaus At 600, 600 George
Street.

C. Application for a Temporary Premise Description Change for Sidekicks Bar &
Grill, 930 Main Avenue.

7. Ordinance #13-13, Amending §14-29(7) De Pere Municipal Code Regarding Rezoning
Protest Petitions And Time for Council Action on Rezoning Applications (second reading).

8. Resolution #13-91, A Resolution Authorizing And Providing For The Sale And Issuance Of
$5,745,000% General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A,
And All Related Details.

9. Resolution #13-92, A Resolution Authorizing And Providing For The Sale And Issuance Of
$2,610,000* Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B,
And All Related Details.

10.  Resolution #13-93, Authorizing Economic Development Grant To WJM Enterprise LLC
(Firehouse Bar & Grill). '

11.  Resolution #13-94, Authorizing Sidewalk Café Permit For Pubhaus At 600 LLC.



12.

I3.

14.

15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

21.

22,

23.

Resofution #13-95, Authorizing Amendment To Agreement Between The City Of De

Pere And Stephen L. Seidl (James Street Wharf Extension).

Resolution #13-96, Authorizing Contracts With Orde Advertising For Riverwalk And

Wildlife Viewing Pier Signage.

Resolution #13-97, Approving Proposal/Contract Agreement For Antennas Between The
City Of De Pere And Dixon Engineering, Inc. (Verizon Wireless Antenna Upgrade).

Discuss Classification and Compensation Study.
Retiree Insurance Review.

Discussion regarding the status of implementing Minute Traq Software.
Voucher approval.
Applications for Operator’s Licenses.

Future agenda items.
Discuss Collective Bargaining Strategy.

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that pursuant to Wis. Stats. §19.85(1)(e), the
Council may convene in closed session for the purpose of deliberating or
negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public
funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session.

The Council may then reconvene in open session to take action on any
matter discussed in closed session or for such other purposes as are
allowed by law.

Discussion of status of Knaus v. Town of Ledgeview and City of De Pere.

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT, pursuant to Wis. Stats. Sec. 19.85(1(g),

the Council may convene in closed session to confer with legal council for
the Council who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to

be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely

to become involved.

The Council may then reconvene in open session to take action on any
matter discussed in closed session or for such other purposes as are
allowed by law.

Adjournment.
Lawrence M. Delo
City Administrator



Any person wishing to attend this meeting who, because of disability, requires special
accommodations should contact the Clerk-Treasurer’s office at 339-4050 by Noon, July 15,
2013 so that arrangements can be made.

AGENDA SENT TO:

Mayor

Alderpersons

Department Heads

TV, Newspapers, & Radio Stations
Kress Family Library

De Pere Chamber of Commerce
Orde Sign & Graphics, Inc.
Firehouse Pub & Grill

Pubhaus at 600, LL.C

Sidekicks Bar & Grill

Seidl & Associates




COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN — July 2, 2013

The Common Council of the City of De Pere, Wisconsin, met in regular session at the Council Chambers in City Hall on
Tuesday, July 2, 2013.

Mayor Mike Walsh called the meeting to order at 7:32 p.m. Roll call was taken and the following members were present:
Alderpersons Kevin Bauer, James Boyd, Scott Crevier, Michael Donovan, Robert Heuvelmans, Jim Kneiszel, and Lisa
Rafferty. Alderperson Larry Lueck was excused. The Councif said the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

3. Alderperson Crevier moved, seconded by Alderperson Boyd, to approve the minutes of the June 18, 2013 Regular
Meeting of the Common Council. Upon vote, the minutes were approved unanimously.

4A. Public Hearing to act on proposed amendments to the De Pere Zoning code to amend §14-29(7) regarding rezoning
protest petitions and the time for Council action on rezoning applications in Chapter 14 of the De Pere Municipal Code
was presented. Clerk Shana Defnet announced the Notice of Public Hearing was pubhshed in the City’s Official
Newspaper, the De Pere Journal, on June 13" and June 20", 2013

4B. City Planner Ken Pabich stated that the Plan Commissmn recommended approval and gave an overview of the
proposed ordinance. :

Mayor Walsh declared the public hearing open for anyone Wlshmg fo speak ‘Mary Jane Herber 849 N. Clay, De Pere,
asked about the amendments made to the ord1nance No one else W1shed to speak and Mayor Walsh declared the public
hearing closed. . o

4C. Ordinance 13-13, Amending §14-29(7) De Pere Municipal Code Regarding Rezoning Protest Petitions And Time For
Council Action On Rezoning Applications was presented for consideration. Discussion followed. Alderperson Crevier
moved, seconded by Alderperson: Boyd to approve the ordinance: Upon vote, motion carried 5-2 with Alderpersons
Heuvelmans and Kneiszel votmg nay A second reading of thlS ordlnance is requ1red

5. Public Comment or other Announce_ments.. N_'one.

*Ttem #10 was addressé ;thls tlme

RECOMMENDATION FROM THE BOARD OP PARK COMMISSIONERS
6A. A donation from ENCAP to seed and fertilize area next to Legion Park Playground was presented. Alderperson
Donovan moved, seconded by Alderperson Rafferty to. approve the donation. Upon vote, motion carried unanimously.

6B. A donation of $2, 000 f'rom Wochinske Foundatmn to the Recreation Scholarship Fund was presented. Alderperson
Rafferty moved, seconded by Alderperson Donovan 1o approve the donation. Upon vote, motion carried unanimously.

RECOMMENDATION FROM THE:PLAN COMMISSION

7A. An extraterritorial single lot CSM on French Road in the Town of Lawrence, Surveyor: Richard Huxford was
presented. Alderperson Boyd moved, seconded by Alderperson Bauer to approve the recommendation. Upon vote,
motion carried unanimously.

RECOMMENDATION FROM THE LICENSE COMMITTEE

8A. Application for a Class “B” Beer & “Class B” Liquor License for El Presidente Mexican Bar & Grill, 500 Main
Ave., De Pere, WI was presented. Alderperson Bauer moved, seconded by Alderperson Heuvelmans to approve the
apphcatlon Upon vote, motion carried unanimously.

9. Resolution 13-88, Authorizing And Approving Revocable Occupancy Permit For Downtown De Pere Inc., D/B/A
Definitely De Pere For Bridging The Arts Art Walk was presented. Alderperson Kneiszel moved, seconded by
Alderperson Rafferty to approve the resolution. Upon vote, motion carried unanpimously.



#10. Resolution 13-89, Authorizing Street Name Change (Ashland Avenue to Mike McCarthy Avenue) was presented.
Alderperson Boyd moved, seconded by Alderperson Heuvelmans to approve the resolution. Discussion followed.
Alderperson Boyd moved, seconded by Alderperson Heuvelmans to amend the resolution to change the name from “Mike
McCarthy Avenue” to “McCarthy Avenue”. Discussion followed. Upon vote, motion carried unanimously. Alderperson
Donovan moved, seconded by Alderperson Crevier to open the meeting. Upon vote, motion carried unanimously.

-Brion Hayward, 1010 N. Ashland Ave, Green Bay, stated the directionals of Ashland Avenue are confusing; if the street
name is going to be changed, he requested that they fix directionals as well.

-Dean Raasch, 733 St. Mary’s Street, De Pere, stated that the Council should let Green Bay and Ashwaubenon bring this
before their council/board before the City of De Pere votes on it.

-Allyson Watson, Executive Director for Definitely De Pere, stated that she likes that even though De Pere is only miles
from Green Bay, it has its own identity. R

-Mary Jane Herber, 849 N. Clay, De Pere, explained the history of Aéhlaﬁa'xAVenue.

Alderperson Crevier moved, seconded by Alderperson Boyd to close the meeting. Upon vote, motion carried
unanimously. Discussion followed. Alderperson Bauer moved, seconded by Alderperson Kneiszel to amend the
resolution to read that no taxpayer dollars be used to complete the name change, and that businesses affected receive a
$500 grant and residents receive a $50 grant to help cover the.costs of the name change. Upon roll call vote, motion
carried 4-3 with Alderpersons Boyd, Donovan, and Heuvelmans voting nay. "Discussion followed. Alderperson Rafferty
moved, seconded by Alderperson Donovan, to refér the resolution back to staff. Upon vote, motion approved 5-2 with

Alderpersons Kneiszel and Crevier voting nay. = o

##11. Resolution 13-90, Disallowance Of Claim (l-'I'a_tt_Au:td,. EEC) was préséﬁ_t_ed. Alderperson Bauer moved, seconded

by Alderperson Rafferty to close the meeting at 8:56 p.m. Upon roll call vote, motion carried unanimously. Discussion in
closed session followed. Alderperson Donovan moved, seconded:by Alderperson Kneiszel to open the meeting. Upon

vote, motion carried unanimously. Alderpetson Donovan moved, seconded by Alderperson Bauer, to disallow the claim.
Upon vote, motion carried unanimously. — * L "

12. The vouchers were presented. Aidéip_e_rsdn EB_;}HEP moved; s:e:_{:qnded by Alderperson Rafferty to approve the vouchers.

Upon vote, motion carried unanimously:

13. Applications for Operator’s Licenses were presented.

. CITY OF DE PERE - JULY 2, 2013
ITEM#|NAME L ADDRESS CITY ST| ZIP
Previously Tabled Operator Licenses for the 2012-2014 Licensing Period
1 |ALSUM, DESIRAEN. = = 1971 SWAN RD. #223 DE PERE WI, 54115
2 |GEURTS, TYLERD. i 1229 MARQUETTE AVE, GREEN BAY WI| 54304
3 |RAUSCHER, JEFFREYV. . 621 LEWIS ST. DE PERE WI|54115
4 |ZELINER, AMY L. 813 FIM ST. DE PERE WI| 54115
Operator Licenses for the 2012-2014 Licensing Period
1 |ANDERSON, STEFANIE L. 1236 LOCH DR. GREEN BAY WI, 54304
2 |BELLEAU, DAVID A, W1472 TALLFEATHER WAY SEYMOUR WI| 54165
3 |PAUDEL, JEETA 1305 LUCERNE DR., #23 MENASHA W1| 54952
4 |PIETERS, HOLLYE. 316 S. HURON ST. DE PERE WI| 54115
5  |SMITH, AMANDAR. 2860 PIONEER DR. GREEN BAY WIi54313
6 |WALSH, KERRIL. 3835 E. RIVER DR., #5 GREEN BAY W1 54301

Alderperson Bauer moved, seconded by Alderperson Crevier to approve Previousty Tabled Operator Licenses #1, 3, 4 and
to table Previously Tabled Operator License #2. Upon vote, motion carried unanimously. Alderperson Bauer moved,



seconded by Alderperson Boyd to table Operator License #5 and to approve Operator Licenses #1-4 & 6. Upon vote,
motion carried unanimously.

14. Future Agenda Items. Alderperson Donovan requested a report on the progress of the Mac Dental building and
Alderperson Crevier requested an update on the status of MinuteTrag.

**Jtem #11 was addressed at this time.

Alderperson Kneiszel moved, seconded by Alderperson Rafferty to adjourn. Upon vote, motion carried unanimously.
The Common Council adiourned at 8:59 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Shana Defnet
Clerk-Treasurer




RECOMMENDATION

July 9, 2013
De Pere, Wisconsin

Recommendation to the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Common Council as approved by
the Finance/Personnel Committee at their duly convened meeting held July 9, 2013:

A. Emergency repair to Legion Baby Pool.

Respectfully Submitted

Finance/Personnel Committee

Lawrence Delo
City Administrator



City of De Pere, Wisconsin

Request For Finance/Personnel Committee Action

MEETING DATE: July 9, 2013

DEPARTMENT: Parks, Recreation & Forestry

FROM: Marty Kosobucki

SUBJECT: Emergency Repair to Legion Park Pool

During the spring set up of Legion Pool, we uncovered the Baby Pool at Legion Park had a
cracked pipe. During the initial repair, it was uncovered the damage was far more in-depth than
originally thought. We estimate the repair to be around $15,000. Thave included a memo from
Stephanie Aerts, our Recreation Supervisor in charge of the pools, which gives greater detail of
the issue.

ATTACHMENTS:
¢ 2013 Memo (FINANCE COMMITTEE) for Legion Baby Pool Repairs  (DOCX)

Updated: 7/2/2013 2:03 PM | Page 1



Memorandum

To: Members of the Finance Commiittee
From: Stephanie Aerts

Parks and Recreation Supervisor
Re: Legion Baby Pool Repairs
Date: 7/2/13

Issue: Legion Baby Pool is in need of major repairs to open for the 2013 season.

Summary: Prior to the season opening of the pools (June 8, 201 3), during the routine
startup of the baby pool at Legion park, a leak in the main pipe was found under the pool
deck. Initial beliefs by the contractors and staff were that there was one single crack in
the pipe. Once the initial crack was fixed and prior to completing the cement and
plastering, a follow up pressure test was done on the pipe which found more cracks
further down the main pipe. A camera found that only about 3’ of the main pipe did not
have cracking and one of the 4 inlet pipes was also cracked. (The camera was unable to
access the 3 remaining inlet pipes, but the opinions are that they are also cracked as well.)
The cracking in the pipes is due to a leak in the winter seals which allowed water into the
pipes, the water expanded when frozen and therefore cracked the piping. To date, the
repairs for the initial crack are $2,800. The follow up estimate by the contractors to
complete the repairs in the Legion Baby Pool is $15,000 total.

Request: The Parks, Recreation and Forestry Department is requesting $15,000 to
complete the emergency repairs to the Legion Baby Pool.



LICENSE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

July 16, 2013
De Pere, Wisconsin

Recommendations to the Honorable Mayor and Members of the Common Council as approved by the License
Committee at their duly convened meeting held on July 16, 2013.

1.

Application for a Class “B” Beer & “Class B” Liquor License for Firehouse Bar & Grili, 338 Main St.,
De Pere, WI. Submitted by WIM Enterprise, LLC, Agent: Michael John Wilmet, 1302 McCormick St.,
Green Bay, WI 54301,

Application for a Premise Description Change for Pubhaus at 600, 600 George St., De Pere, W1

Submitted by Pubhaus at 600, LLC, owned by Bobbi Schroeder, Agent: Bobbi Schroeder, 600 George
St., De Pere, W1 54115,

Application for 2 Temporary Premise Description Change for Sidekicks Bar & Grill, 930 Main Ave., De
Pere, WI. Submitted by DKG Entertainment, Agent: Denise A. Gajeski, 846 Elm St., De Pere, W1
S54115.

Respectfully Submitted,

License Committee
Shana Defnet
Clerk-Treasurer
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ORIGINAL ALCOHOL BEVERAGE RETAIL LICENSE APPLICATION Rpplicants Wisoansh
Submif to municipal clerk. E‘Ei?éi'r ?r[nEp:!isg'er [dentification 46-3071817
For the license pariod beginning 07/1 2013 ; LICENSE REQUESTED ¥
o g/ ending 06/30 2014 TYPE FEE
"F#il[ 7 ' . [ Class A besr £
e Bf . ] TC"WH of De Pere [ Class B beer $
TO THE GOVERNING BODY of the: [ Vl.liage of ] Class C wine $
City of [} Class Aliquor %
County of Brown Aldermanic Rist. No. (i required by ordinance) [} Class B liquor $
T [} Reserve Class B liquor $
1. Thenamed [ INDIVIDUAL [T PARTNERSHIP LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY Publication fee $ gééi}x/ g’ggg,f
] CORPORATION/NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION TOTAL FEE 3

hereby makes application for the alcohol beverage license(s) checked above.

Name findividualinartners cive last name, first, middls; corporations/imited liability companies give registered name).
o WIM Enterprise LLC

An “Auxiliary Questionnalre,” Form AT-103, must be completed and atiached to this application by each individual applicant, by each member of a

partnership, and by each officer, direcior and agent of a corporation or nonprofit organization, and by each memberfmanager and agent of a limited

liahility company. List the name, tille, and place of residence of sach person.

Title ‘ Name . Home Address | Post Office & Zip Code
President/Member President Michael John Wilmet 1302 McCormick St. 5430 -
Vice President/Member
Secretary/Member
Treasurer/Member
Agent §Michae1John Wilmet i
Directors/Managers
3 Trade Name p Firehouse Bar & Grill Business Phone Numbsr ¢ 920) 632-7218
4 Address of Premises p 538 Main St. Post Office & Zip Code B 54115
. Is individual, pariners or agent of somorationfimited Yiability company subject to completion of the responsibia beverage setver
{raining course for this HCense PEROG? . ..o\ o e 7 Yes No
8. s the applicant an empicye or agent of, or acting on behalf of anyone except the named applicant? .. ... CiYes [“iMNo
7. Does any other alceho! beverage retal licensee o wholesale petmitiee have any interest in or conirol of this business?. . ... []Yes (] No
8. (a} Corporateflimited liability company applicants only: Insert state anddate __ ofregisiration.
(b} ls applicant corporation/limited liability company & subsidiary of any other corporation or limited liabllity company?. ... [ Yes No
ic) Does the corporation, of any officer, director, stockholder or agent or limited fiability cotnpany, cr any member/manager or
agent hold any interest in any other alcohol beverage license or permit in Wisconsin? .. ....ov e 7] Yes No
(NOTE: All appficants explain fully on reverse side of this form every YES answer in sections 5, 6, 7 and 8 above.}
9. Premises description: Describe bulding or buiidings where alconol baverages are to be sold and stored. The applicant must include
all roorns Inciuding living quarters, if used, for the sales, service, andlor storage of alcohal bevesages and records. {Alepha! beverages
may be soid and stored only on the premises described.) ¥/ =5 5 oo sz AICwTEA
10. Legal description (omit f straet address is given abovey.
11. (a} Was this premises licansed for the sale of liguor or beer during the pastlisense Year?. . .....oooee e [“] Yes [ No
(b If ves, under what name was license issued?
12, Dogs the applicant understand they must fle 2 Special Cocupational Tax refurn {TTB form 5630.5)
hefore beginning business? [phone 1-B00-93T-BBB4] . ...\ v v e [¢l Yes {1 HNo
13, Does the applicant tnderstand a Wisconsin Sefler's Permit must be applied for and issued in the same name as that shown in
Section 2, above? [phone (BOBY 2BB-2776]. ... .. oour et Yes [ ] No
14. Does the applicant undarstand that they must purchase alcohcl beverages only from VWisconsin wholesalers, brewaries and brawpubs?. . [r] Yes ] No

READ GAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING: Under penalty provided by law, the applicant states that zach of the above questions has been truthfully answered to the best of the knowl-
edge of the signers. Signers agree 1o aperate this business according to law and thai the sights and respansibilities sonferred by the ticense(s), if granted, will not be assigned to
another. ({Individugi applicants and each member of 3 parinership applicant must sign; corperate officer(s), membersimanagars of Limited Liabifity Companies must sign.) Any lack of

access to any portion of & licensed premises during inspection will be deemed a refusal to permit inspaatjon. Su{ch afusal is a misde
SUBSCRiB}D AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME /w

Dgryr b .
this AFAY_ dayol _Jeriic 20/ 2

= Ny o P
rrray LI

anor and grounds for revocation of this license,

L

fioer of Chglaration/Member/Mysdger of Limiled Lizbilty Company/Periner/Incividusl)

My cém"r}n'rssion expires K- T

I I.-f/ (Clerid/hiotary, F’ub(iiij {OFficer of Corporation/Member/Manager of Limited Liability Company/Partner}

4

(Additional Partner(s}/itember/ianager of Limited Lisbifity Company if Any)

TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK

with municipal clerk

Fate recelved and filed Date reported ta councilfboard Date provisiona) license isshed 1 Signature of Clerk / Deputy Clerk
Data licanse granted Date license issued License number issued ‘

AT-106 (R. 1-12) Wisconsin Depariment of Revenue



Premise Description Change
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ORIGINAL ALCOHOL BEVERAGE RETAIL LICENSE APPLICATION Applcarts Wisconain
Submiit fo icipal clerk. Federdl Employer Iderfincato
upmi municipar cler, R Nin?t:ir (?EF:NFT ('_E/:f { n 2 S o4
For the license period beginning BRI PP B 20 | = ; LICENSE REQUESTED §
”? //} {f’? ending = iin 9, =Y 20 iy TYPE FEE
. ! {_1 Class A beer $
Ae #.7 i T(_)wn of / . [FCiass B beer 3
TO THE GOVERNING BODY ofthe: [ V;.llage of F)'i /‘ﬁ!{/ [ ] Class C wine 5
i [~ City of [ ] Class A liquor 3
County of [l a iy Aldermanic Dist. No. (if required by ordinance) | le-€lass B liquor $
: - [ Reserve Class B liguor | $
1. Thenamed L] INDIVIDUAL  [[J PARTNERSHIF  Ri) LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY Puication fee $ ;
[T} CORPORATION/NONPROHT ORGANIZATION TOTAL FEE $ N S
hereby makes application for the alcohel baverage license(s) checked above. .
2. Mame (individualipartners give last name, first, middle; sorporationsfimited fizbility companies give regisierad name): b
whhoyS ot bO0 LLC apned by Bxipbo Scinrcedec
An "Auxiliary Questionnaire,” Form AT-103, must be Completed and attached to this application by each individual applicant, by each member of a
partnership, and by each officer, director and agent of a corporation or nonprofit organization, and by each memberfmanager and agent of a imited
liability company. List the name, fitle, and place of residence of each person.
. ,‘Txt!e N Name Home Address .. Post Office & Zip Code
EieadetiMember _ Ligibi | Sihredas bop Geovae C8 Polere il S4(1S
Vice President/Member
Secretary/Member
Treasurer/Member
Agent b £ 4100 Crinrpedil
Directors/Managers .
3. TradeName b Fulhaus & £ e Business Phone Number ___ 22 & 555 Sied
4 Address of Premises b (w0 {”5:5';11‘ e St Post Office & Zip Code b _£Z¢C v ¢ oy Swps
5, s individual, partners or agent of corporation/fimited liakility company subject to complefion of the responsitie beverage serves
treining course for this licanse Period? .. .. .. .o Lo M Yes s
6. s the applicant an employe or agent of, or acting on behalf of anyone except the named applicart? ... CYes [¥No
7. Doss any other alcoho! baverage refail licensee or wholesale permities have any inferest in or contro! of this busin%ss? ............... FlYes EfNo
8. (a) Corporatellimited Hability company applicants only: Insert staie i8¢ i and date _F/A{[12  of regisiration. y
{0} Is applicant corporationfimited fability cormpany a subsidiary of any other corporation or fimited flability company?. ... ... L [MYes [dnNo
{c) Does the corporation, or any officer, director, stockholder or agent or fimited fability company, or any memberimanager or
agent hoid any interest in any other alcohol beverage license or parmitin Wisconsin? . ... ..o [ Yes [E]/No
(NOTE: Ail appiicants expiain fully on reverse side of this form every YES answer in sections 5, 6, 7 and & above. )
9. Premises descripticn; Describe building o buildings where alcohol bevarages are to be sold and stored. The applicant must include
" all rooms including living quarters, if used, for the sales, servics, and/or storage of alconol beveragas and records. (Alcohol beverages )
may be sold and siored only on the premises described.) hary dun VE ek el et f L oG el Thea afve .. ol E:;f“i‘idf’ Secking s apfrt ‘e
. . o ’ J T T ' ; 7 N ki 4 -
10, Legal description {omit if strest address is given above).
1. {2) Was this premises licensed for the sale of liquor or beer during the past license YRR .. O _.E"’Yes 1 No
(b} If yes, under what name was license issued? Foohows ot b0t {30130 Aychyss Froin {geed- 3-1-13)
12. Doss the applicant understand they must file 2 Special Occupational Tax return {TTB form 5630.5} .
before beginning business? [phone 1-800-937-8BB4] . ... .. . o e Mves [hNo
13. Does the applicant understand a Wisconsin Seller's Permit must be applied for and issued in the same nams as that shown in
Section 2, 3DOVET [Bhone (B08) 286-2775]. . .. ... et et dYes [ No
14, Does the applicant understand that they must purchase alcohol beverages onty from Wisconsin wholesalers, breweries and brewpubs?. . [.4Yes [ ] No

READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGRING: Under penalty provided by law, the applicant stafes that each of the above questions has been truthfully answered fo the best of the knowl-
edge of the signers. Signers agree to operate this business according o law and that the rights and responsibilities conferred by the ficense(s), if granted, will not be assigned o
another. (individual applicants and each member of a partnership applicant must sign; corporaie officer(s), members/managers of Limited Liability Companies must sign.} Any lack of
access to any portion of a licensed premises during inspection will be deemed a refusal fo permiiin/sgesj)ion. Such refusal is & misdemeanor and grounds for revocation of this license.

SURSCRIBED AND.SWORN TO yg?us ME il /éa\ (
|- al ;{k‘l / L

tis 25 #7 ayof _
- {OFfCEr of Corporb{tanﬁﬂé‘ﬁabef??ﬁanager of Limited Liabifity Company/Partner/individuall

/ =
£
= A F T (Clerk/Nazaty Public)
My commission expires Flrea. 227 ol S
(i v

0L

P X

A

" (Officer of Corporation/Member/Manager of Limited Liability Company/Partner)

(Additional Fanner(s)/Member/tanager of Limfted Liability Company if Any)

TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK
Date received and filed
with municipal dlerk 3.2 5~ -3

Date ficense granted

Date reporiad 1o councilfoard Daie provisional license issued Signature of Clark / Deputy Clerk

Date license issuer . ticense number issued

AT-108 (R, 1-12) Wisconsin Department of Revenue



I ,ﬂ rd
Temporary Premise Description Change Q”/ For: 744K Jﬁ‘//ﬁé k%]ufﬁ A2 ,' A=
' List Special Event Here Y  No Fee

ORIGINAL ALCOHOL BEVERAGE RETAIL LICENSE APPLICATION éiﬁifiﬁ:rlﬁ’ffii”éii‘eéé‘é DO o 4R - 02
Submit fo municipal clerk. Federal Employer [Gentification
Nurber (FEINY: j Wy /24
For the license period beginning 20 ; LICENSE REQUESTED §
ending ) 20 . TYPE FEE
rﬁf ;ﬁ % — T Class Abeer 5
no fﬁ f4"Class B beer 3
70 THE COVERNING BODY of the: 7] Village of} DNe #ErE s -
[X City of { ] Class Aliquor $
County of ﬁ( 18 )é! Aldermanic Dist. No Méz {if required by ordinance) [ Class B liquor $
7 {“"Reserve Class Bliguor  |$
1. Thenamed [ INDIVIDUAL [} PARTNERSHIP gL!MITED LIABILITY COMPANY Publication fee $ ]
] CORPORATION/NONPROFIT ORGANIZATICN TOTAL FEE ¥ No Fee -

hereby makes application for the alcohol baverage ficense(s) checked above.
7. Name (individualipartners give last name, first, middle, corporationsflimited fability companies give registersd name)

DKE ENTERTAINAENT

An “Auxifiary Questionnaire,” Form AT-103, must be completed and attached io this application by each individual applicant, by each member of &
partnership, and by each officer, director and agent of a corporation or nonprofit arganization, and by each member/manager and agent of a limited
liability company. Listthe name, tide, and place of residence of each person.

Title

Name Home Address Post Office & Zip Code
presidentiMomber SAELLBER Denise a Cajest, " $do et ST Qe fege SANS
Vics PresidentMember AAEA/EER. Auer T éﬁ jeSES % 14 ST DE frwe SHNE
Secrefary/Member
Treasurer/Member i . , -
Agent ¥ N1 %e A (hcx\\t’g'?‘\ ! LY Elm2ST /27//?0/({ SV
Directors/Managers o )
3. Trade Name }S‘{OEKI p&Ks Dok v /:’46/ /7 Business Phone Number 920 AX- AR5t
4. Address of Premises »_ IO Afasw/  Ave Post Office & Zip Code b D& LERe  SH//E
5. lsindividual, pariners or agent of corporationfimited fiability company subject fo completion of the responsible beverage server

training course for this eense PERO? . . .. .. o e e T Yes w No
€. s the applicant an employe or agent of, or acting on behalf of anyene except the namead applicant? .. ... .. e [ves  [Beo
7. Dioes any ather alcohol beverage retall licensee or wholesale permittes have any inferest in or control of thas b smess’r‘ e .E ves  [rNo
8. (a) Corporatellimited liability company applicants onty: insert stais and date iﬁﬁQO_Juof registration

(b) is applicant corporationfimited liability company a subsidiary of any other corporation of limited liabflity company?. ... ........ [ Yes g.No

{t) Does the corporation, or any officer, directer, stockholder or agent or limited liability company, or any member/manager o

agent hold any interest in any ofher aloohol beverage license or permitin Wisconsim? ... [ Yes ﬂ No

(NOTE: All applicants explain fully on reverse side of this form every YIS answer in sections 5, 5, 7 and & ahove.)

9. Premises descripfion. Describe building or buiidings where aloohol beverages are to be sold and stored. The applicant must include
all rooms including living quarters, if used, for the sales, sepvice, and/or storage of alcohol beverages and records. (Alochol beverages

may be soid and stored oniy on the premises descnbed -. 742 R Koo alnoog. (oo 4
10, legerdecerptior{emitisieetadtressis e I00VER A Bins F g for 70 SouTH
11, (a) Was this premises licensed for the sale othuo or beer during the past license ye r? e X Yes T Ne

{b) If yes, under what name was ficense issued? EX 1A KS /‘ﬁq@ -
12, Does the applicant understand they must file a Special Gcoupational Tax return {TT5 form 5530.5}

before beginning business? fphone 1-800-837-8864] .. e B8 Yes O No
13, Does the applicant understand a Wisconsin Seller’s Perm\i rnusi be apphed for and :ssued in the same name 23 that shown in
Secfion 2, #beve? [Phone (B08) Z8B-27T8] . ...t Hyes 1Mo

14. Does the applicant understand that they must purchase alcohol beverages only from Wisconsin wholesalers, breweries and brewpubs? Mves TNo

READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING: Undsr penalty provided by law, the appliceni states that each of the above questions has been truthfully answered to the best of the knowl-
adge of the signers. Signers agree to operate this bushess zccording to law and that the rights and responsibilites conferred by the license(s), i granted, will not be assigned to
another. {individual applicants and each member of a parinership applicant must sign; corparate officer(s), membersimanagers of Limited Liability Compames must sign.) Any lack of
atcess to any portion of 2 icensed premises during inspestion will be deemed & refusal fo permit ingp® stion. Such refusal is a misdem nor angd gro ior revocation of this ficense.

SUBSCRIBED ARD SWORN TO BEFORE ME

hls(ﬁ?& ny \_JU ne. .20 /3 W S /i b7 LA '
% i i A A Limited Lifbiity Company/Parnerindividual)

arE/Norery lublic) ﬂ ) AT oA ' e'n’/Managerc:fUmi!eu‘Liabh‘i{yCompany/Parfner)

My commission eglres ﬂ ~Ggif

(Addiional Partner(s)/Member/Manager of Limited Liabitity Company if Any}

70 BE COMPLETED BY CLERK

Date received and filed Daig repored o councivboard Date provisional ficense issued Signalure of Clerk { Deputy Clerk
with municipal clerk

[ate license granied Date license issued Licenss number issusd

AT-106 (R, 1-12} Wisconsin Departrment of Revenue



ORDINANCE #13-13
AMENDING §14-29(7) DE PERE MUNICIPAL CODE
REGARDING REZONING PROTEST PETITIONS AND
TIME FOR COUNCIL ACTION ON REZONING APPLICATIONS

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of De Pere, having reviewed the
recommendation of the City Plan Commission regarding the proposed change to the zoning code
pertaining to rezoning protest petitions and time for council action on rezoning applications and
having scheduled a public hearing then to be decided by the Common Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Clerk-Treasurer, having published a Notice of Public Hearing
regarding such proposed zoning change and, pursuant thereto, a public hearing having been held
on the 2™ day of July, 2013 at 7:30 p.m. and the Commuon Council having heard all interested
parties or their agents and attorneys.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DE PERE,
WISCONSIN, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. §14-29(7)(b} is hereby repealed and recreated as follows:

(b)(1) The Common Council may grant or deny any application for an
amendment; provided however that in case ol a protest against a proposed
amendment duly signed and acknowledged by the owners of 20% or more
cither of the areas of the land included in such proposed amendment, or by
the owners of 20% or more of the area of the land immediately adjacent
extending 100 feet therefrom, or by the owners of 20% or more of the land
directly opposite thereto extending 100 feet from the street frontage of
such opposite land, such amendment shall not become effective except by
the favorable vote of three-fourths of the members of the Council voting

on the proposed change.

(2) Any protest petition shall be filed with the City Clerk-Treasurer no later
than noon on the Friday preceding the scheduled vote.



Ordinance #13-13
Page 2 of 2
Section 2. §14-29(7)(c) is hereby repealed and recreated as follows:

(c) If an application for a proposed amendment is not acted upon finally by
the Common Council within 90 days of the public hearing for such
amendment, it shall be deemed to have been denied. This paragraph shall
not apply in circumstances where the application is referred back to staff
or committee after the public hearing is held.

Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect on and after its passage and publication.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of De Pere, this 16" day of July, 2013.

APPROVED:

Michael J. Walsh, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shana L. Defnet, Clerk-Treasurer
Ayes:

Nays:



COMMON COUNCIHL
OF THE
CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

July 16, 2013 Resolution No. 13-91

A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of
$5,745,000% General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 20134,
and All Related Details

RECITALS

The Common Council (the “Governing Body”) of the City of De Pere,
Wisconsin (the “Issuer”) makes the following findings and determinations:

1. The Issuer needs funds for the following purposes:

Maximum Amount Amount
Authorized B Purpose
orrowed
$1,725,000 $ street lighting, street improvements, and street
improvement funding;

295,000 parks and public grounds, including, but not limited to,
construction of and improvements to parking lots and
ponds;

2,835,000 for acquiring and developing sites for industry and
commerce as will expand the municipal tax base,
including, but not limited to, infrastructure improvements
within the City’s Tax Incremental Districts Numbers 6, 7,
8,9, and 10 (collectively, the “Project”); and

1,120,000 current refunding of the Issuer’s outstanding $1,790,000
Genera) Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series
2003C, dated July 1, 2003.

2. On June 4, 2013, the Governing Body adopted four initial resolutions

authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds of the Issuer in the maximum principal
amounts and for the purposes described above (the “Initial Resolutions”).

3. On June 4, 2013, the Governing Body also adopted a resolution
authorizing and directing the publication of notice of the adoption of the Initial Resolutions
relating to the Project (the “Publication Resolution”).
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4. On June 4, 2013, the Governing Body also adopted a resolution
authorizing the amounts and purposes specified in the Tnitial Resolutions to be combined into a
single bond issue designated as “corporate purpose bonds” (the “Authorizing Resolution”).

5. - The Clerk of the Issuer caused notice of the following actions:

6 Notice of the adoption of the Initial Resolutions. Notice of the
adoption of the Initial Resolutions relating to the Project (the
“Legal Notice”) was given by publication of a nofice in the
Issuer’s official newspaper on June 13, 2013 in the manner and
form directed by the Publication Resolution.

(i)  Notice of the sale of the Obligations. Notice of the sale (the
“Notice to Bidders™) of the City of De Pere, Wisconsin General
Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A (the
“Obligations”) was given to such media typically monitored by
potential bidders in the manner and form directed by the
Authorizing Resolution.

These notices are made of record in these proceedings, and the Governing Body ratifies the
notices.

6. No sufficient petition for referendum on the question of the adoption or
effectivencss of any Initial Resolution relating to the Project or issuance of the Obligations was
filed with the Clerk of the Issuer within 30 days after the date on which the Initial Resolutions
were adopted.

7. In accordance with the Notice to Bidders and the bidding terms that were
included in the document that was ased for offering the Obligations for sale by competitive bid
(the “Official Terms of Offering”), written bids for the sale of the Obligations were received
and delivered to the Governing Body.

8. The Governing Body has considered all the bids it received. The
Governing Body has decided to accept the bid of , or a group that it represents
(the “Purchaser”), to purchase the Obligations on the terms specified in the Purchaser’s bid. The
Purchaser bid the price of $ for the entire issue of Obligations (the “Purchase
Price™), plus any accrued interest, and specified that the Obligations maturing on December 1 in the
years shown below will bear interest at the respective interest rates shown below:
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Principal Inierest Principal Interest

Yeat Amount Rate Year Amount Rate
2014 $740,000 Yo 2022 $290,000 %
2015 600,000 2023 290,000
2016 575,000 2024 150,000
2017 615,000 2025 150,000
2018 600,000 2026 160,000
2019 560,000 2027 160,000
2020 275,000 2028 235,000
2021 275,000
9. The Purchaser’s bid complies with all terms of the Notice to Bidders and

the Official Terms of Offering.

10.  The Issuer has taken all actions required by law and has the power to sell
and issue the Obligations.

11.  The Governing Body is adopting this resolution to sell the Obligations and
provide for their issuance upon the terms and conditions set forth in this resolution.

RESOLUTIONS

The Governing Body resolves as follows:

Section 1. Definitions.

Tn this resolution, the following terms have the meanings given in this section,
unless the context clearly requires another meaning.

“Book-Entry System” means a system in which no physical distribution of
certificates representing ownership of the Obligations is made to the owners of the Obli gations
but instead all outstanding Obli gations are registered in the name of a securities depository
appointed by the lssuer, or in the name of such a depository’s nominee, and the depository and
its participants record beneficial ownership and etfect transfers of the Obligations electronically.

«“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

«“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, dated as of the Original Issue Date, to be executed by the [ssuer and delivered on the
closing date of the Obligations.

“Debt Service Fund” means the fund created by the Issuer pursuant to
Section 67.11 of the Wisconsin Statutes to provide for the payment of debt service on its general
obligations.

“Depository” means DTC or any successor appointed by the Issuer and acting as
securities depository for the Obligations.
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“prc” means The Depository Trust Company.
“Financial Officer’” means the Issuer’s Treasurer.

“Fiscal Agent” means Associated Trust Company, National Association, or any
successor fiscal agent appointed by the Issuer to act as paying agent and registrar for the
Obligations pursuant to Section 67.10 (2) of the Wisconsin Statutes.

“Governing Body” means the Issuer’s Common Council.

“Initial Resolutions” has the meaning set forth in the recitals to this resolution.

“Jssuer” means the City of De Pere, Wisconsin.

“Legal Notice” means the notice of the adoption of, among other resolutions, the
Tnitial Resolutions relating to the Project. The Legal Notice was published in the Issuer’s official

newspaper on June 13, 2013.

“Municipal Officers” means the Mayor and the Clerk of the Tssuer. These are
the officers required by law to execute general obligations on the Issuer’s behalf.

“Obligations” means the $5,745,000% City of De Pere, Wisconsin General
Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A, which will be issued pursuant to this

resolution.

“QOfficial Terms of Offering” has the meaning set forth in the recitals to this
resolution.

“Qrigjinal Issue Date” means August 13, 2013.

“Prior Bonds” means the Issuer’s $1,790,000 General Obligation Corporate
Purpose Bonds, Series 2003C, dated July 1, 2003.

“Project” has the meaning given in the recitals to this resolution.

“Purchase Price” means $

“Purchaser” means , or a group that it represents.

“Record Date” means the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the
calendar month just before a regularly scheduled interest payment date for the Obligations.

“Recording Officer” means the Issuer’s Clerk.
“Redemption Date” means October 1, 2013.

“Refunding” means the current refunding of the outstanding principal amount of
the Prior Bonds.
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“Register” means the register maintained by the Fiscal Agent at its designated
office, in which the Fiscal Agent records:

1) The name and address of the owner of each Obligation.
(iiy  All transfers of each Obligation.

“Treasurer” means the Issuer’s Treasurer.

Section 2. Exhibits.

The attached exhibits are also a part of this resolution as though they were fully
written out in this resolution:

1) Exhibit A — Form of Obligation.
(i)  Exhibit B— Notice to Electors of Sale.

Section 3. Corporate Purpose Bonds.

The Issuer is combining the general obligation bonds authorized under the Initial
Resolutions into a single bond issue and designating them as “corporate purpose bonds”.

Section 4. Purposes of Borrowing; Issuance of Oblisations.

The Governing Body authorizes the Obligations and orders that they be prepared,
executed, and issued. The Obligations will be fully registered, negotiable, general obligation
corporate purpose bonds of the Issuer in the principal amount of $5,745,000%. The Obligations
will be issued pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the
authority granted by the adoption of the Initial Resolutions to pay the costs of the Project, the
Refunding, and to pay certain expenses of issuing the Obligations (including printing costs, fees
for financial consultants, bond counsel, fiscal agent, rating agencies, insurance, and registration,
as applicable).

Section 5. Terms of Obligations.

The Obligations will be named “City of De Pere, Wisconsin General Obligation
Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A.7 The Obligations will be dated the Original Issue
Date, even if they are actually issued or executed on another date. Each Obligation will also be
dated the date on which it is authenticated by the Fiscal Agent. That date is its registration date.

The face amount of each Obligation will be $5,000 or any multiple thereof up to
the principal amount authorized for that maturity.

The Obligations will bear interest from the Original Issue Date. Interest will be
payable semiannually on each June 1 and December 1, beginning on June 1, 2014, until the
principal of the Obligations has been paid. Interest on each Obligation will be (1) computed on
the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and (ii) payable to the person in whose
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name the Obligation is registered on the Register at the end of the day on the applicable Record
Date. The Obligations will be numbered consecutively as may be required to comply with any
applicable rules or customs Or as determined by the Municipal Officers executing the
Obligations. The following table shows when the Obligations will mature and the rate of interest
each maturity will bear:

Maturity Date
(December 1) Principal Amount® Interest Rate
2014 $740,000 %
2015 600,000
2016 575,000
2017 615,000
2018 600,000
2019 560,000
2020 575,000
2021 275,000
2022 290,000
2023 290,000
2024 150,000
2025 150,000
2026 160,000
2027 160,000
2028 235,000

The principal of, and interest on, the Obligations will be payable in lawful money
of the United States of America.

Section 6. Refunding of Refunded Bonds.

To provide for the redemption of the Prior Bonds on the Redemption Date, the
Financial Officer is directed to transfer proceeds of the Obligations to the debt service fund for
the Prior Bonds. The transfer must be made on ot prior to the Redemption Date. The amount
transferred must be sufficient, together with all other funds then on deposit in said fund, to pay
the amount due on the Prior Bonds on the Redemption Date.

Section 7. Redemption of Refunded Bonds.

The Issuer irrevocably directs that the principal amount of each maturity of the
Prior Bonds be redecmed and paid in full in advance of its stated maturity on the Redemption
Date. The appropriate officers of the Issuer are directed to instruct the fiscal agent for the Prior
Bonds to take all actions required to call the Prior Bonds for redemption on the Redemption
Date, including giving notice in the manner required by the governing documents for the Prior
Bonds. The Issuer ratifies any action taken in connection with the Refunding and the redemption
of the Prior Bonds prior to the date of this resolution.
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Section 8. Fiscal Agent.

The Issuer appoints the Fiscal Agent to act as paying agent and registrar for the
Obligations. The appropriate officers of the Issuer are directed to enter into a fiscal agency
agreement with the Fiscal Agent on behalf of the Issuer. The fiscal agency agreement may
provide for the Issuer to pay the reasonable and customary charges of the Fiscal Agent for those
services. The fiscal agency agreement must require the Fiscal Agent to comply with all
applicable federal and state regulations. Among other things, the Fiscal Agent must maintain the
Register.

Section 9. Appointment of Depository.

The Issuer appoints DTC to act as securities depository for the Obligations. An
authorized representative of the Issuer has previously executed a blanket issuer letter of
representations with DTC on the Issuer’s behalf, and the Issuer ratifies and approves that
document.

Section 10. Book-Entry System.

On the date of their initial delivery, the Obligations will be registered in the name
of DIC or its nominee and maintained in a Book-Entry System. If the Issuer’s relationship with
DTC is terminated, then the Issuer may appoint another securities depository to maintain the
Book-Entry System.

The Issuer may decide at any time not to maintain the Obligations in a Book-
Entry System. If the Issuer decides not to maintain a Book-Entry System, then it will do the
following:

(i) At its expense, the Issuer will prepare, authenticate, and deliver to the
beneficial owners of the Obligations fully registered certificated
Obligations in the denomination of $5,000 or any multiple thereof in the
aggregate principal amount then outstanding. The beneficial owners will
be those shown on the records of the Depository and its direct and indirect
participanis.

(i)  The Issuer will appoint a fiscal agent to act as paying agent and registrar
for the Obligations under Section 67.10 (2) of the Wisconsin Statutes (the
Fiscal Agent may be reappointed in this capacity).

Section 11. Redemption.

The Obligations maturing on or after December 1, 2023 are subject to redemption
before their stated maturity dates, at the Issuer’s option, in whole or in part, in the order of
maturity selected by the Issuer, on December 1, 2022 and on any date thereafter. The
redemption price will be 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to the
redemption date, and no premium will be paid. If less than all outstanding Obligations are
redeemed, then the Obligations will be redeemed in $5,000 multiples in accordance with
Sections 12 and 13 hereof.

4813-6601-1412.1



Section 12. Payment of 0bligations/Transfers/Redemption Notices Under
Book-Entry System.

So long as the Issuer [maintains the Obligations in a Book-Entry System, the
following provisions apply:

Payment. The Fiscal Agent is directed to pay the principal of, and interest on, the
Obligations by wire transfer to the Depository or its nominee in accordance with the
Depository’s rules that are then in effect.

Transfers. The Obligations are transferable, only upon the Register and only if
the Depository ceases to act as securities depository for the Obligations and the Issucr appoints a
successor securities depository. f that happens, then upon the surrender of the Obligations to the
Fiscal Agent, and the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the Fiscal Agent for any tax,
fee, or other governmental charge required to be made with respect to such registration, the
1ssuer will issue new fully registered Obligations in the same aggregate principal amounts to the
successor securities depository, and the Obligations will be recorded as transferred to the
successor securities depository in the Register.

The Fiscal Agent will not be required to make any transfer of the Obligations
(i) during the 15 calendar days before the date of the sending of notice of any proposed
redemption of the Obligations, or (i1) with respect to any particular Obligation, after such
Obligation has been called for redemption.

Partial Redemption. 1f less than all the Obligations of a particular maturity are to
be redeemed, then the Depository and its direct and indirect participants will select the beneficial
owners of the Obligations to be redeemed. If an Obligation has been called for redemption but
less than all of the principal amount of a specific maturity is redeemed, then on the redemption
date and upon surrender of the Obligation, the Issuer will issue one or more NEW Obligations in
the principal amount outstanding after the redemption.

Notice of Redemption. Notice of the redemption of any of the Obligations will be
sent to the Depository, in the manner required by the Depository, not less than 30, and not more
than 60, days prior to the proposed redemption date. A notice of redemption may be revoked by
sending notice to the Depository, in the manner required by the Depository, not less than 15 days
prior to the proposed redemption date.

Accrual of Interest. 1f payment of an Obligation called for redemption has been
made or provided for, then interest on the Obligation stops accruing on the stated redemption
date.

Register. The Issuer, the Fiscal Agent, and any alternate fiscal agent may treat the

entity or person in whose name any Obligation is registered on the Register as the absolute
owner of the Obligations for all purposes whatsoever under this resolution.
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Section 13. Payment of Obligations/Transfers/Redemption Notices Not
Under Book-Entry System.

If at any time the Issuer decides not to maintain the Obligations in a Book-Entry
System, then the following provisions apply:

Payment. The Fiscal Agent will pay the principal of each Obligation upon its
presentation and surrender on or after its maturity or carlier redemption date at the desi gnated
office of the Fiscal Agent, and the Fiscal Agent will pay, on each interest payment date, the
interest on each Obligation by wire or other electronic transfer or by check of the Fiscal Agent
sent by first class mail to the person in whose name the Obligation is registered on the Register at
the end of the day on the applicable Record Date.

Transfers. Each Obligation is (ransferable, only upon the Register, for a like
aggregate principal amount of the same maturity and interest rate in denominations of $5,000 or
any multiple thereof . A transfer may be requested by the registered owner in person or bya
person with a written power of attorney. The Obligation must be surrendered to the Fiscal
Agent, together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent signed by
the registered owner or by the person with the written power of attorney. The Fiscal Agent will
issue one or more new fully registered Obligations in the same aggregate principal amount to the
transferee or transferees, as applicable, in exchange for the surrendered Obligations and upon the

payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the Issuer or the Fiscal Agent for any tax, fee, or
other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such registration.

The Fiscal Agent will not be required to make any transfer of the Obligations
(i) during the 15 calendar day period before the date of the sending of notice of any proposed
redemption of the Obligations, or (i1) with respect to any particular Obligation, after the
Obligation has been called for redemption.

Partial Redemptions. 1f less than all the Obligations of a particular maturity are
to be redeemed, then the Issuer will randomly select the Obligations to be redeemed. If an
Obligation has been called for redemption but less than all of the principal amount of a specific
maturity is redeemed, then on the redemption date and upon surrender of the Obligation, the
Issuer will issue one or More new Obligations in the principal amount outstanding after the

redemption.

Notice of Redemption. Notice of the redemption of any of the Obligations must
be sent by first class mail, not less than 30, and not more than 60, days before the redemption
date to the registered owners of the Obligations to be redeemed. A notice of redemption may be
revoked by sending a notice, by first class mail, not less than 15 days prior to the proposed
redemption date to the registered owners of the Obligations which have been called for
redemption.

Accrual of Interest. 1f payment of an Obligation called for redemption has been

made or provided for, then interest on the Obligation stops accruing on the stated redemption
date.
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Register. The Issuer, the Fiscal Agent, and any alternate fiscal agent may treat the
entity or person in whose name any Obligation is registered on the Register as the absolute
owner of the Obligation for all purposes whatsoever under this resolution.

Section 14. Form of Obligations.

The Obligations must be in substantially the form shown in Exhibit A.
Omissions, insertions, or variations are permitted if they are deemed necessary or desirable and
are consistent with this resolution or any supplemental resolution.

Section 15.  Execution of Obligations.

The Obligations must be signed by the persons who are the Municipal Officers on
the date on which the Obligations are signed. The Obligations must be sealed with the Issaer’s
corporate seal (or a facsimile), if the Issuer has one, and they must also be authenticated by the
manual signature of an authorized representative of the Fiscal Agent.

The Obligations will be valid and binding even if before they are delivered any
person whose signature appears on the Obligations is no longer living or is no longer the person
authorized to sign the Obligations. In that event, the Obligations will have the same effect as if
the person were living or were still the person authorized to sign the Obligations.

A facsimile signature may be used as long as at least one signature of a Municipal
Officer is a manual signature or the Fiscal Agent’s certificate of authentication has a manual
signature. If a facsimile signature is used, then it will be treated as the officer’s own signature.

Section 16.  Continuing Disclosure.

The appropriate officers of the Issuer are directed to sign the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, and the Issuer agrees to comply with all of its terms.

Section 17.  Sale of Obligations.

The Issuer awards the sale of the Obligations to the Purchaser at the Purchase
Price, plus any accrued interest from the Original Issue Date to the date of delivery of the
Obligations. The Issuer approves and accepts the purchase agreement signed and presented by
the Purchaser to evidence the purchase of the Obligations (the “Purchase Agreement”). The
Municipal Officers are directed (i) to sign the Purchase Agreement in the Issuer’s name and
(ii) to take any additional actions needed to complete the sale of the Obligations, including
arranging for a specific time and place of closing of the sale.

The Financial Officer is directed to comply with the terms of the Official Terms
of Offering with respect to any good-faith deposit requirements.

The officers of the Issuer are directed to sign the Obligations and to arrange for
delivery of the Obligations to the Purchaser in accordance with the Official Terms of Offering,
the Purchase Agreement, and this resolution. The Obligations may be delivered to the Purchaser
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upon payment by the Purchaser of the Purchase Price, plus any accrued interest, as required by
the Official Terms of Offering.

The sale of the Obligations is conditioned upon the Issuer furnishing the
following items to the Purchaser:

(1) The Obligations, together with the written, ungualified approving opinion
of the law firm of Foley & Lardner LLP, bond counsel, evidencing the
legality of the Obligations and that interest on the Obligations will be
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

(i) A transcript of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Obligations.

(iii) A certificate showing that no litigation has been threatened or is pending
that would affect the legality of the Obligations or the right of the Issuer to
issue them at the time of their delivery.

Section 18.  General Obligation Pledge: Tax Levy.

For the prompt payment of the principal of, and interest on, the Obligations, the
Issuer irrevocably pledges its full faith, credit, and resources. The Issuer hereby levies upon all
taxable property in its territory a direct, annual, and irrepealable tax in an amount sufficient to
pay, and for the express purpose of paying, the interest on the Obligations as it falls due and also
to pay and discharge the principal of the Obligations on their maturity dates.

This tax must be carried from year to year into the Tssuer’s tax roll. It must be
collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as all other
taxes. The amount of this tax that is carried into the Issuer’s tax roll may be reduced in any year
by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund available to pay debt service on
the Obligations for such year. This tax will be in the following amounts:

Debt Service Debt Service
Amount Due in Amount Due in

Levy Year Following Year Levy Year Following Yeat

2013 $ 2021 $

2014 2022

2015 2023

2016 2024

2017 2025

2018 2026

2019 2027

2020

-11-
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Section 19.  Debt Service Fund.

The Treasurer is directed to keep the proceeds of the taxes levied under this
resolution, when they ar¢ collected, in the Debt Service Fund. The Debt Service Fund must be
maintained and administered as provided in Section 67.11 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The Issuer
must create a separate account within the Debt Service Fund solely for the Obligations. Any
accrued interest received at the time of delivery of the Obligations and the premium, if any, paid
to the Issuer by the Purchaser in excess of the stated principal amount of the Obligations must be
deposited into the Debt Service Fund and used to pay interest on the Obligations. If the money
in the Debt Service Fund is insufficient to make a payment of principal of or interest on the
Obligations on a date on which such a payment is due, then the Issuer will promptly provide the
necessary funds to make the payment from other available sources.

Section 20. Borrowed Money Fund.

The sale proceeds of the Obligations (not including any accrued interest or
premium received) must be deposited in and kept by the Treasurer in a separate fund. The fund
must be designated with both the name of the Obligations and the name Borrowed Money Fund
(herein referred to as the “Borrowed Money Fund”). Money in the Borrowed Money Fund,
including any earnings, must be (a) used to pay the costs of (i) the Project, (ii) the Refunding,
and (iii) issuing the Obligations, or (b) transferred to the Debt Service Fund as provided by law.

Section 21.  Official Statement.

The Issuer ratifies and approves the preliminary offering document prepared and
distributed in connection with the sale of the Obligations, and the [ssuer authorizes and directs
the final version of such document (the “Official Statement”) to be prepared and delivered prior
to the issuance of the Obligations; provided, however, that the Official Statement must be
substantially in the form submitied to this meeting, with such modifications as the Municipal
Officers approve. The Municipal Officers must deliver copies of the Official Statement to the
Purchaser and, if the Purchaser requests, execute one Or IMOTe copies on behalf of the Issuer.
Execution and delivery of the Official Statement conclusively evidences the approval of the
Municipal Officers.

Section 22. Publication of Notice.

The Recording Officer must publish notice that the Issuer has agreed to sell the
Obligations. The notice must be published in the Issuer’s official newspaper as a class 1 notice
under Chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes promptly after the adoption of this resolution. The
notice must be in substantially the form shown in Exhibit B. The Recording Officer must obtain
proof, in affidavit form, of the publication, and must compare the notice as published with the
attached form to make sure that no mistake was made in publication.

Section 23. Authorization of Officers.

The appropriate officers of the Tssuer are directed to prepare and fumish the
following items to the Purchaser and the attorneys approving the legality of the Obligations:

12-
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(1) Certified copies of proceedings and records of the Issuer relating to the
Obligations and to the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer.

(i) Other affidavits, certificates, and information that may be required to show
the facts about the legality of the Obligations, as such facts appear on the
books and records under the officer’s custody or control or as are
otherwise known to the officer.

All certified copies, affidavits, certificates, and information furnished for such purpose are
representations of the Issuer as to the facts they present,

Section 24.  Qualified Tax-Exempt Ohlieations.

The Issuer designates the Obligations as “qualified tax-cxempt obligations” for
purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

Section 25. Tax Law Covenants.

The Issuer covenants that it will comply with all requirements of the Code and the
Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder that must be satisfied so that interest on the
Obligations will be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Section 26.  Further Authorization,

The Issuer authorizes its officers, attorneys, and other agents or employees to do
all acts required of them to carry out the purposes of this resolution.

Section 27. Conflict with Prior Acts.

Tn case any part of a prior action of the Governing Body conflicts with this
resolution, the Issuer rescinds that part of the prior action.

Section 28.  Severability of Invalid Provisions.

If a court holds any provision of this resolution to be iilegal or invalid, then the
illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this resolution.

13-
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Section 29. Effective Date.

This resolution takes effect upon its adoption and approval in the manner
provided by law.

s ok ook ok ok ok ook ok R

Adopted: July 16, 2013

Approved:  July 2013

Mayor

Clerk

-14-
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EXHIBIT A

FORM OF OBLIGATION

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a New Yori corporation
{(“DrTC™), to the issuer or its agent for regisiration of transfer, exchange, or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the
name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede
& Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER
USE HEREOQF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON 1S WRONGFUL inastmuch as the registered owner
hercof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

QTATE OF WISCONSIN
C1TY OF DE PERE
No.R-_ _ Registered
$
GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BOND, SERIES 2013A
Interest Maturity Original
Rate Date Issue Date CUSIP
% December 1, 20 August 13, 2013 241361
REGISTERED OWNER! CEDE & CO.
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS

-

THE CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN (herein called the “Issuer’”), hereby
acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to pay to the Registered Owner, the
Principal Amount, on the Maturity Date, and to pay interest on the Principal Amount from the
Original Issue Date at the annual rate of the Interest Rate. Interest is payable semiannually on
June 1 and December 1, beginning on June 1, 2014, until the Principal Amount has been paid.
Interest is computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

This Obligation is one of a duly authorized issue of obligations (the
“Obligations”) of the Issuer of an aggregate principal amount of $5,745,000%, all of like tenor,
except as to denomination, interest rate, maturity date, and redemption provisions, issued by the
Issuer pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes, and is authorized by
(1) separate initial resolutions adopted by the governing body of the Issuer on June 4, 2013,
specifying the following not to exceed amounts for the following purposcs:

Exhibit A — Page 1
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Maximum Amount Amount

Authorized Purpose
Borrowed
$1,725,000 $ street lighting, street improvements, and street
improvement funding;

295,000 parks and public grounds, including, but not limited to,
construction of and improvements to parking lots and
ponds;

2,835,000 for acquiring and developing sites for industry and
commerce as will expand the municipal tax base,
including, but not limited to, infrastructure improvements
within the City’s Tax Incremental Districts Numbers 6,7,
8,9, and 10; and

1,120,000 current refunding of the Issuer’s outstanding $1,790,000

General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series
2003C, dated July 1, 2003.

and (2) the resolution duly adopted by the governing body of the Issuer on July 16, 2013,
entitled: “A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of $5,745,000%
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A, and All Related Details” (the
«“Resolution”). The Obli gations are issuable only in the form of fully registered obligations.

On the date of their initial delivery, the Obligations will be maintained in a system
in which no physical distribution of certificates representing ownership of the Obligations is
made to the owners of the Obligations but instead all outstanding Obligations are registered in
the name of a securities depository appointed by the Issuer (2 “Depository”), or in the name of
the Depository’s nominee, and the Depository and its participants record beneficial ownership
and effect transfers of the Obligations clectronically (a2 “Book-Entry System”). So long as the
Obligations are maintained in a Book-Enfry System, then the principal of, and interest on, this
Obligation will be paid by wire transfer to the Depository of its nominee in accordance with the
Depository’s rules that are then in effect by Associated Trust Company, National Association, or
any successor fiscal agent appointed by the Issuer under Section 67.10 (2) of the Wisconsin
Statutes (the “Fiscal Agent”), who will act as paying agent and registrar for the Obligations.

If at any time the Issuer decides ot to maintain the Obligations in a Book-Entry
System, then (i) the principal of this Obligation will be paid by the Fiscal Agent upon its
presentation and surrender on or after its maturity date or prior redemption date at the designated
office of the Fiscal Agent, and (ii) the interest on this Obligation will be paid, on each interest
payment date, by wire or other electronic transfer or by check of the Fiscal Agent sent by first
class mail to the person in whose name this Obligation is registered on the register (the
“Register”) maintained by the Fiscal Agent at the end of the day on the 15™ day (whether or not
a business day) of the calendar month just before each regularly scheduled interest payment date

(the “Record Date”™).

Exhibit A —Page 2
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The principal of, and interest o, this Obligation is payable in lawful money of the
United States of America. For the prompt payment of the principal of, and interest on, this
Obligation, the Issuer has itrevocably pledged its full faith, credit, and resources. The Issuer has
levied upon all taxable property in its territory a direct, annual, and irrepealable tax sufficient in
amount to pay, and for the express purpose of paying, the interest on this Obligation as it falls
due and the principal of this Obligation on the Maturity Date.

The Obligations maturing on or after December 1, 2023 are subject to redemption
before their stated maturity dates, at the Issuer’s option, in whole or in part, in the order of
maturity selected by the Issuer, on December 1, 2022 and on any date thereafier. The
redemption price will be 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to the
redemption date, and no premium will be paid. If less than all outstanding Obligations are
redeemed, then the Obligations will be redeemed in $5,000 multiples as set forth below.

So long as the Issuer maintains the Obligations in a Book-Entry System, then the
following provisions apply:

Transfers. The Obligations are transferable, only upon the Register and only if
the Depository ceases to act as securities depository for the Obligations and the
[ssuer appoints a sUCCEssOr securities depository. If that happens, then upon the
surrender of the Obligations to the Fiscal Agent and in exchange and upon the
payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the Fiscal Agent for any tax, fee, or
other governmental charge required to be made with respect to such registration,
the Issuer will issue new fully registered Obligations in the same aggregate
principal amounts to the successor securitics depository and the Obligations will
be recorded as transferred to the successor securities depository in the Register.

The Fiscal Agent will not be required to make any transfer of the Obligations
(i) during the 15 calendar days before the date of the sending of notice of any
proposed redemption of the Obligations, or (i) with respect to any particular
Obligation, after such Obligation has been called for redemption.

Partial Redemption. If less than all the Obligations of a particular maturity are to
be redeemed, then the Depository and its direct and indirect participants will
select the beneficial owners of the Obligations to be redeemed. If an Obligation
has been called for redemption but less than all of the principal amount of a
specific maturity 1s redeemed, then on the redemption date and upon surrender of
the Obligation, the Issuer will issue one or more new Obligations in the principal
amount outstanding after the redemption.

Notice of Redemption. Notice of the redemption of any of the Obligations will be
sent to the Depository, in the manner required by the Depository, not less than 30,
and not more than 60, days prior to the proposed redemption date. A notice of
redemption may be revoked by sending notice to the Depository, in the manner
required by the Depository, not less than 15 days prior to the proposed redemption
date.

Fxhibit A — Page 3
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Acerual of Interest. 1{ payment of an Obligation called for redemption has been
made or provided for, then interest on the Obligation stops aceruing on the stated
redemption date.

Register. The Issuer, the Fiscal Agent, and any alternate fiscal agent may treat the
entity or person in whose name this Obligation is registered on the Register as the

absolute owner of this Obligation for all purposes.

If at any time the Issuer decides not to maintain the Obligations in a Book-Entry

Systern, then the following provisions apply:

4813-6601-1412.1

Transfers. Each Obligation 18 iransferable, only upon the Register, for a like
aggregate principal amount of the same maturity and interest rate in
denominations of $5,000. A transfer may be requested by the registered owner in
person or by a person with a written power of attorney. The Obligation must be
surrendered to the Fiscal Agent, to gether with a written instrument of transfer
satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent signed by the registered owner ot by the person
with the written power of attorney. The Fiscal Agent will issue one or more new
fully registered Obligations, in the same aggregate principal amount to the
iransferee or transferecs, as applicable, in exchange for the surrendered
Obligations and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the Issuer or
the Fiscal Agent for any tax, fee, or other governmental charge required to be paid
with respect to such registration.

The Fiscal Agent will not be required to make any transfer of the Obligations

(i) during the 15 calendar day period before the date of the sending of notice of
any proposed redemption of the Obligations, or (i) with respect to any particular
Obligation, after such Obligation has been called for redemption.

Partial Redemption. If less than all the Obligations of a particular maturity are to
be redeemed, then the Issuer will randomly select the Obligations to be redeemed.
If an Obligation has been called for redemption but less than all of the principal
amount of a specific maturity is redeemed, then on the redemption date and upon
surrender of the Obligation, the Issuer will issue one of MOre New Obligations in
the principal amount outstanding after the redemption.

Notice of Redemption. Notice of the redemption of any of the Obligations must
be sent by first class mail, not less than 30, and not more than 60, days before the
redemption date to the registered owners of any Obligations to be redeemed. A
notice of redemption may be revoked by sending a notice, by first class mail, not
less than 15 days prior to the proposed redemption date to the registered owners
of the Obligations which have been called for redemption.

Accrual of Interest. If payment of an Obligation called for redemption has been
made or provided for, then interest on the Obligation stops accruing on the stated
redemption date.
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Register. The Issuet, the Fiscal Agent, and any alternate fiscal agent may treat the
entity or person in whose name this Obligation is registered on the Register as the
absolute owner of this Obligation for all purposes.

The Issuer certifies, recites, and declares that all acts, conditions, and procedures
required by law to be, or to be done, leading up to and in the issuing of this Obligation and of the
issue of which it is a part, do exist, have happened, and have been done and performed in regular
and due form, time, and manner as required by law; that the indebtedness of the Issuer, including
this Obligation and the issue of which it is a part, does not exceed any limitation, general or
special, imposed by iaw; and that a valid, direct, annual and irrepealable tax has been levied by
the Tssuer sufficient to pay the interest on this Obligation when it falls due and also to pay and
discharge the principal of this Obligation at maturity.

TN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer, by its governing body, has caused this
Obligation to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the manual or facsimile signatures of
its Mayor and Clerk and to be sealed with its corporate seal (or a facsimile thereof), if any, all as
of August 13, 2013.

Crry OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

Mayor
[SEAL]

And

Clerk

Exhibit A — Page 5
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Certificate of Authentication

Dated: August__, 2013
This Obligation is one of the Obligations

described in the Resolution.

ASSOCIATED TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Fiscal Agent

By:
Authorized Signatory

Exhibit A — Page 6
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ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto

PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR
OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE

(Please Print or Type Name and Address of Assignee)

the within-mentioned Obligation and all rights thereunder and does hereby irrevocably constitute

and appoint

attorney-in-fact, to transfer the

same on the books of the registry in the office of the Fiscal Agent, with full power of substitution

in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed

NOTICE: Signatures must be guaranteed by an
“gligible guarantor institution” meeting the
requirements of the Fiscal Agent. Those
requirements include membership or
participation in the Securities Transfer
Association Medallion Program (“STAMP”) or
such other “signature guarantee program’ as
may be determined by the Fiscal Agent in
addition to, or in substitution for, STAMP, all in
accordance with the Securities Exchange Actof
1934, as amended.

Note: The signature to this assignment must
correspond with the name as written on the
face of the within Obligation in every
particular, without any alteration or change.
When assignment is made by a guardian,
trustee, executor or administrator, an officer
of a corporation, or anyone in a representative
capacity, proof of the person’s authority to

act must accompany this Obligation.

Exhibit A — Page 7
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August __, 2013

City of De Pere
335 South Broadway Street
De Pere, Wisconsin 54115

Subject: $5,745,000%
City of De Pere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A

We have acted as bond counsel to the City of De Pere, Wisconsin (the “Issuer”)
in connection with the issuance of its $5,745,000% General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds,
Series 2013 A, dated August 13,2013 (the “Qbligations”).

We examined the law, 2 certified copy of the proceedings relating to the issuance
of the Obligations, and certifications of public officials and others. Asto questions of fact
material to our opinion, We relied upon the certified proceedings and certifications without
independently undertaking to verify them.

Based upon this examination, it is out opinion that, under existing law:
1. The Obligations are valid and binding general obligations of the Issuer.

2. All taxable property in the Issuet’s territory is subject to ad valorem
taxation without any limit as 0 rate or amount to pay the principal and interest coming due on
the Obligations. The Issuer is required by law 10 include in its annual tax levy the principal and
interest coming due on the Obligations except 10 the extent that the Issuer has deposited other
funds, or there is otherwise surplus money, in the account within the debt service fund created
for the Obligations under Wisconsin law.

3. Interest on the Obligations is excluded from gross income for federal
income tax purposes and is not a specific item of tax preference for purposes of the federal
alternative minimum tax imposed on all taxpayers; however, interest on the Obligations is taken
into account in determining adjusted cutrent earnings for purposes of computing the alternative
minimum tax imposed on certain corporations. The Issuer must comply with all requirements of
the Internal Revenuc Code of 19806, as amended (the “Code”), that must be satisfied after the
Obligations arc issued for interest on the Obligations to be, or continue to be, excluded from
gross income for federal income tax purposes. The Issuer has agreed to comply with those
requircments. Its failure to do so may causc interest on the Obligations to be included in gross
income for federal income tax purposes, in some cases cetroactively to the date the Obligations

Exhibit A — Page 8
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August _, 2013
Page 2

were issued. The Issuer has designated the Obligations as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for
purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. We express no opinion about other federal tax law
consequences relating to the Obligations.

The rights of the owners of the Obligations and the enforceability of the
Obligations may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other
similar laws affecting creditors” rights and by equitable principles (which may be applied in
either a legal or an equitable proceeding).

We express no opinion as to the truth or completeness of any official statement or
other disclosure document used in connection with the offer and sale of the Obligations.

Our opinion is given as of the date of this letter. We assume 1o duty to update
our opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that later come to our attention or any

subsequent changes in law. In acting as bond counsel, we have established an attorney-client
relationship only with the Issuer.

Very truly yours,

Exhibit A - Page 9
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EXHIBIT B

NOTICE TO THE ELECTORS OF THE
CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
RFELATING TO BOND SALE

On July 16, 2013, pursuant to Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes, a resolution
was offered, read, approved, and adopted whereby the City of De Pere, Wisconsin authorized the
borrowing of money and entered into a contract to sell general obligation corporate purpose
bonds in the principal amount of $5,745,000%, 1t is anticipated that the closing of this bond
financing will be held on or about August 13,2013. A copy of all proceedings had to date with
respect to the authorization and sale of said bonds is on file and may be examined in the office of
the City Clerk, at 335 South Broadway Street, De Pere, Wisconsin between the hours of 9:00
am. and 4:30 p.m. on weekdays.

This notice is given pursuant to Section 893.77 of the Wisconsin Statutes, which
provides that an action or proceeding to contest the validity of such financing, for other than
constitutional reasons, must be commenced within 30 days after the date of publication of this
notice.

Publication Date: July __, 2013 /s/ Shana I.. Defnet
City Clerk

ExhibitB -1
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CERTIFICATIONS BY CLERK

I, Shana L. Defnet, certify as follows:

® I am the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of De Pere, Wisconsin
(the “Municipality”).

® As such [ have in my possession, or have access to, the complete corporate
records of the Municipality and of its Common Council (the “Governing
Body”).

® Attached to this certificate is a true, correct, and complete copy of the

resolution (the “Resolutien”) entitled:

A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of
$5,745,000% General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A
and All Related Details

I further certify as follows:

L. Meeting Date. On July 16, 2013, a meeting of the Governing Body was
held beginning at p.m.

2. Posting. OnJuly 2013 (and not less than 24 hours prior to the
meeting), I posted, or caused to be posted, at the Municipality’s offices in De Pere, Wisconsin a
notice setting forth the time, date, place, and subject matter of said meeting. The notice
specifically referred to the Resolution.

3. Notification of Media. OnJuly . 2013 (and not less than 24 hours
prior to the meeting), 1 communicated or caused to be communicated, the time, date, place, and
subject matter of said meeting to those news media who have filed a written request for such
notice and to the official newspaper of the Municipality. The communication specifically
referred to the Resolution.

4. Open Meeting Law Compliance. The meeting was a regular meeting of
the Governing Body that was held in open session in compliance with Subchapter V of Chapter
19 of the Wisconsin Statutes and any other applicable local rules and state statutes.

5. Members Present. The meeting was duly called to order by the Mayor
(the “Presiding Officer”), who chaired the meeting. Upon roll call, I noted and recorded that
there were members of the Governing Body present at the meeting, such number being a

quorum of the Governing Body.

6. Consideration of and Roll Call Vote on Resolution. Various matters
and business were taken up during the course of the meeting without intervention of any closed
session. One of the matters taken up was the Resolution. A proper quorum of the Governing
Body was present for the consideration of the Resolution, and each member of the Governing

-
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Body had received a copy of the Resolution. All rules of the Governing Body that interfered
with the consideration of the Resolution, if any, were suspended by a two-thirds vote of the
Governing Body. The Resolution was then introduced, moved, and seconded, and after due
consideration, upon roll call,  ofthe Governing Body members voted Aye, voted Nay,
and _ Abstained.

7. Adoption of Resolution. The Resolution was supported by the
affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum of the members of the Governing Body in attendance.
The Presiding Officer then declared that the Resolution was adopted, and I recorded the adoption
of the Resolution.

8. Approval of Presiding Officer. The Resolution was approved by the
Presiding OfficeronJuly _ _, 2013, and I have recorded the approval. The approval is
evidenced by the signature of the Presiding Officer on the copy of the Resolution to which this
certificate is attached.

9. Publication of Exhibit B to Resolution. I have caused Exhibit B to the
Resolution to be published in the form and place specified in the Resolution.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed my name and affixed the seal of the
Municipality, if any, on this certificate on July ,2013.

Clerk
[Seal]

- ii -
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$5,745,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A

Pricing Summary

Maturity Type of Bond Coupon Yield Maturity Value Price Dollay Price
12/01/2014 Serial Coupon 0.550% 0.550% 470,000.0G 100.000% 470,000.00
12/01/2015 Serial Coupon 0.700% - 0.700% 600,000.00 100.000% 600,000.00
1210172016 Serial Coupon 0.950% 0.950% 585,000.00 100.000% 595,000.00
12/0172017 Serial Coupor 1.250% 1.250% 615,000.00 100.000% 615,000.00
12/01/2018 Serial Goupon 1.500% 1.500% 620,000.00 100.000% 520,000.00
12/01/2019 Sarial Coupon 1.800% 1.800% 560,000.00 100.000% 560,000.00
12/071/2020 Serial Coupon 1.950% 1.950% §75,000.00 100.000% 575,000.00
120012021 Serial Coupon 2.250% 2.250% 275,000.00 100.000% 275,000.00
12/01/2022 Serial Coupon 2.400% 2.400% 230, 000.00 100.000% 280,000.60
12/01/2023 Serial Coupen 2,550% 2.550% 290,000.00 100.000% 290,060.00
12/01/2024 Serial Caupon 2.650% 2.650% 150,000.00 100.000% 150,000.00
12/01/2025 Serial Coupon 2750% 2.750% 150,000.00 100.000% 180,000.00
12/01/2026 Seral Coupon 2.500% 2.900% 160,000.00 100.000% 160,000.00
12/01/2027 Serial Coupon 3.050% 3.050% 160,000.00 100.000% 160,000.00
12/01/2028 Serial Coupon 3.150% 3.150% 235,000.00 100.000% 235,000.00
Total ~ - - $5,745,000.00 - $5,745,000.00

Bid Information

A ATTIOUNE OF BOTIS .11 eeeeeeeeon e eiteeseeteoeeeearom e et rob e e bmne s seesamaba s 8Ty 0r o R mE e 1o b LA RE 2SS L LR L R $5,745,000.00
G058 PrOGUGHIDM. . creeveecrreese e reecscbe v s $5,745,000.00

Total Underwriter's DISGOUME (T.000%). .o it iereitrorisiimererein s st some e e amess s S S ERe $(57,450.00)
Bid {99.000%}......cov v sieereres st 5,687 550.0C

R AT A raT= T o= T O O T UO O TP T PR P T S L T e L D R IR $5,687,550.00

TRONE YRR DIOIAIS .. evevoeeemee etk e et eese e ioea s e 2 et e eeemec b ss e ee g Foea s T RIS £ £ S S s $37,128,50
Average Life.......ccei e - 5.483 Years
AAVETAGE COUDOM ... ov. oo oeoeeotestssessmremesseseeos o112 28 T 2L 2.1332326%

Net Interast Cost (NIC) ... 2.2B795654%
TIUE [NTEIEST COBE (TN o iviuussim s coessetas b et ess s bbb b e b A2 b 2.2728254%

20184 GO Bonds | Isspe Surpmary | Gr20/2013 [ 231 PM
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%E 745,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A

Debt Service Schedule

Date Principal

120012013 - - - -
12/01/2014 470,000.00 0.550% 125,167.25 585, 167.25
12/01/2015 : 600,000.00 0.700% 83,697.50 693,687.50
12/01/2016 585,000.00 0.950% §5,497.50 584,497 50

Coupon Interest Total P+

12012y 615,000.00 1.250% 83,845.00 £98,845.00
12/01/2018 620,000.0C 1.500% 76,187 .50 596,157.50
12/01/2019 550,000.00 1.800% 66,857.50 626,857.50
12/01/2020 575,000.00 1.850% 56,777.50 §31,777.50

12/01/2021 275,000.00 2.250% 45,565.00 320,565.001 -
12/01/2022 200,000.00 2.400% 39,377.50 329,377.50
12/01/2023 280,000.00 2.550% 32,417.50 322,417.50
42/01/2024 150,000.00 2.650% 25,022.50 175,022.50
12/01/2025 160,000.00 2.750% 21,047 .50 471,047.50
12/01/2026 160,000.00 2.900% 16,922.50 176,822.50
120412027 160,000.00 3.050% 12,282 50 172,282.50

12/01/2028 235,000.00 3.150% 7,402.50 242 40250
Total %5,745,000.00 - $792,037.25 $8,537,037.25

Yield Statistics

Bond Year Dolars ... R SRR b $37,128.50
Average Lfe...mmmme VI 5.463 Years
Average COUPDTL e 21352328%

Net Interest Cost (NKC} 2 2879654%
True Interest Cost {TIC) s 2.2726294%
gond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes . 2.1036409%
Al inclusive Cost (A\C) 2.5008436%

IRS Form 8038
Net interest Costo.eeres

2.1332326%
weighted Average Maturtty

6,463 Years

2018A GO Bonds | Isme Spnvnary | g/ E0lE § 281 PM




$1,700,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A
Street improvements

Debt Service Schedule
Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+

12/6412013 - - - -
12/01/2014 70,000.00 0.550% 44, 297.50 114,287.50
12/01/2015 145,000.00 0.700% 33,690.00 178,690.00
12/01/2018 145,000.00 0.850% 32,575.00 177,675.00
121012017 150,000.00 1.2560% 31,297.50 181,287.50
12/01/2018 450,000,00 1.500% 29,422.50 178,422.50
12/04/2018 ‘ 85,000.00 1.800% 27172.50 112,172.50
12/01/2020 90,000.00 1.950% 25 642 50 . 115,642,50
1210142024 ) 90,000.00 2.250% 23,887.50 113,887.50
12/01/2022 95,000.00 2.400% 21,862.50 116,862.50
1270142023 ©5,000.00 2.550% 19,582.50 114,582.50
1210112024 100,000.00 2.650% 17,160.00 117,160.00
121012025 100.000.00 2.750% 14,510.00 114 ,510.00
1210172026 105,000.00 2.800% 11,760.00 116,760.00
12/01/2027 105,000.00 3.050% 8,715.00 113,715.00
12/01/2028 175,000.00 3.150% 5,512.50 18Q,512.50

Total $1,700,000.00 - $347,187.50 $2,047,187.650

Yield Statistics

Bond Year Dolars. . $14,080.00
Average Life.....oocmsne 8,282 Years
AVETAZE COUDDIL .o remns e rvaes s serasaens 2.4558203%
Net interest Cost (NlC) e 2,5865589%
True Interest Cost (TI0) . 2.5698790%

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes

2.1036409%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC)

2.6815342%

IRS Form 3038
pet Interest Costi...oeinvnnnn

2.4658203%
Welghted Average WAREUIIY o veeeeesrvuemreremsst st e

B.282 Years

20134 GO Bonds | Sireel hnprovemetits | 672072018 [ 2:81 FM -4
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$250,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpcse Bonds, Series 2013A
Parks & Public Lands

S

Debt Service Schedule

Principal Coupon interest Total P+l

12012013 - -
12/01/2014 15,000.00 0.550% 7.965.75 22,965.75
12/01/2018 15,000.00 0.700% 6,045.00 21,045.00
121012016 15,000.00 0.950% 5,940.00 20,940.00
12/04{2017 20,000.00 1.250% 5,797.50 25,797.50
1210172048 20,000.00 1.500% 5,547.50 25,547 .50
12/01/2019 20,000.00 1.800% 5,247.50 25,247 50
1200112020 20,000.00 1.950% 4,887.50 24,887 .80
12/01/2021 20,000.00 2.250% 4,497 50 24.497.60
12/01/2022 20,000.00 2.400% 4,047.50 24,047 50
42j01/2023 20,060.00 2.550% 3,567.50 23,567.50
12/01/2024 20,000.00 2.850% 3,067.50 23.057.50
1210172025 20,000.C0 2.750% 2,527.50 22,527.50
12/0112026 20,000.00 2.900% 1,977.50 21.877.50
12/01/2027 20,000.00 3.050% 1,397.50 21,387.50
12/01/2028 25,000.00 3.150% 787.50

$290,000.00 - $63,290.75

Yield Stafistics

Bond Year Dollars $2.532.00
Average Life.........- . §.731 Years
Average Coupoia...ure. 2.4996347%

Net Interest Cost (NIC). - ey 2.6141686%
True Interest Cost {TICY 2.6028419%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage PUIPOSES -svvereres .. 2.1035409%
Al Inclusive Cost e PR 2.7052654%
IRS Form 8038

Nei interest Cost . 2,4996347%
WeightedA\rerageMaturi’sy...............‘. §.731 Years

20134 GO Bonds [ Farks X Publi¢ Lands | 8s20/2013 j ZSEPM




$2,065,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin

General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A
TiD6

NDebt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+t
12/01/2013 - - - -
121012014 280,000.00 0.550% 33,744.75 313,744.75
12/01/20158 780,000.00 0.700% 24,417.50 314,417.50
12/01/2016 290,000.00 0.950% 22,387.50 312,387.50
12/0172017 295,000.00 1.250% 19,532.50 314,632.50
120172018 300,000.00 1.500% 15,945.00 315,845.00
12/01/2018 300,000.00 1.800% 11,445.00 311,445.00
12/01/2020 310,000.00 1.950% 6,045.00 316,045.00

Total $2,065,000.00 - $133,817.25 $2,188,617.25

Yield Statistics

Bt YEAE DOHAS. covrseeeerirer e mrsees s s sy s
Average Life.. . SR
AVELAHE COUPON.ocommasonrecsssssssirms s o s s

$8,999.50
4,358 Years
1.4847186%

Net Interest Cost (NIGh.m s e eeeemieeeeseen AR S 1.7141758%
True interest Cost (THC) s 1.7185162%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.1035408%
Al tnclusive Cost (AIT) v e 1.9141163%

IRS Form 8038
Net Interest Cost

Weighted Average BVIEUITEY oo e eemsr e sane et o

4.358 Years

201340 Bonds ) TID6 | 6/20/2018 | 231 FM
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$10,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A
TID 7

Debt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+|

12/01/2013 - - -
12/01/2014 £,000.00 0.550% 81.25 5,081.25
1210172015 5,000.00 0.700% 35.00 5,035.00

Total $10,000.00 - $116.25 $10,116.25

Yield Statistics

BNt YEar DOAIIS. . ie ittt ee et e et ee e e et et e e e b b e eh e et e E AR ER SRR L R T s $18.00
Average Life........cooiiiii et e e e inre it netamn s snenneee e 1,800 Years
AVETAGE COURPON. 111 et e eees e e mene s erma e e ns e ee et ar e rarne e b s p et g e 0.045B333%
Net Interest COSE (INIC). . it ot sra s em e ees JRE U ORURRRIO ... 1.2013889%
True Interest Cost {TIC) ... 1.2088855%

Band Yield for Arbitrage PUMOSES. ...t e s RSN e 2.1036408%
AU INCIUSIVE GOSE (AICY. .- etveeereeosssess s oeeeeeeeseemsseee s sesees s aes s s oo bbb e 1.6681515%

IRS Form 8038
INEE INEBFESE COEL..oe.vveveteeeeeee e eeee s oe s e ss e rasvas s ete st eeese e e sse st e ss st seess e ssssmsstnrerssrsnm sme s sme e sssrrmsie e meensnenneneeees 0OABB333%
Weighted AVErage MEIUITY ..o e reer s remes e emi s emhosss s ans s s st s s 1000 YE8TS

20154 GO Fords [ D7 | /2042018 | 281 EM




/MMW_MMW__________
£415,000
City of De Pere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bends, Series 2013A
TIDB

Debt Service Schedule '
I ————

Principal Coupon jnterest Total P+

12/01/2013 -

120172014 - - 11,947.00 11,947.00
2/01/2015 25,000.00 0.700% 9,100.00 34,190.00
12/01/2016 25,000.00 0.950% 9,015.00 24,015.00
12/01/2017 25,000.00 1.250% . 8,777.50 33,777.50
1200172018 25,000.00 1.500% 8,465.00 33,485.00
12/01/2019 30,000.00 1.800% 8,060.00 35,000.00
12/01/2020 30,000.00 1.950% 7,550.00 37,550.00
1210112021 30,000.00 2.250% 6,965.00 36,065.00
121012022 30,000.00 2.400% 6,260.00 35,290.00
12/01/2023 30,000.00 2.550% 5,570.00 35,570.00
12101/2024 30,000.00 2.650% 4,805,00 34,805.00
42/01/2025 30,000.00 2.150% 4,010.00 34,010.00
12/01/2026 35,000.00 2.900% 3,185.00 38,185.00
12/01/2027 35,000.00 3.060% 2,170.00 37,170.00
12/01/2028 35,000.00 3.150% 1,102.80

$415,000.00 $97,132.00 §512,132.00

Yield Statistics

Bond Year DONETS. ..o £3,834.50
Average Life. . 9,240 Yesars
Average COUPCM....w e 2.5331073%
o TS GOt (NIC).cre oo v e 2.6413352%
True ‘nterest Cost (TIG).... . 2 5315394%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purpo;es.,....,.........A..... . 2.1036409%
Al ICIUSIVE CO8E (AIC) st 27325337 %
RS Form BO3E

Net Interest Cost... SO ERS R 2.5331073%
Weighted Average Matunty 9.240 Years

194 GO Bands | TS | 6/20/2013 [ Z:51 BM
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$55,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A
TID9

Debt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l

12/01/2013 - - -
12/01/2014 - - 1,319.50 1.318.50
12/01/2015 5,000.00 0.700% 1,015.00 6,015.00
12/01/2016 5,000.00 .950% 980.00 5,980.00
12/04/2017 5,000.00 1.250% 8932.50 5,832.50
124012018 5.000.00 1.500% 870.00 5,670.00|
1240172018 5,000.00 1.800% 795,00 5,785.00
12/01/2020 5,000.00 1.850% 705.00 5,705.00
12/01/2021 5,000.00 2.250% 607.50 5,607.50
12/01/2022 16,000.00 2.400% 485,00 10,495.00
12/01/2023 10,000.00 2.550% 255.00 10,255.00

Total $55,000.00 - $7,974.50 $62,974.50

Yield Statistics

oo eI == L o] =3 OO P OSSOSO U P U PSRV PP RIS PSR, $381.50
AVErANE LB oo e b R e 6.936 Years
ANEIAGE COLDOM. ...\ ureerresersreseessseesseeseesesrerass bt st st ans st b e e et ees bbb st 200803014 %

NEE ITEIESE COBE {NIC 1ot reemeree e tsisscmseasess e eas oot st st s s 2. 2044682 %
TTUE BEEIESE OB (THO). o tuivtitetictemei et e ma s e e o e et ere e oo e 528 S04 £ R £ 20 o €S b e 2.2345890%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Pumposes..... e 2.1038409%
ALETINGIUSIVE COBE (AL e cooeeeet et et etrssem et ce et et e st s m e oo e er e ar o8 AR SRS SR e e 2.3626336%

IRS Form 8038
Net interest Cost...............

2.0908014%
Weighted AVETALE IMBELITIEY ... e b e e o s

6.936 Years

Z0ISA GOFonds | TID® | 6/20/2018 | 2:31 FM




$105,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A
TID10

Pebt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Inferest Total P+l
1210172013 - - - -
120112014 - - 2,463.50 2,463.50
12/01/2015 10,000.0C 0.700% 1,895.00 11,895.00
12/01/2016 10,000.00 D.950% 1,825.00 11,825.00
1210412017 10,000.00 1.250% 1.730.00 11,730.00
12/01/2018 10,000.00 1.500% 1,605.00 11,605.00
12/01/2019 ) 10,000.00 1.800% 1,455.00 . 11,465.00
12/01/2020 10,000.00 1.950% 1,275.00 11,275.00
12/01/2021 ’ 15,000,600 2.250% 1.080.00 16,080.00
1200172022 15,000.00 2.400% 742.50 15,742.50
12/01/2023 15,000.00 2.550% 382.50 15,382,50

Total $108,000.00 - $14,453.50 $119,453.50

Yield Statistics

Bond Year DOUArS. ..o e $706.50
Average Life.........oeenn 8.728 Years
Average CoUPON...cimmmans 2.0457891%
NEEE TIEEIEEL GOSE (MIC). e v omseseeeememereces s e bR 2.1544081%
True Interast Cost (TIC). e 2.1947188%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes.. 2.1026408%

AU TACIUSIVE COB IAITY .1 1oeeesvarsesseemssomssmore s oo ers 50888 T 2,3261857%
IRS Form 8038

BB IEETESE GO oevoeeesoesess hrmseee st e resese o 4S8R LT 2.0457891%
Weighted Average Maturit 6.729 Years

20134 GO Bonds | TID IO | 6/20/2013 [ 2:31 PM
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$1,105,000 o T

City of DePere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series 2013
current Refunding of Series 2003C

Debt Service Comparison

Date Totat PH Existing DI3 Met New BIS Old Net DIS Savings

12/01/2013 - 40,238.75 19,238.75 19,238.75

12/01/2014 123,348.00 - 123,348.00 127,060.00 3,712.00
12/01/2015 122,410.00 - 122,410.00 124,180.00 1.770.00
12/01/2016 121,675.00 - 124.§76.00 128,126.25 4,451.25
120217 125,677.50 - 126,877.80 127,810.00 2,432.50
12/01/2018 124,302 .50 - 124,302.50 ’ 129,221.25 . AB1BT5
12/01/2018 122,652.50 - 122.652.50 125.441.258 2,788.78
12/01/2020 420,672.50 - 120,672.50 126,462.50 5,790.00 '
1210172023 123,5627.50 - 124,527.80 . 427,100.00 3,572.60
412i01/2022 125,540.00 - 425,840.00 127,400.00 1,460.00
12/01/2023 123,060.00 - 123,050.00 127,500.00 4,

Total £1,233,265.50 $10,238.74 $1,252,504.25 $1,287 540.00 %35

PV Analysis Summary {Met to Net)

Net FV Cashilow SUINGS s 35,035.75
Gross PV Debt Service Savings. .. 45,227.26
Net PV Cashflow Savings @ 2. 404%(Bond Yleld) 4522726
Gomtingancy or Rounding ATAOUNL e 52.88
Net Future Value Benefit.. oo R e B . . $35,088.83
Net Present Value BEABHL...ovrereorermsrmrmrennes $45,280.14
Net PV Benefit / $166,308.27 PV Refunded Inferest. o 22 .956%
Net PV Benefit/ $1.140,014.40 PV Refundad Debt Sevice.... 3.972%

Net PV Bepefit / §1 055,000 Refunded Principal. ..o 4.202%

Net PV Benefit / 41,105,000 Refunding Pr\nclpal 4.088%
Refunding Bond {nformation

Refunding Dated Date 8/13/2013
Refunding Delivery Date Bi1312013

20734 6O Fonds | Cuprent Rer 2003C [ gra0/2013 | 23T EM
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$1,750,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2003C

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call

Date Refupded /S To Call Principal Coupon Interest Refunded DIS
Bonds

08/13/2013 - - - -
10/01/2013 1,055,000.00 1,055,000.00 - - - -
04/01/2014 - } - 90,000.00 3.150% 19,238.75 108,238.75
10/01/2014 - - - - 17,821.25 17,821 .25
04/01/2015 - - 9¢,000.00 3.250% 17,821.25 107,821.25
10/01/2015 - - - - 18,358.75 16,358.75
04/01/2016 - - 95,000.00 3.350% 16,358.75 111,358.75
10/01/2016 - - - - 14,767.50 14,767.50
04/01/2017 - - 100,000.00 3.450% 14,767.50 114,767.50
10/01/2017 - - - - 13,042.50 13,042.50
04/01/2018 - - 105,000.00 3.550% 13,042.50 118,042.50
10/01/2018 - - - - 11,178.75 11,178.75
04/0172019 - - 105,000.00 3.650% 1,178.758 116,178.75
10/31/2019 - - - - 9,262.50 9,262.50
04/01/2020 - - 110,000.00 3.750% 8,262.50 118,262.50
10/01/2020 - - - - 7,200.00 7,200.00
04/01/2021 - - 115,000.00 4.000% 7,200.00 122,200.00
10/01/2021 - - - - 4.900.00 4,800.00
04/01/2022 - - 120,000.00 4.000% 4,900.00 124,900.00
10/01/2022 - - - - 2,500.00 2,500.00
04/01/2023 - - 125,000.00 4.000% 2,500.00 127,500.00
Toial $1,055,000.00 $1,055,000.00 $1,055,000.00 - $213,301.25 $1,258,301.25

Yield Statistics

Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 8/13/2013
Average Life....n ST ORI IRUTTP PPN SOeTOR 5.444 Yea!s
Average COUPON . e 3.7140007%
Weighted Average Maturity (Par BRI b -eeeeerrteaaeser e e b s o b e S 5444 Years
Refunding Bond Infermation

Refunding Dated Date.., ..o 8132013
REAUNGING DBEVEIY DBLB. ... iosierreseseoe e ressa e s s 221 T S 8132013
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$1,790,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpese Bonds, Series 2003C

Total Refunded Debt Service

Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l
0410112014 a{3,000.00 3.150% 19,238.75 108,238.75
04/01/2015 90,000.00 3.250% 35,642.50 125,642.50
041012016 £5,000.00 3.350% 32,717.50 127,717.50
04/01/2017 100,000.00 3.450% 29,535.00 129,535.00
D4/01/2018 105,000.00 3.550% 26,085.00 131,085.00
0440112019 105,000.00 3.650% 22,357.50 127,367.50
04/01/2020 110,000.00 3.750% 18.525.00 128,525.00
04/01/2021 $15,000.00 4.000% 14,400.00 129,400.00
04/01/2022 120,000.00 4.000% 9,800.00 129,800.00
04/01/2023 125,000.0C 4,000% 5,000.00 120,000.00
Total $1,055,000,00 - $213,301.26 $1,268,301.26
Yield Statistics
Bzse date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation &13/2013
Average Life...... e e 5.444 Years
BVETAGE GOUPON..srisrorsr st onasrosos e 00000 .. 3.7140007%
Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basish...cmmmon 5.444 Years
Refunding Bond Ipformation
Refunding Dated Date........... TR UR SRS 81312013
Refunding Delvery DALe o o eme s 8/13/20%%
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$1,780,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2003C

Prior Driginal—lg;g{Sewice

Date Frincipal Coupon Interest Total P+t
10/01/2003 - - - -
04/D1/2004 50,000.00 2.000% 42,371.25 92,371.25
10012004 - - 37,747.50 27.747.50
04/01/2005 70,000.00 2.000% 27,747.50 E 97,747.50
10/01/200% - - 27,047.50 27,047 50
0410172008 70,000.00 2.000% 27,047.50 97,047.50
10/01/2006 - - 26,347.50 26,347.50
0410112007 70,000.00 2.000% 26,347.50 . 08,347.50
10/04/2007 - - - 25,647.50 25,647.50
04/01/2008 75,000.00 2.250% 25,647.50 100,647.50
10/01/2008 - - 24.803.75 24.803.75
04/01/2009 75,000.00 2.500% 24,803.78 99,803.75
10/01/2008 - - 23,866.25 23,866.26
04/01/2010 75,000.00 2.500% 23,866.25 93,866.25
40/01/2010 - - 22,928.75 22,928.75
0410172014 80,000.00 2.850% 22,828.75 102,928.75
10/01/20%1 - - 21,788.75 2178875
04/01/2012 £5,000.00 3.000% 21,788.75 106,788.75
10/04/2012 - - 20,513.75 20,613.75
04/01/2013 §5,000 00 3.000% 20,512.75 105,513.75
10/01/2012 - - 19,238.75 19,238.75
04/01/2014 50,000.00 3.150% 19,238,75 109,23B.75
10/01/2014 - - 17.821.25 17,821.25
040112018 90,000.00 3.250% 17,621.25 107,821.28
10/01/2015 - - 18,358,756 16,358.75
04/01/2016 95,000.00 3.350% 16,358.75 111,358.75
10/01/2016 - - 14,767 .50 14,767.50
Q4/01/2017 100,000.00 3.450% 14,767.50 114,767.50
100172017 - - 13,042.50 13,042.50
0470412018 105,000.00 3.550% 13,042.50 118,042.50
10/01/2018 - - 11,178.75 11,178.75
04/01/2018 105,000.00 3.650% 11,178.75 116,178.75
10/01/2018 - - 9,262.50 9,262.50
040142020 110,000.00 3.750% 9,262.50 119,262.50
10/1/2020 - - 7,200.00 7,200.00
c4/01/2021 115,000.00 4.000% 7,200.00 122,200.00
10/01/2021 - - 4,800.00 4,900.00
0470172022 120,000.00 4.000% 4,900.00 124,500.00
1010172022 - - 2,500.00 2,500.00
04/01/2023 125,000.00 4.000% 2,500.00 127,500.00

- Total %4,790,000.00 - $716,293.75 $2,506,293.75

Yield Statistics

Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Galoulation 271312013
Average Life. e 5.444 Years
AVEFAQE COUPOM. oo erermmre s et . 3.B032300%
Welghted Average Maturity (Par Bams) 5.444 Years
fefunding Bond Information

Refunding Dated Date ..o - 8/13/2013
Refunding Delivery Date 81342013
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$1,105,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series 2013
Current Refunding of Series 2003C

Debt Service Schedule
Date Principal Coupot Interest Total P+!

1270172013 - - - -
1210172014 100,000.00 0.550% 23,348.00 123,348.00
12/01/2015 105,000.00 0,700% 17,410.00 122,410.00
127012016 105,000.00 0.950% 16,675.00 121,675.00
1210172017 110,000.00 1.250% 15,677.50 125,677.50
12/01/2018 119,000.00 1.500% ‘ 14,302.50 124,302.50
12/01/2019 . 110,000.00 1.800% - - 12.652.50 122,652.50
12/01/2020 110,000.00 1.950% T 10,672.50 120,672.50
12/01/2021 115,000.C0 2.250% 8,527.80 123,627.50
12/01/2022 120,000.00 2.400% 5,840.00 125,940.00
1210172023 120.,000.00 2.550% 3,060.00 123,060.00

Total $1,105,000.00 - $128,265.50 $1,233,265.50

Yield Statistics

Sond Year Dallars.,
Average Life.......

Average Coupon

Net interest Cost INIC) ..o
True Interest Cost (TIC)... e
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes.

Al INGIUSive COSTAIC). i s

IRS Form 8038
Net Interest Cost

Weighied Average Matursty
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%6,576.50
5.952 Years
1.6503611%
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2.1174354%
2.1038400%
2 7746329%
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§.052 Years




$1,105,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series 2013
Current Refunding of Series 2003C

Current Refunding Escrow

Date Principal Rate Receipis Disbursements Cash Balance
081132013 - - - - -
10/01/2013 1,085,000.00 - 1,055,000.00 1,055,000.00 -

Total $1,055,000.00 - $1,055,000.00 $1,055,000.00 -

investment Parameters

investment Model [PV, GIC, or Securities] . GIC
Detault investment yield target. ... Unrestricted
Cost of Investmenis Purchased with Bond Proceeds . 1,055,000.00
Total COBE OF IIVESHMENES . oervooe st ieeeeesasiens s brrass s S LE2 r $1.055,000.00

Target Cast of INVeSIMENts At BONG YIBI c...vrie it e s $1,052,080.44

Yield 10 Recaiph. v e SRR s et et b e et -6.40E-12
Yl FOr ATDITAGE PUMPOSES. 1w ovvrtreeeeeesressersior s roms b1 FE DTS 2. 1026408%
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COMMON COUNCIL
OF THE
CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

July 16, 2013 Resolution No. 13-92

A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of
$2,610,000* Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B,
and All Related Details

RECITALS

The Common Council (the “Governing Body”) of the City of De Pere,
Wisconsin (the “Issuer””) makes the following findings and determinations:

I. The Issuer needs funds for the following purposes:
Maximum Amount
: Amount Purpose
Authorized Borrowed P
$1,310,000 $ for providing financial assistance to blight elimination,

slum clearance, community development, redevelopment,
and urban renewal programs and projects under Sections
66.1105, 66.1301 to 66.1329, and 66.1331 to 66.1337 of
the Wisconsin Statutes, including, but not limited to,
financing development grants for projects within the
City’s Tax Incremental Districts Numbers 6, 7, 9, and 10
(collectively, the “Project”); and

1,475,000 current refunding of the Issuer’s outstanding (1)
$1,505,000 Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2003B, dated April 1, 2003, and (ii) $1,115,000
Taxable General Obligation Redevelopment Bonds, Series
2003D, dated July 1, 2003.

2. On June 4, 2013, the Governing Body adopted four initial resotutions,
which included authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds of the Issuer in the
maximum principal amounts and for the purposes described above (the “Initial Resolution”).

3. On June 4, 2013, the Governing Body also adopted a resolution
authorizing and directing the publication of notice of the adoption of the Initial Resolution
relating to the Project (the “Publication Resolution”).

4842-4638-8500.1



4, On June 4, 2013, the Governing Body also adopted a resolution
authorizing the amounts and purposes specified in the Initial Resolutions to be combined into a
single bond issue designated as “corporate purpose bonds” (the “Authorizing Resolution”).

5. The Cletk of the Issuer caused notice of the following actions:

1) Notice of the adoption of the Initial Resolutions. Notice of the
adoption of the Initial Resolution relating to the Project (the
“Legal Notice”) was given by publication of a notice in the
Issuer’s official newspaper on June 13, 2013 in the manner and
form directed by the Publication Resolution.

(i)  Notice of the sale of the Obligations. Notice of the sale (the
“Notice to Bidders™) of the City of De Pere, Wisconsin Taxable
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B (the
“QObligations”) was given to such media typically monitored by
potential bidders in the manner and form directed by the
Authorizing Resolution.

These notices are made of record in these proceedings, and the Governing Body ratities the
notices.

6. No sufficient petition for referendum on the question of the adoption or
offectiveness of the Initial Resolution relating to the Project or issuance of the Obligations was
filed with the Clerk of the Issuer within 30 days after the date on which the Initial Resolutions

were adopted.

7. In accordance with the Notice to Bidders and the bidding terms that were
included in the document that was used for offering the Obli gations for sale by competitive bid
(the “Official Terms of Offering”), written bids for the sale of the Obligations were received
and delivered to the Governing Body.

8. The Governing Body has considered all the bids it received. The
Governing Body has decided to accept the bid of , or a group that it represents
(the “Purchaser™), to purchase the Obligations on the terms specified in the Purchaser’s bid. The
Purchaser bid the price of $ for the entire issue of Obligations (the “Purchase
Price”), plus any accrued interest, and specified that the Obligations maturing on December 1 in the
years shown below will bear interest at the respective interest rates shown below:

Principal Interest Principal Interest

Year Amount Rate Year Amount Rate
2014 $310,000 % 2019 $255,000 %%
2015 325,000 2020 255,000

2016 330,000 2021 145,000

2017 340,000 2022 150,000

2018 345,000 2023 155,000

-
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9. The Purchaser’s bid complies with all terms of the Notice to Bidders and
the Official Terms of Offering.

10.  The Issuer has taken all actions required by law and has the power 10 sell
and issue the Obligations.

11.  The Governing Body is adopting this resolution to sell the Obligations and
provide for their issuance upon the terms and conditions set forth in this resolution.

RESOLUTIONS

The Governing Body resolves as follows:

Section 1. Definitions.

In this resolution, the following terms have the meanings given in this section,
unless the context clearly requires another meaning.

“Book-Entry System’ means a system in which no physical distribution of
certificates representing ownership of the Obli gations 1s made to the owners of the Obligations
but instead all outstanding Obligations ar¢ registered in the name of a securities depository
appointed by the Issuer, ot in the name of such a depository’s nominee, and the depository and
its participants record beneficial ownership and effect transfers of the Obligations electronically.

«Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, dated as of the Original Issue Date, to be executed by the Issuer and delivered on the

closing date of the Obligations.

“Debt Service Fund” means the fund created by the Issuer pursuant to
Section 67.11 of the Wisconsin Statutes to provide for the payment of debt service on its general
obligations.

“Pepository” means BTC O any Successor appointed by the Issuer and acting as
securities depository for the Obligations.

«pTc” means The Depository Trust Comparny.
“Financial Officer” means the Issuer’s Treasuret.
“Fiscal Agent’ means Associated Trust Company, National Association, or aiy
successor fiscal agent appointed by the Issuer to act as paying agent and registrar for the

Obligations pursuant to Section 67.10 (2) of the Wisconsin Statutes.

«Governing Body” means the Issuer’s Common Council.

4842-4638-8500.1



«Ipitial Reselutions” has the meaning set forth in the recitals to this resolution.
«Issuer” means the City of De Pere, Wisconsin.

“Legal Notice” means the notice of the adoption of, among other resoltutions, the
[nitial Resolution relating to the Project. The Legal Notice was published in the Issuer’s official
newspaper on June 13, 2013.

“Municipal Officers” means the Mayor and the Clerk of the Issuer. These are
the officers required by law to execute general obligations on the Issuer’s behalf.

“Qbligations” means the $2,610,000* City of De Pere, Wisconsin Taxable
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B, which will be issued pursuant to
this resolution.

«Official Terms of Offering” has the meaning set forth in the recitals to this
resolution.

“QOriginal Issue Date” means August 13, 2013.

“Prior Bonds” means the Issuer’s (i) $1,505,000 Taxable General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B, dated April 1, 2003, and (i) $1,115,000 Taxable General
Obligation Redevelopment Bonds, Series 2003D, dated July 1, 2003.

“project” has the meaning given in the recitals to this resolution.

«purchase Price” means $

“Purchaser” means , or a group that it represents.

“Record Date” means the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the
calendar month just before a regularly scheduled interest payment date for the Obligations.

“Recording Officer” means the Issuer’s Clerk.
“Redemption Date” means October 1, 2013,

“Refunding” means the current refunding of the outstanding principal amount of
the Prior Bonds.

“Register” means the register maintained by the Fiscal Agent at its designated
office, in which the Fiscal Agent records:

(1) The name and address of the owner of each Obligation.
(i)  All transfers of each Obligation.

“Treasurer”’ means the Issuer’s Treasurer.

4842-4638-8500.1



Section 2. Exhibits.

The attached exhibits are also a part of this resolution as though they were fully
written out in this resolution:

(1) Exhibit A — Form of Obligation.
(i)  Exhibit B— Notice to Electors of Sale.

Section 3. Corporate Purpose Bonds.

The Issuer is combining the general obligation bonds authorized under the Initial
Resolutions into a single bond issue and designating them as “corporate purpose bonds”.

Section 4. Purposes of Borrowing; Issuance of Obligations.

The Governing Body authorizes the Obligations and orders that they be prepared,
executed, and issued. The Obligations will be fully registered, negotiable, taxable general
obligation corporate purpose bonds of the Issuer in the principal amount of $2,610,000%. The
Obligations will be issued pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes and
the authority granted by the adoption of the Initial Resolutions to pay the costs of the Project and
the Refunding, and to pay certain expenses of issuing the Obligations (including printing costs,
fees for financial consultants, bond counsel, fiscal agent, rating agencies, insurance, and
registration, as applicable).

Section 5. Terms of Obligations.

The Obligations will be named “City of De Pere, Wisconsin Taxable General
Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B.” The Obligations will be dated the Original
Issuc Date, even if they are actually issued or executed on another date. Each Obligation will

also be dated the date on which it is authenticated by the Fiscal Agent. That date is its
registration date.

The face amount of each Obligation will be $5,000 or any muliiple thereof up to
the principal amount authorized for that maturity.

The Obligations will bear interest from the Original Issue Date. Interest will be
payable semiannually on each June 1 and December 1, beginning on June 1, 2014, until the
principal of the Obligations has been paid. Interest on each Obligation will be (i) computed on
the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and (i) payable to the person in whose
name the Obligation is registered on the Register at the end of the day on the applicable Record
Date. The Obligations will be numbered consecutively as may be required to comply with any
applicable rules or customs or as determined by the Municipal Officers executing the
Obligations. The following table shows when the Obligations will mature and the rate of interest
cach maturity will bear:

4842-4638-8500.1



Maturity Date

(December 1) Principal Amount® Interest Rate
2014 $310,000 %4
2015 325,000
2016 330,000
2017 340,000
2018 345,000
2019 255,000
2020 255,000
2021 145,000
2022 150,000
2023 155,000

The principal of, and interest on, the Obligations will be payable in lawful money
of the United States of America.

Section 6. Refunding of Refunded Bonds.

To provide for the redemption of the Prior Bonds on the Redemption Date, the
Financial Officer is directed to transfer proceeds of the Obligations 10 cach debt service fund for
the Prior Bonds. The transfers must be made on or prior 10 the Redemption Date. The amount
transferred must be sufficient, together with all other funds then on deposit in said funds, to pay
the amount duc on cach of the Prior Bonds on the Redemption Date.

Section 7. Redemption of Refunded Bonds.

The Issuer irrevocably directs that the principal amount of each maturity of the
Prior Bonds be redeemed and paid in full in advance of its stated maturity on the Redemption
Date. The appropriate officers of the Issuer are directed to instruct the fiscal agent for each of
the Prior Bonds to take all actions required to call the Prior Bonds for redemption on the
Redemption Date, including giving notice in the manner required by the governing documents
for the Prior Bonds. The Issuer ratifies any action taken in connection with the Refunding and
the redemption of the Prior Bonds prior to the date of this resolution.

Section 8. Fiscal Agent.

The Issuer appoints the Fiscal Agent to act as paying agent and registrar for the
Obligations. The appropriate officers of the Issuer are directed to enter to a fiscal agency
agreement with the Fiscal Agenton behalf of the Issuer. The fiscal agency agreement may
provide for the Issuer to pay the reasonable and customary charges of the TFiscal Agent for those
services. The fiscal agency agreement must require the Fiscal Agent to comply with all
applicable federal and state regulations. AmONg other things, the Fiscal Agent must maintain the
Register.

AR42-4638-8500.1



Section 9. Appointment of Depository.

The Issuer appoints DTC to act as securities depository for the Obligations. An
authorized representative of the Issuer has previously executed a blanket issuer letter of
representations with DTC on the Issuer’s behalf, and the Issuer ratifies and approves that
document.

Section 10. Book-Entry Systeni.

On the date of their initial delivery, the Obligations will be registered in the name
of DTC or its nominee and maintained in a Book-Entry System. If the Issuer’s relationship with
DTC is terminated, then the Issuer may appoint another securities depository to maintain the
Book-Entry System.

The Issuer may decide at any time not to maintain the Obligations in a Book-
Entry System. If the Issuer decides not to maintain a Book-Entry System, then it will do the
following:

(1) At its expense, the Issuer will prepare, authenticate, and deliver to the
beneficial owners of the Obligations fully registered certificated
Obligations in the denomination of $5,000 or any multiple thereof in the
aggregate principal amount then ouistanding. The beneficial owners will
be those shown on the records of the Depository and its direct and indirect
participants.

(i)  The Issuer will appoint a fiscal agent to act as paying agent and registrar
for the Obligations under Section 67.10 (2) of the Wisconsin Statutes (the
Fiscal Agent may be reappointed in this capacity).

Section 11.  Redemption.
The Obligations are pot subject to redemption before their stated maturity dates.

Section 12. Payment of Obligations/Transfers Under Book-Entry System.

S0 long as the Issuer maintains the Obligations in a Book-Entry System, the
following provisions apply:

Payment. The Fiscal Agent is directed to pay the principal of, and interest on, the
Obligations by wire transfer to the Depository or its nominee in accordance with the
Depository’s rules that are then in effect.

Transfers. The Obligations are transferable, onty upon the Register and only if
the Depository ceases to act as securities depository for the Obligations and the Issuer appoints a
successor securities depository. If that happens, then upon the surrender of the Obligations to the
Fiscal Agent, and the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the Fiscal Agent for any tax,
fee, or other governmental charge required to be made with respect to such registration, the
[ssuer will issue new fully registered Obligations in the same aggregate principal amounts to the

-
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successor securities depository, and the Obligations will be recorded as transferred to the
successor securities depository in the Register.

Register. The Issuer, the Fiscal Agent, and any alternate fiscal agent may treat the
entity or person in whose name any Obligation is registered on the Register as the absolute
owner of the Obligations for all purposes whatsoever under this resolution.

Section 13. Payment of Obligations/Transfers Not Under Book-Entry
System.

If at any time the Issuer decides nof to maintain the Obligations in a Book-Entry
System, then the following provisions apply:

Payment. The Fiscal Agent will pay the principal of each Obligation upon its
presentation and surrender on or after jts maturity at the designated office of the Fiscal Agent,
and the Fiscal Agent will pay, on each interest payment date, the interest on each Obligation by
wire or other electronic transfer or by check of the Fiscal Agent sent by first class mail to the
person in whose name the Obligation is registered on the Register at the end of the day on the
applicable Record Date.

Transfers. Bach Obligation is transferable, only upon the Register, for a like
aggregate principal amount of the same maturity and interest rate in denominations of $5,000 or
any multiple thereof . A transfer may be requested by the registered owner in person or by a
person with a written power of attorney. The Obligation must be surrendered to the Fiscal
Agent, together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent signed by
the registered owner or by the person with the written power of attorney. The Fiscal Agent will
issue one or more new fully registered Obligations in the same aggregate principal amount to the
transferee or transferees, as applicable, in exchange for the surrendered Obligations and upon the
payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the Issuer or the Fiscal Agent for any tax, fee, or

other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such registration.

Register. The Issuer, the Fiscal Agent, and any alternate fiscal agent may treat the
entity or person in whose name any Obligation is registered on the Register as the absolute
owner of the Obligation for all purposes whatsoever under this resolution.

Section 14. Form of Obligations.

The Obligations must be in substantially the form shown in Exhibit A.
Omissions, insertions, or variations are permitted if they are deemed necessary or desirable and
are consistent with this resolution or any supplemental resolution.

Section 15.  Execution of Obligations.

The Obligations must be signed by the persons who are the Municipal Officers on
the date on which the Obligations are signed. The Obligations must be sealed with the Issuer’s
corporate seal (or a facsimile), i the Issuer has one, and they must also be authenticated by the
manual signature of an authorized representative of the Fiscal Agent.

ABA2-4538-8500.1



The Obligations will be valid and binding even if before they are delivered any
person whose signature appears on the Obligations is no longer living or is no longer the person
authorized to sign the Obligations. In that event, the Obligations will have the same effect as if
the person were living or were still the person authorized to sign the Obligations.

A facsimile signature may be used as long as at least one signature of a Municipal
Officer is a manual signature or the Fiscal Agent’s certificate of authentication has a manual

signature. If a facsimile signature is used, then it will be treated as the officer’s own signature.

Section 16. Continuing Disclosure.

The appropriate officers of the Issuer are directed to sign the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, and the Issuer agrees to comply with all of its terms.

Section 17.  Sale of Obligations.

The Issuer awards the sale of the Obligations to the Purchaser at the Purchase
Price, plus any accrued interest from the Original Issue Date to the date of delivery of the
Obligations. The Issuer approves and accepts the purchase agreement signed and presented by
the Purchaser to evidence the purchase of the Obligations (the “Purchase Agreement”). The
Municipal Officers are directed (i) to sign the Purchase Agreement in the Issuer’s name and
(ii) to take any additional actions needed to complete the sale of the Obligations, including
arranging for a specific time and place of closing of the sale.

The Financial Officer is directed to comply with the terms of the Official Terms
of Offering with respect to any good-faith deposit requirements.

The officers of the Issuer are directed to sign the Obligations and to arrange for
delivery of the Obligations to the Purchaser in accordance with the Official Terms of Offering,
the Purchase Agreement, and this resolution. The Obligations may be delivered to the Purchaser
upon payment by the Purchaser of the Purchase Price, plus any accrued interest, as required by
the Official Terms of Offering.

The sale of the Obligations is conditioned upon the Issuer furnishing the
following items to the Purchaser:

(1) The Obligations, together with the written, unqualified approving opinion
of the law firm of Foley & Lardner LLF, bond counsel, evidencing the
legality of the Obligations.

(i) A transcript of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Obligafions.

(iii) A certificate showing that no litigation has been threatened or is pending
that would affect the legality of the Obligations or the right of the Issuer to
issue them at the time of their delivery.

4842-4638-8500.1



Section 18. General Obligation Pledge; Tax Levy.

For the prompt payment of the principal of, and interest on, the Obligations, the
Issuer irrevocably pledges its full faith, credit, and resources. The Issuer hereby levies upon all
taxable property in its territory a direct, annual, and irrepealable tax in an amount sufficient 10
pay, and for the express purpose of paying, the interest on the Obligations as it falls due and also
to pay and discharge the principal of the Obligations on their maturity dates.

This tax must be carried from year to year into the Issuer’s tax rotl. It must be
collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as all other
taxes. The amount of this tax fhat is carried into the Jssuer’s iax roll may be reduced in any year
by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund available to pay debt service on
the Obligations for such year. This tax will be in the following amounts:

- ———

Debt Service Debt Service
Amount Due 1n Amount Due in

Levy Year Following Year Levy Year Following Year

2013 $ 2018 %

2014 2019

2015 2020

2016 2021

2017 2022

-

Section 19. Debt Service Fund.

The Treasurer is directed to keep the proceeds of the taxes levied under this
resolution, when they are collected, in the Debt Service Fund. The Debt Service Fund must be
maintained and administered as provided in Section 67.11 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The lssuer
must create a separate account within the Debt Service Fund solely for the Obligations. Any
accrued interest received at the time of delivery of the Obli gations and the premium, if any, paid
to the Issuer by the purchaser in excess of the stated principal amount of the Obligations must be
deposited into the Debt Service Fund and used to pay interest on the Obligations. If the money
in the Debt Service Fund is insufficient to make a payment of principal of or interest on the
Obligations on a date on which such a payment is due, then the Issuer will prompily provide the
necessary funds to make the payment from other available sources.

Section 20. Borrowed Money Fund.

The sale proceeds of the Obligations (not including any accrued interest or
premium received) must be deposited in and kept by the Treasuret in a separate fund. The fund
must be designated with both the name of the Obligations and the pame Borrowed Money Fund
(herein referred to as the «“Borrowed Money Fund”). Money in the Borrowed Money Fund,
including any earnings, must be (a) used to pay the costs of (i) the Project, (ii) the Refunding,
and (iii) issuing the Obligations, or (b) transferred to the Debt Service Fund as provided by law.

-10-
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Section 21. Official Statement.

The Issuer ratifies and approves the preliminary offering document prepared and
distributed in connection with the sale of the Obligations, and the Tssuer authorizes and directs
the final version of such document (the “Official Statement”) to be prepared and delivered prior
to the issuance of the Obligations; provided, however, that the Official Statement must be
substantially in the form submitted to this meeting, with such modifications as the Municipal
Officers approve. The Municipal Officers must deliver copies of the Official Statement to the
Purchaser and, if the Purchaser requests, execute one ot more copies on behalf of the Issuer.
Execution and delivery of the Official Statement conclusively evidences the approval of the

Municipal Officers.

Section 22. Publication of Notice.

The Recording Officer must publish notice that the Issuer has agreed to sell the
Obligations. The notice must be published in the Issuer’s official newspaper as a class 1 notice
under Chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes promptly after the adoption of this resolution. The
notice must be in substantially the form shown in Exhibit B. The Recording Officer must obtain

proof, in affidavit form, of the publication, and must compare the notice as published with the
attached form to make sure that no mistake was made in publication.

Section 23. Authorization of Officers.

The appropriate officers of the Issuer are directed to prepare and furnish the
following items to the Purchaser and the attorneys approving the legality of the Obligations:

(1) Certified copies of proceedings and records of the Issuer relating to the
Obligations and to the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer.

(i) ~ Other affidavits, certificates, and information that may be required to show
the facts about the legality of the Obligations, as such facts appear on the
books and records under the officer’s custody or control or as arc
otherwise known to the officer.

All certified copies, affidavits, certificates, and information furnished for such purpose are
representations of the Issuer as to the facts they present.

Section 24. Further Authorization.

The Issuer authorizes its officers, attorneys, and other agents or employees 1o do
all acts required of them to carry out the purposes of this resolution.

Section 25. Conflict with Prior Acts.

In case any part of a prior action of the Governing Body conflicts with this
resolution, the Issuer rescinds that part of the prior action.

-11-
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Section 26. Severability of Invalid Provisions.

If a court holds any provision of this resolution to be illegal or invalid, then the
illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this resolution,

Section 27. Effective Date.

This resolution takes effect upon its adoption and approval in the manner
provided by law.

ok ook sk sk sk osk

Adopted: July 16, 2013

Approved: July ,2013

Mayor

Clerk

-12-
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EXHIBIT A

FORM OF OBLIGATION

PORVE AL AR S st

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation
“prc™), to the issuer o its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the
name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede
& Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER
USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner
hereof, Cede & Ceo., has an interest herein.

STATE OF WISCONSIN
Crty oF DE PERE

No. R~ Registered
$

TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BOND, SERIES 20138

Interest Maturity Original
Rate Date Issue Date CUSIP
% December 1,20 August 13, 2013 - 241361

REGISTERED OWNER! CeDE & CO.

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS

e

TaE CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN (herein called the “Issuer’), hercby
acknowledges itself to owe and for vatue received promises to pay 0 the Registered Owner, the
Principal Amount, on the Maturity Date, and to pay interest on the Principal Amount from the
Original Issue Date at the annual rate of the Interest Rate. Interest is payable semiannually on
June 1 and December 1, beginning on June 1, 2014, until the Principal Amount has been paid.
Interest is computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

This Obligation is one of a duly authorized issue of obligations (the
“QObligations”) of the Issuer of an aggregate principal amount of $2,610,000%, all of which are of
like tenor, except as to denomination, interest rate, and maturity date, issued by the Issuer
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes, and is authorized by

(1) separate initial resolutions adopted by the governing body of the Issuer on June 4, 2013,
specifying the following not to exceed amounts for the following purposes:

Exhibit A —Page 1
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Maximum Amount

Authorized Amount

Purpose
Borrowed P

$1,310,000 $ for providing financial assistance to blight elimination,
slum clearance, community development, redevelopment,
and urban renewal programs and projects under Sections
66.1105, 66.1301 to 66.1329, and 66.1331 to 66.1337 of
the Wisconsin Statutes, including, but not limited to,
financing development grants for projects within the
City’s Tax Incremental Districts Numbers 6, 7, 9, and 10;
and

1,475,000 cutrent refunding of the Tssuer’s outstanding (1)
$1,505,000 Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2003B, dated April 1, 2003, and (ii) $1,115,000
Taxable General Obligation Redevelopment Bonds, Series
2003D, dated July 1, 2003.

and (2) the resolution duly adopted by the governing body of the Issuer on July 16, 2013,
entitled: “A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of $2,610,000%*
Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B, and All Related Details”
(the “Resolution”). The Obligations are issuable only in the form of fully registered obligations.

On the date of their initial delivery, the Obligations will be maintained in a system
in which no physical distribution of certificates representing ownership of the Obligations is
made to the owners of the Obligations but instead all outstanding Obligations are registered in
the name of a securities depository appointed by the Issuer (a “Depository”), or in the name of
the Depository’s nominee, and the Depository and its participants record beneficial ownership
and effect transfers of the Obligations electronically (a “Book-Entry System”). S0 long as the
Obligations are maintained in a Book-Entry System, then the principal of, and interest on, this
Obligation will be paid by wire transfer to the Depository or its nominee in accordance with the
Depository’s rules that are then in effect by Associated Trust Company, National Association, or
any successor fiscal agent appointed by the Issuer under Section 67.10 (2) of the Wisconsin
Statutes (the “Fiscal Agent”), who will act as paying agent and registrar for the Obligations.

If at any time the Issuer decides not o maintain the Obligations in a Book-Entry
System, then (i) the principal of this Obligation will be paid by the Fiscal Agent upon its
presentation and surrender on or after its maturity date or prior redemption date at the designated
office of the Fiscal Agent, and (ii) the interest on this Obligation will be paid, on cach interest
payment date, by wire or other electronic transfer or by check of the Fiscal Agent sent by first
class mail to the person in whose name this Obligation is registered on the register (the
“Register””) maintained by the Fiscal Agent at the end of the day on the 15" day (whether or not
a business day) of the calendar month just before each regularly scheduled interest payment date
(the “Record Date”).

The principal of, and interest on, this Obligation is payable in lawful money of the
United States of America. For the prompt payment of the principal of, and interest o, this

Exhibit A — Page 2
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Obligation, the Issuer has irrevocably pledged its full faith, credit, and resources. The Issuer has
levied upon all taxable property in its territory a direct, annual, and irrepealable tax sufficient in
amount to pay, and for the express purpose of paying, the interest on this Obligation as it falls
due and the principal of this Obligation on the Maturity Date.

The Obligations are not subject to redemption before their stated maturity dates.

So long as the [ssuer maintains the Obligations in a Book-Entry System, then the
following provisions apply:

Transfers. The Obligations are transferable, only upon the Register and only if
the Depository ceases to act as securities depository for the Obligations and the
Issuer appoints a successor securities depository. If that happens, then upon the
surrender of the Obligations to the Fiscal Agent and in exchange and upon the
payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the Fiscal Agent for any tax, fee, or
other governmental charge required to be made with respect to such registration,
the Issuer will issue new fully registered Obligations in the same aggregate
principal amounts to the successor secutities depository and the Obligations will

be recorded as transferred to the successor securities depository in the Register.

Register. The Issuer, the Fiscal Agent, and any alternate fiscal agent may treat the
entity or person in whose name this Obligation is registered on the Register as the
absolute owner of this Obligation for all purposes.

If at any time the Issuer decides not to maintain the Obligations in a Book-Entry
System, then the following provisions apply:

Transfers. Bach Obligation is transferable, only upon the Register, for a like
aggregate principal amount of the same maturity and interest rate in
denominations of $5,000. A transfer may be requested by the registered owner in
person or by a person with a written power of attorney. The Obligation must be
surrendered to the Fiscal Agent, 10 gether with a written instrument of transfer
satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent signed by the registered owner or by the person
with the written power of attorney. The Fiscal Agent will issue one or MOre new
fully registered Obligations, in the same aggregate principal amount to the
transferee or transferees, as applicable, in exchange for the surrendered
Obligations and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the Issuer or
the Fiscal Agent for any tax, fee, of other governmental charge required to be paid
with respect to such registration.

Register. The Issuer, the Fiscal Agent, and any alternate fiscal agent may treat the
entity or person in whose name this Obligation is registered on the Register as the
absolute owner of this Obligation for all purposes.

Exhibit A - Page 3
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The Issuer certifies, recites, and declares that all acts, conditions, and procedures
required by law to be, or to be done, leading up to and in the issuing of this Obligation and of the
issue of which it is a part, do exist, have happened, and have been done and performed in regular
and due form, time, and manner as required by law; that the indebtedness of the Issuer, including
this Obligation and the issue of which it is a part, does not exceed any limitation, general or
special, imposed by law; and that a valid, direct, annual and irrepealable tax has been levied by
the Tssuer sufficient to pay the interest on this Obligation when it falls due and also to pay and
discharge the principal of this Obligation at maturity.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the [ssuer, by its governing body, has caused this
Obligation to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the manual or facsimile signatures of
its Mayor and Clerk and to be sealed with its corporate seal (or a facsimile thereof), if any, all as
of August 13, 2013.

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

Mayor
[SEAL]

And:
Clerk

Certificate of Authentication

Dated: August _, 2013

This Obligation is one of the Obligations
described in the Resolution.

ASSOCIATED TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Fiscal Agent

By:

Authorized Signatory

Exhibit A — Page 4
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ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto

PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR

OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE

(Please Print or Type Name and Address of Assignee)

the within-mentioned Obligation and all rights thereunder and does hereby irrevocably constitute

and appoint

attorney-in-fact, to transfer the

game on the books of the registry in the office of the Fiscal Agent, with full power of substitution

in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed

NOTICE: Signatures must be guaranteed by an
“eligible guarantor institution” meeting the
requirements of the Fiscal Agent . Those
requirements include membership or
participation in the Securities Transfer
Association Medallion Program (“STAMP”) or
such other “signature guarantee program” as
may be determined by the Fiscal Agent in
addition to, or in substitution for, STAMP, all in

accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of

1934, as amended.

Note: The signature to this assignment must
correspond with the name as written on the
face of the within Obligation in every
particular, without any alteration or change.
When assignment is made by a guardian,
trustee, executor or administrator, an officer
of a corporation, or anyone in a representative
capacity, proof of the person’s authority to
act must accompany this Obligation.

Exhibit A — Page 5
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August , 2013

City of De Pere
335 South Broadway Street
De Pere, Wisconsin 54115

Subject: $2,610,000*
City of De Pere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B

We have acted as bond counsel to the City of De Pere, Wisconsin (the “Issuer”)
in connection with the issuance of its $2,610,000* Taxable General Obligation Corporate
Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B, dated August 13, 2013 (the “Obligations™).

We examined the law, a certified copy of the proceedings relating to the issuance
of the Obligations, and certifications of public officials and others. As to questions of fact
material to our opinion, we relied upon the certified proceedings and certifications without
independently undertaking to verify them.

Based upon this examination, it is our opinion that, under existing law:
1. The Obligations are valid and binding general obligations of the Issuer.

2. All taxable property in the Issuer’s territory is subject to ad valorem
taxation without any limit as to rate or amount to pay the principal and interest coming due on
the Obligations. The Issuer is required by law to include in its annual tax levy the principal and
interest coming due on the Obligations except to the extent that the Issuer has deposited other
funds, or there is otherwise surplus money, in the account within the debt service fund created
for the Obligations under Wisconsin law.

The rights of the owners of the Obligations and the enforceability of the
Obligations may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other
similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and by equitable principles (which may be applied in
either a legal or an equitable proceeding).

We express no opinion as to the truth or completeness of any official statement or
other disclosure document used in connection with the offer and sale of the Obligations.

Exhibit A — Page 6
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August _, 2013
Page 2

Our opinion is given as of the date of this letter. We assume no duty to update
our opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that later come to our attention or any
subsequent changes in law. In acting as bond counsel, we have established an attorney-client
relationship only with the Issuer.

Very truly yours,

Exhibit A — Page 7
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EXHIBIT B

NOTICE TO THE ELECTORS QF THE
CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
RELATING TO TAXABLE BOND SALE

On July 16, 2013, pursuant to Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes, a resolution
was offered, read, approved, and adopted whereby the City of De Pere, Wisconsin authorized the
borrowing of money and entered into a contract to sell taxable general obligation corporate
purpose bonds in the principal amount of $2,610,000%. It is anticipated that the closing of this
bond financing will be held on or about August 13, 2013. A copy of all proceedings had to date
with respect to the authorization and sale of said bonds is on file and may be examined in the
office of the City Clerk, at 335 South Broadway Street, De Pere, Wisconsin between the hours of
0:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. on weekdays.

This notice is given pursuant to Section 893.77 of the Wisconsin Statutes, which
provides that an action or proceeding to contest the validity of such financing, for other than
constitutional reasons, must be commenced within 30 days after the date of publication of this
notice.

Publication Date: July , 2013 /s/ Shana L. Defnet
City Clerk

ExhibitB - 1
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CERTIFICATIONS BY CLERK

I, Shana L. Defnet, certify as follows:

. I am the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of De Pere, Wisconsin
(the “Municipality”).

. As such T have in my possession, or have access 1o, the complete corporate
records of the Municipality and of its Common Council (the “Governing
Body”).

° Attached to this certificate is a true, correct, and complete copy of the

resolution (the “Resolution”) entitled:
A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Sale and Issuance of
$2,610,000* Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 20138
and All Related Details

1 further certify as follows:

1. Meeting Date. On July 16,2013, a meeting of the Governing Body was
held beginning at pm.
2. Posting. On July , 2013 (and not less than 24 hours prior to the

meeting), 1 posted, or caused to be posted, at the Municipality’s offices in De Pere, Wisconsin a
notice setting forth the time, date, place, and subject matter of said meeting. The notice
specifically referred to the Resolution.

3. Notification of Media. OnJuly _ ., 2013 (and not less than 24 hours
prior to the meeting), 1 communicated or caused to be communicated, the time, date, place, and
subject matter of said meeting to those news media who have filed a written request for such
notice and to the official newspaper of the Municipality. The communication specifically
referred to the Resolution.

4. Open Meeting Law Compliance. The meeting was a regular meeting of
the Governing Body that was held in open session in compliance with Subchapter V of Chapter
19 of the Wisconsin Statutes and any other applicable local rules and state statutes.

5. Members Present. The meeting was duly called to order by the Mayor
(the “Presiding Officer””), who chaired the meeting. Upon roll call, 1 noted and recorded that
there were ____members of the Governing Body present at the meeting, such number being a
quorum of the Governing Body.

6. Consideration of and Roll Call Vote on Resolution. Various matters
and business were taken up during the course of the meeting without intervention of any closed
session. One of the matters taken up was the Resolution. A proper quorum of the Governing
Body was present for the consideration of the Resolution, and each member of the Governing

4842-4638-8500.1



Body had received a copy of the Resolution. All rules of the Governing Body that interfered
with the consideration of the Resolution, if any, were suspended by a two-thirds vote of the
Governing Body. The Resolution was then introduced, moved, and seconded, and after due
consideration, upon roll call,  of the Governing Body members voted Aye, voted Nay,
and _ Abstained.

7. Adoption of Resolution. The Resolution was supported by the
affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum of the members of the Governing Body in attendance.
The Presiding Officer then declared that the Resolution was adopted, and I recorded the adoption
of the Resolution.

8. Approval of Presiding Officer. The Resolution was approved by the
Presiding Officer on July _, 2013, and I have recorded the approval. The approval is
evidenced by the signature of the Presiding Officer on the copy of the Resolution to which this
certificate is attached.

9. Publication of Exhibit B to Resolution. Ihave caused Exhibit B to the
Resolution to be published in the form and place specified in the Resolution.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have signed my name and affixed the seal of the
Municipality, if any, on this certificate on July ,2013.

Clerk
[Seal]
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$2,610,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin
Taxable Generai Obligation Community Development Bonds
Series 20138

Pricing Summary

Maturity Type of Bond Coupon Yield Maturity Value Price Dollar Price
12/01/2014 Serial Coupon 0.650% 0.650% 310,000.00 100.000% 310,000.00
12/01/2015 Serial Coupon 0.900% 6.900% 325,000.00 100.000% 325,000.00
12/01/2016 Serial Coupon 1.150% 1.150% 330,000.00 100.000% 330,000.00
12/01/2017 Serial Coupon 1.500% 1.500% 340,000.00 100.000% 340,000.00
12/0112018 Serial Coupon 1.850% 1.850% 345,000.00 100.000% 345,060.00
1210102019 Serial Coupon 2.150% 2.150% 255,000.00 100.000% 255,000.00
12/01/2020 Serial Coupon 2.450% 2.450% 255,000.00 100.0600% 255,000.00
12/0/2021 Serial Coupon 2.700% 2.700% 145,000.00 100.000% 145 000.00
1240112022 Sarial Coupon 2.950% 2.950% 150,000.00 100.000% 150,000.00
12/61/2023 Serial Coupon 3.200% 3.200% 155,000.00 100.000% 165,000.00

Total - - - $2,610,600.00 - $2,6810,000.00

Bid Information

AT ATTIGURL OF BOMS .. oot oee e e s ieietsreeeeseeesie s ese e s eeoeets s aeentasad te £ oAb s 2 aadTe# o 4R e e 1m e ce e e em et asman s e m S na b emenber e eraan e raaeenree $2,610,000.00
CIPOES PTOUUCHON, ooov e eor it seseee e ceeoesces s ees e sseeses s 1e e st semt oot emete s esemia e e res s st e mer st e 92,810,000.00

Totai Underwriter's Discount {1.200%). .o e et b R e et et e etan e e e $(31,320.00}
Bt {BB.BOOY)....ee i rarreessmins et LT R e e R 2,578,680.00

Total PUICRAEE PIICE. ..o et ie e irtitia it ee e s eme et e eeebe e et carir e se s rran renras et e e rranns F PPN $2,578,680.00

(2T 18 IR €= T Lo 1= T OO U PO O PO PPN £43.123.00
Average Life........ 5.055 Years
Average Coupon...... 21413572%

NEL INEEMESE COBE (M) ..ottt e o rae it e en bbb et E e r A T e e el bbb E a1 2.3787558%
True Interest Cost {THC) ..o 2.3762116%

201128 Taxable GO Bonds [ fisue Summery | &/204201% | 2135 1M




$2,610,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Community Development Bonds
Series 2013B

Debt Service Schedule

Drate Principal Coupon interest Total P+

12/01/2013 - - - -
12/01/2014 310,000.00 0.650% 58,821.75 368,821.7%
1200112015 325,000.00 5.900% 43,232.60 ‘ 368,232.50
12/01/2018 330,000.00 1.150% 40,307.50 370,307.50
12/01/2017 340,000.00 1,500% 36,512.50 376,512.50
12/01/2018 345,000.00 1.850% 3141280 :376,412.50
12/01/2019 255,000.00 2.150% - 25,030.00 280,030.00
12/01/2020 255,000.00 ’ 2.450% 19,547.50 . 274 547 .50
12/01/2021 145,000.00 2.700% oo 4320000 158,300.00
12/01/2022 150,000.00 2.950% . 9,385.00 159,386.00
12/01/2023 155,000.00 3,200% 4,960.00 159,860.00

Total $2,610,000.00 - $252,609.25 §2,802,508.25

Yield Statistics

Bond Year DOHars. ...t e $13,193.00
Average Life e e 5,055 Years
Averags COURON ..o 2.1413572%

Nt INEE 8T COBE (NIC T vevsrereeermsomessesesssberics b st T 2.3787558%
True Interest Cost (TIC) s e 2.3762118%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes. . 2.1212878%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.6739021%

IRS Form 8038
Net interest Cost....ooe

2.1413572%
Weighted AVErage MUY oo i

5.055 Years

20137 Texable GO Bonds | Jesue Snmmay | 672072073 | 283 FM
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$770,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin
Taxabie General Obligation Community Development Bonds, Series 20136
TID #6 Projects

Debi Service Schedule

Coupon interest Total P!

Pringipai

12/01/2013 :

12101/2014 105,000.00 0.650% 15,427.75 120,427.75
12/01/2045 105,000.00 0.900% 11,185.00 118,185.00
120112016 410,000.00 ' 1,150% 10,240.00 120,240.00
1210102017 110,000.00 1.500% 8,875.00 118,975.00
12/01/2018 110,000.00 1.850% 7,325.00 117,325.00
12/01/2019 115,000.00 2.150% 5,200.00 120,290.00
12/01/2020 115,000.00 2.450% 2,817.50 117,817.50

$770,000.00 - $831,260.25

Yield Statistics

Bond Year o T R $3,351.00
Average Life 4.385 Years
AVEIAGE COUPOIN, . oreers sy . 1.8226793%

Net Interest Cost (NIC) e . 2.0975874%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.1036275%
Band Yield for Arbitrage PUMPOSES . oarrerreosee 2.1212878%
All Inclusive Cost T [ DRSS . 2.3828568%

IRS Form 8038

Net Interest Cost - 1.8226793%
Weighted Average WRGLLIEY. corovrevesrsrersnssms s o 4365 Years

20138 Taxabie GO fonds | TID #6 frojects | érzos201d | B85 PM
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$285,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Commurnity Development Bonds, Series 20138
TiD #7 Projects

Debt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Interest Tatal P+I
1200112013 - - - -
12/04/2014 25,000.00 0.650% 7,429.50 32,429.50
1210172015 25,000.00 0.900% 5,552.50 30,552.50
1240412016 25,000.00 1.150% 5,327.50 30,327.50
1200172047 30,008.00 1.500% 5.040.00 35,040.00
12/01/2018 30,000.00 1.850% 4.590.00 34,560.00
1210142018 : 30,000.00 2.160% 4,035.00 34,035.00
12/01/2020 30,000.00 2.450% 3,390.00 33,380.00
12/01/2021 30,000.00 2.700% 2,665.00 32,655.00] .
1210172022 30,300.00 2.950% 1,845.00 31,845.00
12/0172023 30,000.00 3.200% 980.00 30,960.%

Totat $2585,000.00 - $40,824.50 $325,824.5_0]

Yield Statistics

BORG YEAr DOAIS oo rssrsssarsre s erm st $4,705.50
Average Life. o .. 5.984 Years
AVEIAER COUPTTL . ecrmraurrresarssmrs im0 s e, 2.3035989%
Net Interest Gost (NIC). s o 2.6242246%
True Interast Cost (TIC) e 2.5925383%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purpeses.... 2.1212878%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) e 2.8035687%
IRS Form 2038

Net fnterest COBL....i e 2.3036968%
Weighted Average PAGEUFY s voneeecrsensars st et 5.984 Years

20730 Tuxable GO Bonds | TID #7 Frojects | 672072018 ] 2348
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$75,000

City of De Pere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Community Development Bonds, Series 20138
TID #9 Frojects

Debt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l
12/01/2013 - - - -
120112014 - - 2,218.75 2,219.75
12/01/2015 5,000.00 0.900% 1,707 .50 6,707.50
12/01/2016 5,000.00 1.150% 1,662.50 6,662.50
12/01/2017 5,000.00 1.500% 1,805.00 6,805.00
12/01/2018 10,000.00 1.850% 1,530.00 14,530.00
12401/2019 © 10,000.00 2.150% 1,345 .00 11,345.00
12)0172020 10,000.00 2.450% 1,130.00 11,130.00
1210172021 10,000.00 2.700% ' 885.00 ' 10,885.00
1210172022 10,000.00 2.950% . 61500 10,615.00
12/01/2023 10,000.00 3.200% ’ 320.00 10,320.00

Total $75,000.00 - $13,018.75 $88,019.75

Yield Statistics

Bond Year DOl . £517.50
Average Life ... ... B6.900Years

AVerage COUPOM. e 2.5158937%
R R o R L Lo MRt 2 .585E068%
True Interest Cost {TICh e Z BE20138%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes. 2.1212878%
S 2.8768744%
IRS Form 8038

Net Inferest COSt.ooieiiee : 2.5168937T%
Weighted Average Maturity ..o 6.800 Years

20738 Taxable GO Bonds ] FID#3 Frojects | /2022013 | 293 FM




$990,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Community Development Bonds, Series 2013B
Current Refunding of Series 2003B

Debt Service Comparison

Date Total P+ Net New DI§ Old Net /S Savings
12/01/2013 - - - -
12/01/2014 110,996.75 110,896.75 116,800.00 5,803.25
12101420156 108,445,00 109,445.00 118,030.00 8,585.00
1210172016 113,635.00 113,635.00 119,000.00 5,365.00
12/01/2017 112,542.50 112,542.50 119,710.00 7,167.50
1216142018 114,117.50 111,117.50 120,160.00 5,042.50
12101/201% 114,360.00 114,360.00 120,350.00 5,990.00
12/01/2020 112,210.00 112,210.00 120,280.00 8,070.60
12/01/2021 114,760.00 114,760.00 119,980.00 5,190.00
12/01/2022 116,925.00 116,925.00 124,230.00 7.305.00
12/01/2023 118,680.00 118,680.00 123,120.00 4 440.00

Total $1,134,671.75 $1,134671.75 $1,201,630.00 $66,958.25

PV Analysis Sumimary (Net to Net)

NEt FV CaBITIOW SAVINTS. e ceeeveteremimmreies e s reesscrme s she s e fa o8 1SS LSS

66 958.25
Gross PV DEBE SEIVICE SAVITIS . .. v e eer et it ces bsmr e rms e e LT

76,616.22

Net PV Cashflow Savings @ 2.121%(Bond YIEIt) .. vt s b 76,516.22

CORUNGENCY O ROUAGING AMMIOUAL.. . wcou1ursrrsoeiereesescmr b s s s e 3,660.67
INET FURITE VAIIE BONETI, ... o.ivivcirrer o mes et emensess s8££ bbb SR T oSSR §70,827.92
NEE PrEsent VAIUE BEMEIL.....coo. o1 e cemreceti e es s s b e A $80,185.89
Net PV Benefit / $246,929,85 PV RefUnded INtBraSh, .o i s i s 32.473%
Net PV Benefit / §1,081,855.18 PV Refunded Debt Servica. 7.412%

Net PV Benefit/  $935,000 Refunded Principal........ooe i 8.576%
Net PV Benefit ! $090,000 Refungding FPINGIPAL- ..o s b b 8.100%

Refunding Bond Information

Refunding Dated Date. .. o o e b s

8/13/2013
RETUNGING DBIIVETY DBIB.crvcret s e aeeeessrrm e sss et e S8 LT T

8132013

ZO188 Taxabie GO Bapds | Serizs 2015 TAX Ref 20058 | 6/20/2013 | 253 M
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$1,505,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Serjes 2003B

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call

Date Refunded Refunded DfS To Call Principal Coupon interest Refunded DIS
Bonds Interes{

08/13/2013 - - - - - - -
10/01/2013 935,000.00 8,103.33 943,103.33 - - - -
0zi01/2014 - - - 70,000.00 5.200% 24,310.00 04,310.00
08/01/2014 - - - - - 22,490.00 22,490.00
02/0172015 - . - 75,000.00 5.200% 22.490.00 97 .480.00
0801/2015 - - - - - 20,540.00 20,540.00
02/01/2016 - - - 80.000.00 5,200% 20,540.00 100,540.00
08/01/2016 - - - - - 18,460.00 18,460.00
020127 - - - §5,000.00 5.200% 18,480.00 103,460.00
08/01/2017 - - - - - 16,250.00 16,260.00
02/01/2018 - - - 90,000.00 5.200% 16,250.00 106,250.00
0B/01/2018 - - - - - 13,610.00 13,810.00
02/01/2019 - - - 95 000.00 5.200% 13,810.00 108,816.00
08/01/2019 - - - - - 11,440.00 11,440.00
02/01/2020 - - - 100,000.00 5.200% 11,440.0C 111,440.00
08/01/2020 - - - - - §,840.00 8,840.00
pzi01/2021 - - B 105,000.00 5.200% 8,840.00 113,840.00
08/01/2021 - - - - - 5,110.00 6,110.00
02/01/2022 - - - 115,000.00 5.200% 6,110.00 121,110.00
08/01/2022 - - - - - 312000 3,120.00
02/01/2023 - - - 120,000.00 5.200% 3120.00 123,120.00
Tatal $4935,000,00 $8,103.33 $843 103,33 $935,000.00 - $266,630.00 $1,204,630.00

Yield Statistics

Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 8/M13/2013
AVBIEGE LB 5.451 Years
Average CoUpON. ..o 5.2000000%
Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis).....co.. B 5,451 Years
Refunding Bond information

ReFUNAING DALET DETE ... ocrocvrerreime s s e 81372013
Refunding Delivery Date. ... 8/13/2013

Saries 20038 Tax | SINGLE PURFOSE | 6/20/2013 | 285 KM




$1,505,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 20038

Total Refunded Debt Service

DPate Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l
02/01/2014 70,000.00 5.200% 24,310,060 64 310,00
02/01/20156 75,000.00 5.200% 44,980.00 119,980.00
02/01/2018 80,000.00 5.200% 41,080.00 121,080.00
0270142017 85,000.00 5.200% 36,920.00 121,520.00
02/01/2018 90,000.00 5.200% 32,500.00 122,500.00
020142019 95,000.00 5.200% 27,820.00 122,820.00
02/0172020 100,000.00 5,200% 22,880.00 12#,880.00
p2r01/2021 105,000.00 5.200% 17,680.00 122,680,00
02/01/2022 115,000.00 5.200% 12,220.00 127,220.00
0210142023 120,060.00 5,200% 6,240.00 126,240.00

Total $935,000.00 - $266G,630.00 $1,201,630.00

Yield Statisfics

Base date for Ava. Life & Avg. Coupon CaloulatoN. ... 8/13/2013

Average Life....ooimmmiin 5.451 Years

Avarage COUPON ... . 5 2000000%

Weighted Average Maturity (Par BABIE ). - ov 1 oeoeesesss s b s s L 5.451 Years

Refunding Bond Information

Refunding Dated DAt 8/13/2013
8/13/2013

REFUNAING DEIVEIY DBIE. .. ocrerserevass oo s .

Series Z0058 Tax [ SINGLE FURPOSE | 672052018 | B3R IAT




$1,505,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Cbligation Refunding Bonds, Series 20038

Prior Original Debt Service

Date Principal Coupon Inferest Total P+l
0810172003 - - 26,086.67 25,086.67
020172004 50,000.00 5.200% 39,130.00 84,130.00
08/01/2004 - - 37,830.00 37,830.00
02/01/2005 50,000.00 5.200% 37,830.00 87,830.00
08/01/2005 - - 36,530.00 38,530.00
02/0%/2006 50,000.00 5.200% 36,530.00 86,530.00
08/01/2006 . - 35,230.00 35,230.00
02/1712007 55,000.0¢ 5.200% 35,230.00 90,230.00
08/01/2007 - - 33,800.00 33,800.00
(2/01/2008 55,000.00 5,200% 33,800.00 88,800.00
08/01/2008 - - 32,370.00 32,370.00
02/G1/2008 55,000.00 5.200% 32,370.00 87,370.00
08/01/2009 - - 30,840.00 30,540.00
Q2/01/2010 60,000.00 5.200% 30,940.00 90,940.00
08/01/2010 - - 29,380.00 29,380.00
02/0%/2011 £0,000.00 5.200% 2€,380.00 39,330.00
08/Q1/2011 - - 27,820.00 27 82000
02/0112012 65,000.00 5.200% 27.820.00 §2,620.00
08/01/2812 - - 26,130.0C T 25,130.00
02/01/2013 70,0600.00 " 5.200% 26,130.00 96,130.00
08/01/2013 - - 24,310.00 24,310.00
02/01/2014 70,000,080 5.200% 24,310.00 894,310.00
08/01/2014 - - 22,480.00 22,490.00
02/01/2015 75,000.00 5.200% 22,490.00 97,480.00
08/01/2015 - - 20,540.00 20,540.00
02/01/20186 80,000.00 5,200% 20,540.00 100,540.00
0BI01/2018 - - 18,460.00 18,460.00
020142017 85,000.00 5.200% 18,480.00 103,460.00
0s/o1/2017 - - 16,250.00 16,250.00
02/01/2018 90,G00.00 5.200% 16,250.00 106.250.00
80172018 - - 13,816.00 13,910.00
o2/01/2019 85,000.00 5,200% 13,210.00 108,810.00
080172019 - - 11,440.00 11,440.00
Q20172020 100,000.00 . 5.200% 14,440.00 111,440.00
08/01/2020 - - 8,840.00 8,840.00
02/01/2021 105,000.00 5.200% §,840.00 113,840.00
08/01/2021 - - 6,110.00 5,110.00
02/01/2022 115,000.00 5.200% 6,110.00 121,110.00
$8/01/2022 - - 3,120.00 3,120.00
02/01/2023 120,600.00 5.200% 3,120.00 123,120.00

Total $1,505,000.00 - $936,216.687 $2,444 21667

Yield Statistics

Base date for Avg. Life & Avy. Coupon Caleulation.................. FUT O U SV R 8/13/2013
AVErage Lite ..o 5.451 Years
Average Coupon......... 5.2000000%

Weighted Average Maturily (Par Basis).....oe e VUV . 5.451 Years

Refunding Bond Information

Refunding Dated Date

. 8/13/2013
Refunding Delivery Date... ... s .

B/1372013

Series 20038 Tax | SINGLE PURPOSE | 672047018 | 233 FM




$990,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Community Development Bonds, Series 20138
Cutrent Refunding of Series 20038

Debi Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l
1210172013 - - - -
12/01/2014 85,000.00 0.650% 25,996.75 110,996.75
12101120158 90.0040.00 0.900% 19,445.00 109,445.00
1210172016 95.000.00 1.150% 18,635.00 113,835.00
1200172017 95,000.00 1.500% 17,542.50 112,542 50
12/01/2018 85,000.00 1.850% 16,117.80 111,117.50
12/01/2019 100,000.00 2.150% 14,350.00 114,360.00
12/01/2020 100,000.00 2.450% 12,210.00 112,210.00
121012021 105,000.00 2.700% 8,760.00 114,760.00
12/01/2022 : 110,000.00 2.950% 6,925.00 116,925.00
12/01/2023 115,000.00 3.200% 3,680.00 118,880.00

Total £990,000.00 - $144,671.75 $1,134,671.75
Yield Statistics
530130 I = L L] |2 £ O U U ORIV UP O PP SR PR OSSO $5,982.00

B.042 Years
2.4184512%

Average Life........
Average Goupon...

NEE ITEEESE COSE INTG)on oo iee oottt s s bmnei ot es bt bbb ers e 2617 OAT0%
True FEEreSt COSE {TIC) i iiiiiiie e et ree oo ra e s s omah e as s e e 2.6149311%
Bond Yield for Arhitrage Purposes.. b et stversae e e senerm e e 2 1212878%
AL INGIUSIVE GOSE LAY, v ier et eete it 00 ae o e s S L 3.2070536%

1RS Form 8038
NEE EEIESE GOSE. oo vtveeesee et eaeeeeeeeeee e eeees et ssssseseae arsn e emsmrmsesemsmssss bt emscbrcs sencrecennensassrenst esternssnnsssrssnessmsnsncomrnnenne s 2.0 1B4DT2%
WEGhtET AVEIAGE MBILIHY. ..o iviis it eimemes e b e oo LA AL S 6.042 Years

20738 Tanable GO Bouds | Series 2013 TAX Ref 20038 | 6/20/2013 | 233 PM




$990,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Ohligation Community Development Bonds, Series 20138
Current Refunding of Series 20038

Current Refunding Escrow

e ———

Date Principal Rate Receipis Disbursemants Cash Balance
0B/13/2013 - - - - -
10/01/2013 943,103.33 - 943,103.33 943,103.33 -

Total $043,103.33 - $043,103.33 $543,103.33 -

Investment Parameters

Investment Modet [PV, GIC, or Securities] GIC
Default investment yield targe’t Unrestricted
Cost of Investmants Purchased with Bond Proceeds §43,103.33
Total Cost of = 1L WURERPNRREERIEIE b $943,103.33
Target Cost of investments at bond yqeld $940,453.85
Yield to Receipl e -6.56E-12
Yield for Arbirage PUrpes@s .. . 2.9212878%

20181 Taxable GO Bands [ Serfes 2003 TAN Ref 20038 | 6A20/2013 | Z33FM
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$490,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Development Refunding Bonds, Series 2013B
Current Refunding of Series 20030

Debt Service Comparison

Date Total P+ Existing D/S Net New D/S Cld Net D/iS Savings
12/01/2013 - 10,856.25 10,856.25 10,856.25 -
12/01/2014 102,748.00 - 102,748.00 104,842.50 2,094 .50
12/01/2015 105,342.50 - 105,342.50 105,992.50 £50.00
12i01/2018 59,442.50 - 99,442.50 101 875,00 2.432.50
12/01/2037 103,350.00 - 103,350.00 107,362.50 40250
12/01/2018 104,850.00 - 101,850.00 107,493.75 £,64375

Tatal $512,733.00 $10,856.25 $523 589.25 $538,422.50 $14,823.25

PV Analiysis Summary (Netie Net)

14,833.25
20,249.50

Net FV Cashfiow SEVINGS. ..o r i
Gross PV Dabt SEMVIEE SAVIIES. . .ocmmarsecesimsmms s oot e i T T

Net PV Cashflow Savings @ 2.121%{Bond YIRIAY.. oo e 20,248.60

Contingency or Rounding Amount........c.... (1,342.07}
Net Future Value Benefit............. e §03,40108
Nei Present Vaiue Benefil..nmna T PR PP P e T L S LT $18,907.53

Net PV Benefit / $55,106.87 PV Refunded ITEBTEEE .o voeeeneemreestrsee steas e san e ren oo 34.311%

Net PV Berefit / $498,904,80 PV Refunded Bebt Setvice ..ot 3.790%
Net PV Benefit/  $470,000 Refunded PARGIPAL ...ve e v eeer . 4.023%
Net PV Benafit/  $480,000 RefURGING PANCIPAL ....ovrovcvvenremsssrsi s s s s 3.858%
refunding Bond information

Refunding Dated Date. ... B/1342013
REFUNGING DEIVEIY DRIS...oocvrocrroos e emtrssss s 8M13/2013

Z0) 58 Taxabie GO Bowds | Series 2014 TAN Raf 20030 | 6/20/2018 | 2:35FM




$1,115,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obfigation Development Bonds, Series 2003D

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call

Date Refunded /S To Call Principai Coupen interest Refunded DIS
Bonds

08/13/2013 . - - - - - -
10/04/2013 470,000.00 470,000.00 - - - -
04/01/2014 - - 85,000.00 4 400% 10.856.25 95 856.25
10/01/2014 - - - - 8,986.25 8,986.25
04/01/2015 - - 80.,000.00 4.400% 8,986.25 | 08,088.25
10/01/2015 - - - - - 700825 - 7.006.25
04/01/2016 - - 90,000.00 4.750% 7.006.25 9700625
16/G1/2016 - - - - 4,868.75 4,868.75
04/01/2017 - - 100,000.00 4.750% 4,868.75 104,868.75
10/01/2017 - - - - 2.493.75 2.493.75
a4/01/2018 - - 105,000.00 4.750% 2,493,75 107,493.75
Total $470,000.00 $470,000.0C $470,000.00 - $57 BHE.25 $527,566.25

Yield Statistics

Base date for Avg. Life & Avg, Coupon CalEHBEOM. ... oo e 81372013
Average Le... ..o e e 20040 YRS
AVETEGE COUDPOIT. e roerevereeerereirriaieosiers iy s siess s 1as s st et e 4.4705863%
Weighted Averaga Maturity (Par BasB). ... e st 2.740 Yeers
Refunding Bend information

RETUNTING DB DBIE.cv.ev s rmer e et s 2o e e b0 g T £ S s 8/13/2013
Rafunding Delivery Date.......oo..ooweuessssoresoemeesiconsens &/13/2013

Serfer 20080 Tex [ SIVGLE FURPOSE | 672042013 [ 2:58 FM




$1,115,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Development Bonds, Series 20030

Total Refunded Bebt Service

Date Principal Coupon Interast Total P+|
04/01/2014 85,000.00 4.400% 10,856.25 95,856.25
04/01/2015 90,000.00 4.400% 17,872.50 107,972.50
04/01/2016 90,000.00 4.750% 14,012.50 104,012.50
044012017 100,000.00 4.750% 8,737.50 109,737.50
04/01/2018 105.000.00 4.750% 4,987.50 109,887.50

Totat $470,000.00 - $57,566.25 $527 566,25

Yield Statistics

Base date for Avg, Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation....... e e 811312013
Average Life.. ... 2740 Years
Average CoUPOM..... i 4.4705863%
Weighiad Average Maiurity (Far BaSIS) ... ..o e st s e s 2740 Years
Refunding Bond Information

REFUNTING DIAEEA DBEE......vvoeve.ooeucrierevsees s imrs et s et £S5 88 b e B/13/2013
Refunding Deltvery DA, e o 8/13/2013

Serves ZO0S0 Tax [ SINGLE FURPQSE | 672078073 [ 233




$1,115,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Cbligation Development Bonds, Series 2003D

Prior Original Debt Service

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l
1040172003 - - - -
04/01/2004 45.000.00 3.250% 33,500.63 78,500.83
10/01/2004 - - 21,602.50 21,602.50
041012005 55,000.00 3,260% 21,602.50 76,602.50
10/04/20086 - - 20,708.75 20,708.75
04/01/2006 50,000.00 3.250% 20,708.75 30,708.75
10/01/2008 - - 19,733.75 19,733.78
04/01/2007 £0,000.00 3.260% 16,733.75 79,733.75
10/01/2007 - - 18,758.75 18,758.78
040142008 55,000.00 3.500% 18,758.75 83,758.75
100112008 - - 17,621.25 17 521.25
04/01/2009 £5,000.00 3.500% 17,621.25 82,621.25
10/01/2009 - - 16,483.75 16,483.75
04/01/2040 70,000.00 3,500% 16,483,758 86 483.78
1010142010 - - 15256875 15,258.75
04/01/2011 70,000.00 3.500% 15,258.75 85,268.75
10/01/2011 - - 14,033.75 14,033.75
04/01/2012 75,000,060 4.100% 14,033.75 80,033.75
10/01/2012 - - 12,496.25 12,496.25
04/01/2013 §0,000.0C 4,100% 12,495.25 92 496.25
1070142093 - - 10,856.25 10,856.25
04/04/2014 §5,000.00 4.400% 10,856.26 95 856.25
10/01/2014 - - §,088.25 8,086.26
04/01/2015 40,000.00 4.400% 8.588.25 08 986.25
10/01/2015 - - 7,006.25 7,006.25
04/01/12016 30,000.00 4. 750% 7,006.25 97.006.25
10/01/2016 - - 4.868.75 4.868.75
041012017 100,000.C0 4.750% 4 868,78 104,868.75
10/01/2017 - - 2,493.75 2.493.75
0410112018 1056,000.00 4,750% 2.493.75 ' 107,493,756

Total $1,115,000,00 - $415,318.13 $1,530,316.13

Yield Statistics

Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation 8/13/2013
Average LG oo os e s e ssrapas 8o came bR 2,740 Years
AVETRGE COUPOM.. crovermsreesmmsmrms s s e, A.5954118%
Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis). ... 2.740 Years
Refunding Bond Information

Refunding Dated Date BTSN PRPRRPPR TS 8/13/2013
Refunding Pelivery Date 8/13/2013

Sertes 20030 Tax | SINGLE PURFOSE | G/20/3018 ; 2R3 TM




$490,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Development Refunding Bonds, Series 2013B
Current Refunding of Series 20030

Debt Service Schedule

Date - Principai Coupon interest Totat P+t

1210112013 - - - -
12/01/2014 $5,000.00 0.650% 7.,748.00 102,748.00
12/01/2015 100,000.00 0.800% 534250 105,342.50
12/01/2016 95,000.00 1.150% 444280 99, 44250
12/01/2017 100,000.00 1.500% 3,350.00 103,350.00
12/0172018 100,000.00 1.860% 1,660.00 101,850.00

Total $480,000.00 - $22,733.00 $512,733.00

Yield Statistics

BON YAF DORETS. .. ..oiviv o1 ereremaeas e rees s mr s sine s e sinas s s e s $1,627.00
Average Life. ..o e i 3,320 Years
AVETAZE COUPOM..cosimerercrvrerinmiemesse s 1.3972342%

NEE IETTETEST COSE INIC) eoevvserpsemsrmemsss e et s 88 e S R 1.7586355%
True Interest Cost (THC ).t e 1.7676615%
Bong Yieid for Arbitrage Purposas.. 2.1212878%
AT IGILSIVE COSE IAIG .1 coevvevesceesevees e amssssesssss oo e 8082 2.7825093%

IRS Form 8038
Net Interest Costi. e 1.3972342%
Waighted Average MatUIIY ... s s 3,320 Years
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$490,000

City of DePere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Development Refunding Bonds, Series 20138
Current Refunding of Series 2003D

Current Refunding Escrow

Date Principal Rate Receipts Dishursemerds Cash Balance

08/13/2013 - -
10/01/2013 470,000.00 - 470,000.00 470,000.00 -

Total $470,000.00 : - $470,000.00 $470,000.00

investment Parameters

investment Model [PV, GIC, of Securities]
Default investment YIBIA tEIGEE ... et e e

GIC
Unrestricted

Cost of Investments Purchased WIth Bong ProGeeds. vt mens e eeresinesesesossemsessmsmem e meenmmeeeee 41 0,000.00
TOtal COSE OF INVEBLTUEIILS .o omorveveeesretimtreeseeeeeeeeeesseeseesemsassteseesseearereet e ts s assmrsrreremsemssmnsrensneneinssmamsesrtorcoiesesomernonerancennrernes 947 0,000.00

Target Cost of Investments at bond VISR $468,679.52

Yigld t6 ReCIPL .. oot e e -6.57E-12
Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.1212878%

ZOIAR taxable GO Aondy [ Series 2013 TAX Rof #0030 | 642072013 | 235 FM




MoobDy’s

INVESTORS SERVICE

New Issue: Moody's assigns AaZ2 to De Pere, Wi's $8.3M Ser. 2013A and B GO
Bonds

Global Credit Research « 10 Jul 2613

DE PERE (CITY OF) Wi
Cities (including Towns, Villages and Townships)
wil
Moody's Rating
ISSUE RATING
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A Aa2
Sale Amount $5,745,000
Expected Sale Date 07/15/13
Rating Description General Obligation

Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 20138 Aa2

Sale Amount $2,610,000
Expected Sale Date 07/15/13
Rating Description General Obligation
Moody's Outlook
Opinion

NEW YORK, July 10, 2013 -Moody's Investors Service has assigned a AaZ2 rating to the City of De Pere, Wl's
$5.7 million General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A and $2.6 million Taxable General
Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B. Moody's maintains the Aa2 rating on the city's outstanding
general ohligation unlimited tax debt. Post-sale, the city will have $37_3 million of outstanding general obligation
debt.

SUMMARY RATINGS RATIONALE

The bonds are secured by the city's general obligation unlimited tax pledge. The AaZ2 rating reflects the city's
moderately-sized tax base with engoing population growth and favorably located in the Green Bay (general
obligation rated Aa1) metropalitan area; stable financial position; and manageable debt levels. Froceeds of the
Series 2013A bonds will finance capital improvements and equipment purchases, as well as refund the city's
Series 2003C GO bonds for expected interest savings. Proceeds of the Series 20138 bonds will finance
developer granis in the city's tax increment districis and will refund the city's Series 2003B and 2003D GO bonds
for expected interest savings.

STRENGTHS

-Tax base favorably located in the Green Bay metropolitan area

-Multi-year trend of operating surpluses resulting in maintenance of healthy General Fund reserves
CHALLENGES

—Receht moderate declines in tax base value

-Overall debt burden elevated at 5:0% of full value given outstanding debt of local schoeal districts



DETAILED CREDIT DISCUSSION
MODERATELY SIZED TAX BASE IN THE GREEN BAY METROPOLITAN AREA

The city's tax base value is expected to siabilize in the near term given its favorable location six miles south of the
city of Green Bay and the presence of continued development across sectors. The city is strategically located on
Highway 41, the main transportation route that connects the broader Green Bay, Appleton (Aaa), Oshkash
{Aa2/stable outloak) and Fond du Lac {Aa2) region. At $1.7 billion in 2012, the city's full valuation has increased by
0.6% per year on average during the last five years, This figure incorporates moderate declines in 2010 through
2012 of 4.5%, 3.5% and 1.7%, respectively. Officials note that declining values were experienced across sectors
and expect tax base values to stabilize going forward.

De Pere's population has experienced sustained growth in recent decades, including 15.8% growth from 2000 to
2010, and officials project 1% annual growth in population going forward. The city also continued to see ample
development throughout the recent recessionary period, with total permit values ranging from $30 million to $53
million annually the last five years, Recent commercial/industrial projects include relocation of Foth Engineering, a
400 employee firm, to the city from another location in the metropolitan area and numerous expansions of facilities
and workforce among the city's paper manufaciurers and machine shops. The city also recently completed a river
walk redevelopment project and its downtown further benefits from the institutional presence of St. Norbert
College, a liberal arts college that enrolls approximately 2,200 students. The college completed $150 million of
capital projects in the last five years, and continues to underge capital projects. A Humana Healthcare (senior
unsecured rated Baa3/siable cutiook) cali center is the city's largest employer, with 2,712 employees in the city
and immediate area, and largest taxpayer, accounting for 1.8% of taxable valuation. The company’s operations in
the area are reportedly stable. Within the residential sector, the city reports numerous instances of infill and new
construction of multi-residential units. Annual issuances of new single family home permits ranged from 23 to 89
the last five years and are expected to continue this strong trend. Officials report that city has approximately 400
acres of land available for new development and it potentially could annex additional iownship land if needed,

At 8.4% as of April 2013, the unemployment rate for Brown County (Aaa) tracks below state and national levels of
7.2% and 7.1%, respectively. Wealth levels are slightly above average, with median family income at 103.9% and
107.0% of the state and nation, respectively, according to 2006-2010 estimates from the American Community
Survey.

SOUND FINANCIAL POSITION CHARACTERIZED BY STABLE RESERVE LEVELS

We expect the city's finances to remain healthy given an ongoing trend of General Fund surpluses and the
strength of management, which has made proactive adjustments to operations to address revenue raising
constraints. The city has posted annual General Fund surpluses since fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2012, the city realized
a $572,000 General Fund surplus that brought reserves to $6.0 million, or a satisfactory 37.8% of revenues. Fiscal
2012 General Fund unassigned reserves of $5.1 million, or a healthy 32.2% of revenues, remained above the
city's reserve policy of maintaining 25% to 35% of General Fund expenses in unassigned reserves. Surplus
operations in fiscal 2012 were largely driven by operational efficiencies, such as careful monitoring of overtime ard
discretionary spending, and lower than anticipated capital projects spending. The city's General Fund cash totaled
$4.8 million, or a solid 29.4% of revenues, at the end of fiscal 2012, The General Fund has accumulated $1.4
million of loans to ather city funds, including a $1.1 million loan to the wastewater utility to reverse its negative cash
position. The wastewater utility has experienced some structural imbalance due to local decision fo pass on to
consumers a portior: of the cify's own (non-regional wastewater authority) wastewater operating expenses..
Officials report an intent to adjust rates going forward to correct the structural imbalance.

For fiscal 2013, the city has budgeted for a modest $290,000 use of General Fund reserves for capital outlays.
The city expects balanced operations in fiscal 2014. Favorably, starting in fiscal 2014, the city will realize recurring
savings from the implernentation of Act 10 for ceriain unionized employees. After the city's unionized employees'
contracts expire at the end of fiscal 2013, certain employees are subject to mandated employee contributions to
their pension and health care premiums, resulting in savings for the city.

ABOVE-AVERAGE OVERALL DEBT BURDEN WITH AVERAGE LEVELS OF DIRECT DEBT

The city's above average debt burden likely will remain manageable due to a lack of near-term borrowing plans
and above average principal retirement. At 5.0% of full value, the city's overall debt burden is above average given
the sizeable debt levels of the two local school districts, The districts have recently updated their facilities to
address growing enrollment and reportedly have no plans to issue sizeable amounts of additional debt. The city's
direct debt level at 2.1% of full value is moderately above average. Principal amortization is sound with §1.2% of



principal retired in ten years. GCity officials do not have near term plans to issue additional debt. All of the city's
outstanding debt is fixed rate, and the city is not a party to any interest rate swap agreements,

PENSION LIABILITY EXPOSURE EXPECTED TO REMAIN MANAGEABLE

Budgetary pressure from the city's exposure to the state multi-employer pension plan, the Wisconsin Retirement
System (WRS), is expected to remain manageable. The city's contribution to WRS in fiscal 2012 was $1,034,538,
which consisted of the emplayer share of contributions to the system. This contribution was equivalent to 6.6% of
total General Fund expenditures. The city has historically made its required contributions to WRS, and does not
have an outstanding prior service unfunded liability with the retirement system on a reported basis.

Moody's adjusted net pension liability (ANPL) for the city, under our methodology for adjusting reported pension
data, was $12.1 million for fiscal 2010, or 0.66 times operating revenues, inclusive of the General Fund and Debt
Service Fund. This compares favorably to approximately 1.0 times on average for local governments. Moody's
ANPL reflects certain adiustments we make to improve comparability of reported pension liabilities. The
adjustments are not intended to replace the city's reported contribution information, but to improve comparability
with other rated entities. We determined the city's share of the cost-sharing plan liability in proportion to its
contributions to the plan.

WHAT COULD CHANGE THE RATING UP:

-Significant expansion and diversification of the city's tax base

-Continued increases in the city's General Fund reserves

WHAT COULD CHANGE THE RATING DOWN:

- Erosion of the city's tax base and/or weakening of socic-economic indices

- Deterioration in General Fund reserves to a level inconsistent with similarly rated credits
KEY STATISTICS

Census 2010 population: 23,800 (15.8% increase from 2000 populatior)

2012 full market valuation: $1.7 billion

Estimated full value per capita: $71,608

Median family income (2006-2010 average): 103.9% of state and 107.0% of nation
Brown County unemployment rate (April 2013): 6.4%

FY 2012 General Fund balance: $6.0 million (37.8% of revenues)

Debt burden: 5.0% {2.1% direci)

Principal amortization {10 years). 81.2%

Post-Sale GOULT debt: $37.2 million

PRINCIPAL METHODOLOGY

The principal methodology used in this rating was General Obligation Bonds Issued by US Local Governments
published in April 2013. Please see the Credit Policy page on www.moodys.com for a copy of this methodology.

REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

For ratings issued on a program, series or category/class of debt, this announcement provides certain regulatary
disclosures in relation to each rating of a subsequently issued bond or note of the same series or category/class
of debt or pursuant to a program for which the ratings are derived exclusively from existing ratings in accordance
with Moady’s rating practices, For ratings issued on a support pravider, this announcement provides certain
regulatory disclosures in relatian to the rating action on the support provider and in relation to each particular rating
action for securities that derive their credit ratings from the suppart provider's credit rating. For provisional ratings,

this announcement provides certain reguiatory disclosures in relation to the provisional rating assigned, and in



relation to a definitive rating that may be assigned subsequent to the final issuance of the debt, in each case where
the transaction structure and terms have not changed prior to the assignment of the definitive rating in a manner
that would have affected the rating. For further information please see the ratings tab on the issuerfentity page for
the respective issuer on www.moodys.com.

Regulatory disclosures contained in this press release apply to the credit rating and, if applicable, the related rating
outlock or rating review.

Please see www.moodys.com for any updates on changes to the lead rating analyst and to the Moody's legal
entity that has issued the rating.

Please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on www.moodys.com for additional regulatory disclosures for
each credit rating.
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Andrea Stenhoff

Lead Analyst
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Moody's Investors Service
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accessing the document as a representative of, a ~wholesale client" and that neither you nor the entity you
represent will directly or indirectly disseminate this documert or iis contents to "retail clients" within the meaning of
section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY'S credit rating is an opinion as o the creditworthiness of a
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FitchRatings

FITCH RATES CITY OF DE PERE, WI'S GOS 'AA+"; OUTLOOK
STABLE

Fitch Ratings-New York-11 July 2013: Fitch Ratings has assigned an 'AA+' rating to the following
City of De Pere, Wisconsin (the city) bonds:

--Approximately $5,745,000 general obligation (GO} corporate purpose bonds, series 20134,
--Approximatety $2,610,000 taxable GO corporate purpose bonds, series 2013B.

The bonds are expected to sell competitively on July 16.

Proceeds of the series 2013A bonds will fund street improvements, street lighting, parks and public
grounds, and public improvements within the city's tax increment districts numbers 6, 7, 3,9, and
10 and current refund the city's outstanding GO boends, series 2003C.

Proceeds of the series 20138 bonds will be used to finance projects within the city's tax increment
districts numbers 6, 7, and 9 and current refund the city's outstanding taxable GO bonds, series
2003B and 2003D.

Fitch has also affirmed the city's approximately $31.7 miflion outstanding GO bonds at 'AA+".
The Rating QOutlook is Stable.

SECURITY
The bonds are general obligations of the city to which the full faith, credit and power of the city to
levy unlimited ad valorem taxes are pledged.

KEY RATING DRIVERS

HEALTHY UNDERLYING ECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS: The city's ceatral location and
close proximity to Green Bay, along with its highly regarded school districts and strong
transportation netwark, has resulted in stable and healthy economic indicators.

STRONG FINANCIAL FUNDAMENTALS: The city benefits from conservative budgeting and
prudent financial practices as evidenced by consistent balanced operations and strong and
increasing reserve levels.

MANAGEABLE DEBT PROFILE: The city's aggregate debt burden is moderate and should be
sustainable given above-average debt amortization and manageable capital needs. The city
continues to fully fund pension obligations and has no other post-retirement benefit obligations.

RATING SENSITIVITIES:

CONTINUED STRONG FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT: The rating is sensitive to the
continuation of strong financial management and control policies, which have produced favorable
financial results and considerablie margins of flexibility.

CREDIT PROFILE

The city is located approximately five miles south of Green Bay along the Fox River in Brown
County. De Pere is part of the third largest economic center in Wisconsin and is the dominant retail
center in northeastern Wisconsin and Upper Michigan. The 2012 population estimated at 23,925
represents an 18.2% increase from 2000.



ECONOMY BENEFITS FROM PARTICIPATION IN GREEN BAY MSA

An expanding service sector hag fostered diversification in the regional economy, reducing
historical dependence on non-durable goods manufacturing especially paper product manufacturing.
Major city employers include Humana Health Care (approximately 2,712 employees), Belmark,
Inc. (label and tag printing - 616 employees), Saint Norbert College (600 employees) and RR
Donnelley (direct mail marketing - 34} employees}.

Unemployment rates are not available for the city, but Brown County and Green Bay's
unemployment rates have historically been below state and national rafes. In April 2013 the county
and Green Bay recorded unemployment rates of 6.4% and 6.7%, respectively, lower than the 7.2%
recorded for the state and 7.1% for the U.S. The labor force numbers from April 2012 to April 2013
for both the county and Green Bay increased by 1.3%, respectively, higher than the 0.8% increase
in the state.

City per capita income levels are slightly below the state and national averages at 95% and 93%,
but city median household income levels are higher at 104% and 103% of the state and nation,
respectively. ‘

STABLE AND DIVERSE TAX BASE

The city's tax base, which is 65% residential, continues to grow, albeit at a slower pace. Taxable
assessed value for fiscal 2012 increased slightly by 0.7% from fiscal 2011 and has increased 2.7%
since 2008. The city reports that its approech to business investment through the use of tax
increment financing has contributed to on-going commercial and industrial development. The tax
base is diverse with the top 10 taxpayers comprising 8.7% of assessed value. Property tax
collections are 100% guaranteed by the county and represent approximately 53% of general fund
revenues. ; :

STRONG FINANCIAL FUNDAMENTALS |

The city has a history of prudent budgeting practices which have produced balanced operations over
the last several years and healthy reserve levels. For 2012 (year end Dec. 31) the city reported a
general fund operating surplus after transfers of $572,000 (3.8% of expenditures). Management
conservatively budgeted $150,000 for contingencies in 2012, but only a minimal $2,980 was used.
The unrestricted (sum of committed, assigned and unassigned balances under GASB 54) general
fund balance totaled $5.5 million or a strong 36% of spending compared to $5 million or 33.1% of
spending in 2011, Positively, earlier this year the city changed its unassigned general fund reserve
policy to 25% to 35% of the following year's expenditures from 20%. Given management's past
history of strong financial practices, Fitch expects the city to continue to meet or exceed its reserve
policy targst. '

The adopted 2013 budget includes a de minimums amount ($291,000) of appropriated general fund
balance; however, management is currently projecting expenses wiil be below budget.

MANAGEABLE LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The aggregate debt burden is moderate at $3,54% per capita or 4.9% of full market value. The city
utilizes a variety of alternative revenue sources, including tax increment financing and special
assessmenis to reduce the impact of debt service on the general tax base. Additionally, the city
maintains a continuous voter approved street improvement levy which offsets spending pressure.
Principal amortization is rapid with 78% repaid in 10 years.

City employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer
defined benefit plan. The plan is fully funded and the city continues to fully fund its actuarially
determined annual required contribution. When adjusted to Fitch's more conservative 7%
investment rate of return, the plan is considered well-funded at approximately 97.7% (as of Dec. 31,
2011).The city does not provide or subsidize material post-employment health benefits to its
employees. Carrying costs for pension and debt service are sizeable at 24% of government fund



spending. With the city's plans o continue annual bond issues sized at the current level, Fitch
expects the fixed cost burden to remain fairly stable.
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Additional information is available at ‘www fitchratings.com

In addition to the sources of information identified in Fitch's Tax-Supported Rating Criteria, this
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Springsted

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

City of De Pere, Wisconsin

$5,745,000" $2,610,000"
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Taxable General Obligation Corporate
Bonds, Series 2013A Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B

(Book Entry Only)

The City is issuing the refunding portion of each Issue for debt service savings. If an adequate
level of savings is not achieved through the competitive proposals received on Tuesday,
July 16, 2013, the Common Council may (i) decrease the size of either Issue; or (ii) reject all
proposals for either series of Bonds at their meeting that evening.

*  Preliminary; subject to change.

June 28, 2013

Public Sector Advisors



OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED JUNE 28, 2013

Ratings: Requested from Moody’s Investors Service
NEW AND REFUNDING ISSUES and Fitch Ratings

In the opinion of Foley & Lardner LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming continued compliance with the requirements of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), interest on the Series 2013A Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not a
specific item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on all taxpayers; however, interest on the Series 2013A Bonds will
be taken into account in determining adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on certain corporations. The City
will designate the Series 2013A Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 205(b)(3) of the Code. See “TAX MATTERS - The Series
2013A Bonds” herein for a more detailed discussion of some of the federal income tax consequences of owning the Series 2013A Bonds. The interest on the
Series 2013B Bonds is includible in gross income for federal income tax purposes. See “TAX MATTERS — The Series 2013B Bonds” herein. The interest on the
Bonds is not exempt from current State of Wisconsin income or franchise taxes.

City of De Pere, Wisconsin

$5,745,000" $2,610,000"
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Taxable General Obligation Corporate
Bonds, Series 2013A Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B
(the “Series 2013A Bonds™) (the “Series 2013B Bonds")

(Book Entry Only)

Dated Date: Date of Delivery Interest Due: Each June 1 and December 1,
commencing June 1, 2014

The Series 2013A Bonds will mature on December 1 as follows:

2014 $470,000 2017 $615,000 2020 $575,000 2023  $290,000 2026 $160,000
2015 $600,000 2018 $620,000 2021 $275,000 2024 $150,000 2027 $160,000
2016 $595,000 2019 $560,000 2022 $290,000 2025 $150,000 2028 $235,000

The City may elect on December 1, 2022, and on any day thereafter, to redeem the Series 2013A Bonds due on and after
December 1, 2023. All redemptions shall be at a price of par plus accrued interest.

The Series 2013B Bonds will mature on December 1 as follows:

2014 $310,000 2016 $330,000 2018 $345,000 2020 $255,000 2022 $150,000
2015 $325,000 2017 $340,000 2019 $255,000 2021 $145,000 2023 $155,000

The Series 2013B Bonds will not be subject to redemption in advance of their respective stated maturity dates.

Bids for the Bonds may contain a maturity schedule providing for a combination of serial bonds and term bonds. All term
bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of
redemption scheduled to conform to the respective maturity schedule set forth above.

The Bonds are general obligations of the City for which the City pledges its full faith and credit and unlimited power to levy
direct general ad valorem taxes.

A separate bid must be submitted for each Issue for not less than the respective minimum bid shown below and accrued
interest, if any, on the total principal amount of each Issue. Bids shall specify interest rates in integral multiples of 1/100 or
1/8 of 1%. The initial price to the public for each maturity must be 98.0% or greater. Bids for each issue must be
accompanied by a good faith deposit in the amounts shown below in the form of a certified or cashier's check payable to
the order of the City, a wire transfer, or a Financial Surety Bond, and delivered to Springsted Incorporated prior to the time
bids will be opened. The Bonds will be awarded on the basis of True Interest Cost (TIC).

Minimum Bid Good Faith Deposit
The Series 2013A Bonds $5,687,550 $57,450
The Series 2013B Bonds 2,578,680 26,100

The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds without coupons and, when issued, will be registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”). DTC will act as securities depository of the Bonds.
Individual purchases may be made in book entry form only, in the principal amount of $5,000 and integral multiples
thereof. Investors will not receive physical certificates representing their interest in the Bonds purchased. (See “Book
Entry System” herein.) Associated Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin will act as paying
agent/registrar (the “Fiscal Agent”) for the Bonds and the City will pay for fiscal agent services. It is anticipated that the
Bonds will be available for delivery on or about August 13, 2013.

*  Preliminary; subject to change.

BID OPENING: July 16, 2013 (Tuesday) at 9:30 A.M., Central Time
AWARD: July 16, 2012 (Tuesday) at 7:30 P.M., Central Time

Y. . Further information may be obtained from SPRINGSTED
j S p rin g S t = d Incorporated, Financial Advisor to the City, 380 Jackson Street, Suite
300, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101-2887 (651) 223-3000



For purposes of compliance with Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
this document, as the same may be supplemented or corrected by the City from time to time
(collectively, the “Official Statement”), may be treated as an Official Statement with respect to
the Obligations described herein that is deemed final as of the date hereof (or of any such
supplement or correction) by the City, except for the omission of certain information referred to
in the succeeding paragraph.

The Official Statement, when further supplemented by an addendum or addenda specifying the
maturity dates, principal amounts and interest rates of the Obligations, together with any other
information required by law, shall constitute a “Final Official Statement” of the City with respect
to the Obligations, as that term is defined in Rule 15¢2-12. Any such addendum shall, on and
after the date thereof, be fully incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference.

By awarding the Obligations to any underwriter or underwriting syndicate submitting an Official
Bid Form therefor, the City agrees that, no more than seven business days after the date of
such award, it shall provide without cost to the senior managing underwriter of the syndicate to
which the Obligations are awarded copies of the Official Statement and the addendum or
addenda described in the preceding paragraph in the amount specified in the Official Terms of
Offering.

Any underwriter executing and delivering an Official Bid Form with respect to the Obligations
agrees thereby that if its bid is accepted by the City (i) it shall distribute copies of the Final
Official Statement to each participating underwriter and (ii) it shall enter into a contractual
relationship with all participating underwriters of the Obligations for purposes of assuring the
receipt by each such participating underwriter of the Final Official Statement.

No dealer, broker, salesman representative or other person has been authorized by the City to
give any information or to make any representations with respect to the Obligations other than
as contained in the Official Statement or the Final Official Statement, and, if given or made,
such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by
the City. Certain information contained in the Official Statement and the Final Official
Statement may have been obtained from sources other than records of the City and, while
believed to be reliable, is not guaranteed as to completeness or accuracy. THE
INFORMATION AND EXPRESSIONS OF OPINION IN THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND THE
FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE, AND NEITHER THE DELIVERY
OF THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT OR THE FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT NOR ANY SALE
MADE UNDER EITHER SUCH DOCUMENT SHALL CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT
THERE HAS BEEN NO CHANGE IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE CITY SINCE THE DATE
THEREOF.

References herein to laws, rules, regulations, resolutions, agreements, reports and other
documents do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. All references to such documents
are qualified in their entirety by reference to the particular document, the full text of which may
contain qualifications of and exceptions to statements made herein. Where full texts of
documents prepared by or on behalf of the City have not been included as appendices to the
Official Statement or the Final Official Statement, they will be furnished on request.

Any CUSIP numbers for the Obligations included in the Final Official Statement are provided for
convenience of the owners and prospective investors. The CUSIP numbers for the Obligations
have been assigned by an organization unaffiliated with the City. The City is not responsible for
the selection of the CUSIP numbers and makes no representation as to the accuracy thereof as
printed on the Obligations or as set forth in the Final Official Statement. No assurance can be
given that the CUSIP numbers for the Obligations will remain the same after the date of
issuance and delivery of the Obligations.
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OFFICIAL TERMS OF OFFERING

$5,745,000"
CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2013A

(BOOK ENTRY ONLY)

Bids for the Series 2013A Bonds and the Good Faith Deposit (“Deposit”) will be received on
Tuesday, July 16, 2013, until 9:30 A.M., Central Time, at the offices of Springsted Incorporated,
380 Jackson Street, Suite 300, Saint Paul, Minnesota, after which time bids will be opened and
tabulated. Consideration for award of the Series 2013A Bonds will be by the City’'s Common
Council at 7:30 P.M., Central Time, of the same day.

SUBMISSION OF BIDS

Springsted will assume no liability for the inability of a bidder to reach Springsted prior to the
time of sale specified above. All bidders are advised that each bid shall be deemed to
constitute a contract between the bidder and the City to purchase the Series 2013A Bonds
regardless of the manner by which the Bid is submitted.

(a) Sealed Bidding. Bids may be submitted in a sealed envelope or by fax (651) 223-3046 to
Springsted. Signed bids, without final price or coupons, may be submitted to Springsted prior
to the time of sale. The bidder shall be responsible for submitting to Springsted the final Bid
price and coupons, by telephone (651) 223-3000 or fax (651) 223-3046 for inclusion in the
submitted Bid.

OR

(b) Electronic_Bidding. Notice is hereby given that electronic bids will be received via
PARITY®. For purposes of the electronic bidding process, the time as maintained by PARITY®
shall constitute the official time with respect to all Bids submitted to PARITY®. Each bidder
shall be solely responsible for making necessary arrangements to access PARITY® for
purposes of submitting its electronic Bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the
requirements of the Official Terms of Offering. Neither the City, its agents nor PARITY® shall
have any duty or obligation to undertake registration to bid for any prospective bidder or to
provide or ensure electronic access to any qualified prospective bidder, and neither the City, its
agents nor PARITY® shall be responsible for a bidder’s failure to register to bid or for any failure
in the proper operation of, or have any liability for any delays or interruptions of or any damages
caused by the services of PARITY®. The City is using the services of PARITY® solely as a
communication mechanism to conduct the electronic bidding for the Series 2013A Bonds, and
PARITY? is not an agent of the City.

If any provisions of this Official Terms of Offering conflict with information provided b(g/
PARITY®, this Official Terms of Offering shall control. Further information about PARITY",
including any fee charged, may be obtained from:

PARITY®, 1359 Broadway, 2" Floor, New York, New York 10018
Customer Support: (212) 849-5000

Preliminary; subject to change.



DETAILS OF THE SERIES 2013A BONDS

The Series 2013A Bonds will be dated as of the date of their original issuance and delivery and
will bear interest payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year, commencing June 1, 2014.
Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

The Series 2013A Bonds will mature December 1 in the years and amounts* as follows:

2014 $470,000 2017 $615,000 2020 $575,000 2023 $290,000 2026 $160,000
2015 $600,000 2018 $620,000 2021 $275,000 2024 $150,000 2027 $160,000
2016 $595,000 2019 $560,000 2022 $290,000 2025 $150,000 2028 $235,000

*

The City reserves the right, after bids are opened and prior to award, to increase or reduce the
principal amount of the Series 2013A Bonds or the amount of any maturity in multiples of $5,000. In
the event the amount of any maturity is modified, the aggregate purchase price will be adjusted to
result in the same gross spread per $1,000 of Series 2013A Bonds as that of the original bid. Gross
spread is the differential between the price paid to the City for the new issue and the prices at which
the securities are initially offered to the investing public.

Bids for the Series 2013A Bonds may contain a maturity schedule providing for a combination
of serial bonds and term bonds. All term bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption scheduled to
conform to the maturity schedule set forth above. In order to designate term bonds, the bid
must specify “Years of Term Maturities” in the spaces provided on the Bid Form.

BOOK ENTRY SYSTEM

The Series 2013A Bonds will be issued by means of a book entry system with no physical
distribution of Series 2013A Bonds made to the public. The Series 2013A Bonds will be issued
in fully registered form and one Bond, representing the aggregate principal amount of the
Series 2013A Bonds maturing in each year, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as
nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, which will act as
securities depository of the Series 2013A Bonds. Individual purchases of the Series 2013A
Bonds may be made in the principal amount of $5,000 or any multiple thereof of a single
maturity through book entries made on the books and records of DTC and its participants.
Principal and interest are payable by the registrar to DTC or its nominee as registered owner of
the Series 2013A Bonds. Transfer of principal and interest payments to participants of DTC will
be the responsibility of DTC; transfer of principal and interest payments to beneficial owners by
participants will be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of beneficial
owners. The purchaser, as a condition of delivery of the Series 2013A Bonds, will be required
to deposit the Series 2013A Bonds with DTC.

FISCAL AGENT/REGISTRAR

Associated Trust Company, National Association will act as paying agent and registrar for the
Series 2013A Bonds (the “Fiscal Agent”), and shall be subject to applicable SEC regulations.
The City will pay for the services of the Fiscal Agent.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

The City may elect on December 1, 2022, and on any day thereafter, to redeem Series 2013A
Bonds due on and after December 1, 2023. Redemption may be in whole or in part and if in
part at the option of the City and in such manner as the City shall determine. If less than all
Series 2013A Bonds of a maturity are called for redemption, the City will notify DTC of the
particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed. DTC will determine by lot the amount of
each participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then select
by lot the beneficial ownership interests in such maturity to be redeemed. All redemptions shall
be at a price of par plus accrued interest.



SECURITY AND PURPOSE

The Series 2013A Bonds will be general obligations of the City for which the City will pledge its
full faith and credit and unlimited power to levy direct general ad valorem taxes. The proceeds
will be used to finance street lighting, street improvements and street improvement funding;
parks and public grounds; projects within the City’s Tax Increment Districts Numbers 6, 7, 8, 9,
and 10; the current refunding of the City’s outstanding General Obligation Corporate Purpose
Bonds, Series 2003C, dated July 1, 2003; and pay the costs of issuing the Series 2013A
Bonds.

BIDDING PARAMETERS

Bids shall be for not less than $5,687,550 plus accrued interest, if any, on the total principal
amount of the Series 2013A Bonds. No bid can be withdrawn or amended after the time set for
receiving bids unless the meeting of the City scheduled for award of the Series 2013A Bonds is
adjourned, recessed, or continued to another date without award of the Series 2013A Bonds
having been made. Rates shall be in integral multiples of 1/100 or 1/8 of 1%. The initial price
to the public for each maturity must be 98.0% or greater. Series 2013A Bonds of the same
maturity shall bear a single rate from the date of the Series 2013A Bonds to the date of
maturity. No conditional bids will be accepted.

GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT

Bids, regardless of method of submission, shall be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of
$57,450 (the “Deposit”), in the form of a certified or cashier's check, a wire transfer, or Financial
Surety Bond and delivered to Springsted Incorporated prior to the time bids will be opened.
Each bidder shall be solely responsible for the timely delivery of their good faith deposit whether
by check, wire transfer or Financial Surety Bond. Neither the City nor Springsted Incorporated
have any liability for delays in the transmission of the good faith deposit.

Any Deposit made by certified or cashier’s check should be made payable to the City and
delivered to Springsted Incorporated, 380 Jackson Street, Suite 300, St. Paul, Minnesota
55101.

Any Deposit sent via wire transfer should be sent to Springsted Incorporated as the City's
agent according to the following instructions:

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., San Francisco, CA 94104
ABA #121000248
for credit to Springsted Incorporated, Account #635-5007954
Ref: De Pere, WI Series 2013A Good Faith Deposit

Contemporaneously with such wire transfer, the bidder shall send an e-mail to
bond_services@springsted.com, including the following information: (i) indication that a wire
transfer has been made, (ii) the amount of the wire transfer, (iii) the issue to which it applies,
and (iv) the return wire instructions if such bidder is not awarded the Series 2013A Bonds.

Any Deposit made by the winning bidder by check or wire transfer will be delivered to the City
following the award of the Series 2013A Bonds. Any Deposit made by check or wire transfer by
an unsuccessful bidder will be returned to such bidder following City action relative to an award
of the Series 2013A Bonds.

If a Financial Surety Bond is used, it must be from an insurance company licensed to issue
such a bond in the State of Wisconsin and pre-approved by the City. Such bond must be
submitted to Springsted Incorporated prior to the opening of the bids. The Financial Surety
Bond must identify each bidder whose Deposit is guaranteed by such Financial Surety Bond. If



the Series 2013A Bonds are awarded to a bidder using a Financial Surety Bond, then that
bidder is required to submit its Deposit to the City in the form of a certified or cashier’s check or
wire transfer as instructed by Springsted Incorporated not later than 3:30 P.M., Central Time on
the next business day following the award. If such Deposit is not received by that time, the
Financial Surety Bond may be drawn by the City to satisfy the Deposit requirement.

The Deposit received from the winning bidder, the amount of which will be deducted at
settlement, will be deposited by the City and no interest will accrue to the winning bidder. In the
event the winning bidder fails to comply with the accepted bid, said amount will be retained by
the City.

AWARD

The Series 2013A Bonds will be awarded to the bidder offering the lowest interest rate to be
determined on a true interest cost (TIC) basis calculated on the bid prior to any adjustment
made by the City. The City's computation of the interest rate of each bid, in accordance with
customary practice, will be controlling.

The City will reserve the right to: (i) waive non-substantive informalities of any bid or of matters
relating to the receipt of bids and award of the Series 2013A Bonds, (ii) reject all bids without
cause, and (iii) reject any bid that the City determines to have failed to comply with the terms
herein.

BOND INSURANCE AT WINNING BIDDERS'S OPTION

The City has not applied for or pre-approved a commitment for any policy of municipal bond
insurance with respect to the Series 2013A Bonds. If the Series 2013A Bonds qualify for
municipal bond insurance and a bidder desires to purchase a policy, such indication, the
maturities to be insured, and the name of the desired insurer must be set forth on the bidder’s
Official Bid Form. The City specifically reserves the right to reject any bid specifying municipal
bond insurance, even though such bid may result in the lowest TIC to the City. All costs
associated with the issuance and administration of such policy and associated ratings and
expenses (other than any independent rating requested by the City) shall be paid by the
winning bidder. Failure of the municipal bond insurer to issue the policy after the award of the
Series 2013A Bonds shall not constitute cause for failure or refusal by the winning bidder to
accept delivery of the Series 2013A Bonds.

CUSIP NUMBERS

If the Series 2013A Bonds qualify for assignment of CUSIP numbers such numbers will be
printed on the Series 2013A Bonds, but neither the failure to print such numbers on any Bond
nor any error with respect thereto will constitute cause for failure or refusal by the purchaser to
accept delivery of the Series 2013A Bonds. The CUSIP Service Bureau charge for the
assignment of CUSIP identification numbers shall be paid by the winning bidder.

SETTLEMENT

On or about August 13, 2013, the Series 2013A Bonds will be delivered without cost to the
winning bidder through DTC in New York, New York. Delivery will be subject to receipt by the
winning bidder of an approving legal opinion of Foley & Lardner LLP, and of customary closing
papers, including a no-litigation certificate. On the date of settlement, payment for the
Series 2013A Bonds shall be made in federal, or equivalent, funds that shall be received at the
offices of the City or its designee not later than 12:00 Noon, Central Time. Unless compliance
with the terms of payment for the Series 2013A Bonds has been made impossible by action of
the City, or its agents, the winning bidder shall be liable to the City for any loss suffered by the
City by reason of the winning bidder's non-compliance with said terms for payment.

-V -



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The City has entered into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated the date of issuance of the
Series 2013A Bonds, pursuant to which the City has agreed to provide to the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board annual financial information, including audited annual financial
statements of the City, and notices of certain listed events, as specified in and required by SEC
Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5).

OFFICIAL STATEMENT

The City has authorized the preparation of an Official Statement containing pertinent
information relative to the Series 2013A Bonds, and said Official Statement will serve as a
nearly-final Official Statement within the meaning of Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. For copies of the Official Statement and the Official Bid Form or for
any additional information prior to sale, any bidder is referred to the Financial Advisor to the
City, Springsted Incorporated, 380 Jackson Street, Suite 300, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101,
telephone (651) 223-3000.

The Official Statement, when further supplemented by an addendum or addenda specifying the
maturity dates, principal amounts and interest rates of the Series 2013A Bonds, together with
any other information required by law, shall constitute a “Final Official Statement” of the City
with respect to the Series 2013A Bonds, as that term is defined in Rule 15c2-12. By awarding
the Series 2013A Bonds to the winning bidder, the City agrees that, no more than seven
business days after the date of such award, it shall provide without cost to the representative of
the winning bidder up to 25 copies of the Official Statement and the addendum or addenda
described above. The City designates the representative of the winning bidder as its agent for
purposes of distributing copies of the Final Official Statement to each participating underwriter.
Any bidder executing and delivering an Official Bid Form with respect to the Series 2013A
Bonds agrees thereby that if its bid is accepted by the City (i) it shall accept such designation
and (ii) it shall enter into a contractual relationship with all participating underwriters of the
Series 2013A Bonds for purposes of assuring the receipt by each such participating underwriter
of the Final Official Statement.

BY ORDER OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

/sl Shana L. Defnet
Clerk/Treasurer



OFFICIAL TERMS OF OFFERING

$2,610,000
CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2013B

(BOOK ENTRY ONLY)

Bids for the Series 2013B Bonds and the Good Faith Deposit (“Deposit”) will be received on
Tuesday, July 16, 2013, until 9:30 A.M., Central Time, at the offices of Springsted Incorporated,
380 Jackson Street, Suite 300, Saint Paul, Minnesota, after which time bids will be opened and
tabulated. Consideration for award of the Series 2013B Bonds will be by the City’'s Common
Council at 7:30 P.M., Central Time, of the same day.

SUBMISSION OF BIDS

Springsted will assume no liability for the inability of a bidder to reach Springsted prior to the
time of sale specified above. All bidders are advised that each bid shall be deemed to
constitute a contract between the bidder and the City to purchase the Series 2013B Bonds
regardless of the manner by which the Bid is submitted.

(a) Sealed Bidding. Bids may be submitted in a sealed envelope or by fax (651) 223-3046 to
Springsted. Signed bids, without final price or coupons, may be submitted to Springsted prior
to the time of sale. The bidder shall be responsible for submitting to Springsted the final Bid
price and coupons, by telephone (651) 223-3000 or fax (651) 223-3046 for inclusion in the
submitted Bid.

OR

(b) Electronic_Bidding. Notice is hereby given that electronic bids will be received via
PARITY®. For purposes of the electronic bidding process, the time as maintained by PARITY®
shall constitute the official time with respect to all Bids submitted to PARITY®. Each bidder
shall be solely responsible for making necessary arrangements to access PARITY® for
purposes of submitting its electronic Bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the
requirements of the Official Terms of Offering. Neither the City, its agents nor PARITY® shall
have any duty or obligation to undertake registration to bid for any prospective bidder or to
provide or ensure electronic access to any qualified prospective bidder, and neither the City, its
agents nor PARITY® shall be responsible for a bidder’s failure to register to bid or for any failure
in the proper operation of, or have any liability for any delays or interruptions of or any damages
caused by the services of PARITY®. The City is using the services of PARITY® solely as a
communication mechanism to conduct the electronic bidding for the Series 2013B Bonds, and
PARITY? is not an agent of the City.

If any provisions of this Official Terms of Offering conflict with information provided b(g/
PARITY®, this Official Terms of Offering shall control. Further information about PARITY",
including any fee charged, may be obtained from:

PARITY®, 1359 Broadway, 2" Floor, New York, New York 10018
Customer Support: (212) 849-5000

Preliminary; subject to change.
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DETAILS OF THE SERIES 2013B BONDS

The Series 2013B Bonds will be dated as of the date of their original issuance and delivery and
will bear interest payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year, commencing June 1, 2014.
Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

The Series 2013B Bonds will mature December 1 in the years and amounts* as follows:

2014 $310,000 2016 $330,000 2018 $345,000 2020 $255,000 2022 $150,000
2015 $325,000 2017 $340,000 2019 $255,000 2021 $145,000 2023 $155,000

*

The City reserves the right, after bids are opened and prior to award, to increase or reduce the
principal amount of the Series 2013B Bonds or the amount of any maturity in multiples of $5,000. In
the event the amount of any maturity is modified, the aggregate purchase price will be adjusted to
result in the same gross spread per $1,000 of Series 2013B Bonds as that of the original bid. Gross
spread is the differential between the price paid to the City for the new issue and the prices at which
the securities are initially offered to the investing public.

Bids for the Series 2013B Bonds may contain a maturity schedule providing for a combination
of serial bonds and term bonds. All term bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption scheduled to
conform to the maturity schedule set forth above. In order to designate term bonds, the bid
must specify “Years of Term Maturities” in the spaces provided on the Bid Form.

BOOK ENTRY SYSTEM

The Series 2013B Bonds will be issued by means of a book entry system with no physical
distribution of Series 2013B Bonds made to the public. The Series 2013B Bonds will be issued
in fully registered form and one Bond, representing the aggregate principal amount of the
Series 2013B Bonds maturing in each year, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as
nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC"), New York, New York, which will act as
securities depository of the Series 2013B Bonds. Individual purchases of the Series 2013B
Bonds may be made in the principal amount of $5,000 or any multiple thereof of a single
maturity through book entries made on the books and records of DTC and its participants.
Principal and interest are payable by the registrar to DTC or its nominee as registered owner of
the Series 2013B Bonds. Transfer of principal and interest payments to participants of DTC will
be the responsibility of DTC; transfer of principal and interest payments to beneficial owners by
participants will be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of beneficial
owners. The purchaser, as a condition of delivery of the Series 2013B Bonds, will be required
to deposit the Series 2013B Bonds with DTC.

FISCAL AGENT/REGISTRAR

Associated Trust Company, National Association will act as paying agent and registrar for the
Series 2013B Bonds (the “Fiscal Agent”), and shall be subject to applicable SEC regulations.
The City will pay for the services of the Fiscal Agent.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

The Series 2013B Bonds will not be subject to redemption in advance of their respective stated
maturity dates.

SECURITY AND PURPOSE

The Series 2013B Bonds will be general obligations of the City for which the City will pledge its
full faith and credit and unlimited power to levy direct general ad valorem taxes. The proceeds
will be used to finance projects within the City’s Tax Increment Districts Numbers 6, 7, and 9;
the current refunding of the City’s outstanding Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2003B, dated April 1, 2003; the current refunding of the City’'s outstanding Taxable
General Obligation Development Bonds, Series 2003D, dated July 1, 2003; and pay the costs
of issuing the Series 2013B Bonds.
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TAXABILITY OF INTEREST

The interest to be paid on the Series 2013B Bonds is includable in gross income of the recipient
for United States and State of Wisconsin income tax purposes.

BIDDING PARAMETERS

Bids shall be for not less than $2,578,680 plus accrued interest, if any, on the total principal
amount of the Series 2013B Bonds. No bid can be withdrawn or amended after the time set for
receiving bids unless the meeting of the City scheduled for award of the Series 2013B Bonds is
adjourned, recessed, or continued to another date without award of the Series 2013B Bonds
having been made. Rates shall be in integral multiples of 1/100 or 1/8 of 1%. The initial price
to the public for each maturity must be 98.0% or greater. Series 2013B Bonds of the same
maturity shall bear a single rate from the date of the Series 2013B Bonds to the date of
maturity. No conditional bids will be accepted.

GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT

Bids, regardless of method of submission, shall be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of
$26,100 (the “Deposit”), in the form of a certified or cashier's check, a wire transfer, or Financial
Surety Bond and delivered to Springsted Incorporated prior to the time bids will be opened.
Each bidder shall be solely responsible for the timely delivery of their good faith deposit whether
by check, wire transfer or Financial Surety Bond. Neither the City nor Springsted Incorporated
have any liability for delays in the transmission of the good faith deposit.

Any Deposit made by certified or cashier’s check should be made payable to the City and
delivered to Springsted Incorporated, 380 Jackson Street, Suite 300, St. Paul, Minnesota
55101.

Any Deposit sent via wire transfer should be sent to Springsted Incorporated as the City's
agent according to the following instructions:

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., San Francisco, CA 94104
ABA #121000248
for credit to Springsted Incorporated, Account #635-5007954
Ref: De Pere, WI Series 2013B Good Faith Deposit

Contemporaneously with such wire transfer, the bidder shall send an e-mail to
bond_services@springsted.com, including the following information: (i) indication that a wire
transfer has been made, (ii) the amount of the wire transfer, (iii) the issue to which it applies,
and (iv) the return wire instructions if such bidder is not awarded the Series 2013B Bonds.

Any Deposit made by the winning bidder by check or wire transfer will be delivered to the City
following the award of the Series 2013B Bonds. Any Deposit made by check or wire transfer by
an unsuccessful bidder will be returned to such bidder following City action relative to an award
of the Series 2013B Bonds.

If a Financial Surety Bond is used, it must be from an insurance company licensed to issue
such a bond in the State of Wisconsin and pre-approved by the City. Such bond must be
submitted to Springsted Incorporated prior to the opening of the bids. The Financial Surety
Bond must identify each bidder whose Deposit is guaranteed by such Financial Surety Bond. If
the Series 2013B Bonds are awarded to a bidder using a Financial Surety Bond, then that
bidder is required to submit its Deposit to the City in the form of a certified or cashier’s check or
wire transfer as instructed by Springsted Incorporated not later than 3:30 P.M., Central Time on
the next business day following the award. If such Deposit is not received by that time, the
Financial Surety Bond may be drawn by the City to satisfy the Deposit requirement.
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The Deposit received from the winning bidder, the amount of which will be deducted at
settlement, will be deposited by the City and no interest will accrue to the winning bidder. In the
event the winning bidder fails to comply with the accepted bid, said amount will be retained by
the City.

AWARD

The Series 2013B Bonds will be awarded to the bidder offering the lowest interest rate to be
determined on a true interest cost (TIC) basis calculated on the bid prior to any adjustment
made by the City. The City's computation of the interest rate of each bid, in accordance with
customary practice, will be controlling.

The City will reserve the right to: (i) waive non-substantive informalities of any bid or of matters
relating to the receipt of bids and award of the Series 2013B Bonds, (ii) reject all bids without
cause, and (iii) reject any bid that the City determines to have failed to comply with the terms
herein.

BOND INSURANCE AT WINNING BIDDER'S OPTION

The City has not applied for or pre-approved a commitment for any policy of municipal bond
insurance with respect to the Series 2013B Bonds. If the Series 2013B Bonds qualify for
municipal bond insurance and a bidder desires to purchase a policy, such indication, the
maturities to be insured, and the name of the desired insurer must be set forth on the bidder’s
Official Bid Form. The City specifically reserves the right to reject any bid specifying municipal
bond insurance, even though such bid may result in the lowest TIC to the City. All costs
associated with the issuance and administration of such policy and associated ratings and
expenses (other than any independent rating requested by the City) shall be paid by the
winning bidder. Failure of the municipal bond insurer to issue the policy after the award of the
Series 2013B Bonds shall not constitute cause for failure or refusal by the winning bidder to
accept delivery of the Series 2013B Bonds.

CUSIP NUMBERS

If the Series 2013B Bonds qualify for assignment of CUSIP numbers such numbers will be
printed on the Series 2013B Bonds, but neither the failure to print such numbers on any Bond
nor any error with respect thereto will constitute cause for failure or refusal by the purchaser to
accept delivery of the Series 2013B Bonds. The CUSIP Service Bureau charge for the
assignment of CUSIP identification numbers shall be paid by the winning bidder.

SETTLEMENT

On or about August 13, 2013, the Series 2013B Bonds will be delivered without cost to the
winning bidder through DTC in New York, New York. Delivery will be subject to receipt by the
winning bidder of an approving legal opinion of Foley & Lardner LLP, and of customary closing
papers, including a no-litigation certificate. On the date of settlement, payment for the
Series 2013B Bonds shall be made in federal, or equivalent, funds that shall be received at the
offices of the City or its designee not later than 12:00 Noon, Central Time. Unless compliance
with the terms of payment for the Series 2013B Bonds has been made impossible by action of
the City, or its agents, the winning bidder shall be liable to the City for any loss suffered by the
City by reason of the winning bidder's non-compliance with said terms for payment.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The City has entered into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated the date of issuance of the
Series 2013B Bonds, pursuant to which the City has agreed to provide to the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board annual financial information, including audited annual financial
statements of the City, and notices of certain listed events, as specified in and required by SEC
Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5).

OFFICIAL STATEMENT

The City has authorized the preparation of an Official Statement containing pertinent
information relative to the Series 2013B Bonds, and said Official Statement will serve as a
nearly-final Official Statement within the meaning of Rule 15c¢2-12 of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. For copies of the Official Statement and the Official Bid Form or for
any additional information prior to sale, any bidder is referred to the Financial Advisor to the
City, Springsted Incorporated, 380 Jackson Street, Suite 300, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101,
telephone (651) 223-3000.

The Official Statement, when further supplemented by an addendum or addenda specifying the
maturity dates, principal amounts and interest rates of the Series 2013B Bonds, together with
any other information required by law, shall constitute a “Final Official Statement” of the City
with respect to the Series 2013B Bonds, as that term is defined in Rule 15c2-12. By awarding
the Series 2013B Bonds to the winning bidder, the City agrees that, no more than seven
business days after the date of such award, it shall provide without cost to the representative of
the winning bidder up to 25 copies of the Official Statement and the addendum or addenda
described above. The City designates the representative of the winning bidder as its agent for
purposes of distributing copies of the Final Official Statement to each participating underwriter.
Any bidder executing and delivering an Official Bid Form with respect to the Series 2013B
Bonds agrees thereby that if its bid is accepted by the City (i) it shall accept such designation
and (ii) it shall enter into a contractual relationship with all participating underwriters of the
Series 2013B Bonds for purposes of assuring the receipt by each such participating underwriter
of the Final Official Statement.

BY ORDER OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

/sl Shana L. Defnet
Clerk/Treasurer



OFFICIAL STATEMENT

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

$5,745,000"
GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2013A

$2,610,000
TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2013B

(BOOK ENTRY ONLY)

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

This Official Statement contains certain information relating to the City of De Pere, Wisconsin
(the “City” or the “Issuer”) and the issuance of its $5,745,000* General Obligation Corporate
Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A (the “Series 2013A Bonds”) and $2,610,000* Taxable General
Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B (the “Series 2013B Bonds”), collectively
referred to as the “Bonds,” the “Obligations,” or the “Issues.” The Bonds are general
obligations of the City for which it pledges its full faith and credit and unlimited power to levy
general ad valorem taxes.

Inquiries may be directed to Mr. Lawrence M. Delo, City Administrator, City of De Pere,
335 South Broadway, De Pere, Wisconsin 54115 or by calling (920) 339-4044. Inquiries may
also be made to Springsted Incorporated, 380 Jackson Street, Suite 300, St. Paul, Minnesota
55101-2887 or by calling (651) 223-3000. If information of a specific legal nature is desired,
requests may be directed to Mr. Reed Groethe, Esq., Bond Counsel,
Foley & Lardner LLP, 777 East Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202-5367 or by
calling (414) 297-5764.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with Securities and Exchange Commission
Rule 15¢2-12 (the “Rule”), the City will agree, pursuant to the resolutions authorizing the issuance
of the Bonds (each an “Award Resolution”), to enter into a separate continuing disclosure
agreement (each an “Agreement”) for the benefit of owners of the Bonds to provide certain
financial information and operating data relating to the City to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking
Board (the “MSRB”) annually, and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain events
enumerated in the Rule to the MSRB. The details of terms of each Agreement, as well as
information to be contained in the annual report and the notices of listed events, are set forth in
each Agreement, dated the date of issuance of the Bonds, to be executed and delivered by the
City on the date the Bonds are delivered. Such Agreements will be in substantially the forms
attached hereto as Appendix II.

The City has not failed to comply in the past five years in all material respects with any previous
agreements under the Rule to provide annual reports or notices of material events. A failure by
the City to comply with an Agreement will not constitute an event of default on the related
Bonds (although owners will have any available remedy at law to compel performance).
Nevertheless, such a failure must be reported in accordance with the Rule and the terms of the
respective Agreement and must be considered by any broker, dealer, or municipal securities
dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market.

Preliminary; subject to change.



THE BONDS

General Description

The Bonds are dated as of the date of delivery and will mature annually on December 1 as set
forth on the front cover of this Official Statement. The Bonds are issued in book entry form.
Interest on the Bonds is payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year, commencing June 1,
2014. Interest will be payable to the owner of each Bond (initially Cede & Co.) registered on the
books of Associated Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin (the “Fiscal
Agent”) as of the fifteenth day of the calendar month next preceding such interest payment
date. Principal of and interest on the Bonds will be paid as described in the section herein
entitled “Book Entry System.” The City will pay for Fiscal Agent services.

Optional Redemption

The City may elect on December 1, 2022, and on any day thereafter, to redeem Series 2013A
Bonds due on and after December 1, 2023. Redemption may be in whole or in part and if in
part at the option of the City and in such manner as the City shall determine. If less than all
Series 2013A Bonds of a maturity are called for redemption, then the City will notify DTC (as
defined below) of the particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed. DTC will determine
by lot the amount of each participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each
participant will then select by lot the beneficial ownership interests in such maturity to be
redeemed. The redemption price shall be par plus accrued interest.

The Series 2013B Bonds will not be subject to redemption in advance of their respective stated
maturity dates.

BOOK ENTRY SYSTEM

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository
for the Obligations. The Obligations will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the
name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by
an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each
maturity of each series of the Obligations, each in the aggregate principal amount of such
maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a
“banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform
Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for securities
that its participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited
securities through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct
Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities
certificates. Direct Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies,
clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for
DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation, and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation all of
which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated
subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as securities brokers
and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a
custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect



Participants”). The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Obligations under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Obligations on DTC'’s records. The ownership
interest of each actual purchaser of each Obligation (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be
recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive
written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements
of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner
entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Obligations are to be
accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf
of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their
ownership interests in the Obligations, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for
the Obligations is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Obligations deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Obligations with DTC and
their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any
change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the
Obligations; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts
such Obligations are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and
Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of
their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to
Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Obligations
may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant
events with respect to the Obligations, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed
amendments to the Obligation documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of the Obligations
may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Obligations for their benefit has agreed to
obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may
wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of the
notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices are required to be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Obligations within a
maturity are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of
each Direct Participant in such maturity to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with
respect to the Obligations unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s
procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Issuer or Bond
Registrar as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s
consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Obligations are
credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Obligations will be made to
Cede & Co. or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of
DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts, upon DTC’s receipt of funds and
corresponding detail information from the Issuer or its agent on the payable date in accordance
with their respective holdings shown on DTC'’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and
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will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, Agent, the Bond Registrar, or the
Issuer or the Issuer’'s agent, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in
effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend
payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Bond Registrar, Issuer, or the Issuer's agent.
Disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and
Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the
Obligations at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Issuer or its agent. Under such
circumstances, in the event that a successor securities depository is not obtained, certificates
are required to be printed and delivered.

The Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through
DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, certificates will be printed and
delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been
obtained from sources that the Issuer believes to be reliable, but the Issuer takes no
responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

THE SERIES 2013A BONDS

Authority and Purpose

The Series 2013A Bonds are being issued pursuant to Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes.
The proceeds will be used to finance street lighting, street improvements, and street
improvement funding; parks and public grounds; projects within the City’'s Tax Increment
Districts Numbers 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10; the current refunding of the City’s outstanding General
Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2003C, dated July 1, 2003 (the “2003C Bonds™);
and pay the costs of issuing the Series 2013A Bonds.

The proceeds of the Series 2013A Bonds are expected to be used as follows:

Sources of Funds:

Par Amount $5,745,000
Total Sources of Funds $5,745,000
Uses of Funds:

Deposit to Construction Fund $4,556,293

Deposit to Current Refunding Fund 1,055,000

Costs of Issuance 76,257

Allowance for Discount Bidding 57,450
Total Uses of Funds $5,745,000

The 2003C Bonds are being refunded to achieve debt service savings. The 2003C Bonds will
be redeemed on October 1, 2013 at a price of par plus accrued interest, which is within 90 days
of the delivery date of the Series 2013A Bonds.



Security and Financing

The Series 2013A Bonds are general obligations of the City for which the City pledges its full faith
and credit and unlimited power to levy direct general ad valorem taxes. The City will make its first
levy for the Bonds in 2013 for collection in 2014. Each year's levy will be sufficient to pay the
June 1 interest payment and the December 1 principal and interest payment coming due in the
collection year. The City intends to abate the tax levies each year and use tax increment
revenues from Tax Increment Districts Numbers 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10 to make the debt service
payments on the Series 2013A Bonds

THE SERIES 2013B BONDS

Authority and Purpose

The Series 2013B Bonds are being issued pursuant to Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes.
The proceeds will be used to finance projects within the City’s Tax Increment Districts Numbers
6, 7, and 9; the current refunding of the City's outstanding Taxable General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B, dated April 1, 2003 (the “2003B Bonds"); the current refunding
of the City’s outstanding Taxable General Obligation Development Bonds, Series 2003D, dated
July 1, 2003 (the “2003D Bonds”); and pay the costs of issuing the Bonds.

The proceeds of the Series 2013B Bonds are expected to be used as follows:

Sources of Funds:

Par Amount $2,610,000
Total Sources of Funds $2,610,000

Uses of Funds:
Deposit to Current Refunding Fund $1,413,103

Deposit to Construction Fund 1,105,934
Costs of Issuance 59,643
Allowance for Discount Bidding 31,320
Total Uses of Funds $2,610,000

The 2003B Bonds and the 2003D Bonds are being refunded to achieve debt service savings.
The 2003B Bonds and the 2003D Bonds will be redeemed on October 1, 2013 at a price of par
plus accrued interest, which is within 90 days of the delivery date of the Series 2013B Bonds.

The 2003C Bonds, the 2003B Bonds and the 2003D Bonds (previously defined herein) are
collectively referred to as the “Refunded Bonds”.

Security and Financing

The Series 2013B Bonds are general obligations of the City for which the City pledges its full
faith and credit and unlimited power to levy direct general ad valorem taxes. The City will make
its first levy for the Bonds in 2013 for collection in 2014. Each year’s levy will be sufficient to pay
the June 1 interest payment and the December 1 principal and interest payment coming due in
the collection year. The City intends to abate the tax levies each year and use tax increment
revenues from Tax Increment Districts Numbers 6, 7, and 9 to make the debt service payments
on the Series 2013B Bonds.



FUTURE FINANCING

The City does not anticipate any additional borrowing for the next 90 days.

LITIGATION

The City is not aware of any pending or threatened litigation affecting the validity of the Bonds
or the City's ability to meet its financial obligations.

LEGAL OPINION

Legal matters incident to the authorization, sale and issuance of the Bonds are subject to the
approval of Foley & Lardner LLP, Bond Counsel, whose approving opinions, substantially in the
forms shown in Appendix I, will be delivered on the date of issuance of the Bonds.

TAX MATTERS

The Series 2013A Bonds

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, interest on the Series 2013A Bonds is
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not a specific item of tax
preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on all taxpayers;
however, interest on the Series 2013A Bonds is taken into account in determining adjusted
current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on certain
corporations. As to questions of fact material to Bond Counsel’'s opinion, Bond Counsel has
relied upon certified proceedings and certifications of public officials and others without
independently undertaking to verify them. Moreover, the City must comply with all requirements
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), that must be satisfied after
the Series 2013A Bonds are issued for interest on the Series 2013A Bonds to be, or continue to
be, excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The City has agreed to
comply with those requirements to the extent it may lawfully do so. Its failure to do so may
cause interest on the Series 2013A Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax
purposes, perhaps even retroactively from the date the Series 2013A Bonds were issued. The
proceedings authorizing the Series 2013A Bonds do not provide for an increase in interest rates
or a redemption of the Series 2013A Bonds in the event interest on the Series 2013A Bonds
ceases to be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Certain requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Award Resolution for the
Series 2013A Bonds and other relevant documents may be changed, and certain actions may
be taken or omitted, under the circumstances and subject to the terms and conditions set forth
in such documents. Bond Counsel does not express any opinion as to any Series 2013A Bond
or the interest thereon if any such change occurs or action is taken or omitted upon the advice
or approval of bond counsel other than Foley & Lardner LLP. Current and future legislative
proposals, if enacted into law, may cause the interest on the Series 2013A Bonds to be subject,
directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation or otherwise prevent the owners of the Series
2013A Bonds from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. As one
example, the Obama Administration recently announced a legislative proposal that, for tax



years beginning on or after January 1, 2013, would to some extent limit the exclusion from
gross income of interest on obligations like the Series 2013A Bonds (regardless of when they
were issued) for taxpayers who are individuals and whose income is subject to higher marginal
income tax rates. Other legislative proposals have been made that could significantly reduce
the benefit of, or otherwise affect, the exclusion from gross income of interest on obligations
like the Series 2013A Bonds. The introduction or enactment of any such legislative proposals
may also affect, perhaps significantly, the market price for, or marketability of, the Series 2013A
Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the Series 2013A Bonds should consult their own tax
advisors regarding any current or future federal legislative proposals.

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on legal authorities that are current as of its date, covers
certain matters not directly addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel’s
judgment regarding the proper treatment of the Series 2013A Bonds for federal income tax
purposes. It is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) or the courts, and it is not a
guaranty of result.

The IRS has an active tax-exempt bond enforcement program. Bond Counsel is not obligated
to defend the City regarding the tax-exempt status of the Series 2013A Bonds in the event of an
examination by the IRS. Under current IRS procedures, parties other than the City, including
owners of the Series 2013A Bonds, would have little, if any, right to participate in an IRS
examination of the Series 2013A Bonds. Moreover, because obtaining judicial review in
connection with an IRS examination of tax-exempt obligations is difficult, obtaining independent
review of IRS positions with which the City may legitimately disagree may not be practicable.
Any action of the IRS, including but not limited to selection of the Series 2013A Bonds for
examination, or the course or result of such an examination, or an examination of obligations
presenting similar tax issues may affect the market price, or the marketability, of the
Series 2013A Bonds and may cause the City or the owners of the Series 2013A Bonds to incur
significant expense.

Bond Counsel expresses no opinion about other federal tax consequences arising regarding
the Series 2013A Bonds. There may be other federal tax law provisions that could adversely
affect the value of an investment in the Series 2013A Bonds for particular owners of Series
2013A Bonds. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors about the tax
consequences of owning a Series 2013A Bond.

The Series 2013B Bonds

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, interest on the Series 2013B Bonds is
includible in gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Any discussion of U.S. federal tax issues included in this Official Statement is not intended or
written to be used, and cannot be used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding federal tax
penalties that may be imposed on the taxpayer. Such discussions were written in connection
with the promotion or marketing of the Series 2013B Bonds. Each taxpayer should seek advice
from an independent tax advisor based on the taxpayer’s particular circumstances.

The following is a summary of certain United States federal income tax consequences resulting
from the beneficial ownership of Series 2013B Bonds by certain persons. This summary does
not consider all the possible federal income tax consequences of the purchase, ownership, or
disposition of the Series 2013B Bonds and is not intended to reflect the individual tax position of
any beneficial owner. Moreover, except as expressly indicated, this summary is limited to those
persons that purchase a Series 2013B Bond at its issue price, which is the first price at which a
substantial amount of the Bonds is sold to the public, and that hold Series 2013B Bonds as
“capital assets” within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code. This summary does not
address beneficial owners that may be subject to special tax rules, such as banks, insurance



companies, dealers in securities or currencies, purchasers that hold Series 2013B Bonds as a
hedge against currency risks or as part of a straddle with other investments or as part of a
“synthetic security” or other integrated investment (including a “conversion transaction”)
comprising a Series 2013B Bond and one or more other investments, or United States Owners
(as defined below) that have a “functional currency” other than the United States dollar
(“Special Taxpayers”). Except to the extent discussed below under the subsection “— Non-
United States Owners”, this summary is applicable only to a person (“United States Owner”)
that is the beneficial owner of Series 2013B Bonds and is (i) an individual citizen or resident of
the United States, (ii) a corporation created or organized under the laws of the United States or
any State (including the District of Columbia), or (iii) a person otherwise subject to federal
income taxation on its worldwide income. This summary is based upon the United States tax
laws and regulations currently in effect and as currently interpreted and does not take into
account possible changes in the tax laws or the interpretations, any of which may be applied
retroactively. It does not discuss the tax laws of any state, local, or foreign government.

United States Owners—Payments of Stated Interest

In general, for a beneficial owner that is a United States Owner, interest on a Series 2013B
Bond will be taxable as ordinary income at the time it is received or accrued, depending on the
beneficial owner’'s method of accounting for tax purposes.

United States Owners—Original Issue Discount

If the stated redemption price at maturity of a Series 2013B Bond exceeds its “issue price,”
such excess is treated as original issue discount (“OID”) unless the amount of such excess is
less than a specified de minimis amount (generally equal to 0.25% of the stated redemption
price at maturity multiplied by the number of complete years to maturity). The issue price of
each Series 2013B Bond is the price at which a substantial amount of the Series 2013B Bonds
of that maturity is first sold to the public. The issue price of the Series 2013B Bonds is expected
to be the amount set forth on the inside cover but is subject to change based on actual sales.

With respect to a United States Owner that purchases in the initial offering a Series 2013B
Bond issued with oid, the amount of OID that accrues during any accrual period equals (a) the
product of (i) the “adjusted issue price” of the Series 2013B Bond at the beginning of the
accrual period (which price equals the issue price of such Series 2013B Bond plus the amount
of OID that has accrued on a constant yield basis in all prior accrual periods minus the amount
of any payments, other than “qualified stated interest,” received on the Series 2013B Bond in
prior accrual periods) and (ii) the yield to maturity of such Series 2013B Bond (determined on
the basis of compounding at the close of each accrual period and properly adjusted for the
length of each accrual period), less (b) any qualified stated interest payable on the Series
2013B Bond during such accrual period. The amount of OID so accrued in a particular accrual
period will be considered to be received ratably on each day of the accrual period.

A United States Owner of a Series 2013B Bond issued with OID must include in gross income
for federal income tax purposes the amount of OID accrued with respect to each day during the
taxable year that the United States Owner owns the Series 2013B Bond. Such an inclusion in
advance of receipt of the cash attributable to the income is required even if the United States
Owner is on the cash method of accounting for United States federal income tax purposes. The
amount of OID that is includible in a United States Owner’s gross income will increase the
United States Owner’s tax basis in the Series 2013B Bond. Such basis will be decreased by the
amount of any payments other than qualified stated interest received on the Series 2013B
Bond. The adjusted tax basis in a Series 2013B Bond will be used to determine taxable gain or
loss upon a disposition (for example, upon a sale or retirement) of the Series 2013B Bond. If a
Series 2013B Bond issued with OID is purchased by a United States Owner for a cost that
exceeds the adjusted issue price as of the purchase date and that is less than the stated
redemption price at maturity of the Series 2013B Bond, the amount of OID that is deemed to
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accrue thereafter to the United States Owner will be reduced to reflect the amortization of such
excess (“acquisition premium”) over the remaining life of the Series 2013B Bond.

United States Owners—Series 2013B Bonds Purchased at a Premium

Under the Code, a United States Owner that purchases a Series 2013B Bond for an amount in
excess of its stated redemption price at maturity may elect to treat such excess as “amortizable
bond premium,” in which case the amount of interest required to be included in the United
States Owner’s income each year with respect to interest on the Series 2013B Bond will be
reduced by the amount of amortizable bond premium allocable (based on the Series 2013B
Bond’s yield to maturity) to that year. If such an election is made, the amount of each such
reduction in interest income will result in a corresponding reduction in the United States
Owner’s tax basis in the Series 2013B Bond. Any election to amortize bond premium is
applicable to all taxable debt instruments held by the United States Owner at the beginning of
the first taxable year to which the election applies or thereafter acquired by the United States
Owner and may not be revoked without the consent of the IRS.

United States Owners—Series 2013B Bonds Purchased at a Market Discount

A Series 2013B Bond will be treated as acquired at a market discount (“market discount Bond”)
if the amount for which a United States Owner purchased the Series 2013B Bond is less than
the Series 2013B Bond’s principal amount, unless such difference is less than a specified de
minimis amount. In general, any payment of principal or any gain recognized on the maturity or
disposition of a market discount Bond will be treated as ordinary income to the extent that such
gain does not exceed the accrued market discount on the Series 2013B Bond. Alternatively, a
United States Owner of a market discount Bond may elect to include market discount in income
currently over the life of the market discount Bond. That election applies to all debt instruments
with market discount acquired by the electing United States Owner on or after the first day of
the first taxable year to which the election applies and may not be revoked without the consent
of the IRS. If an election is made to include market discount in income currently, the tax basis of
the Series 2013B Bond in the hands of the United States Owner will be increased by the market
discount thereon as such discount is included in income.

Market discount generally accrues on a straight-line basis unless the United States Owner
elects to accrue such discount on a constant yield-to-maturity basis. That election is applicable
only to the market discount Bond with respect to which it is made and is irrevocable. A United
States Owner of a market discount Bond that does not elect to include market discount in
income currently generally will be required to defer deductions for interest on borrowings
allocable to the Series 2013B Bond in an amount not exceeding the accrued market discount
on such Series 2013B Bond until the maturity or disposition of the Series 2013B Bond.

United States Owners—Election to Treat All Interest as OID

A United States Owner may elect in the year of acquisition of a Series 2013B Bond to account
for all interest (including stated interest, acquisition discount, original issue discount, de minimis
original issue discount, market discount, and de minimis market discount, as adjusted by any
amortizable bond premium or acquisition premium) that accrues on the Series 2013B Bond by
using the constant yield method applicable to OID. Any such election may not be revoked
without the consent of the IRS.

United States Owners—Purchase, Sale, Exchange, and Retirement of Series 2013B Bonds

A United States Owner’'s tax basis in a Series 2013B Bond generally will equal its cost,
increased by any market discount and original issue discount included in the United States
Owner’s income with respect to the Series 2013B Bond, and reduced by the amount of any
amortizable bond premium applied to reduce interest on the Series 2013B Bond. A United
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States Owner generally will recognize gain or loss on the sale, exchange, or retirement of a
Series 2013B Bond equal to the difference between the amount realized on the sale or
retirement (not including any amount attributable to accrued but unpaid interest) and the United
States Owner’s tax basis in the Series 2013B Bond. Except to the extent described above
under the subsection “— United States Owners”—Series 2013B Bonds Purchased at a Market
Discount”, gain or loss recognized on the sale, exchange, or retirement of a Series 2013B Bond
will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the Series 2013B Bond
was held for more than one year.

Non-United States Owners

The following is a general discussion of certain United States federal income and estate tax
consequences resulting from the beneficial ownership of Series 2013B Bonds by a person that
is neither a United States Owner, nor a former United States citizen or resident, nor an entity
that is classified for United States federal income tax purposes as a partnership or “disregarded
entity” (“Non-United States Owner”). Interest and any OID earned on a Series 2013B Bond by a
Non-United States Owner will be considered “portfolio interest,” and will not be subject to United
States federal income tax or withholding, if:

. the Non-United States Owner is neither (i) a “controlled foreign corporation” that is
related to the State as described in Section 881(c)(3)(C) of the Code nor (ii) a bank
receiving the interest and any OID on a loan made in the ordinary course of its business;

o the certification requirements described below are satisfied; and

o the interest is not effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business within
the United States by the Non-United States Owner.

The certification requirements will be satisfied if either (i) the beneficial owner of the
Series 2013B Bond timely certifies, under penalties of perjury, to the State or to the person that
otherwise would be required to withhold United States tax that such owner is a Non-United
States Owner and provides its name and address or (ii) a custodian, broker, nominee, or other
intermediary acting as an agent for the beneficial owner (such as a securities clearing
organization, bank, or other financial institution that holds customers’ securities in the ordinary
course of its trade or business) that holds the Series 2013B Bond in such capacity timely
certifies, under penalties of perjury, to the State or to the person that otherwise would be
required to withhold United States tax that such statement has been received from the
beneficial owner of the Bond by such intermediary, or by any other financial institution between
such intermediary and the beneficial owner, and furnishes to the State or to the person that
otherwise would be required to withhold United States tax a copy thereof. The foregoing
certification may be provided on a properly completed IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8IMY, as
applicable, or any successor forms, duly executed under penalties of perjury. With respect to
the certification requirement for Series 2013B Bonds that are held by an entity that is classified
for United States federal income tax purposes as a foreign partnership, the applicable Treasury
Regulations provide that, unless the foreign partnership has entered into a withholding
agreement with the IRS, the foreign partnership will be required, in addition to providing an
intermediary Form W-8IMY, to attach an appropriate certification by each partner, and to attach
a statement allocating payments on such Series 2013B Bonds to the various partners.

If a Non-United States Owner is engaged in a trade or business in the United States and
interest on the Series 2013B Bond is effectively connected with the conduct of such trade or
business, the Non-United States Owner, although exempt from the withholding tax discussed
above (provided that such beneficial owner timely furnishes the required certification to claim
such exemption), may be subject to United States Federal income tax on such interest (and on
any gain realized on a sale or other disposition of the Series 2013B Bond) in the same manner
as if it were a United States Owner. If the Non-United States Owner is a foreign corporation, it
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may be subject to a branch profits tax equal to 30% (or lower applicable treaty rate) of its
effectively connected earnings and profits for the taxable year, subject to certain adjustments.
For purposes of the branch profits tax, interest on a Series 2013B Bond will be included in the
earnings and profits of the beneficial owner if the interest is effectively connected with the
conduct by the beneficial owner of a trade or business in the United States. Such a beneficial
owner must provide the payor with a properly executed IRS Form W-8ECI (or successor form)
to claim an exemption from United States Federal withholding tax.

Any payments to a Non-United States Owner of interest that do not qualify for the portfolio
interest exemption and that are not effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or
business within the United States by the Non-United States Owner will be subject to United
States Federal income tax and withholding at a rate of 30% (or at a lower rate under an
applicable tax treaty).

Any capital gain or market discount realized on the sale, exchange, retirement, or other
disposition of a Series 2013B Bond by a Non-United States Owner will not be subject to United
States federal income or withholding taxes if (i) the gain is not effectively connected with a
United States trade or business of the Non-United States Owner and (ii) in the case of an
individual, the Non-United States Owner is not present in the United States for 183 days or
more in the taxable year of the sale, exchange, retirement, or other disposition and certain
other conditions are met.

Series 2013B Bonds owned by an individual that is neither a citizen nor a resident of the United
States for United States Federal estate tax purposes at the time of the individual's death will not
be subject to United States Federal estate tax, provided that at the time of the individual's death
the income from the Series 2013B Bonds was not or would not have been effectively connected
with a United States trade or business of the individual and that the individual qualified for the
exemption from United States Federal withholding tax (without regard to the certification
requirements) described above. Purchasers of Series 2013B Bonds that are Non-United States
Owners should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the possible applicability of United
States withholding and other taxes upon income realized in respect of the Series 2013B Bonds.

Information Reporting and Back-up Withholding

In general, information reporting requirements will apply with respect to payments to a United
States Owner of principal and interest (and with respect to annual accruals of OID) on the
Series 2013B Bonds, and with respect to payments to a United States Owner of any proceeds
from a disposition of the Series 2013B Bonds. This information reporting obligation, however,
does not apply with respect to certain United States Owners including corporations, tax-exempt
organizations, qualified pension and profit sharing trusts, and individual retirement accounts. In
the event that a United States Owner subject to the reporting requirements described above
fails to supply its correct taxpayer identification number in the manner required by applicable
law or is notified by the IRS that it has failed to properly report payments of interest and
dividends, a backup withholding tax (currently at a rate of 28%) generally will be imposed on the
amount of any interest and principal and the amount of any sales proceeds received by the
United States Owner on or with respect to the Series 2013B Bonds. Any payments of interest
and OID on the Series 2013B Bonds to a Non-United States Owner generally will be reported to
the IRS and to the Non-United States Owner, whether or not such interest or OID is exempt
from United States withholding tax pursuant to a tax treaty or the portfolio interest exemption.
Copies of these information returns may also be made available under the provisions of a
specific treaty or agreement to the tax authorities of the country in which the payee resides. Any
payments of interest and OID on the Series 2013B Bonds to a Non-United States Owner
generally will not be subject to backup withholding and additional information reporting,
provided that (i) the Non-United States Owner certifies, under penalties of perjury, on IRS Form
W-8BEN (or a suitable substitute form) that it is not a United States person and certain other
conditions are met, or (ii) the Non-United States Owner otherwise establishes an exemption.
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The payment to a Non-United States Owner of the proceeds of a disposition of a
Series 2013B Bond by or through the United States office of a broker generally will not be
subject to information reporting or backup withholding if the Non-United States Owner either
certifies, under penalties of perjury, on IRS Form W-8BEN (or a suitable substitute form) that it
is not a United States person and certain other conditions are met, or the Non-United States
Owner otherwise establishes an exemption. Information reporting and backup withholding
generally will not apply to the payment of the proceeds of a disposition of a Series 2013B Bond
by or through the foreign office of a foreign broker (as defined in applicable Treasury
regulations). Information reporting requirements (but not backup withholding) will apply,
however, to a payment of the proceeds of the disposition of a Series 2013B Bond by or through
(i) a foreign office of a custodian, nominee, other agent, or broker that is a United States
person, (ii) a foreign custodian, nominee, other agent, or broker that derives 50% or more of its
gross income for certain periods from the conduct of a trade or business in the United States,
(i) a foreign custodian, nominee, other agent, or broker that is a controlled foreign corporation
for United States federal income tax purposes, or (iv) a foreign partnership if at any time during
its tax year one or more of its partners are United States persons that, in the aggregate, hold
more than 50% of the income or capital interest of the partnership or if, at any time during its
taxable year, the partnership is engaged in the conduct of a trade or business within the United
States, unless the custodian, nominee, other agent, broker, or foreign partnership has
documentary evidence in its records that the beneficial owner is not a United States person and
certain other conditions are met, or the beneficial owner otherwise establishes an exemption.
Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding provisions may be credited against the
United States federal income tax liability of the beneficial owner, and may entitle the beneficial
owner to a refund, provided that the required information is furnished to the IRS.

Disclaimer Regarding Federal Tax Discussion

The federal income tax discussion set forth above is included for general information only and
may not be applicable depending upon a beneficial owner's particular situation. Beneficial
owners should consult their tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences to them of the
purchase, ownership, and disposition of the Series 2013B Bonds, including the tax
consequences under state, local, foreign, and other tax laws and the possible effects of
changes in federal or other tax laws.

State Tax Considerations

In addition to the federal income tax consequences described above, potential investors should
consider the state income tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of
Series 2013B Bonds. State income tax law may differ substantially from the corresponding
federal law, and the foregoing is not intended to describe any aspect of the income tax laws of
any state. Therefore, potential investors should consult their own tax advisors with respect to
the various state tax consequences of an investment in Series 2013B Bonds.

ERISA Considerations

The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”), imposes
certain fiduciary and prohibited transaction restrictions on employee pension and welfare
benefit plans subject to ERISA (“ERISA Plans”). Section 4975 of the Code imposes essentially
the same prohibited transaction restrictions on tax-qualified retirement plans described in
Section 401(a) of the Code (“Qualified Retirement Plans”) and on individual retirement accounts
described in Section 408(b) of the Code (collectively, “Tax-Favored Plans”). Certain employee
benefit plans, such as governmental plans (as defined in Section 3(32) of ERISA) and, if no
election has been made under Section 410(d) of the Code, church plans (as defined in Section
3(33) of ERISA), are not subject to ERISA requirements. Accordingly, assets of such plans may
be invested in Series 2013B Bonds without regard to the ERISA considerations described
below, subject to the provisions of applicable federal and state law. Any such plan which is a
Qualified Retirement Plan and exempt from taxation under Sections 401(a) and 501(a) of the

-12 -



Code, however, is subject to the prohibited transaction rules set forth in the Code. In addition to
the imposition of general fiduciary requirements, including those of investment prudence and
diversification and the requirement that a plan’s investment be made in accordance with the
documents governing the plan, Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code prohibit a
broad range of transactions involving assets of ERISA Plans and Tax-Favored Plans and
entities with underlying assets that include plan assets by reason of ERISA Plans or Tax-
Favored Plans investing in such entities (collectively, “Benefit Plans”) and persons who have
certain specified relationships to the Benefit Plans (“Parties in Interest” or “Disqualified
Persons”), unless a statutory or administrative exemption is available. Certain Parties in Interest
(or Disqualified Persons) that participate in a prohibited transaction may be subject to a penalty
(or an excise tax) imposed pursuant to Section 502(i) of ERISA (or Section 4975 of the Code)
unless a statutory or administrative exemption is available.

Certain transactions involving the purchase, holding, or transfer of Series 2013B Bonds might
be deemed to constitute prohibited transactions under ERISA and the Code if assets of the
State were deemed to be assets of a Benefit Plan. A prohibited transaction could also occur in
the event that a Benefit Plan transfers a Series 2013B Bond to a Party in Interest or a
Disqualified Person. In such case, certain exemptions from the prohibited transaction rules
could apply depending on the type and circumstances of the plan fiduciary making the decision
to acquire a Series 2013B Bond. Included among these exemptions are: Prohibited Transaction
Class Exemption (“PTCE") 96-23, regarding transactions effected by “in-house asset
managers”; PTCE 90-1, regarding investments by insurance company pooled separate
accounts; PTCE 95-60, regarding transactions effected by “insurance company general
accounts”; PTCE 91-38, regarding investments by bank collective investment funds; and PTCE
84-14, regarding transactions effected by “qualified professional assets managers.” Any ERISA
Plan fiduciary considering whether to purchase Series 2013B Bonds on behalf of an ERISA
Plan should consult with its counsel regarding the applicability of the fiduciary responsibility and
prohibited transaction provisions of ERISA and the Code to such investment and the availability
of any of the exemptions referred to above. Persons responsible for investing the assets of Tax-
Favored Plans that are not ERISA Plans should seek similar counsel with respect to the
prohibited transaction provisions of the Code.

State of Wisconsin Income and Franchise Taxes

Interest on the Bonds is not exempt from current State of Wisconsin income or franchise taxes.
Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors about the state and local tax
consequences of owning a Bond.

QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS — THE SERIES 2013A BONDS

The City will designate the Series 2013A Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes
of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code, relating to the ability of certain financial institutions (within the
meaning of Section 265(b)(5) of the Code) to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes
80% of the interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.

TAXABILITY OF INTEREST — THE SERIES 2013B BONDS

The interest to be paid on the Series 2013B Bonds is includable in the income of the recipient
for purposes of the United States and State of Wisconsin income taxation and is includable in
taxable income for purposes of the Wisconsin corporate and federal excise taxes.
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PROPERTY TAX LEVY LIMITS

Section 66.0602 of the Wisconsin Statutes, as amended most recently by 2011 Wisconsin
Act 32, establishes limits on the property tax levy imposed by a city, village, town, or county (a
"political subdivision").

Subject to certain exceptions and adjustments, no political subdivision may increase its levy in
any year by a percentage that exceeds its valuation factor. . For the levy imposed in the year
2013 and succeeding years, the valuation factor is the greater of (i) 1.5 percent or (i) the
percentage change in the political subdivision's January 1 equalized value due to new
construction less improvements removed between the previous year and the current year. The
base amount in any year, to which the levy limit applies, is the actual levy for the immediately
preceding year; however, a political subdivision that did not levy its full maximum allowable levy
in the immediately preceding year may carry forward the difference, up to a maximum increase
of 0.5 percent of the actual levy in the prior year.

Special provisions are made with respect to amounts levied to pay general obligation debt
service. The levy limits do not apply to property taxes levied to pay debt service on general
obligations authorized on or after July 1, 2005. The Bonds were authorized after July 1, 2005
and therefore are not subject to levy limits.

For general obligations authorized before July 1, 2005, if the amount of debt service in the
preceding year is less than the amount of debt service needed in the current year, the levy limit
is increased by the difference in the two amounts. This adjustment is based on scheduled debt
service rather than the amount actually levied for debt service (after taking into account
offsetting revenues such as sales tax revenues, special assessments, utility revenues, tax
incremental revenues, or surplus funds). Thus, the levy limit could adversely affect a
municipality that experiences a reduction in offsetting revenues. If the levy for debt service on
general obligations issued before July 1, 2005 is less in the current year than it was in the
previous year, the levy limit is generally reduced by the amount of the difference; however, this
negative adjustment does not apply for taxes levied in the year 2011 by a subdivision that does
not increase its levy limit as allowed by the carry-forward provision.

The levy limit does not apply to the amount that a political subdivision levies to make up any
revenue shortfall for the debt service on a revenue bond issued under Section 66.0621 of the
Wisconsin Statutes, which authorizes revenue obligation.

In determining the levy limit for any year, the tax increment calculated for tax incremental
districts is subtracted. If the department of revenue does not calculate a value increment for a
tax incremental district in the current year as a result of the district's termination, the levy limit is
increased (by an amount equal to the maximum allowable levy for the immediately preceding
year, multiplied by a percentage equal to 50% of the ratio between the value increment of the
district over the political subdivision's equalized value).

Other exceptions or adjustments to the levy limit, which are not described in this summary, are
made in specified situations.

RATINGS

Applications for ratings of the Bonds have been made to Moody's Investors Service (“Moody's”),
7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, 23" Floor, New York, New York and to Fitch
Ratings (“Fitch”), One State Street Plaza, New York, New York. If ratings are assigned, they
will reflect only the opinion of Moody's or Fitch. Any explanation of the significance of the ratings
may be obtained only from Moody's or Fitch.
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There is no assurance that ratings, if assigned, will continue for any given period of time, or that
such ratings will not be revised, suspended or withdrawn, if, in the judgment of Moody's or
Fitch, circumstances so warrant. A revision, suspension or withdrawal of a rating may have an
adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

The City has retained Springsted Incorporated, Public Sector Advisors, of Milwaukee,
Wisconsin and St. Paul, Minnesota, as financial advisor (the “Financial Advisor”) in connection
with the issuance of the Bonds. In preparing the Official Statement, the Financial Advisor has
relied upon governmental officials, and other sources, who have access to relevant data to
provide accurate information for the Official Statement, and the Financial Advisor has not been
engaged, nor has it undertaken, to independently verify the accuracy of such information. The
Financial Advisor is not a public accounting firm and has not been engaged by the City to
compile, review, examine or audit any information in the Official Statement in accordance with
accounting standards. The Financial Advisor is an independent advisory firm and is not
engaged in the business of underwriting, trading or distributing municipal securities or other
public securities and therefore will not participate in the underwriting of the Bonds.

CERTIFICATION

The City has authorized the distribution of this Official Statement for use in connection with the
initial sale of the Bonds. As of the date of the settlement of these Bonds, the Purchaser(s) will
be furnished with a certificate signed by the appropriate officers of the City. The certificate will
state that the Official Statement did not and does not, as of the date of the certificate, contain
any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make
the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading.

MISCELLANEOUS

Any statement made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or of estimates,
whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and
no representation is made that any of the estimates will be realized.

Bond Counsel has not participated in the preparation of this Official Statement and will not pass
on its accuracy, completeness or sufficiency. Bond Counsel has not examined or attempted to
examine or verify any of the financial or statistical statements or data contained in this Official
Statement, and will express no opinion with respect thereto. The execution and delivery of this
Official Statement by its Clerk has been duly authorized by the City.

In accordance with SEC Rule 15c2-12, the Official Statement is deemed final except for the
omission of certain information described in the rule.

CITY OF DE PERE

BROWN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
/s/ Shana L. Defnet
Clerk/Treasurer
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CITY PROPERTY VALUES

2012 Equalized Value: $1,733,547,000*

Includes $95,962,200 of captured tax increment value in the City's tax increment districts.

2012 Equalized Value by Property Class

Real Estate:
Residential $1,118,074,900 64.5%
Commercial 437,605,800 25.2
Manufacturing 119,580,400 6.9
Agricultural, Undeveloped,
Forest, and Other 536,300 0.1
Personal Property 57,749,600 3.3
2012 Equalized Value $1,733,547,000 100.0%

Less: Captured Tax Increment Value (95,962,200)

$1,637,584,800

2012 Net Equalized Value

Trend of Values

Equalized Value
Including
Tax Increment

Equalized Value
Excluding Assessed
Tax Increment Value

2012 $1,733,547,000 $1,637,584,800 $1,798,609,100
2011 1,763,330,300 1,664,408,800 1,786,169,500
2010 1,827,411,900 1,711,660,800 1,776,722,000
2009 1,912,611,300 1,785,219,000 1,762,565,900
2008 1,910,620,200 1,795,204,800 1,751,132,400

Ten of the Largest Taxpayers in the City of De Pere

2012
Taxpayer Type of Business Assessed Value
Humana Health Care Insurance $ 32,439,100
VHC Inc. Commercial 28,514,700
Individual Apartments 19,719,500
Shopko Stores, Inc. Retail Store/Distribution Center 18,379,900
Wal-Mart Retail Store 14,318,400
Menards Retail Store 11,236,000
Glory Road #1 LLC Commercial 8,266,900
Masters Properties of De Pere Apartments 7,842,300
T&S Land Development Retail Store 7,745,300
Millwood, Inc. Packaging Materials 7,606,300
Total $156,068,400

*  Represents 8.7% of the City's total 2012 assessed value.

-16 -




CITY INDEBTEDNESS

Legal Debt Limit

Legal Debt Limit (5% of Equalized Value) $ 86,677,350
Less: Outstanding Debt Subject to Limit
(Including the Bonds and excluding
the Refunded Bonds) (37,175,000)
Debt Margin as of August 13, 2013 $ 49,502,350
General Obligation Debt(®)
Est. Principal
Date Original Final Outstanding
of Issue Amount Purpose Maturity As of 8-13-13
3-1-04 $1,690,000 Promissory Notes 12-1-2013 $ 210,000
3-1-04 4,815,000 Refunding 10-1-2016 830,000
3-1-04 3,605,000 Refunding 12-1-2019 2,445,000
8-1-05 2,650,000 Corporate Purpose Bonds 12-1-2024 2,550,000
8-1-05 2,375,000 Taxable Refunding Promissory Notes 10-1-2015 465,000
6-15-06 4,050,000 Corporate Purpose Bonds 12-1-2025 3,165,000
11-1-07 2,020,000 Corporate Purpose Bonds 12-1-2026 1,635,000
8-1-08 1,000,000 Corporate Purpose Bonds 12-1-2027 855,000
8-1-08 2,270,000 Taxable Corporate Purpose Bonds 12-1-2027 2,170,000(h)
8-1-08 1,220,000 Promissory Notes 12-1-2017 725,000
5-1-09 1,875,000 Street Improvement Bonds 12-1-2028 1,740,000
5-1-09 800,000 Promissory Notes 12-1-2018 630,000
10-15-10 2,985,000 Promissory Notes 10-1-2020 2,445,000
8-15-11 2,245,000 Corporate Purpose Bonds 12-1-2025 1,990,000
8-15-11 1,565,000 Promissory Notes 12-1-2020 1,135,000
9-20-12 2,980,000 Corporate Purpose Bonds 12-1-2027 2,980,000
9-20-12 2,850,000 Taxable Corporate Purpose Bonds 12-1-2031 2,850,000(¢)
8-13-13 5,745,000 Corporate Purpose Bonds
(the Series 2013A Bonds) 12-1-2028 5,745,000(d)
8-13-13 2,610,000 Taxable Corporate Purpose Bonds
(the Series 2013B Bonds) 12-1-2023 2,610,000(€)

Total

(@) These issues are subject to the legal debt limit. Excludes the Refunded Bonds.

$37,175,000

b) The City intends to pay the debt service on this issue from tax increment revenues generated within Tax
Incremental District Number 7.

©) The City intends to pay the debt service on this issue from tax increment revenues generated within Tax
Incremental Districts Numbers 8, 9, and 10.

@ The City intends to pay the debt service on this issue from tax increment revenues generated within Tax
Incremental Districts Numbers 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10.

©) The City intends to pay the debt service on this issue from tax increment revenues generated within Tax
Incremental Districts Numbers 6, 7, and 9.
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Revenue Debt

Est. Principal

Date Original Final Outstanding

of Issue Amount Purpose Maturity As of 8-13-13
3-7-07 $4,395,000 Water Utility 12-1-2021 $2,900,000

Capital Leases

The City has entered into various capital leases for vehicles and equipment. The future payments
required under the terms of the leases are as follows:

Year Amount
2013 $57,445
Less: Amount representing interest (3,015)
Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments $54,430

Estimated Calendar Year Debt Service Payments Including the Bonds
And Excluding the Refunded Bonds

General Obligation Debt Revenue Debt

Principal Principal
Year Principal & Interest(@) Principal & Interest
2013 (at 8-13) $ 2,520,000 $ 3,010,214 $ 275,000 $ 330,245
2014 3,510,000 4,603,647 285,000 385,013
2015 3,700,000 4,667,945 300,000 389,154
2016 3,470,000 4,351,950 310,000 387,724
2017 3,225,000 4,017,788 320,000 385,913
2018 3,170,000 3,876,718 335,000 388,721
2019 2,815,000 3,431,933 345,000 385,958
2020 2,480,000 3,012,140 360,000 387,813
2021 1,840,000 2,297,828 370,000 384,097
2022 1,930,000 2,325,750
2023 2,000,000 2,328,255
2024 1,780,000 2,035,663
2025 1,575,000 1,762,578
2026 1,145,000 1,270,998
2027 1,025,000 1,105,465
2028 620,000 658,479
2029 235,000 249,078
2030 85,000 90,265
2031 50,000 51,950
Total $37,175,000(b) $45,148,644 $2,900,000 $3,424,638

(@) Includes the Series 2013A Bonds and the Series 2013B Bonds at assumed average annual interest
rates of 2.13% and 2.14%, respectively, and excludes the Refunded Bonds.

(b) 77.1% of this debt will be repaid within ten years.
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Indirect Debt
Debt Applicable to

2012 Est. G.O. Debt Value in City

Taxing Unit Equalized Value As of 8-13-13 Percent Amount
Brown County $17,288,681,200 $146,995,000 9.5% $13,964,525
De Pere School District 1,746,313,446 38,605,000 46.4 17,912,720
West De Pere School

District 1,632,285,268 32,425,000 50.6 16,407,050
Northeast Technical

College District 35,550,452,088 42,915,000 4.6 1,974,090
Total $50,258,385
Debt Ratios*

G.O. G.O. Indirect &
Direct Debt Direct Debt

To 2012 Net Equalized Value ($1,637,584,800) 2.27% 5.34%
Per Capita (23,925 — 2012 Wisconsin Department

of Administration Estimate) $1,556 $3,657

* Excludes revenue debt and includes capital leases.

TAX RATES, LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Tax Rates Per $1,000 of Assessed Value
2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

State of Wisconsin 0.1856 0.1841 0.1745 0.1675 0.1636
Brown County 5.1471 5.1415 4.8520 4.6487 4.6342
City of De Pere 5.8992 5.9917 6.0781 6.0939 6.1712
Technical College 1.6194 1.6691 1.6566 1.6077 1.5969
De Pere School District 10.7474 10.9786 10.8868 11.2271 10.5926
West De Pere School District 10.7228 10.6530 11.6400 11.5651 11.1641

For a City Resident in De Pere School District:

Gross Tax Rate 23.5987 23.9650 23.6480 23.7449  23.1585
Less: State Credits (1.7986) (1.8188) (1.7818) (1.7447) (1.7309)
Net Tax Rate 21.8001 22.1462 21.8662 22.0002 21.4276

For a City Resident in West De Pere School District:

Gross Tax Rate 23.5741 23.6394 24.4012 24.0829  23.7300
Less: State Credit (1.7986) (1.8188) (1.7818) (1.7447) (1.7309)
Net Tax Rate 21.7755 21.8206 22.6194 22.3382  21.9991

Ratio of Assessed Value to
Equalized Value 91.4% 92.1% 97.2% 101.3% 103.8%
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Tax Collections for the City

Levy/Collect Amount Levied Percent Collected
2012/13 $11,100,453 100%
2011/12 10,884,764 100
2010/11 10,799,169 100
2009/10 10,560,770 100
2008/09 10,303,941 100

FUNDS ON HAND
As of May 31, 2013

Cash and Investments: $20,764,001

CITY INVESTMENTS

The City's investment policy seeks to invest public funds in a manner which will provide the
highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow
demands of the City and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the investment of
public funds. Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the City's investment program. It is
also a primary objective that the City's investment portfolio remain sufficiently liquid to enable
the City to meet all operating requirements and that the investment portfolio attain a market rate
of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the City's investment
risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.

The City Clerk-Treasurer, in consultation with the City Finance Director and City Administrator,
is responsible for the management of the investment program and establishing written
procedures for the operation of the program consistent with the investment policy.

The City is empowered by statute to invest in the following types of securities:
e Time deposit in any credit union, bank, savings bank, trust company, or saving and
loan association.

e Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, city,
town or school district of the state.

e Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.

e The State of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool and Wisconsin
Investment Trust.

e Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest
rating category of a nationally recognized rating agency.

The City will diversify its investments by security type and institution. With the exception of U.S.
Treasury securities and authorized pools, no more than 35% of the City's total investment
portfolio will be invested in a single security type or with a single financial institution unless fully
collateralized. The City will not directly invest in securities maturing more than three years from
the date of purchase, unless matched to a specific cash flow, such as reserve funds.
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As of May 31, 2013, 44% ($8,987,987) was invested in the State's Local Government
Investment Pool; and 52% ($10,731,463) was invested in U.S. Government Agencies. The
balance of the City’s funds on hand is held in checking and savings accounts with a local bank.

GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE CITY

The City of De Pere is located in Brown County, approximately six miles south of the City of
Green Bay, and includes an area of 7,296 acres (11.4 square miles).

Population Trends

Population Percent Increase
2012 Estimate* 23,925 3.9%
2010 Census 23,020 13.7
2000 Census 20,246 22.2
1990 Census 16,569 9.7
1980 Census 15,107 --

*  Wisconsin Department of Administration estimate.

Source: Wisconsin Department of Administration, Demographic Services Center, http://www.doa.state.wi.us/.

Employment

The City is a part of the Green Bay metropolitan statistical area (the “MSA”), an urban area that
covers approximately 80 square miles. Green Bay is the dominant retail center in northeastern
Wisconsin and Upper Michigan. The labor market for the City’s industries and businesses
includes all of Brown County and, conversely, many City residents commute to work in other
areas of Brown County.
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Major Employers
The following is a listing of some of the larger employers in the City.

Approximate

Number

Employer Product/Service of Employees
Humana Health Care Health Insurance 2,712
Belmark Inc. Label and tag printing 616
Saint Norbert College Post-secondary education 600
Unified School District of De Pere Public education 475
RR Donnelley Direct mail marketing 341
West De Pere School District Public education 330
MEGTEC Systems Industrial dryers 300
Shopko Stores, Inc. Retail store/distribution center 298(2)
Independent Printing Company Commercial and check printing 280
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Retail 278(0)
Festival Foods Grocery store 275(0)
Rennes Health and Rehab Center Rehabilitative and skilled nursing services 250
Green Bay Packaging Packing Materials 225()
Thilmany Papers — Nicollet Mill Paper mill 225
City of De Pere City government 166
Menards Home Improvement 160(b)
Valley Cabinet Inc. Wooden cabinets and doors 140
The C.A. Lawton Company Foundry 135
PAI Retirement plan administrators 120
() As of 2011; most recent information available.
(b) Includes full- and part-time employees.
Source: Telephone survey of individual employers, June 2013.
City-Issued Building Permits

Total Permits New Single Family Homes

Number Value Number Value

2013 (to 5-31) 305 $25,197,339 23 $ 3,419,700
2012 962 52,543,310 51 6,585,500
2011 854 34,747,160 26 3,137,348
2010 1,059 29,827,747 35 3,840,550
2009 1,184 33,364,133 89 8,794,772
2008 887 43,529,892 41 6,487,142
2007 1,202 40,637,346 70 9,419,018
2006 1,115 55,803,507 52 9,343,381
2005 1,187 42,458,333 90 12,053,337
2004 849 41,738,973 135 20,363,425
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Community Development and Revitalization Efforts

The principle tool that communities in Wisconsin have to stimulate development and
redevelopment is the use of Tax Incremental Finance Districts (TIF or TID). The City also has a
variety of other tools including a Revolving Loan Program and a Facade Grant Program. The
City has taken significant steps in its downtown revitalization with the completion of a Downtown
Master Plan and also a Historic Preservation Plan. The City has an active Redevelopment
Authority (“RDA”") which is primarily focused on revitalizing the City's downtown area and
waterfront along the Fox River. The City is also very active in marketing the business parks on
both the east and west side of the City.

The City has four active tax incremental finance districts currently in place. These four existing
Tax Incremental Districts consist of 865.82 acres in total and are broken down as follows:

Tax Incremental District No. 5

Tax Incremental District No. 5 was created in 1996 and will statutorily terminate in 2022. The
district consists of 36.1 acres and covers the City’'s downtown area west of the Fox River. The
district had a base value at inception of $11,540,700, which increased to $48,462,900 by
January 1, 2012. In its first ten years, the district experienced an incremental increase in value
of $50,516,100, an increase of almost 354%. Since the beginning of 1998, the De Pere RDA
has approved or announced new projects within Tax Incremental District No. 5 totaling over
$38 million. This Tax Incremental District has been instrumental in the redevelopment and
revitalization of the west side of downtown. This district will receive debt retirement assistance
from Tax Incremental District No. 6.

Tax Incremental District No. 6

Tax Incremental District No. 6 was created in 1998 and will statutorily terminate in 2020. The
district consists of 542.48 acres and covers the City's west business park known as
Southbridge Business Park. Tax Incremental District No. 6 has been very successful in
establishing new businesses and driving economic growth. The district had a base value in
January 1, 1998 of $6,987,300, which increased to $66,082,900 as of January 1, 2012. The
commercial/office sector continues strong with over 200,000 square feet of new development
completed or under construction. Given the remaining expenditures years, the district will be
able to draw in addition projects to this part of the community. This district will also provide debt
retirement assistance to TID #5.

Tax Incremental District No. 7

Tax Incremental District No. 7 was created in 2007 and will statutorily terminate in 2033. The
district consists of 31.56 acres and covers the City’s downtown area east of the Fox River. This
Tax Incremental District is planned to help with the redevelopment and improvement of the east
side of downtown. In 2013, a new Walgreen’s store that was designated to match the
downtown will be added and will bring additional increment to the District. Since its creation,
the district has been successful in the overall improvement of the downtown through the facade
grant program and other key redevelopment areas.

Tax Incremental District No. 8

Tax Incremental District No. 8 was created in 2007 and will statutorily terminate in 2026. The
district consists of 255.68 acres and covers the City’'s west business park known as HWY 41
Business Park. Tax Incremental District No. 8 has been very successful in establishing new
businesses into the community. This district will draw larger corporate companies given is
location next to HWY41. In 2014, Foth will be opening a new 100,000 square-foot corporate
headquarters, which will aid in drawing other large corporations to the area. Given the

- 23 -



remaining expenditures years, the district will be able to draw in addition projects to this part of
the community.

Tax Incremental District No. 9

Tax Incremental District No. 9 opened in 2012 and will statutorily terminate in 2038. The district
consists of 18.27 acres and covers the City’s downtown area west of the Fox River. The district
has been designed to match the City’'s new Downtown Master Plan and to also continue the
success that had occurred under Tax Incremental District No. 5. The Downtown Master Plan
has identified key concepts and re-development projects in the west downtown that can be
implemented over the next ten years. In 2013, the City is supporting a new re-development that
matches the downtown master plan. The project will provide a new retail area and also two
stories of apartments.

Tax Incremental District No. 10

Tax Incremental District No. 10 opened in 2012 and will statutorily terminate in 2031. The
district consists of 173.2 acres and covers the City’s east industrial park. The district has been
designed to match the City’'s future growth corridor which was defined in the City's
Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan has identified this part of the City as the
primary growth area for the City over the next 20 years. In 2012, the City supported the
expansion of CA Lawton and it is expected that they will expand again in 2013.

Labor Force Data
Green Bay MSA (Brown County)

May Annual Average
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Civilian Labor Force:
Green Bay MSA 173,732 172,742 172,938 173,800 174,044
State of Wisconsin 3,055,429 3,051,732 3,063,544 3,081,360 3,116,226

Unemployment Rate:
Green Bay MSA 6.2% 6.5% 7.1% 7.8% 8.3%
State of Wisconsin 6.7 6.9 7.5 8.5 8.7

Source: Wisconsin’s Workforce and Labor Market Information System,
http://worknet.wisconsin.gov/worknet/. 2013 data are preliminary.

Education

City residents are served by the Unified School District of De Pere and the West De Pere School
District, which had 2012/13 enroliments of approximately 3,925 and 2,974 students, respectively,
in pre-kindergarten through twelfth grade.

Saint Norbert College is a four-year liberal arts college which had a 2012/13 enroliment of

approximately 2,084 undergraduate students and 53 graduate students. The college employs
approximately 600 full- and part-time regular employees and 1,500 student employees.
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GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION AND SERVICES

The City of De Pere has been a municipal corporation since 1890 and has a
Mayor-Alderperson form of government. The eight-member Common Council is elected by
ward to overlapping two-year terms. The Mayor is elected at large for a two-year term. The
current Mayor and Common Council follow:

Expiration of Term

Michael J. Walsh Mayor April 2014
Michael P. Donovan Alderperson/Council President April 2015
Scott M. Crevier Alderperson April 2014
Lisa A. Rafferty Alderperson April 2015
James G. Boyd Alderperson April 2014
Larry L. Lueck Alderperson April 2015
James E. Kneiszel Alderperson April 2014
Kevin A. Bauer Alderperson April 2014
Robert R. Heuvelmans Alderperson April 2015

Mr. Lawrence M. Delo is the City Administrator and is appointed by the Common Council. He
has served in this capacity since January 2003. Mr. Delo previously was the City Administrator
for the City of Milton, Wisconsin from August 1997 to January 2003 and is a member of the
International City/County Management Association.

Mr. Joseph Zegers is the City Finance Director and has served in this capacity since December
1998. Mr. Zegers is a Certified Public Accountant who, previous to his appointment as Finance
Director, audited Wisconsin municipalities for 15 years while employed by a Green Bay public
accounting firm. Mr. Zegers is a member of the Wisconsin Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Government Finance Officers Association.

The City’s water supply is managed by the De Pere Water Utility, which is operated by the City
as a proprietary fund and is governed by the Common Council. The operation of the physical
plant is under the direction of the Public Works Department.

Water is sold to residential, commercial and industrial customers, and is also provided for fire
protection and other public uses. Beginning in August 2007, the source of the water supply
changed from six deep wells to Lake Michigan. This has been accomplished through an
agreement whereby the City purchases its water from the Central Brown County Water
Authority. The purchase price of water is $4.16 per thousand gallons.

The City continues to own and maintain its own water storage and distribution system. Storage
capacity is 2.2 million gallons (MG), consisting of four underground reservoirs, one elevated
reservoir and three elevated tanks. The six deep wells are also available for standby capacity.
The maximum pumping capacity of the Central Brown County Water Authority exceeds the
14.48 MG per day that is available from the City-owned wells; therefore, capacity limits are not
an issue. The City's peak load during 2012 was 3.1 MG per day.

As of January 1, 2008, the City contracts through the New Water Sewage District for its sewage

system interceptors. The annual flow of the City’s plant prior to its sale to New Water during
2007 totaled 2,865 million gallons and the peak daily flow in 2007 was 16.78 million gallons.
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The De Pere police department is currently comprised of 34 full-time officers and eight civilian
employees. Fire protection is provided by a 28-member full-time force and 20 paid-on-call
firefighters. The City employs a total of approximately 158 regular full- and part-time
employees.

Employee Pensions

Substantially all employees are participants in the State of Wisconsin Retirement System
(“WRS”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer, defined benefit, Public Employee Retirement
System (PERS). The City's contribution requirements for the year ended December 31, 2012
totaled $1,189,405, consisting of $684,606 paid by the City and $504,799 paid by employees.
Total contributions for the years ending December 31, 2011 and 2010 were 41,198,812 and
$1,087,583, respectively. The City does not have an unfunded liability with the WRS.

All employees, initially employed by a participation WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011,
expected to work at least 600 hours a year (440 hours for teachers and school district
educational support employees) and expected to be employed for at least one year from
employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. All employees, initially employed
by a participation WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at lease 1,200
hours a year (880 hours for teachers and school district educational support employees) and
expected to be employed for least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to
participate in the WRS. Employers were required to contribute an actuarially determined
amount necessary to fund the remaining projected cost of future benefits.

Effective the first day of the first pay period on or after June 29, 2011 the employee required
contribution was changed to one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for General
category employees, including Teachers, and Executives and Elected Officials. Required
contributions for protective employees are the same rate as general employees. Employers are
required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution rate. The
employer may not pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an existing
collective bargaining agreement. Contribution rates are as follows:

2012
Employee Employer
General (including Teachers) 6.65% 6.65 %
Executives & Elected Officials 7.00 7.00
Protective with Social Security 6.65 6.65
Protective without Social Security 6.65 12.35

For more information regarding the liability of the City with respect to its employees, please
reference “Note D — Other Information, Section 1. Retirement Commitments”, of the City’s
Annual Financial Report for fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, an excerpt of which is
included as Appendix IV of this Official Statement.

Other Postemployment Benefits

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions (GASB 45), which addresses how state and local governments must account for and
report their obligations related to post-employment healthcare and other non-pension benefits
(referred to as Other Post Employment Benefits or “OPEB”).

The City does not provide health insurance for retired City employees and officials.
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General Fund Budget Summary

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Public Charges for Services
Intergovernmental Charges for Service
Miscellaneous
Other Financing Sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Uses:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture/Recreation/Education

Total Expenditures

Approved
2012 Budget

$ 8,142,059
3,105,539
440,850
275,000
1,860,343
344,022
515,700
898,128

—_

$15,581,641

$ 2,432,988
7,965,766
3,134,097
2,048,790

$15,581,641

Approved
2013 Budget

$ 8,235,643
3,053,093
473,800
269,000
2,000,905
321,155
296,250
768,500

$15,418,346
$ 2,318,606
8,102,363
3,144,518
2,143,632

$15,709,119

(The Balance of This Page Has Been Intentionally Left Blank)
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APPENDIX |
PROPOSED FORMS OF LEGAL OPINIONS

[ | FO L EY ATTORNEYS AT LAW

| 777 EAST WISCONSIN AVENUE
MILWAUKEE, WI 53202-5306

FOLEY & LARDNER LLP 414.971.2400 TEL

414.297.4900 FAX
foley.com

August __, 2013

City of De Pere
335 South Broadway Street
De Pere, Wisconsin 54115

Subject: $5,745,000
City of De Pere, Wisconsin
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A

We have acted as bond counsel to the City of De Pere, Wisconsin (the “Issuer”)
in connection with the issuance of its $5,745,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds,
Series 2013A, dated August 13, 2013 (the “Obligations™).

We examined the law, a certified copy of the proceedings relating to the issuance
of the Obligations, and certifications of public officials and others. As to questions of fact
material to our opinion, we relied upon the certified proceedings and certifications without
independently undertaking to verify them.

Based upon this examination, it is our opinion that, under existing law:
The Obligations are valid and binding general obligations of the Issuer.

All taxable property in the Issuer’s territory is subject to ad valorem taxation
without any limit as to rate or amount to pay the principal and interest coming due on the
Obligations. The Issuer is required by law to include in its annual tax levy the principal and
interest coming due on the Obligations except to the extent that the Issuer has deposited other
funds, or there is otherwise surplus money, in the account within the debt service fund created for
the Obligations under Wisconsin law.

Interest on the Obligations is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes and is not a specific item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative
minimum tax imposed on all taxpayers; however, interest on the Obligations is taken into
account in determining adjusted current earnings for purposes of computing the alternative



minimum tax imposed on certain corporations. The Issuer must comply with all requirements of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), that must be satisfied after the
Obligations are issued for interest on the Obligations to be, or continue to be, excluded from
gross income for federal income tax purposes. The Issuer has agreed to comply with those
requirements. Its failure to do so may cause interest on the Obligations to be included in gross
income for federal income tax purposes, in some cases retroactively to the date the Obligations
were issued. The Issuer has designated the Obligations as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for
purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. We express no opinion about other federal tax law
consequences relating to the Obligations.

The rights of the owners of the Obligations and the enforceability of the
Obligations may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other
similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and by equitable principles (which may be applied in
either a legal or an equitable proceeding).

We express no opinion as to the truth or completeness of any official statement or
other disclosure document used in connection with the offer and sale of the Obligations.

Our opinion is given as of the date of this letter. We assume no duty to update our
opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that later come to our attention or any subsequent
changes in law. In acting as bond counsel, we have established an attorney-client relationship
only with the Issuer.

Very truly yours,



[ | FO L EY ATTORNEYS AT LAW

| 777 EAST WISCONSIN AVENUE
MILWAUKEE, WI 53202-5306

FOLEY & LARDNER LLP 414.971.2400 TEL

414.297.4900 FAX
foley.com

August __, 2013

City of De Pere
335 South Broadway Street
De Pere, Wisconsin 54115

Subject: $2,610,000
City of De Pere, Wisconsin
Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B

We have acted as bond counsel to the City of De Pere, Wisconsin (the “Issuer”)
in connection with the issuance of its $2,610,000 Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose
Bonds, Series 2013B, dated August 13, 2013 (the “Obligations™).

We examined the law, a certified copy of the proceedings relating to the issuance
of the Obligations, and certifications of public officials and others. As to questions of fact
material to our opinion, we relied upon the certified proceedings and certifications without
independently undertaking to verify them.

Based upon this examination, it is our opinion that, under existing law:
The Obligations are valid and binding general obligations of the Issuer.

All taxable property in the Issuer’s territory is subject to ad valorem taxation
without any limit as to rate or amount to pay the principal and interest coming due on the
Obligations. The Issuer is required by law to include in its annual tax levy the principal and
interest coming due on the Obligations except to the extent that the Issuer has deposited other
funds, or there is otherwise surplus money, in the account within the debt service fund created for
the Obligations under Wisconsin law.

The rights of the owners of the Obligations and the enforceability of the
Obligations may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other
similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and by equitable principles (which may be applied in
either a legal or an equitable proceeding).



We express no opinion as to the truth or completeness of any official statement or
other disclosure document used in connection with the offer and sale of the Obligations.

Our opinion is given as of the date of this letter. We assume no duty to update our
opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that later come to our attention or any subsequent
changes in law. In acting as bond counsel, we have established an attorney-client relationship
only with the Issuer.

Very truly yours,



APPENDIX I

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENTS

The Series 2013A Bonds

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as of August 13, 2013 (this
“Disclosure Agreement”), is executed and delivered by the City of De Pere, Wisconsin
(the “Issuer™), a municipal securities issuer and a governmental entity located in the State of
Wisconsin. The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows:

Definitions.
The following capitalized terms have the following meanings:

“Annual Financial Information” means the Issuer’s financial information or
operating data, for the preceding fiscal year, of the type included in the Final Official Statement
as further described in Section 3(b) hereof.

“Commission” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Dissemination Agent” means any agent responsible for assisting the Issuer in
carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement, which has been designated as a
dissemination agent in writing by the Issuer, and has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance of
such designation, and the successors and assigns of such dissemination agent.

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system for municipal
securities disclosures, a Commission-approved electronic database established and operated by
the MSRB to accommodate the collection and availability of required filings of secondary market
disclosures under the Rule.

“Event Notice” means a notice of occurrence of a Listed Event provided under
Section 4(b) hereof or a notice provided under Sections 3(d), 4(c), or 8 hereof, each of which
shall be transmitted as described in Section 5 hereof.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from
time to time.

“Final Official Statement” means the offering document prepared and
distributed to a Participating Underwriter in connection with the primary offering of the
Obligations.

“Issuer” means the municipal securities issuer named above.

“Listed Event” means any of the events listed in Section 4(a) of this Disclosure
Agreement.
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“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, which serves as the
sole repository for all required filings of all secondary market disclosures under the Rule.

“Obligations” means the Issuer’s $5,745,000 City of De Pere, Wisconsin General
Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A, dated August 13, 2013.

“Owners” means the beneficial owners from time to time of the Obligations.

“Participating Underwriter” means any broker, dealer, or municipal securities
dealer that is required to comply with the Rule when acting as an underwriter in a primary
offering of the Obligations.

“Resolution” means collectively, the resolutions adopted by the governing body
of the Issuer on June 4, 2013 and on July 16, 2013, pursuant to which the Obligations are issued.

“Rule” means Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Commission under the
Exchange Act.

Purpose of this Disclosure Agreement.

The purpose of this Disclosure Agreement is to assist Participating Underwriters
in complying with the Rule when acting as an underwriter in a primary offering of the
Obligations.

Annual Financial Information.

The Issuer shall, not later than one year following the close of the Issuer’s
fiscal year, submit its Annual Financial Information to the MSRB.

The Annual Financial Information will consist of (i) the Issuer’s audited
annual financial statements prepared using generally accepted
accounting principles, and (ii) the following operating data:

Issuer property values,

Issuer indebtedness,

tax rates, levies, and collections, and
general fund budget summary.

If the Issuer’s audited annual financial statements are not available at the
time the Annual Financial Information is submitted, then the Issuer
shall submit the statements to the MSRB within ten business days
after they are publicly available.
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If the Issuer fails to submit its Annual Financial Information to the MSRB

by the date required in subsection (a) above, then the Issuer shall
promptly send an Event Notice of such failure to the MSRB.

Reporting of Listed Events; Event Notices.

This Section 4 shall govern the submission of an Event Notice after the

occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to
the Obligations:

Principal and interest payment delinquencies.
Non-payment related defaults, if material under the Exchange Act.

Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties.

Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties.

Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform.

Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed
Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or
determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or
other material events affecting the tax status of the Obligations.

Modifications to rights of Owners, if material under the Exchange Act.

Redemptions of the Obligations, if material under the Exchange Act, and
tender offers.

Defeasances.

Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
Obligations, if material under the Exchange Act.

Rating changes.

Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the Issuer (for the
purposes of this event, the event is considered to occur when any of
the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or
similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal
law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the
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Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the
existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of
reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over
substantially all the assets or business of the Issuer).

The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the
Issuer or the sale of all or substantially all the assets of the Issuer,
other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a
definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination
of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than
pursuant to its terms, if material under the Exchange Act.

Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of
a trustee, if material under the Exchange Act.

The Issuer shall submit an Event Notice to the MSRB not in excess of ten
business days after the occurrence of the particular Listed Event.

If the Issuer determines that it failed to submit an Event Notice of an
occurrence of a Listed Event as required by this section, then it
shall promptly submit an Event Notice with respect to such
occurrence to the MSRB.

Transmittal of Annual Financial Information and Event Notices.

Annual Financial Information and Event Notices shall be submitted to the MSRB
in an electronic format, and accompanied by identifying information, as prescribed by the MSRB.
As of the date of this Disclosure Agreement, the MSRB requires that all submissions of
secondary disclosure be made through EMMA. The Annual Financial Information may be
submitted as a single document or as a package comprising separate documents. Any or all of
the items constituting the Annual Financial Information may be incorporated by reference from
other documents available to the public on the MSRB’s Internet Website or filed with the
Commission. The Issuer shall clearly identify each document so incorporated by reference.

Duty to Confirm MSRB’s Filing Format and Procedure.

Each time the Issuer submits information to the MSRB in accordance with this
Disclosure Agreement, it shall confirm, in the manner it deems appropriate, the MSRB’s
prescriptions concerning the electronic format and accompanying identifying information for
submissions. As of the date of this Disclosure Agreement, information on the MSRB’s required
electronic format and submission procedures through EMMA can be found on the MSRB’s
Internet Web site at www.emma.msrb.org.
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Termination of Disclosure Agreement and Reporting Obligation.

This Disclosure Agreement and the Issuer’s disclosure obligations under this
Disclosure Agreement with respect to the Obligations shall terminate upon the legal defeasance,
prior redemption, or payment in full of all the Obligations or if the Rule shall be revoked or
rescinded by the Commission or declared invalid by a final decision of a court of competent
jurisdiction.

Amendment; Waiver.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Issuer may
amend this Disclosure Agreement, and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be
waived, if the following conditions are met:

The amendment or waiver is made in connection with a change in
circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements,
change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of the
Issuer or an obligated person, or the type of business conducted;

This Disclosure Agreement, as amended or waived, would have complied
with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary
offering, after taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances;
and

The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of
Owners, as determined either by parties unaffiliated with the Issuer
or obligated person (such as the fiscal agent, trustee, or bond
counsel), or by approving vote of the Owners pursuant to the terms
of the Resolution at the time of the amendment.

In the event this Disclosure Agreement is amended for any reason other than to
cure any ambiguities, inconsistencies, or typographical errors that may be contained herein, the
Issuer agrees the next Annual Financial Information it submits after such event shall include an
explanation of the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change, if any, on the type of
financial statements or operating data being provided.

If the amendment concerns the accounting principles to be followed in preparing
financial statements, then the Issuer agrees that it will give an Event Notice and that the next
Annual Financial Information it submits after such event will include a comparison between
financial statements or information prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and
those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles.
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Dissemination Agent.

The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination Agent and
may discharge any Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination
Agent.

Additional Information.

The Issuer may from time to time choose to disseminate other information, using
the means of transmittal set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of
communication, or to include other information with its Annual Financial Information or Event
Notice, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Agreement. If the Issuer chooses
to include any information with its Annual Financial Information or Event Notice in addition to
that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, then the Issuer shall have no
obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in any future
Annual Financial Information or Event Notice.

Default.

A default under this Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed an Event of
Default under the Resolution, and the sole remedy of the Owners under this Disclosure
Agreement in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Agreement
shall be an action to compel performance.

Beneficiaries.

The Issuer intends to be contractually bound by this Disclosure Agreement. This
Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the Issuer, the Participating
Underwriters, and the Owners, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

Recordkeeping.

The Issuer shall maintain records of all Annual Financial Information and Event
Notices submitted to the MSRB pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, including the content
and the date of filing of such submissions.
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Section 14. Responsible Officer.

The Issuer’s Administrator shall be the officer, representative, agency, or agent of
the Issuer ultimately responsible for submitting Annual Financial Information and Event Notices
to the MSRB, to the extent required hereunder, regardless of whether a Dissemination Agent has
been appointed, and any inquiries regarding this Disclosure Agreement should be directed to:

City Administrator

City of De Pere

335 South Broadway Street

De Pere, Wisconsin 54115
Telephone:  (920) 339-4044

Fax: (920) 330-9491

Email: Idelo@mail.de-pere.org

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Disclosure Agreement to be
executed by its duly authorized officer or representative as of the date written above.

CiTy oF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Issuer

By:

Title: City Administrator
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The Series 2013B Bonds

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as of August 13, 2013 (this
“Disclosure Agreement”), is executed and delivered by the City of De Pere, Wisconsin
(the “Issuer”), a municipal securities issuer and a governmental entity located in the State of
Wisconsin. The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows:

Definitions.
The following capitalized terms have the following meanings:

“Annual Financial Information” means the Issuer’s financial information or
operating data, for the preceding fiscal year, of the type included in the Final Official Statement
as further described in Section 3(b) hereof.

“Commission” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Dissemination Agent” means any agent responsible for assisting the Issuer in
carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement, which has been designated as a
dissemination agent in writing by the Issuer, and has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance of
such designation, and the successors and assigns of such dissemination agent.

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system for municipal
securities disclosures, a Commission-approved electronic database established and operated by
the MSRB to accommodate the collection and availability of required filings of secondary market
disclosures under the Rule.

“Event Notice” means a notice of occurrence of a Listed Event provided under
Section 4(b) hereof or a notice provided under Sections 3(d), 4(c), or 8 hereof, each of which
shall be transmitted as described in Section 5 hereof.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from
time to time.

“Final Official Statement” means the offering document prepared and
distributed to a Participating Underwriter in connection with the primary offering of the
Obligations.

“Issuer” means the municipal securities issuer named above.

“Listed Event” means any of the events listed in Section 4(a) of this Disclosure
Agreement.

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, which serves as the
sole repository for all required filings of all secondary market disclosures under the Rule.
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“Obligations” means the Issuer’s $2,610,000 City of De Pere, Wisconsin Taxable
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B, dated August 13, 2013.

“Owners” means the beneficial owners from time to time of the Obligations.

“Participating Underwriter” means any broker, dealer, or municipal securities
dealer that is required to comply with the Rule when acting as an underwriter in a primary
offering of the Obligations.

“Resolution” means collectively, the resolutions adopted by the governing body
of the Issuer on June 4, 2013 and on July 16, 2013, pursuant to which the Obligations are issued.

“Rule” means Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Commission under the
Exchange Act.

Purpose of this Disclosure Agreement.

The purpose of this Disclosure Agreement is to assist Participating Underwriters
in complying with the Rule when acting as an underwriter in a primary offering of the
Obligations.

Annual Financial Information.

The Issuer shall, not later than one year following the close of the Issuer’s
fiscal year, submit its Annual Financial Information to the MSRB.

The Annual Financial Information will consist of (i) the Issuer’s audited
annual financial statements prepared using generally accepted
accounting principles, and (ii) the following operating data:

Issuer property values,

Issuer indebtedness,

tax rates, levies, and collections, and
general fund budget summary.

If the Issuer’s audited annual financial statements are not available at the
time the Annual Financial Information is submitted, then the Issuer
shall submit the statements to the MSRB within ten business days
after they are publicly available.

If the Issuer fails to submit its Annual Financial Information to the MSRB
by the date required in subsection (a) above, then the Issuer shall
promptly send an Event Notice of such failure to the MSRB.
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Reporting of Listed Events; Event Notices.

This Section 4 shall govern the submission of an Event Notice after the
occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to
the Obligations:

Principal and interest payment delinquencies.
Non-payment related defaults, if material under the Exchange Act.

Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties.

Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties.

Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform.

Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed
Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or
determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or
other material events affecting the tax status of the Obligations.

Modifications to rights of Owners, if material under the Exchange Act.

Redemptions of the Obligations, if material under the Exchange Act, and
tender offers.

Defeasances.

Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
Obligations, if material under the Exchange Act.

Rating changes.

Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the Issuer (for the
purposes of this event, the event is considered to occur when any of
the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or
similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal
law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the
Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the
existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of
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reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over
substantially all the assets or business of the Issuer).

The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the
Issuer or the sale of all or substantially all the assets of the Issuer,
other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a
definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination
of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than
pursuant to its terms, if material under the Exchange Act.

Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of
a trustee, if material under the Exchange Act.

The Issuer shall submit an Event Notice to the MSRB not in excess of ten
business days after the occurrence of the particular Listed Event.

If the Issuer determines that it failed to submit an Event Notice of an
occurrence of a Listed Event as required by this section, then it
shall promptly submit an Event Notice with respect to such
occurrence to the MSRB.

Transmittal of Annual Financial Information and Event Notices.

Annual Financial Information and Event Notices shall be submitted to the MSRB
in an electronic format, and accompanied by identifying information, as prescribed by the MSRB.
As of the date of this Disclosure Agreement, the MSRB requires that all submissions of
secondary disclosure be made through EMMA. The Annual Financial Information may be
submitted as a single document or as a package comprising separate documents. Any or all of
the items constituting the Annual Financial Information may be incorporated by reference from
other documents available to the public on the MSRB’s Internet Website or filed with the
Commission. The Issuer shall clearly identify each document so incorporated by reference.

Duty to Confirm MSRB’s Filing Format and Procedure.

Each time the Issuer submits information to the MSRB in accordance with this
Disclosure Agreement, it shall confirm, in the manner it deems appropriate, the MSRB’s
prescriptions concerning the electronic format and accompanying identifying information for
submissions. As of the date of this Disclosure Agreement, information on the MSRB’s required
electronic format and submission procedures through EMMA can be found on the MSRB’s
Internet Web site at www.emma.msrb.org.

Termination of Disclosure Agreement and Reporting Obligation.

This Disclosure Agreement and the Issuer’s disclosure obligations under this
Disclosure Agreement with respect to the Obligations shall terminate upon the legal defeasance,
prior redemption, or payment in full of all the Obligations or if the Rule shall be revoked or
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rescinded by the Commission or declared invalid by a final decision of a court of competent
jurisdiction.

Amendment; Waiver.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Issuer may
amend this Disclosure Agreement, and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be
waived, if the following conditions are met:

The amendment or waiver is made in connection with a change in
circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements,
change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of the
Issuer or an obligated person, or the type of business conducted;

This Disclosure Agreement, as amended or waived, would have complied
with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary
offering, after taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances;
and

The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of
Owners, as determined either by parties unaffiliated with the Issuer
or obligated person (such as the fiscal agent, trustee, or bond
counsel), or by approving vote of the Owners pursuant to the terms
of the Resolution at the time of the amendment.

In the event this Disclosure Agreement is amended for any reason other than to
cure any ambiguities, inconsistencies, or typographical errors that may be contained herein, the
Issuer agrees the next Annual Financial Information it submits after such event shall include an
explanation of the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change, if any, on the type of
financial statements or operating data being provided.

If the amendment concerns the accounting principles to be followed in preparing
financial statements, then the Issuer agrees that it will give an Event Notice and that the next
Annual Financial Information it submits after such event will include a comparison between
financial statements or information prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and
those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles.

Dissemination Agent.

The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination Agent and
may discharge any Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination
Agent.
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Additional Information.

The Issuer may from time to time choose to disseminate other information, using
the means of transmittal set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of
communication, or to include other information with its Annual Financial Information or Event
Notice, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Agreement. If the Issuer chooses
to include any information with its Annual Financial Information or Event Notice in addition to
that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, then the Issuer shall have no
obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in any future
Annual Financial Information or Event Notice.

Default.

A default under this Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed an Event of
Default under the Resolution, and the sole remedy of the Owners under this Disclosure
Agreement in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Agreement
shall be an action to compel performance.

Beneficiaries.

The Issuer intends to be contractually bound by this Disclosure Agreement. This
Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the Issuer, the Participating
Underwriters, and the Owners, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

Recordkeeping.

The Issuer shall maintain records of all Annual Financial Information and Event
Notices submitted to the MSRB pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, including the content
and the date of filing of such submissions.

Section 14. Responsible Officer.

The Issuer’s Administrator shall be the officer, representative, agency, or agent of
the Issuer ultimately responsible for submitting Annual Financial Information and Event Notices
to the MSRB, to the extent required hereunder, regardless of whether a Dissemination Agent has
been appointed, and any inquiries regarding this Disclosure Agreement should be directed to:

City Administrator

City of De Pere

335 South Broadway Street

De Pere, Wisconsin 54115
Telephone:  (920) 339-4044

Fax: (920) 330-9491

Email: Idelo@mail.de-pere.org

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Disclosure Agreement to be
executed by its duly authorized officer or representative as of the date written above.

CiTy oF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Issuer

By:

Title: City Administrator
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APPENDIX Il
WISCONSIN PROPERTY VALUATION AND TAX LEVIES

Assessed Value

The "assessed value" of taxable property of a municipality is determined by the local assessor,
who must be certified by the State Department of Revenue. The local assessor is required to
use the property assessment manual provided by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue in
estimating the "market value" of all taxable property. Property is valued as of January 1 of each
year and filed with the municipality by the local assessor by the second Monday in May.
Municipalities use assessed value as the basis for determining mill rates.

Equalized Value

The State Department of Revenue is required, under Section 70.57 of the Wisconsin Statutes,
to determine the equalized value of all taxable property in each county and taxation district.
This “equalized value,” also called the “full assessment value” or the “aggregate full value,”
equalizes the various local assessments for uniformity of property values throughout the State.
Equalized value is based on several economic factors, including past sales studies from which
the State Department of Revenue calculates a percentage that, when applied to the assessed
value, produces a value that most closely approximates the full market value of each county
and taxation district. This State Department of Revenue shall notify each county and taxation
district of its equalized value on August 15; with school districts being notified on October 15.

At least once every five years, all municipalities must assess taxable property at a minimum of
90% of State equalized values.

Governmental units encompassing more than one municipality, such as a county or school
district, use the equalized or full value of the underlying units in levying their taxes.

Tax Levies and Collections

Personal property taxes, special assessments, special charges and special taxes must be paid
to the municipal treasurer in full by January 31. Real property taxes and personal property on
leased lands must be paid in full by January 31 or in two equal installments by January 31 and
July 31. Alternatively, municipalities may adopt a payment plan that permits real property taxes
to be paid in three or more equal installments, provided that the first installment is paid by
January 31, one-half of the taxes are paid by April 30 and the remainder is paid by July 31.
Amounts paid on or before January 31 are paid to the municipal treasurer. Amounts paid after
January 31 are paid to the county treasurer unless the municipality has authorized payment in
three or more installments in which case all payments are made to the municipal treasurer. Any
amounts paid after July 31 are paid to the county treasurer. On or before January 15 and
February 20 the municipal treasurer settles with other taxing jurisdictions for all collections
through December and January, respectively. In municipalities that have authorized the
payment of real property taxes in three or more installments, the municipal treasurer settles on
February 20 and additionally settles with the other taxing jurisdictions on the fifteenth day of
each month following the month in which an installment payment is required. The county
treasurer must settle in full with the underlying taxing jurisdictions for all real property taxes and
special taxes. Settlement must occur on or before August 20. Any county board may authorize
its county treasurer to also settle in full with the underlying taxing districts for all special
assessments and special charges. The county may recover any tax delinquencies by enforcing
the delinquency lien on the property and retain any penalties or interest on the delinquencies for
which it has settled.
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APPENDIX IV
EXCERPT OF 2012 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

The City is audited annually by an independent certified public accounting firm. Data on the
following pages was extracted from the City’s annual financial report for fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012. The reader should be aware that the complete financial statements may
contain additional information which may interpret, explain, or modify the data presented here.
The auditor has not been asked to provide any additional information in connection with this
Official Statement.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions for State and Local Governments in
February 2009. The statement establishes a new financial reporting model for state and local
governments to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund
balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing
governmental fund type definitions. This statement establishes fund balance classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe
constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the City Council
City of De Pere, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the panying financial stat s of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of De Pere, Wisconsin ("the
City") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the related notes to the financia! statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financlal Statements

M; 1t is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
wnth acoountlng principies genemlly accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
v, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair pr ion of financial

statsments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors' Responsibllity

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audlt mvolves performing procedures to obtain audlt evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

he p d selected d d on the auditors’ judgment, inciuding the assessment of the
risks of material mtssiatement of the financial swtements whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk
the auditor internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the C:ty's internal control. Aowrdlngly. we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes luating the of used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluatmg the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Oplinlons

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City as of December 31, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash fiows thereof and the budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note A.5.h, the City has imp ted GASB it No. 63, Fi ial Reporting of Deferred
Qutflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65, ftems
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, for the year ended December 31, 2012. Our opinions are not
modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 9 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not part of the basic fi s, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropnale operational, economtc or historical context. We have applied certain limited

es to the required suppk Wary 1 in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
|n the United States of Amenca which consusted of inquiries of management about the methods of prepanng the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fi i ts that collectively comprise
the City's basic financiai statements. The financial information listed in the table of contents as supplementary
information, and the other information, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the financial statements.

The supplementary information is the responsibility of and was derived from and relate directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial stat Such inft ion has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additiona} procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or lo the basvc financial statements themseives,
and other additional procedures in accordance with audmng d nted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all mateﬂa! respects in relation o the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 5, 2013, on our
consideration of the City's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of iaws, regulations, cc cts and grant ag ts and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Sebat S

Certified Public Accountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
June 5, 2013




ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables
Taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Loans
Other
Internal balances
Due from other governments
Inventories and prepaid items
Restricted assets
Cash and investments
Capital assets, nondepreciable
Land
Construction in progress
Capital assets, depreciable
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Less: Accumulated depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts and claims payable
Accrued and other current liabilities
Due to other governments
Accrued interest payable
Uneamed revenue
Long-term obligations
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Loans
Park land acquisition
Recreation scholarship
Debt service
Capital projects
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2012

Governmental | Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ 14200337 $ 854,344 $§ 15,054,681
12,864,749 - 12,864,749
1,307,285 3,293,077 4,600,362
1,151,169 - 1,151,169
885,781 - 885,781
- 298,949 298,949

1,073,589 (1,073,589) -
- 2,407,275 2,407,275
284,767 25,090 309,857
404,507 150,000 554,507
8,268,479 53,207 8,321,686
3,222,635 - 3,222,635
2,457,540 - 2,457,540
11,307,507 539,471 11,846,978
9,881,491 4,317,859 14,199,350
67,324,852 56,012,232 123,337,084

(39,717,461) (19,523,911) (59,241,372)

94,917,227 47,354,004 142,271,231
1,088,644 921,752 2,010,396
453,169 586,480 1,039,649
1,650 - 1,650
164,158 9,208 173,366
10,080 - 10,080
3,179,430 275,000 3,454,430
30,388,588 2,807,416 33,196,004
35,285,719 4,599,856 39,885,575
12,831,815 - 12,831,815
30,805,613 38,498,858 69,304,471
1,807,243 - 1,807,243
51,283 - 51,283
14,280 - 14,280
402,356 - 402,356
- 528 528
13,718,918 4,254,762 17,973,680
$ 46,799603 $ 42754148 $ 89,553,841

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and Governmental | Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions | Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities
General government $ 1654429 $ 391,798 $ - $ - $ (1,262,631) $ - $ (1,262,631)
Public safety 8,081,676 1,281,196 296,294 - (6,504,186) - (6,504,186)
Public works 6,113,614 613,487 1,329,166 470,679 (3,700,282) - (3,700,282)
Sanitation 549,344 - 97,855 - (451,489) - (451,489)
Health and human services 311,793 8,646 45,055 - (258,092) - (258,092)
Culture and recreation 2,182,530 531,669 5,202 1,675,572 29,913 - 29,913
Conservation and development 1,686,821 24,323 - 3,000 (1,659,498) - (1,659,498)
Interest on debt 1,139,916 - - - {1,139,916) - {1,139,916)
Total Governmenta! Activities 21,720,123 2,851,119 1,773,572 2,149,251 (14,946,181) - (14,946,181)
Business-type Activities
Water utility 5,148,055 6,118,307 - 140,490 - 1,110,742 1,110,742
Wastewater treatment 835,429 - - - - (835,429) (835,429)
Wastewater collection 6,596,831 7,017,055 - 437,683 - 857,907 857,907
Stormwater utility 825,191 1,017,471 - - - 192,280 192,280
Total Business-type Activities 13,405,506 14,152,833 - 578,173 - 1,325,500 1,325,500
Total $ 35125629 $ 17,003952 $ 1773572 $ 2,727,424 (14,946,181) 1,325,500 (13,620,681)
General revenues
Taxes
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 7,703,147 - 7.703,147
Property taxes, levied for debt service 1,238,022 - 1,238,022
Property taxes, levied for capital projects 1,341,276 - 1,341,276
Property tax increments 2,576,382 - 2,576,382
Other taxes and franchise fees 376,831 - 376,831
Federal and state grants and other contributions
not restricted to specific functions 2,103,835 - 2,103,835
Interest and investment earnings 141,907 9,128 151,035
Miscellaneous 660,876 233,670 894,546
Transfers 701,778 (701,778) -
Total general revenues and transfers 16,844,054 {458,980) 16,385,074
Change in net position 1,897,873 866,520 2,764,393
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle {233,218) - (233,218)
Net position - January 1 45,135,038 41,887,628 87,022,666

Net position - December 31

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 46,799,693 § 42,754,148 $ 89,553,841




ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables
Taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Loans
Due from other funds
Advance to other funds
inventories and prepaid items
Restricted assets
Cash and investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued and other current
liabilities

Due to other funds

Due to other governments

Unearned revenues

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of Resources
Property taxes
Special assessments
Loans receivable
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances
Nonspendable for
inventories and prepaid items
Special assessments
Advances to other funds
Delinquent property taxes
Restricted for
Debt service
Loans
Recreation scholarship
Park land acquisition
Capital outlay
Committed for
Subsequent years'
expenditures
Capital outlay
Assigned for
Subsequent year's budget
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND
FUND BALANCES

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Balance Sheet
Govemmental Funds
December 31, 2012

Special Capital

Revenue - Projects - Total
Debt Riverwalk Public Other Govermnmental

General Service Pier Improvements | Governmental Funds
$ 4635912 § - $ - $ 669,353 $ 7,871,303 $ 13,176,568
7,724,355 1,353,278 - 941,276 2,845,840 12,864,749
310,182 - 713,889 179,998 103,811 1,307,880
89,512 - - 1,061,657 - 1,151,169
- - - - 885,781 885,781
1,434,192 - - - - 1,434,192
60,000 - - - - 60,000
284,767 - - - - 284,767
- 404,507 - - - 404,507
14,538,92 1,757,785 713,88 2.852,284 11,706,735 31.569.613
$ 429,670 $ 2,151 § 464,019 $ 26,016 $ 23870 $ 945,726
452,943 - - - 226 453,169
- - 247,939 - 23,996 271,935
3,654 - - - - 3,654
10,080 - - - - 10,080
896,347 2,151 711,958 26,016 48,092 1,684,564
7,691,421 1,353,278 - 941,276 2,845,840 12,831,815
- - - 1,061,657 - 1,061,657
- - - - 885,781 885,781
7,691,421 1,353,278 - 2,002,933 3,731,621 14,779,253
284,767 - - - - 284,767
89,512 - - - - 89,512
60,000 - - - - 60,000
44,046 - - - - 44,046
- 402,356 - - - 402,356
- - - - 921,462 921,462
14,280 - - - - 14,280
- - - - 51,283 51,283
- - - - 6,493,167 6,493,167
98,626 - 1,931 - 55,571 156,128
- - - 823,335 405,539 1,228,874
290,773 - - - - 290,773
5,069,148 - - - - 5,069,148
5,951,152 402,356 1,931 823,335 7,927,022 15,105,796
14,538,920 1,767,785 713,889 2,852,284 11,706,735 31,569,613




CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Balance Sheet (Continued)
Govemmental Funds
December 31, 2012

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position

Total Fund Balances as shown on previous page

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not availabie to pay current period expenditures and
therefore are deferred in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of health and
dental insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal

service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Some liabilities are not due and payabile in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.
Bonds and notes payable
Capital leases payable
Compensated absences
Accrued interest on long-term obligations

Net Position of Governmental Activities as Reported on the Statement of Net Position
(see page 10)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ (31,885,000)
(54,430)
(1,628,588)
(164,158)

$ 15,105,796

62,745,043

1,847,438

733,592

(33,732,176)

5 46790693



Revenues

Taxes

Special assessments

Intergovernmental

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeits

Public charges for services

Intergovernmental charges
for services

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Sanitation
Health and human services
Culture and recreation
Conservation and development
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Long-term debt issued
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - January 1

Fund Balances - December 31

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Special Capital
Revenue - Projects - Total
Debt Riverwalk Public Other Govermnmental
General Service Pier Iimprovements | Governmental Funds

$ 7,798,316 $ 1,238,022 $ - $ 941276 $ 2,976,382 $ 12,953,996
- - - 963,046 - 963,046
3,280,804 40,386 1,237,320 263,605 287,410 5,109,525
545,215 - - - 118,852 664,067
233,638 - - - - 233,638
1,409,666 - - - 10,000 1,419,666
856,468 - - - - 856,468
275,777 - 438,252 9,045 1,039,625 1,762,599
14,399,884 1,278,408 1,675,572 2,176,972 4,432,169 23,963,005
1,630,772 - - - - 1,630,772
8,052,660 - - - - 8,052,660
2,409,455 - - - - 2,409,455
553,373 - - - - 553,373
334,337 - - - - 334,337
1,985,666 - - - 83,387 2,069,053
211,220 - - - 1,839,062 2,050,282

- 3,040,048 - - - 3,040,048

- 1,116,948 - - 29,150 1,146,098

- - 3,027,149 3,108,603 728,901 6,864,653
15,177,483 4,156,996 3,027,149 3,108,603 2,680,500 28,150,731
(777,599) (2,878,688) (1,351,577) (931,631) 1,751,669 (4,187,726)

- - 1,015,000 760,000 4,055,000 5,830,000
1,349,906 2,790,945 - 120,955 500,000 4,761,806
- - - (300,000) (3,760,028) {4,060,028)
1,349,906 2,790,945 1,015,000 580,955 794,972 6,531,778
572,307 (87,643) (336,577) (350,676) 2,546,641 2,344,052
5,378,845 489,999 338,508 1,174,011 5,380,381 12,761,744
$ 5951152 $ 402356 $ 1931 § 823,336 § 7927022 $ 15,105,796

e e e e e




CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Reconciliation to the Statement of Activities

Net Change in Fund Balances as shown on previous page

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Capital assets reported as capital outlay in governmental fund statements
Depreciation expense reported in the statement of activities

Amount by which capital additions are greater than depreciation in current period

In govermmental funds the entire proceeds, if any, from the disposal of capital
assets is reported as an other financing source. In the statement of activities
only the gain (or loss) on the disposal is reported.
Loss on disposition reported on the statement of activities
Cost of assets disposed of

Certain employee benefits are reported in the governmental funds when amounts
are paid. The statement of activities reports the value of benefits earned during
the year. This year the accrual of these benefits decreased by:

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of health and

dental insurance to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service

funds is reported with governmental activities.

Govemmental funds do not present revenues that are not available to pay
current obligations. In contrast, such revenues are reported in the statement of
activities when eamed.

The issuance of long-term debt provides cumrent financial resources to govemmental
funds, but is reported as an increase in long-term debt in the statement of net
position and does not affect the statement of activities. The amount of debt issued
in the current year is:

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is reported in the govemmental funds

as an expenditure, but is reported as a reduction in long-term debt in the statement
of net position and does not affect the statement of activities. The amount of
long-term debt principal payments in the current year is, including $41,664 of capital
lease payments in current expenditures, is:

Interest payments on outstanding debt are reported in the governmental funds

as an expenditure when paid, in the statement of activities interest is reported

as it accrues,

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities as Reported in the
Statement of Activities (see pages 11 - 12)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 2,344,052

$ 5,284,265
(2,577,140)

2,707,125

$ (31,179)

(31,179)

148,075

168,882

(696,976)

(5.830,000)

3,081,712

6,182

$ 1897873



CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeits
Public charges for services
Intergovernmental charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Sanitation
Health and human services
Culture and recreation
Conservation and development
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Variance
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 7,742,059 $ 7,742,059 $ 7,798,316 56,257
3,105,539 3,105,539 3,280,804 175,265
441,350 441,350 545,215 103,865
275,000 275,000 233,638 (41,362)
1,271,780 1,271,780 1,409,666 137,886
836,863 836,863 856,468 19,605
610,922 610,922 275,777 {335,145)
14,283,513 14,283,513 14,399,884 116,371
1,785,735 1,785,735 1,630,772 154,963
7,965,366 7,965,366 8,052,660 (87,294)
2,592,777 2,592,777 2,409,455 183,322
541,320 541,320 553,373 (12,053)
424,755 424,755 334,337 90,418
2,048,791 2,048,791 1,985,666 63,125
222,897 222,897 211,220 11,677
15,581,641 15,581,641 15,177,483 404,158
(1,298,128) (1,298,128) (777,599) 520,529
1,298,128 1,298,128 1,349,906 51,778
- - 572,307 572,307
5,378,845 5,378,845 5,378,845 -
5,378,845 5,378,845 5,951,162 572,307




CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2012

Enterprise Funds
Govermnmental
Wastewater Activities -
Treatment Wastewater Stormwater Internal
Water Utility | Plant Utility Utility Utility Total Service Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 267866 $ - $ - $ 586478 $ 854344 $ 1,023,769
Receivables
Accounts 1,692,568 - 1,600,509 - 3,293,077 -
Other 298,949 - - - 298,949 -
Due from other governments - 2,407,275 - - 2,407,275 -
Inventories and prepaid expenses 25,090 - - - 25,090 -
Restricted assets
Cash and investments - - 150,000 - 150,000 -
Capital assets, nondepreciable
Land 53,207 - - - 53,207 -
Capital assets, depreciable
Buildings and improvements 539,471 - - - 539,471 -
Machinery and equipment 3,831,231 - 486,628 - 4,317,859 -
Infrastructure 21,744,777 - 18,800,643 16,466,812 56,012,232 -
Less: Accumulated
depreciation (5,328,317} - {8,420,177) {5,775,417)  (19,523,911) -
TOTAL ASSETS 23,124,842 2,407,275 12,617,603 10,277,873 48,427,593 1,023,769
LIABILITIES
Accounts and claims payable 590,463 - 893,178 15,604 1,499,245 141,509
Accrued and other current
liabilities 4,143 - 3,137 1,707 8,987 -
Accrued interest payable 9,208 - - - 9,208 -
Due to other funds - 365,465 796,792 - 1,162,257 60,000
Long-term obligations
Due within one year 275,000 - - - 275,000 -
Due in more than one year 2,729,633 - 56,874 20,909 2,807,416 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,608,447 365,465 1,749,981 38,220 5,762,113 201,509
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 17,940,369 - 10,867,094 9,691,395 38,498,858 -
Restricted for
Capital projects - - 528 - 528 -
Unrestricted 1,576,026 2,041,810 - 548,258 4,166,094 822,260
TOTAL NET POSITION 19.516,395 2.041.810 10,867.622 10,239.653 42,665,480 _$ 822260
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of the internal service fund
activities related to enterprise funds 88,668
Net position of business-type activities as reported on the
Statement of Net Position (page 10) _$42754,148

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Operating Revenues
Charges for services

Other

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Claims and administrative fees
Operation and maintenance

Depreciation
Taxes

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest income

Interest and fiscal charges
Total Nonoperating Revenues

(Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Contributions

and Transfers

Capital contributions

Transfers out

Change in Net Position
Net Position - January 1
Net Position - December 31

Change in Net Position per above

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

For the Year Ended December 31,2012

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Enterprise Funds

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of the internal service fund
activities related to enterprise funds

Change in Net Position of business-type activities as reported on the
Statement of Activities (pages 11-12)

Governmental

Wastewater Activities -

Treatment Wastewater Stormwater Internal

Water Ulility Plant Utility Utility Utility Total Service Funds
$ 5998232 $ - $ 3310526 $ 1017471 $ 10,326,229 §$§ 2,958,115

353,745 - 3,706,529 - 4,060,274 -
6,351,977 - 7,017,055 1,017,471 14,386,503 2,958,115
- - - - - 2,695,311

4,588,844 841,505 6,160,434 522,918 12,113,701 -

429,529 - 485,718 309,336 1,224,583 -

41,587 - - - 41,587 -
5,059,960 841,505 6,646,152 832,254 13,379,871 2,695,311
1,292,017 (841,505) 370,903 185,217 1,006,632 262,804
9,105 23 - - 9,128 189

(119,746) - - - (119,746) -
(110,641) 23 - - {110,618) 189
1,181,376 (841,482) 370,903 185,217 896,014 262,993

140,490 - 437,683 - 578,173 -

(432,603) - (269,175) - (701,778) -
889,263 (841,482) 539,411 185,217 772,409 262,993
18,627,132 2,883,292 10,328,211 10,054,436 41,893,071 559,267
19,516,385 $ 2.041,810 10,867,622 $ 10,239,653 42665480 $ 822260

$ 772,409
94,111
S 866520

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from user charges
Cash received from interfund services
provided
Cash payments to suppliers
Cash payments to employees
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Due to other funds
Transfers out
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital
Financing Activities

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Cash Fiows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Acquisition of capital assets

Proceeds from sale of treatment plant

Principal payments on long-term debt

Interest payments on long-term debt

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment income

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents - December 31

Recongciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation

Depreciation charged to sewer

Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Other accounts receivable
Inventories and prepaid expenses
Accounts and claims payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Capital contributions

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Wastewater Activities -
Treatment | Wastewater | Stormwater Internal Service
Water Utility | Plant Utility Utility Utility Total Funds
$6,651,399 § - $6,747990 $1,017,471 $ 14416860 $ -
55,676 - (55,676) - - 2,958,115
(4,038,661) (841,505) (5,693,208) (134,103) (10,707,477) (2,796,528)
626,384 - 404,759 394,292 1,425,435 -
2,042,030 (841,505} 594,347 489,076 2,283,948 161,587

- 365,465 (60,687) - 304,778 -
(432,603) - {269,175) - (701,778) -
{432,603) 365,465 {329,862) - (397,000) -
(998,683) ~ (264,485) (450,853)  (1,714,021) -

- 160,483 - - 160,483 -
(265,000) - - - (265,000) -
{120,587) - - - {120,587) -

{1,384,270) 160,483 {264,485)  (450,853)  ({1,939,125) -
9,105 23 - - 9,128 189
234,262 (315,534) - 38,223 (43,049) 161,776
33,604 315,534 150,000 548,255 1,047,393 861,993
267.866 - 150 586,478 1,004, 344 1,023,769
$1,292,017 $ (841,505) $ 370,903 $ 185217 $ 1,006632 $ 262,804
429,529 - 485,718 309,336 1,224,583 -
55,676 - (55,676) - - -
83,237 - (269,065) - (185,828) -
216,185 - - - 216,185 -
(391) - - - (391) -
(31,570) - 75,251 (1,993) 41,688 (101,217)
1,717 - 1,650 948 4,315 -
{4,370) - (14,434) (4,432) {23,236) -
2,042 1,50! 347 489,076 2,283,948 161,587
140,490 - 437.683 - 578,17, -

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position
Agency Funds
December 31, 2012

Tax Trust
Collection Deposits Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7912234 § 25130 $ 7,937,364
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable 21,454,716 - 21,454,716
TOTALASSETS 29,366,950 25130 29.392.080
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments
State of Wisconsin $ 294,194 $ - $ 204,194
Brown County 7,871,980 - 7,871,980
Northeast Wisconsin Technical College 2,713,125 - 2,713,125
School District of De Pere 8,918,254 - 8,918,254
West De Pere School District 9,569,397 - 9,569,397
Deposits held in trust - 25,130 25,130
TOTAL LIABILITIES 29.366.950 § 25,130 29,392,080

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of De Pere, Wisconsin ("the City") have been prepared in
confarmity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America {GAAP) as applied
to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting principles and policies utilized by the City are described beiow:

1.

Reporting Entity

The City of De Pere is a municipal corporation govermned by an elected eight-member council. in
accordance with GAAP, the basic financial statements are required to include the City (the primary
government) and any separate component units that have a significant operational or financiat
relationship with the City. The City has not identified any component units that are required to be
included in the basic financial statements in accordance with standards established by GASB Statement
Nos. 14 and 39.

Related Organization

The Mayor and City Council are responsible for appointing the board members of the De Pere Housing
Authority, but the City’s involvement with this organization does not extend beyond making the
appointments. The City is not financially accountable for the Housing Authority as defined by standards
in GASB Statements Nos. 14 and 39. Therefore this organization is not included in the City's reporting
entity.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financia! statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which are primarily
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for services.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
Governmental funds include general, special revenue, debt service and capital projects funds.
Proprietary funds include enterprise and internal service funds. Major individual governmental funds and
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:
GENERAL FUND

This is the City's main operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those accounted for in another fund.

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

DEBT SERVICE FUND

This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-
term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

RIVERWALK PEER

This fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the construction of the De Pere
Riverwalk Pier. The significant revenue source is donations and grants.

PuBLiC IMPROVEMENTS FUND

This fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital facilities.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

WATER UTILITY FUND

This fund is used to account for the operations of the City's water utility.

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT UTILITY FUND

This fund is used to account for the operations of the City's wastewater treatment plant utility.
WASTEWATER UTILITY FUND

This fund is used to account for the operations of the City's wastewater utility.

STORMWATER UTILITY FUND

This fund is used to account for the operations of the City's stormwater utility.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

Internal service funds account for health insurance and dental insurances services provided to other
departments or agencies of the City, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.

The City accounts for property taxes collected on behalf of other governments and trust deposits in
agency funds.



GL-AI

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund (other than
agency funds) financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Agency funds follow the
accrual basis of accounting, and do not have a measurement focus.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay labilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the
City’'s water and sewer function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1)charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, and fees and fines, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City’s enterprise funds are charges fo customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy fo use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/inflows of Resources and Net Position or Fund Balance

a. Cash and investments

Cash and investments are combined in the financial statements. Cash deposits consist of demand
and nonnegotiable time deposits with financial institutions and are carried at cost. Investments with
maturity dates of less than one year are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.
investments with maturity dates exceeding one year are stated at fair value. Fair value is the amount
at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all cash
deposits and highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or
less from date of acquisition are considered to be cash equivalents.

b. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at gross amount with uncollectible amounts recognized under the
direct write-off method. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided since it is
believed that the amount of such allowance would not be material to the basic financial statements.

c. Interfund Receivables and Payables
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other
funds™ and “due to other funds” in the fund financial statements. Noncurrent portions of the interfund
receivables for the governmental funds are reported as “advances to other funds” and are offset by
nonspendable fund balance since they do not constitute expendable available financial resources and
therefore are not available for appropriation.

The amount reported on the statement of net position for internal balances represents the residual
balance outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities.

d. lnventories
Inventories are recorded at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out method.
Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an
expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed rather than when purchased.

Inventories of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by nonspendable fund
balance to indicate that they do not represent spendable avaiiable financial resources.

e. Prepaid ltems
Payments made to vendors that will benefit periods beyond the end of the current fiscal year are
recorded as prepaid items.

Prepaid items of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by nonspendable fund
balance to indicate that they do not represent spendable available financial resources.

f. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000
or higher and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair vaiue at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.
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CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Governmental | Business-type
Activities Activities
Years

Assets
Land improvements 10-40 -
Buildings and improvements 30-40 25-50
Machinery and equipment 3-15 3-10
Infrastructure 15-75 25- 100

Annual depreciation expense for the enterprise fund reported on the statement of cash flows exceeds
depreciation expense reported on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
The difference resulis from depreciation expense applicable to transportation and certain other
operating equipment of the water utility enterprise fund being charged to operating expense accounts
other than the depreciation expense account. This accounting procedure is required by the Public
Service Commission of the State of Wisconsin.

Compensated Absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave
benefits in accordance with bargaining unit agreements. All vacation and sick leave is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these
amounts is reported in the governmental funds in the fund financial statements only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Deferred Outflows/Infiows of Resources

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred inflows of Resources, and Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65, ltems
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2012. In addition to
assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outfiows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) untii then. The City currently does not have any items
that qualify for reporting in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one type of item that
qualifies for reporting in this category, property taxes. This amount will be recognized as an inflow of
resources in the subsequent year for which it was levied. The City also has an additional type of
item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this
category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds
balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from two sources, special
assessments and loans receivable. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period the amounts become available.

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as fiabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net position. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance
costs are expensed as incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Fund Equity
GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The following classifications describe
the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be
used:

« Nonspendable fund balance - Amounts that are not in spendable form (such as inventory, prepaid
items, or iong-term receivables) or are legally or contractually required to remain intact.

¢ Restricted fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by external parties
{such as grantor or bondholders), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legisiation.

¢ Committed fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by action of the
City Council. These constraints can only be removed or changed by the City Councit using the
same action that was used to create them.

» Assigned fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by action of City
management. The City Council has not authorized any City official or committee to assign fund
balance. Residual amounts in any governmental fund, other than the Genera! Fund, are also
reported as assigned, unless committed by City Council action.

¢ Unassigned fund balance - Amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive unassigned
amounts are only reported in the General Fund.

The City has adopted a fund balance spend-down policy regarding the order in which fund balance
wiil be utilized. Where applicable, the policy requires restricted funds to be spent first, followed by
committed funds, and then assigned funds. Unassigned funds would be spent last.
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CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND PROPRIETARY FUND STATEMENTS
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

» Netinvestment in capital assets - Amount of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, iess
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

» Restricted net position - Amount of net position that is subject to restrictions that are imposed by
1) external groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other
governments or 2) iaw through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

« Unrestricted net position - Net position that is neither classified as restricted nor as net investment
in capital assets.

k. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual resuits could differ
from those estimates.

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP AND COMPLIANCE

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data refiected in the basic financial
statements:

1.

During November, City management submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the
calendar year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them. After submission to the governing body, public hearings
are held to obtain taxpayer comments. Following the public hearings, the proposed budget, inciuding
authorized additions and deletions, is legally enacted by City Councll action.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America for the general, special revenue, debt service, capital project, and enterprise funds.
Budget is defined as the originally approved budget plus or minus approved amendments. Individual
amendments throughout the year were not material in relation to the original budget. Budget
appropriations not expended during the year are closed to fund balance unless authorized by the
governing body to be forwarded into the succeeding year's budget.

During the year, formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for the
general, debt service and certain capital project funds. Management control of special revenue funds and
ather capital projects funds are achieved through grant contracts, bond issuance resolutions, Tax
Incremental District project plans and available balances.

Expenditures may not exceed appropriations provided in detailed budget accounts maintained for each
activity or department of the City. Amendments to the budget during the year require initial approval by
management and are subsequently authorized by the City Council.

Encumbrance accounting is not used by the City to record commitments related to unperformed contracts
for goods or services.

The City did not have any material violation of tegal or contractual provisions for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012.

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

1.

Cash and Investments

The City maintains various cash and investment accounts, including pooled funds that are available for
use by ali funds. Each fund's portion of these accounts is displayed on the financial statements as "Cash
and investments.”

Invested cash consists of deposits and investments that are restricted by Wisconsin Statutes to the
following:

Time deposits; repurchase agreements; securities issued by federal, state and local governmental
entities; statutorily authorized commercial paper and corporate securities; and the Wisconsin local
government investment pool.

The carrying amount of the City's cash and investments totaled $23,546,551 on December 31, 2012 as
summarized below:

Petty cash funds $ 3,060
Deposits with financial institutions 1,077,067
Investments 22,466,424

$ 23,546,551

Reconciliation to the basic financial statements;

Government-wide statement of net position

Cash and investments $ 15,054,680
Restricted cash and investments 554,507

Fiduciary funds statement of net position
Agency fund 7,937,364
23,546,551

Deposits and investments of the City are subject to various risks. Presented on the following page is a
discussion of the specific risks and the City's policy reiated to the risk.
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CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. Wisconsin statutes require repurchase agreements o be fully collateralized by bonds or
securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government or its instrumentalities. The City's policy
requires collateralization for depository institutions rated average. Collateralization is not required for
institutions rated superior or excellent.

Deposits with financial institutions within the State of Wisconsin are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation {(FDIC) in the amount of $250,000 for time and savings deposits and $250,000 for
interest-bearing demand deposits per official custodian per insured depository institution. Deposits with
financial institutions located outside the State of Wisconsin are insured by the FDIC in the amount of
$250,000 for all time accounts, savings accounts and interest-bearing demand deposit accounts per
official custodian per depository institution. In addition, the City’s non-interest bearing transaction
accounts are fully insured through December 31, 2012. As of January 1, 2013 the City's noninterest-
bearing transaction accounts are combined with its interest-bearing demand deposits for FDIC insurance
coverage. Also, the State of Wisconsin has a State Guarantee Fund which provides a maximum of
$400,000 per public depository above the amount provided by an agency of the U.S. Government.
However, due to the relatively small size of the State Guarantee Fund in relation to the Fund's total
coverage, total recovery of insured losses may not be available.

As of December 31, 2012, none of the City’s deposits with financial institutions were in excess of federal
depository insurance limits.

redit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fuffill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Wisconsin statutes limit investments in securities to the top two ratings assigned by
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The City does not have an additional credit risk
policy. Presented below is the actual rating as of year end for each investment type.

Exempt
From Not
investment Type Amount Disclosure AAA Aa Rated

U.S. Treasury notes $ 4764243 $ 4764243 $ - $ - $ -
Money market funds 456,057 456,057 - - -
Federal agency securities 5,512,262 - 5,512,262 - -
Repurchase agreements 447,167 - - - 447,167
Wisconsin locat government

investment poo! 11,286,695 - - - 11,286,695
Totals $ 22466424 $ 5220300 $ 5512262 8 - $ 11,733,862

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

ncentration of Credit Risk
The investment policy of the City limits the amount that can be invested in any one security type or issuer.
Investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment
pools) that represent 5% or more of total City investments are as follows:

l Reporied Percent of
Issuer Amount Total
Federal National Mortgage Association $ 3,582,372 33%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 1,320,544 12%

Inferest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments to market interest rate
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the City’s investments by
maturity:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)
12 Months 13t0 24 25to 60 More Than
Investment Type Amount or Less Months Months 60 Months
U.S. Treasury notes $ 4764243 $ 1508143 $ 1309811 $ 1,856,289 $ -
Money market funds 456,057 456,057 - - -
Federal agency securities 5,512,262 - 1,071,163 537,916 3,903,183
Répurchase agreements 447,167 447,167 - - -
Wisconsin local government
investment poot 11,286,695 11,286,685 - - -
Totals § 22466424 $ 13608062 $ 2 470974 $ 2,394 205 $ 3,803,183

Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to interest Rate Fluctuations
The City's investments include the following investments that are highly sensitive to interest rate
fiuctuations (to a greater degree than already indicated in the information provided above):

Fair Value
Highly Sensitive Investments at Year End

Mortgage backed securities. These securities are subject to early payment in a

period of declining interest rates. The resuitant reduction in expected total cash

flows affects the fair value of these securities and makes the fair values of these

securities highly sensitive to changes in interest rates. $ 5,512,262
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CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

2.

Investment in Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool

The City has investments in the Wisconsin local government investment poo! of $11,286,695 at year-end.
The Wisconsin local government investment poot (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund (SIF), and is
managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF
reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw
their funds in total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2012, the fair value of the City's share of the
LGIP's assets was substantially equat to the carrying value.

Restrict sh & investmen

Restricted cash and investments of the Wastewater Ultility totaled $150,000 on December 31, 2012, and
is held for capital asset replacement. Restricted cash and investments of the Debt Service fund totaled
$404,507 on December 31, 2012, and is held for debt retirement.

Property Taxes

Property taxes consist of taxes on real estate and personal property. They are levied during December of
the prior year and become an enforceable fien on property the following January 1. Property taxes are
payable in various options depending on the type and amount. Personal property taxes are payable on or
before January 31 in full. Real estate taxes are payabie in full by January 31 or in two equal installments
on or before January 31 and July 31. Real estate taxes not paid by January 31 are purchased by the
County as part of the February tax settlement. Delinquent personal property taxes remain the collection
responsibility of the City.

The City bills and collects its own property taxes and also levies and collects taxes for the School District
of De Pere, West De Pere Schooi District, Brown County and the State of Wisconsin. The Brown County
Treasurer collects property taxes billed by the City in accordance with a contract between the County and
the City.

Due From Other Governments

On December 31, 2007, the City of De Pere sold its wastewater treatment facility to the Green Bay
Metropolitan Sewerage District (GBMSD). As part of the sale, the City received a 20 year non-interest
bearing note from the GBMSD in the amount of $3,209,700 payable to the City in annual installments of
$160,485. The balance of the note receivable at December 31, 2012 was $2,407,275.

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

4. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Beginning ] l Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 8268479 § - - $ 8268479
Construction in progress - 3,222,635 - 3,222 635
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 8,268,479 3,222,635 - 11,491,114
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 2,345,040 112,500 - 2,457,540
Buildings and improvements 11,307,507 - - 11,307,507
Machinery and equipment 2,613,538 28,780 - 2,643,318
Vehicles 7,205,356 257,971 225,154 7,238,173
Infrastructure 68,175,441 1,742,000 2,592,589 67,324,852
Subtotals 91,646,882 2,142,251 2,817,743 90,971,380
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 1,949,947 50,035 - 1,999,982
Buildings and improvements 5,719,671 287.826 - 6,007,497
Machinery and equipment 1,625,794 171,718 - 1,797,513
Vehicles 4,984,898 540,482 207,392 5,317,988
Infrastructure 25,646,575 1,627,078 2,579,172 24,594 481
Subtotals 39,926,885 2,577,140 2,786,564 39,717,461
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 51,719,997 (434,889) 31,179 51,253,929
Governmental activities capital
assets, net $ 50988476 § 2787746 % 31,179 62,745,043

Less related long-term debt outstanding

31,939,430

Net i it in capital t $ 30805613
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 53,207 § - $ - $ 53,207
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 539,471 - - 539,471
Machinery and equipment 4,062,946 258,035 3,122 4,317,859
Infrastructure 54,483,999 2,034,159 505,926 56,012,232
Subtotals 59,086,416 2,292,194 509,048 60,868,562
Less accumulated depreciation: 18,808,376 1,224 583 509,048 19,623,911
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 40,278 040 1,067,611 - 41,345,651
Business-type activities capital
assets, net g 40,331,247 $ 1 067611 $ - 41,398,858

Less related iong-term debt outstanding

Net investment in capital assets

2,900,000

$ 38498858
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NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the City as foilows:

Governmental activities

General government $ 40,910
Public safety 196,575
Public works 2,060,466
Culture and recreation 279,189
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities g 2!577|140
Business-type activities
Water utility $ 420,528
Wastewater utility 485,718
Stormwater utility 308,336
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities g 1!224|583
interfund Receivable, Payables, and Transfers

Interfund receivables and payables between individuat funds of the City, as reported in the fund financial
statements, as of December 31, 2012 are detailed below:

Interfund Interfund
Receivables | Payables

Temporary Advance
General Fund $ 60,000 $ -
Internal Service Funds
Heaith Self Insurance - 50,000
Dentat Self Insurance - 10,000
Temporary Cash Advances to Finance Operating Cash
Deficits of Other Funds
General Fund 1,434,192 -
Special Revenue Fund
Public Land Acquisition - 23,996
Riverwalk Pier - 247,938
Enterprise funds
Wastewater Treatment Plant Utility - 365,465
Wastewater Utility - 796,792
Totals $ 1494192 $ 1494192

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2012 were as follows:

Transfer to;
General Debt Public
Fund Service Improvements{ TID No. 5 Totat
Transfers from:
Public Improvements $ - $ 300,000 $ - 8 - $ 300,000
Public Land Acquisition 75,000 - - - 75,000
Cable Access 248,128 - - - 248,128
Capital Equipment 325,000 - 120,995 - 445,985
TID No. 5 - 1,180,440 - - 1,190,440
TiD No. 6 - 1,300,505 - 500,000 1,800,505
Water utiiity 432,603 - - - 432,603
Wastewater Utility 268,175 - - - 269,175

$.1.348906 § 2790945 § 120995 §$ _ 500,000 $ 4761846

Transfers are made in accordance with annual budgets.

. Long-term Obligations

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations of the City for the year ended
December 31, 2012:

Ouitstanding I I I Outstanding | Due Within |
1/1/12 Issued Ratired 12/31/12 One Year

Governmental activities:
Generail Obligation Debt

Bonds $ 19,680,000 $ 2,980,000 $ 1,345000 $ 21,315,000 $ 1,815,000

Taxable Bonds 1,765,000 2,850,000 25,000 4,580,000 25,000

Notes 8.960,000 - 1,610,000 5,350,000 1,255,000

Taxable Notes 660,000 . 30,000 630,000 30,000

Total General Obligation Debt 28,065,000 5,830,000 3,010,000 31,885,000 3,125,000
Capital lease payable 45,521 80,621 71,712 54,430 54,430
Comp d ab 1,776,663 - 148,075 1,628,588 -
Governmental activities

Long-term obligations $.30887,184 § 5910621 § 3229787 § 33,568,018 § 3,179,430
Business-type activities:
Water utfiity revenue bonds $ 3,165000 $ - $ 265000 $ 2,800,000 $ 275,000
Compensated absences 205,652 - 23,236 182,416 -
Business-type activities

Long-term obligations $ 3370852 § - $,...288236 $ 3082416 $ 275000

Total interest paid during the year on long-term debt totaled $1,225,473.
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NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

General Obligation Debt
General obligation debt currently outstanding is detailed as follows:

Bonds
$1,505,000 issued 4/01/03; $60,000 to $120,000 due annually through 2023;
interest 5.20% $ 1,005,000
$1,790,000 issued 7/01/03; $75,000 to $125,000 due annually through 2023;
interest 2.0% to 4.0% 1,140,000
$1.115,000 issued 7/01/03; $70,000 to $105,000 due annually through 2018;
interest 3.25% to 4.75% 550,000
$4,815,000 issued 3/25/04; $175,000 to $220,000 due annually through 2016;
interest 2.0% to 4.0% 830,000
$3,605,000 issued 3/25/04; $285,000 to $400,000 due annually through 2019;
interest 3.25% to 4% 2,445,000
$2,650,000 issued 8/1/05; $25,000 to $265,000 due annually through 2024;
interest 3.5% to 4.15% 2,550,000
$4,050,000 issued 6/15/06; $165.000 to $315,000 due annually through 2025;
interest 4.03% 3,165,000
$2,020,000 issued 11/7/07; $80,000 to $155,000 due annually through 2026;
interest 4.05% 1,635,000
$1,000,000 issued 8/1/08; $40,000 to $75,000 due annually through 2027;
interest 4.25% 855,000
$2,270,000 issued 8/1/08; $45,000 to $255,000 due annually through 2027;
interest 4.55% 2,170,000
$2,245,000 issued 8/15/11; $180,000 to $255,000 due annually through 2025;
interest 0.50% to 3.45% 1,990,000
$2,980,000 issued 8/20/2012; $150,000 to $400,000 due annually through 2027;
interest 0.50% to 2.40% 2,980,000
Total Bonds 21,315,000
Taxable Bonds
$1,875,000 issued 5/12/09; $85,000 to $155,000 due annuatly through 2028;
interest 2.0% to 5.625% 1,740,000
$2,850,000 issued 98/20/2012; $50,000 to $235,000 due annually through 2031;
interest 0.85% to 3.90% 2,850,000
Total Taxable Bonds 4,580,000
Notes
$1,680,000 issued 3/25/04; $190,000 to $210,000 due annually through 2013;
interest 1.2% to 3.4% 210,000
$2,375,000 issued 8/1/05; $140,000 to $370,000 due annually through 2015;
interest 3.80% to 5.0% 835,000
$1,220,000 issued 8/1/08; $125,000 to $155,000 due annually through 2017;
interest 3.43% 725,000
$2,985,000 issued 10/28/10; $205,000 to $360,000 due annually through 2020;
interest 1.50% to 3.0% 2,445,000
$1,565,000 issued 8/15/11; $80,000 to $430,000 due annually through 2020;
interest 2.0% to 2.70% 1,135,000
Total Notes 5,350,000
Taxabie Notes
$800,000 issued 5/12/09; $30,000 to $130,000 due annually through 2018;
interest 2.0% to 4.75% 630,000

Total General Obligation Debt 3 31885000

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Annual principal and interest maturities of the outstanding general obligation debt of $31,885,000 on
December 31, 2012 are detailed below:

Year Ended Governmental Activities
December 31 Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 3125000 $ 1036553 $ 4,161,553
2014 2,975,000 938,515 3,814,515
2015 3,030,000 850,373 3,880,373
2016 2,810,000 761,491 3,571,491
2017 2,555,000 671,180 3,226,180

2018-2022 8,930,000 2,191,899 12,121,899

2023-2027 6,705,000 664,375 7.369,375

2028-2031 756,000 8,719 763,719

$_ 31885000 § 7.124.105 § 39,009,105

For governmental activities, the other long-term liabilities are generally funded by the general fund.

Build America Bonds

The taxable general obligation bonds and notes issued on May 12, 2009 totaling $1,875,000 qualify as
Build America Bonds, as described in Section 54AA of the Internal Revenue Code. The interest on the
debt is taxable as set forth in the regulations. The City is eligible to receive a 35% subsidy of the annual
interest payment from the Federal government. In order to receive this subsidy it is necessary for the City
to file a claim form annually.

Legal Margin for New Debt
The City’s legal margin for creation of additional general obligation debt on December 31, 2012 was
$55,194,706 as follows:

Equalized valuation of the City $ 1,733,547,000
Statutory limitation percentage (X} 5%
General obligation debt limitation, per Section 67.03 of the

Wisconsin Statutes 86,677,350
Total outstanding generat obfigation debt applicabie to debt limitation $ 31,885,000
Less: Funds heid in debt service fund for retirement of general

obligation debt 402,356 31,482,644
Legal Margin for New Debt 3 55194706
Capital | ease

The City has entered into various capital leases for vehicles and equipment. The future payments
required under the terms of the leases are as foliows:

|Year Ending December 31, I Amount ]
2013 $ 57,445
Less: Amount representing interest 3015
Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments 3 54.430
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NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Water Utility Revenue Bonds
Water Utility Revenue Bonds outstanding on December 31, 2012 totaled $2,900,000 and is composed of
the following issue:

$4,395,000 issued 3/7/07; $245,000 to $370,000 due annually through 2021;
interest 3.810%

$_2.900,000

Annual principal and interest maturities of the outstanding water utility revenue bonds of $2,800,000 on
December 31, 2012 are detailed beiow:

Business-! Activities

Due Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 275,000 $ 110,490 $ 385,490

2014 285,000 100,013 385,013

2015 300,000 89,154 389,154

2016 310,000 77,724 387,724

2017 320,000 65,913 385,913
2018-2021 1,410,000 136,588 1,546,588

$ 2900000 8 579882 § _ 3479882

Water Utility Revenues Pledged

The City has pledged future water customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay the
water system revenue bonds. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the construction or
acquisition of capital assets used with the utility. The bonds are payable through 2021. The total
principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $3,479,882. Principal and interest paid for the
current year and total customer net revenues were $385,587 and $1,730,651, respectively.

Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, portions of governmental fund balances are committed by County Board
action. At December 31, 2012, fund balance was committed as follows:

General Fund
Committed for subsequent years' expenditures
Elections-backup voting machine $ 6,100
Police - radio outlay 22,291
Police - community policing 2,137
Police - training 2,827
Fire/Rescue - sirens 8,750
Fire/Rescue - copy machine 1,392
Fire/Rescue - ACT 102 4,569
Fire/Rescue - EOC 2,168
Fire/Rescue - fire prevention 2,720
Public works- machinery and equipment-fuel system 13,962
Community center - outdoor light fixtures 2,500
Swimming pools - ADA lifts 8,670
Economic development - consulting - Main St. baseline 8,144
GIS - consulting for DIME consortium project 8,205

GIS - backup/ LIDAR software 4,191

Totat $ 98.626

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Special Revenue Funds
Committed for subsequent years' expenditures

Cable access $ 41,843

Dog park 13,728

Riverwalk Pier 1,931
Total S__ S50

Capital Projects Funds
Committed for capital outlay

Public improvements $ 823,335
Capital equipment 399,416
Community center 3,191
Police/Fire expansion 2,932
Total g 1 !228 I874

Minimum Fund Balance Policy

The City Council has adopted a policy that fund balance in the amount of 25% of the ensuing year's
budgeted general fund expenditures be maintained for cash flow and working capital purposes. The
minimum fund balance amount is calculated as follows:

Budgeted 2013 General Fund Expenditures $ 15,709,119
Minimum Fund Balance % {x) 25%
Minimum Fund Balance Amount $ 3,927,280

The City's unassigned general fund balance of $5,069,148 is above the range of the minimum fund
balance amount.

NOTE D - OTHER INFORMATION

1.

Retirement Commitments

All eligible City empioyees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer, defined benefit, public employee retirement system. All employees, initially employed
by a participating WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011, expected to work at least 600 hours a year (440
hours for teachers and school district educational support employees) and expected to be employed for at
least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. All employees, initially
employed by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at least 1200
hours a year (880 hours for teachers and school district educational support employees) and expected to
be empioyed for at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS.
Employees hired to work nine or ten months per year, (e.g. teachers contracts), but expected to return
year after year are considered to have met the one-year requirement.

Prior to June 28, 2011, covered employees in the General/Teacher/Educational Support Personnel
category were required by statute to contribute 6.5% of their salary (3.9% for Executives and Elected
Officials, 5.8% for Protective Occupations with Social Security, and 4.8% for Protective Occupations
without Social Security) to the plan. Employers could make these contributions to the plan on behalf of
employees. Employers were required to contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to fund
the remaining projected cost of future benefits.
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Effective the first day of the first pay period on or after June 29, 2011 the employee required contribution
was changed to one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for Genera! category employees,
including Teachers, and Executives and Elected Officials. Required contributions for protective
employees are the same rate as general employees. Employers are required to contribute the remainder
of the actuarially determined contribution rate. The employer may not pay the employee required
contribution unless provided for by an existing collective bargaining agreement. Contribution rates are as
follows:

2012
Employee Employer
General (including Teachers) 5.9% 5.9%
Executives & Elected Officials 7.05% 7.05%
Protective with Social Security 5.9% 9.0%
Protective without Social Security 5.9% 11.3%

The payroll for City employees covered by the WRS for the year ended December 31, 2012 was
$8,555,923; the employer's total payroll was $9,221,028. The total required contribution for the year
ended December 31, 2012 was $1,188,405, which consisted of $684,606 or 8.0% of covered payroll from
the employer, and $504,798, or 5.9% of covered payroll from employses. Total contributions for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were $1,198,812 and $1,087,583, respectively, equal to the
required contributions for each year.

Employees who retire at or after age 65 (62 for elected officials and 54 for protective occupation
employees with less than 25 years of service, 53 for protective occupation employees with more than 25
years of service) are entitled to receive a retirement benefit. Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for
protective occupation employees) and receive actuarially reduced benefits. The factors influencing the
benefit are: (1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a formula factor. A final
average earnings is the average of the employee’s three highest year's earnings. Employees terminating
covered employment and submitting application before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may
withdraw their contributions and, by doing so, forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefit. For employees
beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively employed on or after April 24,
1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a retirement annuity.
Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998 and prior to July 1, 2011 are
immediately vested. Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011 must have
five years of creditable service to be vested.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility and the amount of all
benefits are determined under Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Statutes.

The WRS issues an annual financial report that may be obtained by writing to the Department of
Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7931, Madison, W1 53707-7931.

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
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2. Risk Management
The City has purchased commercial insurance policies for various risks of loss related to torts; theft,
damage or destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; or acts of God. Payments of
premiums for these policies are recorded as expenditures or expenses in various funds of the City.
In addition to the above, the City has established two separate internal service funds for risk management
programs to finance employees' heaith and employees’ dental claims. The risk management programs are
funded by charges to City departments and employees. For 2012, the health insurance program had stop
loss health insurance coverage commencing at $75,000 per individuat claim and $2,297,823 for the
aggregate of claims. Fund expenses consist of payments to a third-party administrator for medical and
dental claims, stop loss insurance premiums and administrative fees. Settlements have not exceeded
insurance coverage for each of the past three years. On December 31, 2012, the health self-insurance fund
had a net position balance of $778,768, while the dental self-insurance fund had unrestricted net position
balance of $43,492. Claim liabilities at year-end are recorded based on actual claim payments reported at
year-end and paid after the balance sheet date of December 31 up to the date of preparing the financial
statements. The City does not report an estimated liability for claims incurred but not reported. Changes in
each fund's claims liability amount for 2011 and 2012 follow:
2011
Liability Current Year Claim J Liability
January 1 Ciaims Payments December 31
Health $ 332278 $§ 2792998 3 2,884,367 $ 240,808
Dental 3,256 125,024 126,463 1,817
Total $ 335534 § 2918022 §$ 3010830 % 242,726
2012
Liability Current Year Claim Liability
January 1 Claims Payments December 31
Health $ 240909 $ 2181311 $ 2,200258 §$ 131,862
Dental 1,817 102,178 94,448 9,547
Total $.. 242726 $ 2283480 $ 2364706 % 141,509
3. Tax Incremental Districts

The City maintains capital projects funds for six Tax Incremental Districts (TID) created in accordance with
Section 66.1105 of the Wisconsin Statutes. At the time the Districts were created, the property tax base
within each District was “frozen" and increment taxes resulting from increases to the property tax base are
used to finance District improvements, including principal and interest on long-term debt issued by the City
to finance such improvements. The Statutes aliow eligible project costs to be incurred up to five years prior
to the maximum termination date. All six of the City's Districts are still eligible to incur project costs.
Accordingly, the Districts are accounted for in capital projects funds.
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A summary of pertinent financial information for the City’s TID Districts on December 31, 2012 follows:

| _TIDNo.5 | TIDNo.6 | TIDNo.7 | TIDNo.8 | TIDNo.9 | TIDNo. 10 }

Creation date 1/1/1996 1/1/1998 1/1/2007 11112007 11172012 11112012
Termination date 12/31/2023  12/31/2021  12/33/2033  12/31/2027 12/31/2039  12/31/2032
Tax increment property tax

revenues for 2012 $ 944,175 $1,452209 § 179998 § - 8 - 8 -
Net unreimbursed project

costs due City 7,073,509 478,404 1,731,376 762,679 15,316 136,285

Unless terminated by the City prior thereto, the Districts will statutorily terminate on their termination dates.

Water Purchase Contract with Central Brown County Water Authority
The City of De Pere is a Charter Member of the Central Brown County Water Authority with five other

Brown County communities. The Authority was formed under Wisconsin Statutes in 1998 to provide a
long-term solution to water quantity and quality concerns. In 2004, the Authority entered into a contract to
purchase Lake Michigan water from the City of Manitowoc. In 2007, the Authority completed construction
of a 30 mile water transmission main from the City of Manitowoc and a 35 mile long spoke transmission
system to distribute the water to its individual members. To provide funds to complete construction
projects, the Authority issued $136,625,000 of revenue bonds in June of 2005.

Each Charter Member has entered into a water purchase contract under which they agree to purchase
wholesale water from the Authority. Rates charged to each member are billed monthly and are based on
(1) operation and maintenance costs, (2) fixed costs, including debt service on the revenue bonds and (3)
required Security Fund deposits. During 2012 the City paid the Authority $3,632,732 in accordance with
the water purchase contract.

The contract requires each Charter Member to purchase water through 2040 or when the revenue bonds
are refired, whichever is sooner. The contract also requires the members to fund the revenue bond
Security Fund to provide additionat funds for Authority debt service if sufficient funds are not available
from the monthly billings.

Contingencies

From time to time, the City is party to other various pending ciaims and legal proceedings. Aithough the
outcome of such matters cannot be forecast with certainty, it Is the opinion of management and the City
Attorney that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material adverse
effect on the City's financlal position or results of operations.

Property Tax Levy Limit

Wisconsin state statutes provide for a limit on the property tax levies for all Wisconsin cities, towns and
counties. For the 2012 and 2013 budget years, the increase in the maximum allowable tax levy is limited
to the greater of the percentage change in the City's January 1 equalized value as a result of net new
construction or 3.0% per year. The actual limit for the City for the 2012 budget was .94%. The actual
limit for the City for the 2013 budget was 1.12%. Debt service for debt authorized after July 1, 2005 is
exempt from the levy limit. In addition, Wisconsin statutes allow the limit to be adjusted for the increase in
debt service autharized prior to July 1, 2005 and in certain other situations.

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
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NOTE D - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

7.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle
The City has adopted GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,

which requires debt issuance costs to be expensed in the period incurred, rather than recorded as assets
and amortized over the life of the related debt issue. The cumulative effect of this change was to
decrease the December 31, 2012 net position of the governmental activities by $233,218.
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Detailed Comparison of Budgeted and Actual Revenues
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance
Final Budget -
Budget Positive
Original__ | Final Actual {Negative)
Taxes
General property $ 7694839 $ 7,694,839 7,703,147 $ 8,308
Mobile home 7,000 7,000 7.023 23
Sales tax 120 120 - (120)
Room tax 5,400 5,400 6,098 698
Payments in lieu of taxes 2,500 2,500 1,395 (1,105)
Housing authority 28,000 28,000 25,512 {2,488)
Interest and penalties 1,100 1,100 2,626 1,526
Interest and penaities on special assessments 3,100 3,100 52,515 48,415
Total Taxes 7,742,059 7,742,058 7,798,316 56,257
Intergovemmental
Law enforcement training 5,800 5,800 13,503 7,703
State shared taxes 1,420,224 1,420,224 1,420,304 80
Exempt computer aid 140,193 140,193 92,130 {48,063)
Fire insurance 58,800 58,800 64,958 6,058
Rescue squad 7,756 7,756 7.304 (452)
Transportation 1,034,376 1,034,378 1,034,376 -
Mass transit 294,790 294,790 294,790 -
Public health 49,000 49,000 45,055 (3,945)
Recycling 91,000 91,000 97,855 6,855
Other 3.500 3,500 210,529 207,029
Tota! Intergovernmental 3,105,539 3,105,539 3,280,804 175,265
Licenses and Permits
Licenses
Liquor and malt beverages 35,000 35,000 33,490 (1.510)
Operators 8,700 8,700 28,197 19,497
Cigarette 2,000 2,000 2,100 100
Food and beverage 50,000 50,000 52,664 2,664
DATCP licensing 12,000 12,000 13,357 1,357
Cable television 136,000 136,000 162,810 26,810
Electrical contractors 8,650 6,650 5,625 (1,025)
Traller park 100 100 100 -
3,500 3,500 3,333 (167)
Other licenses/permits 3,500 3,500 4,853 1,353
Permits
Construction - - 480 480
Electrical and plumbing 60,000 60,000 76,879 16,879
Sanitary sewer 6,000 6,000 3,625 {2,375)
Zoning and inspection 117.900 117,900 157,702 39,802
Total Licenses and Permits 441,350 441,350 545,215 103,865

{Continued)

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

General Fund

Detailed Comparison of Budgeted and Actual Revenues (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Fines and Forfeits
Court forfeitures and costs
Parking violations
Total Fines and Forfeits

Public Charges for Services
General government
Police
Alarm monitoring fees
Ambulance
Streets
Snow removal
Parking rentals
Weed cutting
Recycling
Public health
Community center
Swimming pools
Parks
Recreation
Concession sales
Total Public Charges for Services

Intergovernmental Charges for Services
General government
Public safety
Public works
Total Intergovernmental Charges for Services

Miscellaneous
investment income
Donations
Sale of assets

Sale of City property
Salvage products
Rental income
Department revenue
Other
Total Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Variance
Final Budget -

Budget Positive
Original | Final Actual (Negative

250,000 250,000 210,265 {39,735)
25,000 25,000 23,373 {1,627}
275,000 275,000 233,638 (41.362)
27.200 27,200 29,582 2,382
17,160 17,160 5,325 (11,835)
15,000 15,000 3,625 (11,375)
672,000 672,000 724,678 52,678
54,500 54,500 81,918 27,418
5,000 5,000 8,201 3,201
18,000 18,000 - {18,000)
- - 575 575
1.000 1,000 4,052 3,052
13,600 13,600 8,646 (4,954)
225,420 225,420 249,747 24,327
123,000 123,000 107,951 (15,049)
8,200 8,200 13,228 5,028
91,700 91,700 147,600 55,800
-~ - 24,538 24,538
1,271,780 1,271,780 1,409,666 137,886
131,900 131,900 107,554 (24,346}
263,563 263,563 281,461 17.898
441,400 441,400 467,453 28,053
836,863 836,863 856,468 19,605
275,000 275,000 107,442 {167,558)
500 500 - {500)
216,500 216,500 66,930 (149,570)
- - 10,086 10,086
118,422 118,422 87275 (31,147)
- - 3.231 3,231
500 500 813 313
610,922 610,922 275,777 (335,145)
g 14!283|513 $ 14&83 513 $ 14.399!884 $ 116!371
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CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
General Fund

Detailed Comparison of Budgeted and Actual Expenditures
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

General Government
Councit
Council outlay
Municipal court
Mayor
Administrator
Administrator outlay
Clerk/treasurer
Elections
Elections outlay
Assessment of property
Accounting and finance
Data processing
Personnel and insurance
Legal
Legal outlay
City hall
City hall outlay
Other general government
Total General Government

Public Safety
Police department
Police department outlay
Traffic control
Fire/ambulance department
Fire/ambulance department outlay
Building and electrical
Jail
Total Public Safety

Public Works
Street machinery repair
Street machinery repair outiay
Municipal service center
Municipal service center outlay
Mechanics
Mechanics outlay
Administration
Engineer
Engineer outlay
Street maintenance
Brush pickup
Weed cutting
Snow and ice control

(Continued)

Variance
Final Budget - |
Budget Positive
Original | Final Actual (Negative)
$ 82,530 § 82,530 $ 76973 § 5,557
3,000 3,000 3.000 -
88,703 88,703 89,639 (936)
36,929 36,929 34,309 2,620
125,119 125,118 114,364 10,756
450 450 450 -
238,946 238,948 216,717 22,229
71,500 71,500 83,772 (12,272)
13,250 13,250 35 13,215
58,272 58,272 56,971 1,301
106,241 106,241 106,785 (544)
112,098 112,998 140,550 (27,552)
174,393 174,393 161,963 12,430
163,704 163,704 165,316 8,388
500 500 498 2
101,500 101,500 111,081 {9,581)
10,000 10,000 8,787 1,213
397,700 387,700 269,562 128,138
1,785,735 1,785,735 1,630,772 154,963
4,038,931 4,038,931 3,911,585 127,346
180,000 180,000 207,342 (27,342)
90,939 90,939 78,785 12,174
3,227,873 3,227,873 3,308,142 {80,268)
169,000 168,000 286,596 (117,598)
243,583 243,563 245,630 (2,067)
15,060 15,060 14,600 460
7,965,366 7,965,366 8,052,660 (87,294}
125,140 125,140 111,489 13,651
15,891 15,891 476 15,415
113,856 113,856 96,616 17,240
48,000 48,000 50,569 {2,569)
204,476 204,476 190,571 13,905
6,850 6,850 4,972 1,878
143,636 143,636 143,653 (7N
369,306 369,306 371,531 (2,225)
7,700 7.700 5,790 1,910
134,592 134,592 126,380 8,212
97,493 97,493 85,160 12,333
4,709 4,709 2,607 2,102
259,427 258,427 171,815 87,612

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
General Fund

Detailed Comparison of Budgeted and Actual Expenditures (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Public Works (Continued)
Traffic signs and markings
Traffic lights
Street fighting
Transit system
Total Public Works

Sanitation
Garbage and refuse collection
Landfill waste disposal
Recycling
Total Sanitation

Health and Human Services
Nurse
Board of health
Total Health and Human Services

Culture and Recreation
Community center
Community center outiay
Special events and celebrations
Park and recreation administration
Recreation
Swimming pools
Swimming pools outlay
Parks
Parks outlay
Parks equipment maintenance
Boat ramps
Boat ramps outlay
Forestry
Historical society
Total Culture and Recreation

Conservation and Development
Economic development

Total Expenditures

Variance
Final Budget -
Budget Positive
Original | Final Actual {Negative}
143,218 143,218 143,686 (468)
40,589 40,589 44,184 (3,595)
435,898 435,898 407,951 27,947
441,996 441,996 452,005 (10,009)
2,592,777 2,592,777 2,400,455 183,322
270,490 270,490 280,035 (9.545)
180,000 160,000 162,529 (2,529)
110,830 110,830 110,809 21
541,320 541,320 553,373 {12,053}
422,835 422,835 332,690 90,145
1,920 1,920 1,647 273
424,755 424,755 334,337 90,418
521,267 521,267 479,481 41,806
10,950 10,950 8,450 2,500
10,819 10,819 9,029 1,790
184,243 184,243 197,006 (12,763)
279,920 279,920 216,377 63,543
260,837 260,837 226,343 34,494
27,000 27,000 15,010 11,990
369,889 369,889 445,233 (75,344)
85,000 85,000 89,613 {4,613)
63,585 63,585 87,257 (23,672)
21,268 21,268 17,897 3,371
- - 36 (36)
203,568 203,568 188,124 15,444
10,445 10,445 5,830 4,815
2,048,791 2,048,791 1,985,666 83,125
222,897 222,897 211,220 11,677
15,681,641 15,581,641 15,177,483 404,158
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CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2012

Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds
Total Special Total Capital Total
Development | Public Land Revenue Capital | Community | Police/Fire Projects | Governmenta!
Loan Prog A Cable Access| Dog Park Funds Equi Center |Expansion] TIDNo.5 | TIDNo6 | TIDNo.7 TID No.8 TIDNo.g {TiD No. 18] Funds Furds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 821462 §$ - s 16,144 § 13728 § 951,334 $309565 $§ 3,191 § 2032 § 452,211 $1,011,703 $1,349,899 $ 2,689,784 $ 651,084 $359,600 $6,919,969 $ 7,871,303
Receivabies :
Taxes - - - - - 500,000 - - 902,580 1,443,260 - - - - 2,845,840 2,845,840
Accounts - 75,535 28,276 - 103,811 - - - - - - - - - - 103,811
Loans 885,781 - - - 885,781 hd - bt - - - - - - - 885,781
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1807243 $ 75535 $ 44420 $ _ 13728 $ 1940026 $899565 $ 3101 § 2032 $1354791 $2454963 $1340800 § 2689784 § 651,084 $359.600 $0.765,808 $11,706.735

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - 8 256 $ 2,351 § - 8 2,607 $ 149 § - 8 - 3 - 8 -3 - $§ 18828 § 1400 § 885 § 21263 § 23870
Accrued and other current liabilities - - 226 - 228 - - - - - - - - - - 226
Due to other funds - 23,998 - - 23,996 - b - b - - - - - - 23,996
Total Liabilities - 24,252 2,577 - 26,829 149 - - - - - 18,829 1,400 885 21,263 48,092
Deferred inflows of Resources
Property taxes - - - - - 500,000 - - 902,580 1,443,260 - - - - 2.845,840 2,845,840
Loans receivable 885,781 - - - 885,781 - - : - - - - - - - 885,781
Totai Deferred Infiows of Resources 885,781 - - - 885,781 500,000 - - 902,580 1,443,260 - - - - 2,845,840 3,731,621
Fund Balances
Restricted for
Loans 921,482 - - - 921,462 - - - - - - - - - - 921,462
Park land acquisition - 51,283 - - 51,283 - - - - - - - - - - 51,283
Capital outiay - - - - - - - - 452,211 1,011,703 1,349,898 2,670,955 649,684 358,715 6,483,167 6,493,167
Committed for
years' i - - 41,843 13,728 55,571 - - - - - - - - - - 55,571
Capita outiay . - - - - 368,416 3,191 2,932 - - - - - - 405,638 405,539
Total Fund Balances 921,462 51,283 41,843 13,728 1,028,318 399,418 3,191 2,932 452,211 1,011,703 1,349,809 2,870,955 649,684 358,715 6,898,706 7,927,022

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES $ 1807243 § 75535 $ 44420 § 13728 $ 1940026 $ 890565 § 3191 8 2032 $1354701 $2454963 $1.340.860 $ 2680784 $651,084 $350600 $8765809 §11,706735
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CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

St

of R

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmentat
Licenses and permits
Public charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current
Culture and recreation
Conservation and development
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charges
Capital outiay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Long-term debt issued
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - January 1

Fund Balances - December 31

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Special Revenue Funds
Total Special
Development | Public Land Revenue
Loan Prog Acqui Cable Accessj Dog Park Funds
H - 3 - 3 - $ - $ -
- - 118,852 - 118,852
- 10,000 - - 10.000
477,944 3,000 - 5,202 486,146
477,944 13,000 118,852 5.202 614,998
- - 83,039 348 83,387
350,120 - 8,508 - 358,625
- 28,245 280 - 28,525
350,120 28,245 91,824 348 470,537
127,824 {15,245} 27,028 4,854 144,481
- {75,000} {248,128) - {323,128)
- {75,000) {248,128) - {323,128)
127,824 {90,245) {221,100} 4,854 {178,867)
793,638 141,528 262,943 8,874 1,206,983
$ 921 l462 $ 51,283 § 41.h843 $ 13!728 $ 1 !ozsi:ne

Capital Projects Funds
Total Capital
Capital  {Community{ Police/Fire Projects
Equipment Center | Expansion] TID No.5 TID No.6 TID No.7 TIDNo.8 | TIDNo.g {TID No. 10 Funds Total
$ 400000 $ - § - $ 944175 $1,452209 $ 179998 § - 8 -8 - $2,976,382 $2,976,382
- - - 6,861 6,088 717 273,744 - - 287,410 287,410
- - . - - - - - - - 118,852
- - - - - - - - - - 10,000
101,896 - - 3,789 447,694 - - - - 553,378 1,038,525
501,896 - - 954,825 1,905,991 180,715 273,744 - - 3,817,171 4,432,169
- - - - - - - - - - 83,387
- - - - 547,926 2,101 778,810 16,316 136,285 1,480,437 1,839,062
- - - 150 - - 29,000 - - 28,150 29,150
201,544 - - 21,195 163,348 13,060 301,229 - - 700,378 728,901
201,544 - - 21,345 711,273 15,161 1,109,039 16,318 136,285 2,209,963 2,680,500
300,352 - - 933,480 1,184,718 165,554 (835,285)  (15,3168) (136,285) 1,607,208 1,751,668
- - - - - - 2,895,000 665000 495000 4,055000 4,055,000
- - - 500,000 - . - - - 500,000 500,000
{445,955) - - (1,190,440) (1,800,505) - - - - (3.436,900) (3,760,028)
{445,955) - - {690.440) {1,800,505) 2,895,000 665,000 485000 1,118,100 784,872
(145,603) - - 243,040 {605,787) 165,564 2,058,705 649,684 358,715  2,725308 2,546,641
545,019 3,191 2,932 208,171 1,617,490 1,184,345 611,250 - - 4,173,308 5,380,381
$ 398416 $ 3131 8 2932 3 452211 $1011,703 $1349899 $2670055 $640684 $358715 $6.898,706 $7.927,022
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ASSETS
Cash and investments

LIABILITIES
Accounts and claims payable
Due to other funds
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

Combining Statement of Net Position

Internal Service Funds
December 31, 2012

Health Self Dental Self
insurance Insurance Total
$ 960,730 § 63,039 $ 1,023,769
131,962 9,547 141,509
50,000 10,000 60,000
181,962 19,547 201,508
$ 778768 $ 43492 § 822260

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Operating Revenues
Charges for services

Operating Expenses
Claims and administrative fees

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenues
Interest income

Change in Net Position
Net Position - January 1

Net Position ~ December 31

Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Health Self | Dental Self ]
insurance insurance Total

$ 2830896 $ 127218 $ 2958115
2,585,602 108,709 2,695,311
245,294 17,510 262,804
189 - 189
245,483 17,510 262,993
633,285 25,982 558,267
$ 778768 $ 43492 § 822260
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CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internat Service Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

CITY OF DE PERE, WISCONSIN
Water Utility Enterprise Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Cash Fiows from Operating Activities
Cash received from interfund services provided
Cash payments to suppliers

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Fiows from Investing Activities
Investment income

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents - December 31

Recongiliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in current liabilities
Accounts and claims payable

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
None

Health Dental I
Self-Insurance | Self-Insurance Total Operating Revenues
Charges for Services
$ 283089 $ 127,219 § 2,958,115 Residential
{2,694,549) (101,979)  (2,796,528) Commercial
136,347 25,240 161,587 industrial
Public authorities
Public fire protection
189 - 189 Total Charges for Services
Other Operating Revenues
136,536 25,240 161,776 Forfeited discounts
Other water revenues
824 194 37,799 861,993 Total Other Operating Revenues
$ 960730 % 63030 § 1023769 Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Operation and Maintenance
Source of supply
$ 245294 $ 17,510 § 262,804 Pumping
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Customer accounts
(108,947} 7,730 {101,217} Administrative and general
Total Operation and Maintenance
$ 136,347 8 25240 $ 161587 ?:f:ciatnon
Total Operating Expenses
$ - $ -3 -

Operating income
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest income

interest and amortization expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
income Before Contributions and Transfers

Capital Contributions
Transfers out

Changes in Net Position
Net Position - January 1

Net Position - December 31

2012 2011 |

$ 2962830 $ 2,787,263

935,450 879,352
588,839 604,445
191,070 159,234

1,320,043 1,280,127
5,998,232 5,710,421

67,542 61,578
286,203 735,436
353,745 797,014

6,351,977 6,507,435

29,066 35,379
75,738 85,563
42,002 34,606
396,540 432,335
144,321 127,269

3,901,177 3,846,179
4,588,844 4,561,331
429,529 366,707
41,587 42,735
5,059,960 4,970,773

1,282,017 1,536,662

9,105 10,454
{119,746) (128,773)
{110,641) {119,319)

1,181,376 1,417,343

140,480 261,955
{432,603) {423,014)

889,263 1,256,284

18,627,132 __ 17,370,848

19,516,395 § 18,627,132




OFFICIAL BID FORM SALE DATE: July 16, 2013

TO:  Mr. Lawrence M. Delo, City Administrator
City of De Pere, Wisconsin
c/o Springsted Incorporated
380 Jackson Street, Suite 300
St. Paul, MN 55101-2887
Phone: (651) 223-3000
Fax: (651) 223-3046

RE: $5,745,000* General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A
For the Bonds of this Issue which shall mature and bear interest at the respective annual rates, as follow, we offer

a price of $ (which may not be less than $5,687,550) plus accrued interest, if any, to the
date of delivery.
Interest Dollar Interest Price Dollar

Year Rate (%) Yield (%) Price Year Rate (%) (% of Par) Price
2014 % % % 2022 % % %
2015 % % % 2023 % % %
2016 % % % 2024 % % %
2017 % % % 2025 % % %
2018 % % % 2026 % % %
2019 % % % 2027 % % %
2020 % % % 2028 % % %
2021 % % %

Designation of Term Maturities

Years of Term Maturities

* The City’s reserves the right, after proposals are opened and prior to award, to increase or reduce the principal amount of the Bonds or
the amount of any maturity in multiples of $5,000. In the event the amount of any maturity is modified, the aggregate purchase price will
be adjusted to result in the same gross spread per $1,000 of Bonds as that of the original proposal. Gross spread is the differential
between the price paid to the City for the new issue and the prices at which the securities are initially offered to the investing public.

In making this offer we accept all of the terms and conditions of the Terms of Offering published in the Official
Statement dated June 28, 2013. In the event of failure to deliver these Bonds in accordance with the
Official Terms of Offering as printed in the Official Statement and made a part hereof, we reserve the right to
withdraw our offer, whereupon the deposit accompanying it will be immediately returned. All blank spaces of this
offer are intentional and are not to be construed as an omission.

Subject to any applicable exemption in the Rule, this offer to purchase/bid is subject to the City’'s covenant and
agreement to take all steps necessary to assist us in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended.

Not as a part of our offer, the above quoted prices being controlling, but only as an aid for the verification of the
offer, we have made the following computations:

NET INTEREST COST: $

TRUE INTEREST RATE: %

The Bidder O will O will not purchase municipal bond insurance from

Account Members

Account Manager

The foregoing proposal has been accepted by the Issuer.

Attest:

Date:

SURE-BID Wire Transfer Good Faith Check Submitted



OFFICIAL BID FORM SALE DATE: July 16, 2013

TO:  Mr. Lawrence M. Delo, City Administrator
City of De Pere, Wisconsin
c/o Springsted Incorporated
380 Jackson Street, Suite 300
St. Paul, MN 55101-2887
Phone: (651) 223-3000
Fax: (651) 223-3046

RE: $2,610,000* Taxable General Obligation Community Development Bonds, Series 2013B

For the Bonds of this Issue which shall mature and bear interest at the respective annual rates, as follow, we offer

a price of $ (which may not be less than $2,578,680) plus accrued interest, if any, to the
date of delivery.
Interest Dollar Interest Price Dollar

Year Rate (%) Yield (%) Price Year Rate (%) (% of Par) Price
2014 % % % 2019 % % %
2015 % % % 2020 % % %
2016 % % % 2021 % % %
2017 % % % 2022 % % %
2018 % % % 2023 % % %

Designation of Term Maturities

Years of Term Maturities

*  The City reserves the right, after proposals are opened and prior to award, to increase or reduce the principal amount of
the Bonds or the amount of any maturity in multiples of $5,000. In the event the amount of any maturity is modified, the
aggregate purchase price will be adjusted to result in the same gross spread per $1,000 of Bonds as that of the original
proposal. Gross spread is the differential between the price paid to the City for the new issue and the prices at which the
securities are initially offered to the investing public.

In making this offer we accept all of the terms and conditions of the Terms of Offering published in the Official
Statement dated June 28, 2013. In the event of failure to deliver these Bonds in accordance with the
Official Terms of Offering as printed in the Official Statement and made a part hereof, we reserve the right to
withdraw our offer, whereupon the deposit accompanying it will be immediately returned. All blank spaces of this
offer are intentional and are not to be construed as an omission.

Subject to any applicable exemption in the Rule, this offer to purchase/bid is subject to the City’s covenant and
agreement to take all steps necessary to assist us in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended.

Not as a part of our offer, the above quoted prices being controlling, but only as an aid for the verification of the
offer, we have made the following computations:

NET INTEREST COST: $

TRUE INTEREST RATE: %

The Bidder O will O will not purchase municipal bond insurance from

Account Members

Account Manager

The foregoing proposal has been accepted by the Issuer.

Attest:

Date:

SURE-BID Wire Transfer Good Faith Check Submitted



RESOLUTION #13-93

AUTHORIZING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT
TO WJM ENTERPRISE LLC

WHEREAS, WIM Enterprise LLC has been granted a Reserve “Class B” Liquor License
for the premises to be known as Firehouse Bar & Grill, located at 338 Main Avenue; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to §7-2(£)(3), De Pere Municipal Code, applicants and holders of
Reserve “Class B” liquor licenses may apply for an Economic Development Grant from the City
of De Pere in an amount not to exceed $10,000; and

WHEREAS, the Finance/Personnel Committee haslreviewed such grant request from
WIM Enterprise LLC and recommends approval of the same; and

WHEREAS, the Firehouse Bar & Grill is tound to have economic benefits to the City of
De Pere which have resulted, or will result, directly from locating this licensed establishment in
the City of De Pere as follows:

1. Provision of desirable restaurant establishment for residents and visitors to the
greater De Pere arca;

2. Creating and sustaining employment opportunities for residents of De Pere;
and

3. Maintaining a destination point in De Pere and the benefits flowing therefrom.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED THAT:
Due to the economic benefits that will flow from the Firehouse Bar & Grill

located at 338 Main Avenue as referenced above, an Economic Development
Grant in the amount of $10,000 is hereby awarded to WJM Enterprise LLC.



Resolution #13-93
Page 2 of 2

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of De Pere, Wisconsin, this ﬂ day of July,

2013.
APPROVED:
Michael J. Walsh, Mayor
ATTEST:
Shana L. Defnet, Clerk-Treasurer
Ayes:

Nays:



CITY OF DE PERE

RESERVE CLASS B LICENSE
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
GRANT APPLICATION

INSTRUCTIONS: The City of De Pere offers an Economic Development grant of up to $10,000 for
Reserve “Class B” liquor licenses. Please fully complete the questionnaire below,
using additional sheets of paper as necessary. The City of De Pere must
determine that your new business will provide an economic benefit to the
City of De Pere in order to consider awarding you this grant, Therefore, you
should provide any and all information you can provide to support your request.

Name of Licensee: Name of Licensed Establishment:
Michael John Wilmet Firehouse Bar & Grill

Date of Grant Application: Date Reserve Class “B” License Granted:
June 28, 2013

ECONOMIC IMPACT INFORMATION

L Please provide specific information on how you will use the grant funds to create jobs and foster
the economic development of the City of De Pere, including listing the number of jobs you will
create now and an estimate of the number of jobs you to hope to create in the fufure.

« Business would require 2 part time cooks 6 part time beverage servers

e TFuture lunch add 1 part time cook 2 beveragé SErVers .

e Support local pha:itable events

e Provide for social gatheringé with food and local entertainment

2, Please provi de specific information as to all building improvements made or anticipated to be
made to the licensed premises, including the cost of the improvements. Please include cost
estimates for the improvement work.



5

. » Painting interior of building to give a fresh appearé.uce
e Building new in 2008 no further improvements needed

How much of the investment identified in %2 above would you have put into the property if the
Reserve Class B license was not issued to you? Please fully explain your reasons why.

No upfront cost. I grant was denied building would not be leased

Please provide a copy of your business plan. Also, list below your growth projections over the

next five (5) years.

J ExpenSes: Utilities, wages, inventory, rent.
e Start—up costs: buying beer and liquor, food and miscellaneous items
o Hours of operation Tuesday-Thursday 3:00pm. to 2:00am. Friday-Saturday 3:00pm.
1o 2:30am. Sunday 3:00pm to 2:00am. Closed Mondays
e Reserve funds available

Please list any other information you believe may be important to the City of De Pere in making
its grant determination. ‘

¢ Resident of the City of De Pere for 18 years

e Brown County Resident for 51 years

° Fireﬁghter/param'adic for Village of Allouez 28 years

¢ My children attended East De Pere school district

e My father worked at Nicolet paper for 45 years and also was native of West De Pere



Sigred; ?‘3 f 4’%}4

Date: &/929/_3

Please note:  This Apphcahon, once completed will be referred to the Finance/Personnel Committee
fot their review. The Committee’s recommendation will then. be forwarded to the

Common Council.

HiijdupontiForms\2012\Class & Lignor License Econ Develop Grant App-revised 6-25-12:doex



RESOLUTION #13-94

AUTHORIZING A SIDEWALK CAFE PERMIT FOR PUBHAUS AT 600 LLC

WHEREAS, the Pubhaus at 600 LI.C has requested a Sidewalk Café Permit from the
City to place bistro tables and chairs to accommodate outside customer seating within City right-
of-way in front of their business at 600 George Street, De Pere; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Public Works has reviewed such request and recommends its
approval.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED THAT:

The Sidewalk Café Permit, attached hereto and incorporated by reference as
Exhibit A, is hereby authorized and approved, and the Mayor and Clerk-Treasurer
are directed to execute the same.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT:

All City officials, officers, and employees are authorized and directed to take such
steps as are lawful and necessary in furtherance thereof.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of De Pere, Wisconsin, this 16™ day of

July, 2013.
APPROVED:
Michael J. Walsh, Mayor
ATTEST:
Shana L. Defnet, Clerk-Treasurer
Ayes:

Nays:



SIDEWALK CAFE PERMIT

Name and Address of Permittee: Pubhaus at 600 LLC

/o Bobbi Lee Schroeder
600 George Street
De Pere, WI 54311
Grantor: City of De Pere
Location of Encroachment: 600 George Street

See aftached Exhibit 1
Purpose of Encroachment: Outdoor Seating/Food Service (tables and chairs)

The purpose and occupancy of the public right-of-way referenced above as allowed by
this permit is conditioned upon Pubhaus at 600 LLC’s compliance with Wis. Stats. §66.0425,
and the following provisions:

1. Permit. City hereby authorizes and granis to Pubhaus at 600 LLC (“Permiitee™) a
Sidewalk Cafe Permit for that specific area Jescribed in the sketch attached hereto and
incorporated as Exhibit 1. Such Sidewalk Café Permit is subject to the following terms and
conditions:

a) The Sidewalk Café Permit granted hereunder shall be valid from July 1 through
Tune 30 of each year this permit is valid. Renewals of this permit may be
accomplished administratively through the City Administrator.

b) The permit granted under this Agreement authorizes tables and chairs (outdoor
seating) for food service within the area illustrated in Exhibit 1.

c) It is specifically understood and agreed by the parties that the City shall undertake
no responsibility for the maintenance of the permit area or the tables and chaits.
Permittee shall maintain the permit arca and all personal property thereon ina
neat and orderly manner, keeping it clean, free of noxious weeds, trash, and
debris. All personal property placed on the permit area by Permittee shall remain
the property of Permittee and the City shall not be held liable for any damage to
such personal property regardless of the cause of such damage.

d) All tables, chairs and other materials and equipment placed out on the sidewalk
for operation of the sidewalk cafe shall be removed from the site before the close
of business and not returned to the sidewalk area until the usual and customary
opening of the sidewalk cafe each day.

Exhibit A



e) Sale of Alcohol Beverages:

O Not Allowed
(i) No alcohol beverages may be sold or consumed in the sidewalk café
area.

O Allowed
(i) No alcohol beverages may be sold or consumed in the sidewalk café
area unless the City Council has made that area part of the liquor
licensed area.
(i) If the City Council has approved the sidewalk café area as part of the
liquor licensed area, Permittee agrees as follows:

(1) Violations of the requirements of this chapter ot Wis. Stats. ch. 125
may result in the gidewalk Café Permit issued hereunder and the
Class B premise permit expansion being repealed by the Common
Council in addition to other penalties provided under those
regulations.

(2) Alcohol beverages shall only be served to patrons of the
establishment by a server in the sidewalk café area. No carryout or
carry-in of alcohol beverages by a patron to and from the area of
the sidewalk café shall be permitted.

(3) Each sidewalk café serving alcohol beverages shall be responsible
for monitoring the area of the sidewalk café to ensure that
customers are of legal drinking age and that alcohol beverages are
not removed from the premises.

(4) The sale of alcohol beverages in sidewalk café arcas shall be
limited to the hours of 11:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. All alcohol shall
be removed from the sidewalk café area no later than 11:30 p.m.

) Adequate egress and ingress as determined by ADA standards along the sidewalk
café area subject to this permit s maintained at all times. The number of chairs
per bistro table shall not exceed two (2) and no chair may be placed along the
north side of the tables shown on Exhibit 1.

2. Insurance. Permittee shall supply to the City a certificate of general liability
insurance, naming the City as an additional insured for purposes of this Permit in an amount not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. Permittee shall save and hold City harmless from any and
all injury that may occur of be said to have occurred as a result of Permittee’s utilization of the
Sidewalk Cafe Permit issued under this Agreement. Such hold harmless agreement shall extend
to any injury to person or property involving any officers or agents of the parties hereto or any
third parties. A copy of the required certificate of insurance is attached and incorporated as
Exhibit 2.

Pubhaus at 600 LLC
Sidewalk Café Permit
Page 2 of 3



3. Revocation. The Permit granted hereunder may be revoked upon written or oral
notice of the Director of Public Works at any time with or without notice. The parties
acknowledge that the privileges granted by the permit hereunder constitute encroachments upon
public trust properties and may be let only under the condition that the use of such public space
does not interfere with public safety, access, aesthetics, or any other public purpose

4. Permit Not a Conveyance. 1t is specifically understood and agreed that in
granting the permit hereunder, no right or interest is granted in the ownership or continued use of
the property subject thereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto execute this agreement on this day of
, 2013,
PUBHAUS AT 600 LLC CITY OF DE PERE
Print Name: Michael J. Walsh, Mayor
Title:
Print Name: Shana L. Defnet, Clerk-Treasurer
Title:

H:\jdupentROP\Sidewalk Cafe\Pubhaus 7-13-164-003-13.docx

Pubhaus at 600 LLC
Sidewalk Café Permit
Page 3 of 3
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| . THEPU-1 OP ID: Mt.
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE BT

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER O
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY COR
BELCW. THIS GERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONT
REPRESENTATIVE OR PROBUGER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

F INFORMATION ONLY AND GONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
RACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: Ii the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the p
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain poll
certificate holder in Yieu of such endorsement{s).

olicy(ies) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

cies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

gnom:cr:n , G B Phone: 920-884-2850 ﬁﬁﬁi‘?‘"
ectrum Insurance Gro
455 técr)uth Agg:ns%t. St:p1 02 Fax: 920-884-2851 _;?ﬁ_gffo. Exth: m)é! Moy
('i}_reﬁré Baiuy, Wi 54301 EMAL
ik Larlsan INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE  MAICH
msURER A ; Wilson Mutual 18950
INSURED Tha Pub Haus at 600 LLC INSURER B :
600 George Street .
De Pere, WI 54115 :zzzzx
INSURERE :
| NSURER £ :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INS
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONT
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDI
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY AAVE BEE|

URANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSU

£0 TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY FERIOD
RACT OR OTHER DQCUMENT WiTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
ED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
N REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

N ADDL|SUE POLIGY EFF, | POLICY EXP
NSR TYPE OF MSURANCE w0 POLICY NUMBER MBIDRYYYY) | MMDBAYYYY! LINTS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCGURRENGE $ 1,000,000
DANAGE 10 RENTED
1A 1 X | coMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 32.009283-00 93/01/2073 | 03(01/2014 | PREMISES (E§ conunerice) | $ 300,000,
J CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP {Any ana parson) | § 5,000
L PERSGNAL & ADV INJURY 1§ 1,000,000
] GENERAL AGGREGATE ] 2,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 2,000,000
poLICY PRO- 100 ‘ 3
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED S s
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per perao) | $
gb%ggVNED iﬁf;gg‘-"—ﬁﬁ B0DILY INJURY (Par eccident) | §
I : NOK-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 5
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS acgident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAR OCCUR EAGH OCCURRENCE 5
EXCESS LIAR CLAMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
pep || merentions $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WG STATU- oTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABSLITY YIN X |{8Rv R ER
A | ANY PROPRIETORPARTHER/EXECUTIVE 32.009283-00 03/01/2013 | 0370172014 | £ eACH ACCIDENT $ 100,000
QFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? D NIA
{Mandatery in NH) E L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] § 100,000
It yes, descrice under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERAYTIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1 8 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {Attach ACORD 4§04, Additional Remarks Scheduls,

city of De Pere is listed as additiocnal insured on the general liability per
pclicy terms, cenditions, and axclusions.

if more space lis required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

City of De Pere
335 South Broadway
De Pere, Wl 54115

CITYDM

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERER IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Rick Carlson

ACORD 25 (2010/05}

© 1088-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Exhibit 2




City of De Pere

Public Works Department Memo
To: Honorable Mayor Walsh
" Members of the Board of Public Works o
Trom: Scott J, Thoresen, Director of Public Works % MR
Date; June 27, 2013
Subject: Consider Request for Revocable Occupancy Permit — Pubhaus

This request is a permit to allow outdoor seating on the sidewalk alongside the building as
requested by the owner,

The business the “Pubhaus™ located at 600 George Street has requested permission to allow
outdoor seating on the City’s sidewalk for their customers. The request is for proposed seating
for four (4) 36” tables alongside the building. (See attached sketch) Staff has reviewed the
request on site and has determined that this will not impact pedestrian traffic on the sidewalk as
long as they keep the tables and chairs adjacent to the building, 1discussed with owner that she
could go up to a 36” table and she requested this as part of the permit instead of the original 12”
table. I also told owner tables and chairs need to be kept adjacent to building so it would not
impact pedestrian traffic.

Staff recommends grahting a revocable occupancy pertnit.




We v/

Permit Fee:
wires | [STDEWALK CAFE PERMIT APPLICATION
Permit Valid: | ¥
July 1 thru June 30 C‘ty Of De Pere
Return completed application, supporting documentation, and application fee to: City of De Pere, Clerk-
Treasurer, 335 S. Broadway, De Pere, Wi 54115. For assistance, please call (920} 339-4050.
L :
| |Applicant Name: A bhays ol 60D / ol Schrsedec
2 :
@ ; .
g Applicant Address: @00 @(/) { jg
‘:_g Applicant Phone: QZO 259 5’/@9 Applicant Cell Phone: 0?@@ s 459?
-
% Establishment Name: f? (/ b I/LQ A 01{ ZODO
5. | |Establishment Address:  /
S (00 oCorge
< | lprone: 70 327 Sl rax WA
" [\Eﬁ Copy of a current Certificate of Insurance, with City of De Pere named as additional insured.
o /
&1 NV |Aayour, drawn io scale, which accurately depicts the dimensions of the existing sidewalk area and
= adjacent private property, the proposed location of the sidewalk cafe, size and number of tables, chairs,
- steps, planters, umbrellas, location of doorways, trees, obstructions, either existing or proposed, within
v the pedestrian area.
=)
g If available, photographs describing the appearance and dimensions of all tables, chairs, umbrellas or
e other objects related to the sidewalk cafe for review.
If this application is approved, | hereby agree to abide by all the relevant City regulations pertaining to the
installation of sidewalk cafes, Including but not limited to Section 22-8(C) and 122-3 of the Municipal Code of the
i@l
&
5 Signature - Establishment Owner
= T
I
c
;;? This application is made with my/our knowledge and consent
Signature - Property Owner(s).
Receipt f
500
= ‘ - Dated:
S | [Signature: Clerk's Office Co s~
5 Issued:
o
<L
Permit #:
Egnature _Board of Public Works, Engineering Division




RESOLUTION #13-95
AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE CITY OF DE PERE AND STEPHEN [.. SEIDL
(James Street Wharf Extension)
WHEREAS, the City of De Pere and Stephen L. Seidl are parties to an Agreement
concerning Boat Docks along James Street Parkway dated July 13, 2012 (the Agreement); and
WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the Agreement to provide for the construction of
an extension of the dock area along James Street Parkway along the terms and conditions set
forth in the Amendment attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit 1; and
WHERFEAS, this matter has been reviewed by the Board of Park Commissioners which
recornmends approval thereof.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED THAT:
The Mayor and Clerk-Treasurer are authorized and directed to execute the
Amendment to Agreement Between the City of De Pere and Stephen L. Seidl
(Exhibit A).
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT:

All City officials, officers, and employees are authorized and directed to take such
steps as are lawful and necessary in furtherance thereof.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of De Pere, Wisconsin, this 16% day of

July, 2013.
APPROVED:
Michael J. Walsh, Mayor
ATTEST:
Shana L. Defnet, Clerk-Treasurer
Ayes:

Nays:



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE CITY OF DE PERE AND STEPHEN L. SEIDL

WHEREAS, the

(James Street Wharf Extension)

City of De Pere (City ) and Stephen L. Seidl (Donor) are parties to an

Agreement CONCerning Boat Docks along James Street Parkway dated July 13, 2012 (the

Agreement); and

WHEREAS, the

parties wish to amend the Agreement to provide for the construction of

an extension of the dock area along James Street Parkway aiong the terms and conditions set

forth below.

NOW THEREFORE, upon the mutual promises and obligations set forth herein, together

with such other consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the

parties agree as follows:

1. Subject to the same provisions and contingencies provided in the Agrcement, a copy
of which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit 2, Donor agrees

to donate, as
extension of

funds become available to him, all materials for the construction of an
{he existing boat dock facilities at James Street Parkway and Wharf,

2 Donor shall also be responsible to donate such funds as are necessary to COVer the
costs of installing said extension.

3. A copy of the plans for such extension are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference as Exhibit 1.

4. To the extent that this Amendment expressly supersedes any part of the Agreement,
the same is hereby modified. All provisions of the Agreement not modified by this

Amendment

shall remain full force and effect.

Dated this day of , 2013,

STEPHEN L. SEIDL
By:

CITY OF DE PERE
By:

Stephen L. Seidl

Michael J. Walsh, Mayor

Shana L. Defnet, Clerk-Treasurer

Hyjdupont\Agreementsi20 13\Seidl Amendment (boat docks) 7.13-151-005-12.docx

Exhibit A
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Appr:af: S James St. Wharf
Proposed Extension

Plan—PHASE 1

Seating Areas

6 7/8" OD Steel Pilings with Azek Vinyl (eistngy™~—_ &
- Decking & Treated Wood Understructure 3

All Pilings Kept Under Rock

Sketch for:
Lock Hold Area Dock

3 € t
m‘a O =5 Existing James St.
Wharf

: Ao, BOAT LIFTS
d & DOCKS, INC. By: )
Schenidt Boat Lifts & Docks Inc.

1-800-236-4622

Exhibit 1



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF DE PERE AND STEPHEN L. SEIDL
(Boat Docks along James Street Parkway)

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into ihis 1™ day of A 12012, by and

between the City of De Pere, a Wisconsin Municipal Corporation, (“City™) and Stephen L. Seidl
(“Donor™).

WHEREAS, the City own the approxitnate .23 acre parcel known as Parcel ED-716
along the Fox River at James and Front Streets, commonly referred to as the James Street
Parkway; and

" WHERAS, Donor has presented to the Board of Park Commissioners a master plan
consisting of up to seven (7) dock structures 10 be constructed on the Fox River at the James
Street Parkway as shown on Exhibit A, attached and incorporated by reference; and

WHEREAS, Donor has also expressed his wish to, as funds becomes available to him,
donate all materials for the boat dock improvements 10 the James Streef farkway according to
the master plan (Exhibit A) and donate funding for all costs associated with the installation of
such dock system; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Péxk Commissioners has reviewed such proposal and
recommends acceptance thereof; and

WHEREAS, the City and its Board of Park Commissioners are grateful to the Donor for
his generous donation offer according to the terms and conditidns as set forth below.

NOW THEREFORE, upon the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, together
with such other good and sufficient consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,

the parties agrec as follows:

Fxchibit 2



. Subj éct to the conditions and other provisions of this Agreement, the Donor agrees to
donate to City as funds become available to him, all materials for the construction of
such boat dock improvements for the James Street Parkway as shown on Exhibit A.

. Provided sufficient funds are raised by. Donor during the 2012 construction season,
Donor shall donate to City the following:

(A) such materials as are necessary to install the initial portion of dock system
as shown on Exhibit B, consisting of one “L” shaped dock;

(B) reimbursement of all City costs associated with City installation of
accessible sidewalk improvements to such dock as shown on Exhibit C,

and

(C) an amount not less than the costs incurred by City in the installation of the
dock improvements shown in Exhibit B.

Should additional funds become available to donor so that additional improvements
can be completed in 2012, paragraph 3 shall be followed.

. Subsequent donations to City toward completion of the master plan shall be as agreed
in writing between Donor and the City Director of Parks, Recreation and Forestry.

. Donor shall involve the City Director of Parks, Recreation and Fpresfry in the
selection of materials for the dock improvements.

. The parties acknowledge that the City is bound to comply with the public bidding
laws under Wis. Stats. §62.15 in undertaking construction of public improvements
that fall within the parameters of that statute. The-parties ahticipate however, that
installation of the donated boat dock materials is exempt from the public bidding
requirements of such statute. Inthe eventitis determined that the installation of dock

improvements is subject to the bid requirements of that statute, the parties agree that

Seidl Donation Agreement
Page 2 of 4



any installation of boat dock improvements after such determination is made shall
comply with those statutory requirements.

All improvements and facilities constructed or completed under this Agreement shall
become the property of the City of De Pere upon installation or construction.

The City shall be résponsible for all maintenance and repair of the dock
improvements after each segment is completed, including repair to improvements
caused by vandalism, Acts of God or other such causes.

The City shall indemnify and save harmless Donor and all of his heirs, from any and
all claims and other causes of action based upon property damage ot pérs_onal injury
arising from Donor’s donation and/or the construction of the boat dock facilities
contemplated by this Agreement.

This Agreement may not be assigned by any party unless agreed.to in writing by all
parties; however, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of any

of the parties’ successors in interest.

10. No amendment to the terms or conditions of this Agreement shall be effective unless

11.

agreed to in and signed by all parties.

Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be mailed, postage paid, to the

following:
If to City: If to the Donor:
City of De Pere Stephen Seidl
Attn: City Clerk-Treasurer Seid! & Associates
335 South Broadway 2270 Holmgren Way
De Pere, WI 54115 Green Bay, W1 54304

Seidl Donation Agreement
Page 3 of 4



Dated this |3 day of Qu\% 2012,

STEPHEN L. SEIDL
By:

/74@:&%—\

n L. Seidl

CITY OF DE PERE
By:

Michael J. Wal

Qi

KS“HanaL Defnet Clerk-Treasurer

H\jduponi\Agreements\2012\Boat Docks Along James Street (Seidl)-final 7-9-12-151-005-12.docx

Seidl Donation Agreement
Page 4 of 4
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6 7/8” OD Steel Pilings with Azek Vinyl Decking & Treated Wood Understructure

All Pilings Kept Under Dock

| | | Sketch for:
% "'d’t - Lock Hold Area Dock
] ! I : | | By:
£ BOAT LIFTS BEY Schmidt Boat Lifts & Docks
27 & DOCKS, INC. 1-800-236-4622

Exhibit B
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RESOLUTION #13-96
AUTHORIZING CONTRACTS WITH ORDE ADVERTISING FOR
RIVERWALK AND WILDLIFE VIEWING PIER SIGNAGE

WHEREAS, with the completion of the Riverwalk and Wildlife Viewing Pier, City
officials have been working to have appropriate signage installed to acknowledge and thank the
many generous donors who made construction of this outstanding recreation and education
facility possible; and

WHEREAS, Orde Sign & Graphics, Inc. has available and offers to provide the personnel
and equipment necessary to fabricate and install the appropriate signage; and

WHEREAS, the Finance/Personnel Committee has reviewed has reviewed such contracts
and recommends their approval thereof.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED THAT:

The Mayor is authorized and directed to execute the following agreements with
Orde Sign & Graphics, Inc.:

1. Change order for the two entrance monument signs located Voyager Park
attached and incorporated as Exhibit A; and
2. Contract for the purchase of six individual donor signs for placement upon the
Island, attached and incorporated as Exhibit B.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT:
Funding for such signage shall come from the Riverwalk fund.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT:

All City officials, officers and employees are authorized and directed to take such
steps as are lawful and necessary in furtherance thereof.



Resolution #13-96
Page 2 of 2

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of De Pere, Wisconsin, this 1_63 day of July,

2013.
APPROVED:
Michael J. Walsh, Mayor
ATTEST:
Shana .. Defnet, Clerk-Treasurer
Ayes:

Nays:



CONTRACT AGREEMENT

Contract #36715

Date 03/23/2013

SERVIEE AGREEMENT OPTION

O ves o

S IN PROGRESS BILLING: DUE ON
1825 NmMmz DR, - PR
DE PERE, W 54115
Fex 920-339-4611 DOWNPAYMENT:
: CHECK ISSUED ON INVCICE

Salesperson: Sheri ’ 50 % DOWNPAYMENT
Fhone; . PURCHASE ORDER #
Billing Address:’ i
Marty Kosobucki Phone: (520} 339-8358 FINANCING OPTION - LEASE
De Pere, City of Fax: Sales Price x_____Months
925 Sout Sixth Street Emat: ) .
De Pere WL, 54115 Lease sales Price §

ORDE 5IGN & GRAPHICS, INC herzinafier referred to as ORDE proposes to manufacture andfor defiver, and/or install for the sbove-named customer,
hereinafter referred to 2 PURCHASER, the items described below, subject to the terma and conditions set forth beiow per  Design #126590 and on page 2
hereof. Prices quoted are for items Sisted only and are valid for 60 days from the sbove date; varistions in pries dus 1 fiost Hne are acespted.

The PURCHASER sgrees to accept respansibility for the pl t of the signs(s); and repr Sons concerning  the Jocations on the
easements, right-of-ways, setbacks and other simitar restricted aress.
DESCRIPTION OF WORK:

Fabricate and install two single face ground mounted signs per designs 12690 pages 8
&9.

Brick as designed and foundation included in quote.

Y §23,538,44. Change stone onl

hoth signs to' match Iayout on design'12690A-01

INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR CLIENT IS ALSC RESPONSIBLE FOR PULLING THE FIBER OPTIC CABLE TO THE SIGN. ORDE WILL
PROVIDE THE FIBER OFTIC CABLE.

Al product only shipments are guated s FOB, De Pere, and W1, Freight snd handling charges will be added to fnal Invoice.
“Orde Sipn & Graphies, Inc. is not responsible for breakage sud /or changes of any kind on the existing face as & result af the typical cleaniog

process andfor vioyl application pracess sod/or normal removal or i ' ques needed in the production of this product.”
SALES PRICE (taxablc) $23,538.44
SIGN DISPOSAL FEE ’ ____
FUEL SURCHARGE 4
PERMIT FEE SAt Cost
SUBTOTAL |
SALES TAX 0% $Exempt documentation needed
FOUNDATION FRICE (nontaxable) b
EXTERIOR AWNING (nontaxahle) 3
QUOTATION TOTAL 523.538.44

*Price subject to change upon field verification.
I, the Parchaser, authorize the work to be done as Jisted above.

CORTORATE NAME,

[ Corporation [ ] Partnership [¥Sole Propristorship
Guaranteed by _.

Print Neme & Title

Social Security # / Employer ID #
Date

Check Attached

Amouat

ALL SALES OR USE TAX, REGARDLESS OF THE STATE OF ORIGIN, IS THE RESPONSEBILITY OF THE CUSTOMER.
CREDIT CARD

MasterCard or Visa#

Expiration Date
Salesperson:  Sheri Dmemik

ORDE ACCEPTANCE: Tkhis fisplay agreement shall not obligate Orde Sipn & Graphics, Inc. In sny way uatil signed by =a
executive officer or General Manager. :

Kevin Flatley
Vice President DATE

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Exhibit A



10.
11

12,

14

5.

6,

CHANGE ORDERS: This propasal is made for specizlly construcled equipment described hersin and when accepted is not subject to modification or canceflation, ORDE
SIGN & GRAPHICS shall nct bs responsible for errors in plans, designs, specifications or crawings fumished by PURCHASER of its chesen vendor for defecls caused
thereby. Alterations and daviations from specificafions or deslgn involving extra costs will be executad upon wiitten order and wilt become zn extra chargs, over and
abovs the quate, and become a CHANGE CRDER. Upon signature by client, this poposal becomes the contract to perform the work. ’
ELECTRICAL AND ADD-ONS: The PURCHASER agress ta secure all necessary governmental permits andior all necessary permits from the buflcing owner andfor
others whose permissicn is required for the instaltation of this sign ard he assumes all liability with regard to same, and all fiabiltty, public and otherwlse, for damages
caused by the sign or by reason of I being on or attached to the premises. PURCHASER agrees to secure all necessary pemission for use of 3l registered frademarks or
capyrights used on the sign. All necessary electical wiring, outiets and cornections fo the sign from the buliding meter and/or fuse panel wiil be properly fused and
installed, at the expense of the PURCHASER, by 2 quallfied slecirician hired by the FURCHASER. INSTALLATION PRICES QUOTED ARE SUBJECT TO REVISION
WHERE ROCK, FROST, OR GROUNDWATER CONDITIONS OR QTHER UNFORESEEABLE FOUNDATION CONDITIONS ARE ENCOUNTERED INCLUDING
THOSE CONDITIONS WHICH CAUSE THE EXCAVATION TO BECOME LARGER THAN PLANNED - IN WHICH CASE EXTRA CONCRETE WILL BE NEEDED AND
CHARGED FOR, ALL SIGNS WILL BE WIRED FOR 120 VOLTS UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE. PERMISSION TO GO ACROSS ANY LAWN OR PARKING LOT
NECESSSARY TO DO THE WORK 1S HEREBY GRANTED AND ORDE 18 RELEASED FROM RESPONSIEILITY FOR ANY DAMAGE DONE. THIS STRUCTURE 1S
ENGINEERED TO HOLD ONLY THE SIGNS SHOWN. PURCHASER IS RESPONSIELE FOR FLAGGING ALL PROPERTY UTILITIES SUCH AS SPRINKLER LINES,
PARKING LOT LIGHTING, UNDERGROUNDS OF ANY KIND - ’

WARRANTY{S): Orde Slgn & Graphics wamanis the signs against defective warkmanship and materials (except lamps and neon of rare gas tubing) for one year fram
date of shipmant of installation, f installation or service is done by others, labor for the replacement of transformers, ballasts and electrical equipment Is not included in
the warranty, Whenever there & any circumstance on which a claim might be based, ORDE SIGN & BRAPHICS must be Immediately informed in writing or e provisions
of {his warranty are voided. No allowance will be made for any expense Incured In repairing dafeclive material or supplying any missing parts, except on the prior written
consent of ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS. Any part found by ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS to be defective due to faulty workmanship or materizls, ¥ refumed prepaid within the
waranty period, will be repaired or replaced f.0.b., point of production. ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS resarves the right fo repalr or replace in whole or In pat. {f the
replacement part is shipped prior 1o receipt of the retumed part, a charge for the replacement part shall be made pending retum and examination-of the parl claimed
defecfive. ORDE SIGN & GRAPHIGS shall net be iable for any damages of losses other than the replacement of such defective work or materiel. WARRANTY IS VOID

* JF PROJECT 1S NOT PAID IN FULL WITHIN 30 DAYS OF INVOIGE DATE. No warenty expressed of implied on any wood component or fading of paint.

USED SIGNS: ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS will not guarantes materials on used signs,

80 DAY DELAYS: Any items not shipped or Installed on or before 90 days from coniract date will be Invoiced In full 2t the designated un't price, and PURCHASER hereby
agrees to pay sald invoica within fifeen {15) days from Involce date. It is agreed that service charges shall accrue at the rate of cne and a half percent {1.5%) per month
of the prica of {he sign commencing at the and of sald 90 day period. ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS atits aptlen may invaice each item called fer in the proposal separately
upon completion; or, ¥ for any reason beyand its control completion is defayed, It may Involce for that porlion of the work completed durng any given month. Under nc
candition, wil any item be held beyond 90 days after completion, In the event that stze and weight of any ltem prohibits storage by ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS on its awn
nroperty, PURCHASER must make arangements for shipments immediately upon completion.

PAYMENT: Payment for items purchased under the terms of this contract will be made on recalpt of involces.  In the event payment s not made as agreed,
PURCHASER agtees 1o pay a service chiarge on past due amounts fram the fmes they are due hirty {30) days rom the Involcs date, &t the rate of 1.5% permenth. In
the event this contract fs placed for collection or if coliectad by suit or through the Probate or Bankruptey Coutt, reasonable attomey’s and collection fees shall be added, If
Orda Sign & Graphice commits any errors to the contracted description of work, PURCHASER miay hold 10% unti work is performed, Payment of batance is tpon
complstion. :

SALES TAXES: All applicable taxes payable under the taws of ths States of Wisconsin or Michigan as mentioned herein shall be added to the price quoted, unless such
taxis paid directly by PURCHASER. Payment of sales or use tax ofher than Wisconsin or Michigan Is the respensibifity of the PURCHASER.

SUPPLIER DELAYS: ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS will nct b responsible for delays in shipments caused by suppllers, franspartation services, lebor disputes, or due to
any other clrcumstances beyond its control,

LIENHOLD INTEREST: Title {0 all materials and property covered by this contract shall remain with ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS and shall not be deemed to consfitute a
part of the realty to which It may be attached untll the purchase price is paid In full. CRDE SIGH & GRAPHICS s glven an express security interest in said material and
property both erected and unsrected notwithstanding the manner in which such personat property shall be annexed or aftached fo the realty. In the event of nonpayment
after 9 days by PURCHASER, incuding but not limited to, payment of any amounts due and payabls, ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS may at once {and without process of
law} take possession of and remove, as and when It sees fit and whenever found, all materals used, intended for use In the construction of said equipment and, any and
all property called for in this contract without being deemed guilty of frespass.

WISCONSIN LAW APPLIES: Itis agreed that this contract shall be construed according o the laws of the Stata of Wiscensin,

ADDENDUM AGREEMENTS: When this contract is signed by a duly authorized person of each party, all provisions contalned herein become Infegral parts of this
contract, and there Is no other agreement or understanding of any hature sonceming same urless such other agreement or understanding, f any, Is specifically written
under the descripton of work.

CANCELLATIONS: Orders ragularty eniarad cannot be cancelled after work has begun except upon terms that will sompensate ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS against ioss.
Should It cecur that his contract becomes null and vald, all labor znd material performed and purchased, fimes 2.0 markups, will be paid by PURCHASER,

DESIGN COPYRIGHT: Sketches, copy, blueprints and all preparetory work created or fumished by ORDE 8IGN & GRAPHICS shal: remain its exclusive properly and no
use of sama shall be made, ror may ideas obtained there from be used (except upon compensation to e determined by ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS). The attached is
an original, unpublished drawing by Orde Sign & Graphics, Inc. It is for your personal use, In conjuncfion with 2 project being panned for you by Orde Sign & Graphics,
Inc. His not to be shown to anyone oulside of your organizafion nor I it 1o be used, reproduced, copied or exhibited in any fashion. Use of Orde's design or the sallent
elsmsnts of this deslgn In any sign designed or done by any cther company, without the express wriltsn pemission of Orde Sign & Graphics, Ine. is forbldden as
copyright Infringement lawsult prosecuted against your company in faderal court,

CUSTOMER OMMISSIONS: Proposals are only for work aceording to the original specifications, If through customer's error, or change of mind, work has to be done a
second fime or mora, such extra work will carry an additienal charge, at cument rates for the work performed and bilied extra accerdingly, Payment is expecled upon
recsipt.

PROMOTIONAL USE: PURCHASER gives ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS the right to use pictures of the display In their adverfisings and to make reference fo
PURCHASER. ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS may attach their nameplate to the sign in an unobirusive manner,

CONSTRUCTION LAW — LIEN RIGHTS: As required by the Wisconsin canstruction lien law, bufider hereby nofifies owner that parscns or companies furnishing
tabor or materials for the construction on owner's Jand may have lien rights on owner's land and bulldings if not paid. Those entitied o llen rights, in addilion o the
undersigned builder, are those who contract dirsctly with the owner or those who give the owner nofice within 60 days after they first furnish labor or materials for the
construction. Accordingly, the awner probably will receive nofices from those who fumish labor ahd materials for the canstruction and should give a copy of each notice
received ¢ the morigage lender, i any. Builder agrees o cooperate with the owner and the owner's fender, if any, to ses that all potential lien claimants are duly pald.

Client nitials: Date:
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CONTRACT AGREEMENT

0 DE}!@&‘T;‘%\} Sign Location: : Contract #2684
i

aphje§w. DePere Riverwalk Date 06/27/2013
; SERVICE AGREEMENT QPTICH
T 0O ves TIno
IN PROGRESS BILLING: DUE ON
1825 Nmurz DR . -
De PERE, W1 54115 .
FAX 920-339-4611 DOWHNPAYMENT:
. CHECK ISSUED ON INVOICE
Salesperson: Sherl 50 %2 DOWNPAYMENT
Phone: PURCHASE ORDER #
Billing Address: -
M'a'rl:ﬁ(osubf;ds Phone:  (920) 335-8358 I ANGING OFFION—LEASE
De Pere, City of : Fax: SalesPrics % Months
525 Sout Sixth Street Emait: .
De Pere WI, Lease sales Prics §
54115

ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS, INC hercinafier referred to s ORDE proposes t manufacture andfor deliver, andfor install for the nbove-named customer,
hereinatter referred to 2 PURCHASER, the items described below, subject ta the terms and conditions sot forth below per Design # 12650-01 page 7 and
on page 2 hereof. Prices quoted are for items Fsted anly and are valid for 60 days from the sbove date] variations in price due to frost line ave acoepted.

‘The PURCHASER agrees to accept responsibility for the pl t of the sipns(s); and represcutations concerning the locafions an the
ezsemends, right-of-ways, setbacks and other simitar restricted aress.
DESCRIFTION OF WORK:

Fabricated and install donor signs out of layers of Fossil Material.
Each sign will have two fossil panels. Qty 6 signs total; 5 to be mounted {o cables, 1
of the signs will be mounted to angled pole mount per design.

INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR. CLIENT 15 ALSO RESPONSTBLE FOR PULLING THE FIBER OPTIC CABLE TO THE SIGN. QRDE WILL
PROVIDE THE FIBER OPTIC CABLE.

ALl preduct only shipments are quated as FOB, De Pere, and WL Breight and handling charges will be added {o final invoice,
ible for b

*Grde Sipn & Graphics, Inc. is oot X and Jor changes of any kind oo the existing face a1 2 result of the typical cleaning
process and/or vinyl application process and/or normal 1 or instalfati i needed in the p of this product.”
SALES PRICE (taxable) £3,800.00
SIGN DISPOSAL FEE S
FUEL SURCHARGE Yoo
PERMIT FEE 5_
SUBTOTAL s
SALER TAX % ) $Tax Exempt
FONDATION PRICE (nontaxablc) s
EXTERIOR AWNING (nontaxable} 1)
QUOTATION TOTAL $3.800.00
Less 50% ADVANCE PAYMENT $1.900.00
BALANCE DUE ON COMPLETION £1,900.00

*Price subject to change upon field verification.
I, the Purchaser, authorize the work to be done as listed zbove.

CORPORATE NAME,

[ Corporation L] Perinership [}Sele Proprietorship
Guaranteed by

Print Neme & Title

Social Security # / Employer 1D #
Date

Check Attached _
Amount____

ALL SALES OR USE TAX, REGARDLESS OF THE STATE OF ORIGIN, IS ‘THE RESPFONSIBILITY OF THE CUSTOMER.

CREDIT CARD
MasterCard or Visa #
Expiration Date;

Salesperson: Sheri Omernik

ORDE ACCEFTANCE: This dispizy sgreement shall not obligate Orde Sign & Graphics, Inc. In any way untit signed by 2n
exceutive officer or Genersl Manzger.

Kevin Fiatley
Yice President DATE

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND GCONDITIONS

Exhibit B



10.
11.

12,

13.

14

15.

16.

CHANGE ORDERS: This proposal is made for specially constructed equipment descrined harein and when accepist is not subject to modification or cancellation, ORDE
SIGN & GRAPHICS shall rict be responsible for erors In plans, designs, specifications or drawings fumished by PURCHASER or its chosen vendor for defects caused
thereby. Alterations and deviations from specificaions on design involving extra costs wil be executed upon written order and will become an exira charge, cver and
abave the quate, and become a CHANGE ORDER. Upon signature by client, this proposal becomes the conract fo perform the wark,

ELECTRICAL AND ADD-ONS: The PURCHASER agrees ‘o secure &l necessary govemmental permits andfor 2l necessary pemits from the building owner and/ar
offers whosa permission s required for the Installation of this sign and he assumes all liability with regard o same, and al flzbility, public and otherwise, for damages
caused by the sign or by reason of it being on or attzched to the premises. PURCHASER agrees to secure al necessary permission for use of all registered trademarks or
copyrights used on the sign. All necessary electrical wiring, outlets and connections to the sign from the bullding meter andior fuse panel will be property fused and
instatled, at the expense of the PURCHASER, by a quaiified electriclan hired by the PURCHASER. INSTALLATION PRICES QUOTED ARE SUBJECT TO REVISION
WHERE ROCK, FROST, OR GROUNDWATER CONDITIONS OR OTHER UNFORESEEABLE FOUNDATION CONBITIONS ARE ENCOUNTERED INCLUDING
THOSE CONDITIONS WHICH CAUSE THE EXCAVATION TO BECOME LARGER THAN PLANNED — [N WHICH CASE EXTRA CONCRETE WILL BE NEEDED AND
CHARGED FOR. ALL SIGNS WILL BE WIRED FOR 120 VOLTS UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE. PERMISSION TO GO ACROSS ANY LAWN OR PARKING 1.OT

. NECESSSARY TO DO THE WORK IS HEREBY GRANTED AND ORDE IS RELEASED FRON RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY DAMAGE DONE, THIS STRUCTURE 13

ENGINEERED TO HOLD ONLY THE SIGNS SHOWN. PURCHASER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FLAGGING ALL PROPERTY UTILTTIES SUCH AS SPRINKLER LINES,
PARKING LOT LIGHTING, UNDERGROUKDS OF ANY KIND . :

WARRANTY{S): Orde Sign & Graphics warants the signs against defective workmanship and materials {except tamps and neon of rare gas tubing) for cne year fom
date of shipment or installation. 1f installation or service is done by others, labar for the replacemant of ransformers, ballasts and electical equipment Is not included in
the' waranty, Whenever there is any circurnstance on which a claim might be based, ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS must be immediately Informed In writing or the provislons
of this wamanty are voided. No ellowance wil be made for any expense incurred in repalring defective materlal or supplying any missing parts, except on the prier written
consent of DRDE SIGN & GRAPHICS. Any part found by ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS fabe defective due to faulty workmanship or materials, if retumed prepald within the
warranty period, will be repaired or replaced f.0.0,, point of production. ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS reserves the right to repair or replace In whale or in part If the
seplacement part is shipped prior 1o receipt of the retumed part, a charge for the replacement part shall be made pending retum and exarination of the part clalimed
defective. ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS shall nat be liable for any demages or losses other than the replacement of such defective work or material. WARRANTY 1S VOID
IF PROJECT IS NOT PAID IN FULL WITHIN 30 DAYS OF INVOICE DATE. No wamanty expressed or implied on any wood component or fading of paint

USED SIGNS: CRDE SIGN & GRAPHICS will not guarantes materials on used signs.

80 DAY DELAYS: Any items not shipped or installed on or before 90 days from contract date will be inveicad In full at the designated unit price, and PURCHASER hereby
agrezs to pay said invelce within fifteen (15) days from Involce date. #is agreed fhat service charges shall accrue at the rate of one and a helf percent (1.5%) per monih
of the price of the sign commencing at the end of said 80 day period. ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS at its option may involce each item called for in the proposal separately
upan campiedon; or, I far any reason beyond fts control complation is detayed, ft may invoice for that portion of the work completed during any givsn menth. Under no

. condition, wii any tem be held bayand 90 days after completion. In the event that size and weight of any item prohibits storage by ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS on its own

praperty, PURCHASER must make arangements for shipments Immediately upon completion.

PAYMENT: Payment for tems purchased under the ferms of this contract wilt be made on recelpt of Invoices.  In the event payment Is not made as agreed,
PURCHASER agrees fo pay a service charge on past due amounts from fhe times thay are due thirly (30) days from the invoice date, at the rate of 1.5% per month. In
the event lhls cortract Is placed for callection or i collected by suit or through the Probate or Bankruptcy Courl, reasonabie aticmey's and collection fess shall be added, If
Ords ISign & Graphics commits any errors to the contracted desoription of work, PURCHASER may hoid 10% unl work Is performed. Payment of balance 1s upen
complefion.

SALES TAXES: All applicable taxes payable under the laws of the States of Wisconsin or Michigan as mentioned herein shall be addad to the price quoted, uniess such
tax is paid directly by FURCHASER. Payment of sales or use tax olher than \Wisconsin or Michigan is the responsibiiity of the PURCHASER.

SUPPLIER DELAYS: ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS will nat be responsible for delays in shipments caused by suppllers, transportatien services, labor disputes, or due to
any other circumstances beyond ifs cenfrol. E

LIENHOLD INTEREST: Title to alt materials and property covered by this contract shall remain with ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS and shall not be desmad to constitule a
part of the realty to which it may be attached unth the purchase price Is paid In full. CORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS s given an express =ecurity interest In said material and
proparty both erected and unarected notwithstanding the manner in which such persona! property shall be annexed er attached to the realty. In the event of nonpayment
after 50 days by PURCHASER, including but not fimited o, payment of any amounts due and payable, ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICE may at once {and withaut process of
Jaw) take possession of and remove, as and when it sees fil and whenever found, all materials used, Intended for use In the canstruction of said squipment and, any and
all propery called far in this contract without being desmed guilty of trespass. .

WISCONSIN LAW APPLIES: It is agreed that this contract shall be construed according to the laws of the State of Wisconsin,

ADDENDUM AGREEMENTS: When this contract Is signed by a duly authorized parson of each party, all provisions contained herein bacome integral parts of this
contract, and there !s no other agreement or understanding of any nature concaming same unless such ofher agreement or understanding, If any, Is specifically written
under the description of work,

CANCELLATIONS: Orders regularly entered cannot be cancelled afier work has begun excep! upon tams that will compensate ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS against loss.
Should ¥ oocur that his eontract becomes null and veid, 2ll iabar and material performed and purchased, fimes 2.0 markups, will be-paid by PURCHASER,

DESIGN COPYRIGHT: Sketches, copy, blusprints and &ll preparalory work created or fumished by ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS shall remein s exclusive property and ne
use of same shall be made, nor may idsas obtained thers from be used (exeept upon compensation to be determined by ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS). The attached is
ar original, unpublished drawing by Orde Sign & Graphiss, Inc, 1t is for your personal use, n_genjunction with a projest being planned far you by Orde Sign & Graphics,
fnc, Kis not to be shown fo anyone outside of your organization nor is It 1o be used, teproduced, copied or exhibited in any fashion. Use of Orde’s deslgn or the saliant
elements of this design In any sign designed or done by any other company, without ihe express written permission of Orde Sign & Graphics, Inc. is forbldden as copyright
infringement lewsut proseculed against your company in federal court, ’

CUSTOMER OMMISSIONS: Proposals are only for work according to the origing! speclfications. if through custamer's eror, or change of mind, wark has to be done a
secolnd #me or mare, such extra work will camy an additional charge, at curment rates for the work performed and bllled exira accordingly. Payment is expecied upon
receipl.

PROMOTIONAL USE: PURCHASER gives ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS the tight fo use pictures of the display In their advertisings and to make reference to
PURCHASER. ORDE SIGN & GRAPHICS tmay attach thelr nameplate 1o the sign in an unobin:sive manner,

CONSTRUCTION LAW — LIEN RIGHTS: As required by the Wisconsin construction lien law, bulider hereby netifies owner that persans or companies fumishing
labar or materials for the construction on owner's land may have lien rghts an cwnar's land and buildings ¥ not paid. Those entitled to lien rights, In addition to the
undersigned bulldzr, are those whe contract directly with the owner or thosa whe give the owner notice within 60 days after they first fumish labor or materials for the
construction. Accordingly, the owner probably will recsiva notices from those whe fumish labor and materials for the construction and should give a copy of each nalice
recaived {0 the marlgage lender, ff any. Buiider agress to cacperate with the owner and the owner's lender, If any, to see that all petentiat ben clalmants are duly paid.

Ghient Initials: Date: ,
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RESOLUTION #13-97

APPROVING PROPOSAL/CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR ANTENNAS
BETWEEN THE CITY OF DE PERE AND DIXON ENGINEERING, INC.
(Verizon Wireless Antenna Upgrade)

WHEREAS, the City is in need of engineering services regarding an antenna upgrade on

the Merrill Street water tower; and

WHEREAS, Dixon Engineering, Inc. has available and offers to provide personnel and
equipment necessary to accomplish the engineering services within the required time; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Public Works has reviewed such proposal and recommends

approval thereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED THAT:

The Mayor and Clerk-Treasurer are authorized and directed to execute the
Proposal/Contract Agreement for Antennas between the City of De Pere and
Dixon Engineering, Inc. as is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT:

All City officials, officers, and employees are authorized and directed to take such
steps as are lawful and necessary in furtherance thereof.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of De Pere, Wisconsin, this 16 day of July,

2013.
APPROVED:
Michael J. Walsh, Mayor
ATTEST:
Shana L. Defnet, Clerk-Treasurer
Ayes:

Nays:



Proposal/Contiract Agreement

for Antennas
(DePere, Wisconsin 250,000 Dauble Elfipse Merrifl Street 49-05-11-01)

The agreement is between Dixon Engineering, Inc, (DIXON) and City of DePere, Wisconsin
(OWNER) to contract with DIXON for technical services for Verizon {(CONTRACTOR). This
agreement inclusive together with any expressly incorporated appendix or Schedule, constitutes
the entire agreement between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral
understandings. This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by
a duly executed written instrument. This agreement inciudes pages 1 through 4 and Schedules
A,B,and C.

1.01  BASIC AGREEMENT
DIXON shall provide, or cause to be provided, services detailed in Scope of Services and
OWNER agrees to pay DIXON as compensation for their services the (not to
exceed/lump sum) fee of Nine Thousand Three Hundred dollars $9,300. Terms of
charges and payments per details in Schedule B. (Prices quoted are subject to change 90
days after proposai date, if not contracted.)

2.01 SCOPE OF SERVICES
Initial Site Walk Through. Design Review, Pre-Con, Installation Inspections

3.01 SIGNATURES

Chris Kreiner 06/06/13
PROPOSED by DIXON (Mol a contraet unti} approved by an afficer) PROPOSAL DATE
CONTRACT APPROVED by OWNER POSITION DATE
CO SIGNATURE (if required} POSITION DATE
CONTRACT APPROVED by DIXON OFFICER EFFECTIVE CONTRACT DATE

Exhibit 1
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5.01

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A. If additional services are Requested and authorized by the OWNER which are not
within the proposed Scope of Services or because of changes in the Project, these
additional services will be on a time and material basis per fee schedule of attached
SCHEDULE C.

B. Delay by the Contractor in completing the work, which is the msponsibiiify of the
Contractor and which extends the amount of time required for DIXON to complete
their work, will be-charged as an Additional Service.

C. Tailure by the Contractor to notify DIXON of the necessity to change inspection
dates more than twenty-four (24) hours in advance and which resuits in unnccessary
travel and/or expense to DIXON shall cause this travel and expense to be charged as
Additional Service,

D. Tailure by the Contractor to Meet Specifications and/or io complete work prior to
requesting an inspection is considered a failed inspection. Services provided by
DIXON during or for a failed inspection include travel, inspector, and project
manager time will be charged as an Additional Service.

Termination

A. The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be terminated:
1. For cause,

a. By either party upon thirty (30) days written notice in the event of substantial
failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the Agreement’s
terms through no fault of the terminating party. Agreement will not terminate
as a result of substantial failure under paragraph 5.01.A.Laif the party
receiving such notice begins, within seven (7) days of receipt of such notice,
to cotrect its failure and proceeds diligently to cure such failure within no
more than thirty (30) days of receipt of notice; provided, however, that if and
to the extent such substantial faifure cannot be reasonably cured within such
thirty (30) day period, and if such party has ditigently attempted to cure the
same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the same, then the cure periad
provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no case more than, sixty (60)
days after the date of receipt of the notice.

b. By DIXON upon seven days written notice:

1) If Owner fails to pay invoices by 60 days.

2) Upon seven(7) days written notice if the DIXON’s services for the Project
are delayed or suspended for more than ninety (90) days for reasons
beyond DIXON’s control.

3) If DIXON believes that Engineer is being requested by Owner to furnish
or perform services contrary o engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed
professional.

4) DIXON shall have no liability to Owner on account of such termination.

2. For Convenience,




6.01

7.01

8.01

a. By OWNER effective upon the receipt of notice by DIXON,

. The terminating party may set the effective date of termination at a time up to thirty

(30) days later to allow Engineer to demobilize personnel and equipment from the
Project site, to complete tasks whose value would otherwise be lost, to prepare notes
as to the status of completed and uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Project
materials in orderly files,

Controlling Law

A,

This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is
located.

Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries

A.

OWNER and DIXON and their successors are hereby bound to successors and legal
representatives of the other to the extent permitted by law in respect of all covenants,
agreements, and obligations of this Agreement.

Neither OWNER nor DEXON may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or
interest (including, but without limitation, moneys that are due or may become dug)
in this Agreement.

General Considerations

A.

The Standard of Care for all professional engineering and related services
performed or furnished by DIXON under this Agreement will be the care and skill
ordinarily used by members of the subject profession practicing under similar
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. DIXON makes no
warranties, expressed or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection
with DIXON’s setvices. DIXON and its consultants may use or rely upon the design
services of others, including, but not limited to, contractors, manufacturers, and
suppliers,

DIXON shall Not at any time Supervise, direct, or have conirol over any of the
Contractor’s work, nor shall DIXON have authority over or responsibility for the
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or
used by any contractor, for safety precautions and programs incident to contractor’s
work progress, nor for any failure of any contractor to comply with laws and
regulations applicable to contractor’s work.

Engineer does not guarantee the performance of any contractor and does Not Assume
Responsibility for any contractor’s failure to furnish and perform its work in
accordance with the contract between Owner and such confractor.




8.02

8.03

. Engineer shail Not be Responsible For the acts or Omissions of any Contractor,

subcontractor, or supplier, or of any contractor’s agents or employees or any other
persons (except Engineer’s own employees) at the Project site of otherwise furnishing
or performing any of the construction work; or for any decision made on
interpretations or clarifications of the construction contract given by Ownet without
consultation and advice of Engineer.

. The General Conditions for any construction contract documents prepared

hereunder are to be the “Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract”
as prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Docaments Comm ittee No. C-700, 2007
Edition) or equally protective document provided by Owner.

. All Design Documents prepared or furnished by DIXON are instruments of service,

and DIXON retains an ownership and property interest (including the copyright and
the right of reuse) in such documents, whether or not the Project is completed.

. DIXON agrees to defend, Indemnify, and hold harmless the Owner, its officers,

agents, and employees, from and against legal liability for all claims, losses, dainages,
or expenses to the extent such claims, losses, damages, or expenses are directly
caused by Engineer’s negligent ot intentional acts, errors, or omissions. Limits of
liability for negligence is based on the comparative negligence principle.

. The parties acknowledge that DIXON's scope of services does not include any

services related to a Hazardous Environmentat Condition {the presence of
asbestos, PCBs, petroleum, hazardous substances or waste, and radioactive materials).
DIXON acknowledges that some hazardous metals may be encountered in coatings.

Severability

- A. Ifany clause or paragraph or sentence is found to be in opposition to any law in the

state of the Project, that clause or paragraph or sentence may be severed from the
Agreement with no effect on remaining clauses.

Headings

A. Article and paragraph headings are inserted for convenience only and do not

constitute parts of these General Conditions, Words in the first sentence are in bold
fo act as secondary headings and should not be interpreted any different than a
numbered heading.
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SCHEDULE A
(DePere, Wisconsin 250,000 Double Ellipse Merrill Street 49-05-11-01}

Initial Site Inspection - Site Walk:

A Site visit by two Dixon employees to completely map current tank conditions.
This includes as-built sketches, existing antenna equipment, site conditions, steel
thicknesses, and photos.

Design and Plan Review:

A. Staff Engineer fo review designs created by others. No calculations or
Professional Enginecring seal included. Initial Site Inspection — Site
Walk is a pretequisite to Design and Plan Review.

Site Work for:
A. Preconstruction (preinstallation) and progress meetings-attend and participate.

B. Installation inspections-inspect installation as it progresses and a final post inspection
to compate with design criteria. These inspections include letter report and
photographs.
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SCHEDULY B
(DePere, Wisconsin 230,000 Double Ellipse Merrill Street 49-05-11-01)

PAYMENT '
When service s rendered Owner shall pay DIXON the foltowing line item prices:
i. Schedule A, Item |, nitial Site Inspection-Site Walk, the lump sum of $1,308.

2. Schedule A, Item 11, Design and Plan Review, the lump sum of $1.350. (Site Walk
prerequisite $1,300)

. Owner shall pay DIXON the following line iterns times the number of units vsed:

1, Schedule A, Item il
A. (1) Preconstruction Meetings $930 per meeting
B. (6) Installation and Post Inspections $958 per inspection

INVOICES
Invoices will be compiled monthly.

B. All DIXON services that are outstanding more than thirty (30) days from date of issue

shall be assessed (DIXON’s favor) one and a half percent (1.5%) per month interest
starting from 30 days after date of issue.




SCHEDULE C

Antenna Engineering Services Fees

Labor Class Per Hour *Qvertime Rate
PHNCIPAL eeveeerrcrerrsrs st e v b e ea b $175.00

Project Manager. ...ovevveeariiiiiiianenrneisininr e eeaeeaeianincen $100.00

Registered Professional Engineer.......coceviiiiiiiinniinnn, $125.00

Assistant Project Manager.........oovvveiiivieininiennnnienes $ 80.00

Staff Engineer — Level TtoIL........ocooiiivioiiiiniciciiinnns $ 85.00 to $100.00
CAD SUPEIVISOI 1 euvrniraviirivrerersorirsirinereeniirnarrenses $ 80.00

CAWI or CWI Welding Inspector.....o.ovvevvieeneiricineenns $ 80.00 to $100.00
Certified NACE Inspector........ovivivimereciicioimen, $100.00

Inspector — Level Lto TTT.....ooiiincnini i $ 60.00 to $80.00
CAD Technician.......ovoviviiiiiiiniiiie e niee s $ 60.00 to $70.00
Secretarial Services . iviin i e $ 50.00 & expenses
Bookkeeping Services. ...vviiiiiiriiisiineiinoeirienn $ 50.00

*All Saturday, Sunday, and holiday inspections are overtime rate. Overtime rate is 1 % time the
hourly rate. Overtime rate does not apply to Principal.,

Expenses;

Metropolitan Out — state
M. e e e $0.70/mile {including tolls) $0.60/mile
Meals & Lodging, ....ooivvvnviiiiii $110 per diem, per day $100 per

diem, per day

{may be increased based on location)
Without LOdgINg. ..ot i $35/day $30/day
AT TEAVEE. oL i i e e aaas Business fare from Grand Rapids

Chicago O’ Hare or Milwaukee, plus full
size car renfal
Material (gaskets, cathodic protection caps, ef¢.)............ Negotiated

FEES EFFECTIVE THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2013



City of De Pere

Public Works Department Memo
To: Honorable Mayor Walsh
Members of the Board of Public Works T
From: Scott J. Thoresen, Director of Public Works S A4
Date: June 235, 2013
Subject: Consider Engineering Technical Services Regarding Installation of Verizon’s

Wireless Antennae Facilities on City Water Towers

The City received a request from Verizon regarding installation of wireless antennae facilities on
the City’s Merrill Street water tower. (See request). As part of this request, the City will need to
hire Dixon Engineering to perform engineering technical services for the City to make sure there
is no impact to the City’s water tower with the work being proposed by Verizon. Staff has
received payment from Verizon for funding the engineering services to be performed by Dixon
Engineering.

Staff recommends approving the engineering services agreement with Dixon Engineering for the
Merrill Street water tower.



Memo City of De Pere

To: Members of the Common Council

From: Shannon Metzler, Human Resources Director, A
Re: Classification and Compensation Study

Date: July 9, 2013

Charlie Carlson, our consultant that is working on our classification and compensation study will
be at the meeting to discuss study. Charlie will review with you the various options for setting
up a compensation plan. The purpose of the meeting is to get direction form the Council as to
how you would to proceed with the study and how you would like to set up the pay plan
parameters.



Memo City of De Pere

To: Members of the Common Council

From: Shannon Metzler, Human Resources Director . AN,
Re: Retiree Health Insurance Rates

Date: July 9, 2013

Jeff Prickette, our Insurance Consultant from McClone Insurance group, will be at the meeting to
discuss retiree health insurance rates. If you recall, Jeff was working on an actuarial study to
provide the Council some guidance on what the rate for retiree insurance should be to prevent
the City from subsidizing the retirees.

Jeff is working on a handout of different options for you to consider. The handout was not
ready in time for the packet, but will be e-mailed out in advance of the meeting and copies will
also be available at the meeting.



CITY OF DE PERE MEMO

DATE: July 11, 2013

TO: Members of the Common Council

FROM: Shana Defnet, Clerk—Treasure@

RE: Status of implementing MinuteTraq Software

The City has purchased a software program called MinuteTraq to help streamline the public
meeting management process and to eliminate the need for paper packets. This software is an
add-on to the software we currently use for streaming video services of our council meetings.

City staff began training in March of this year and completed training in early June. In mid-
June, staff began using the software simultaneously with the current method of creating meeting
packets. We are working through issues with the software and implementation and are hoping to
go live with this software in August. The Mayor, City Administrator and 1T Administrator plan
to review tablets over the next two weeks to determine the devices that will be acquired for those
individuals (elected and appointed) that will need devices to access agendas and materials
electronically at meetings.

For more information about the software, council members can access a short 12-minute video in
the De Pere Council Drive under the “MinuteTraq” folder.

If you have any questions, please contact me at 339-4072 ext. 1355.
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FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1476 INC

FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1476 INC

FESTIVAL FQODS INC

FIRE RPPARATUS & EéUIPMENT INC

FIRFE APPARATIS & EQUIPMENT TNC

FIRE RLPPARATUS & EQUIPMENT INC

FIVE ALRRM INC

FOX SPECIBLITY COMPANY

FOX SFPECIALITY COMPANY

GRATNGER THC

HELRON LUBRICRNTS INC

HAWEINS INC

HAWKINS INC

TD
ED SUPPLY WATERWORKS LID

HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD

CHECK

TYPE

Hom o omoom W

R

CHECK

DATE

7/16/2013

1/16/2013

T/16/2013

7/16/2013
/1672013
7/16/2013
7/18/2013

7/16/2013

T/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013

T/16/2013

7/168/2013
/1672013

1/16/2013

7/16/2013

T/16/2013

7/16/2013

T/16/2013
7/16/2013

DISCOUNT

PMOUNT

83.45CR

322 .50CR

531.08CR

30.00
3ga,57CR

323.58CR

-

, 554 . 00CE

352.00CR

164.57CR

244 .8B0CR

B62.20CR

104.00CR

25.61CR

37.06CR

52.21CR

118.00CR

3,507. 64CR
2,574, 00CR

168, 4BCR

32.00CR

CHECK

NO#

068632

068633

068634

068635
068635
068635
DEBEZS

068635

N6BE3E

068637

068637

06B638

068633

068638

0Ea640

Ogaedl

068642

U68642

06B&43

068643

4

CHECK

AMOUNT

83.45

322.50

531.08

2, 686,15

164,57

1,114.706

104.00

62.67

52.21

118.00

6,081.64

200.48



7/08/2013

FACKET:

5:00 P

04047 JUL 2013 COUW

VENDOR SET: ©1

EANK

VENDCR

5484

1399

0141

1276

6520

01489

4564

: AP BSSOCIRTED

NAME / I.D.

AP

cIL 2 7-16-12

BOME TEAM SPORTS & APPAREL INC

I-15822

HOME TEAM SPORTS & APPRREL INC

HOWEYWELL INTERNATIONEL INC

1-5226576889

HYDRC DESIGNS INC
1-29602-1H

I-29696-IN

INDOFF INC
C-2288650
I-2296133
I-2287888
I1-2298322
I-2298323
T-2298324
I-2292651
I-2300386
I-23007849
I-2301035
I-230103e

1-2301577

JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFET

1-197687

J¥ ENTERPRISES INC

T-p-231770073

JX PETERBILT - GREEN B
I-D-231630107
I1-p-231700111
I-p~231750087

I-D-231760062

KIMCO ENGRAVING INC

I-23253

ERUCZEK CONST INC

I-13-01

HONEYWELL INTERWATIONARL INC

HYDRO DESIGNS INC

HYDAO DESIGNS INC

INDOFE
INDOFE
INDOFE
INDOFF
INDCETF
INDOFF
INDOFE
IRDOFF I
INDOFE
INDOFE
INDOFF INC
INDOF¥ INC
¥ INC

JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY INC

J¥% ENTERPRISES INC

RY

JX PETERBILT - GREEN BAY
JX PETEREILT - GREEN BAY
JX PETERBILT -~ GREEN BAY
JX PETERBILT - GREEN BRY

KIMCO ENGRAVING INC

KRUCZEK CONST INC

THECK

TYPE

R

el

)

m oW ow o m oW H =

=l

m o m

CHECK REGISTER

CHECK

DATE

1/16/2613

7/16/2013

1672013
7/16/2013

T/16/2013
7/16/2013
7/16/2013
T/16/2013
7T/16/2013
T/16/2013
1/16/2013
7/16/2013
T/16/2013
7/16/2013
7/16/2013
7/16/2013

7/16/2013

/1642013

7/16/2013
7/16/2013
1/16/2013
1/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013

DISCOUNT ZMOUNT

73.70CR

2,251.93CR

2,876.00CR

1,415.00CKR

1606.98

33.87CR
545.81CR
29.95CR
137.40CR
11.45CR
14.95CR
38%,94CR
49, 9BCR
55.05CR
11.23CR

17,88CR

3,008.50CR

56.82CR

46.52CR
260.01CR
5.602CR

51.39CR

7.50CR

228,080, 30CR

CHECK

NO#

neagq4

068645

OEEG46

068646

068647
068647
NeBE47
068647
068647
068647
058647
068647
DeB6E47
0&E8647
068647
DEBEST

068648

0E8643

168650
06BESD
068650

068650

06B€ST

U6B652

PRGE: 5

CHECK

AMOUNT

73.70

2,251.93

4,291.00

1,147.54

3,008.50

56.92

363.54

228,080.80



7/08/2013 5:00 PM

PACEET:
VENDOR

BRNE

VENDOR

3140

0154

5786

6198

0173

£7840

£5E0

0076

0531

04027 JUL 2013 COURCIL 2
SET: 3
RP RSSOCTATEDR
NAME / I.D. DESC

KUNDINGER FLUID POWER INC

I-50243016

LAMERS BUS LIMES INC
T-430824
I-430825
I-430826
I-4311¢1
T-431162
I-431175
I-4311786
1-431233

1-431352

LEE, CINDY

I1-201307092368

MRDISON COGLLEGE

T-00D00002572324

METLIINANCE

1-H4070807

MENARDS INC
I-22579

I-23232

MI T FENCE LLC

1-1276

MUELLER ELECTRIC

I-404-12~01 5 FINREL

NARS5CO INC

I-51691796.001

KUNDINGER FLUID rOWER INC

LAMERS
LAMERS
LEMERS
LAMERS
LAMERS
LEMERS
LAMERS
LAMERS

LAMERS

LEE, CT

2572324

T-16-13

BUS
BUS
BUS
BUS
BUS
BUS
BUS
EUS

EUS

NDY

LINES
LINES
LINES
LINES
LINES
LINES
LINES
LINES

LINES

MAILFINENCE

MENARDS INC

MENARDS TNC

MI T FENCE LLC

MUELLER ELECTRIC

NASSCO

NORTHEAST AUTO PARTS INC

I-260223
I~280466
I-280467

I-280620

INC

A/ P

INC
INC
INC
INC
INC
INC
INC
INC

INC

NORTHERST AUTO FARTS

NORTHEAST AUTO PARTS

NORTHEAST AUTQ PARTS

NORTHEARST AUTO PARTS

INC

haules

INC

CHECK REGIS

CHECK

TYFE

m w o ow @™ om W

]

TER

CHECRH

DATE

1/16/2013

TLE/2013
771672013
7/16/2013
T/16/2013
T/16/2013
7716420132
7/16/2013
7/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013
7/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013
7/16/2013
7/16/2013

7/16/2013

DISCOUNT

AMOUNT

106.75CR

255,00CR
170.00CR
310.70CR
255, BOCR
170, 00CR
234.92CR
79, 46CR
7. 20CR

155.46CR

74.58CR

28.44CR

B3, 00CR

27.54CR

26.85CR

B77.54CR

1,000.00CR

170,31CR

127.39CR
46.81CR
27,48CR

38.98CR

CHECK

OBBESG3

pE8E65d
n68654
06aEe5d
06654
068654
068654
068654
068654

068654

06BESS

068656

068637

068658
UGB658

068653

068660

cedEsl

068662
EB662
068662

DEHEE2

PAGE: &

CHECK

AMOUNT

106,75

1,707.74

74.58

28.44

85.00

54.39

g77.54

1,000.00

170,31

240,66



7/0%/2013

'ACKET

5:00 FM

04047 JUL 2013 COUNCIL 2 7-16-13

VENDOR SET: 01

BANK

VENDOR

3703

4728

6791

4476

gzoz

02086

0209

1246

t AP RESCCIRTED

WaME / I.D. DESC
OFFICEMAX INC
T-£858460 OFFICEMBY INC
ORTENTAL TRADING CO INC
T-65B106B78-01 ORIENTAL TRADING CO INC
OSUKOSH FIRE & POLICE EQUIPMERT INC

1-152001 OSHKOSE FIRE & POLICE EQUIFMEN
OVEREEAD DOOR CQ OF GREEN BRY

I-BAY19107C8 OVERHEAD DOCR CO OF GREEN BAY
PACKERLEND ELECTRIC LLC

I-4871 PACKERLAND ELECTRIC LLC
PAUL CONWAY SHIELDS CORE

1-329113-IN PAUL CONWARY SHIELDS CORP
I-328187-IN PAUL CONWRY SHIELDS CORP

FEFSI COLA NEW INC

I-115121 PEPS] COLA NEW IRC
1-117020 PEPSI COLA NEW INC
I-7030394 PEPSI COLA NEW INC
I-7030210 PEP5] COLA NEW INC

PM SUPPLY - WRIGHT INDUSTRIAL

I-35080 PM SUPPLY - WRIGHT INDUSTRIAL
I1~38983 PM SUPPLY - WRIGHT INDUSTRIAL
I-37140 PM SUPPLY ~ WRIGHT INDUSTRIAL
I-37197 FM SUPPLY - WRIGHT INDUSTRIAT

POMP'S TIRE SERVICE INC

1-83707 POME'S TIRE SERVICE INC
I-30005738 POMP'S TIRE SERVICE INC
I-90005744 pPOMP'S TIRE SERVICE INC

BGOL WORKS INC
I-59350-1 POOL WORKS INC
PREVEA WOREMED INC
I-85358 FREVEA WORKMED INC

I-85364 PREVER WORKMED INC

CHECK

TYPE

R

=

= =

m =

=

A / F CHECK REGISTER

CHECK

DATE

7/1a/2013

7/16/2013

T/16/2013

T/16/2013

7/16/2913

1/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013
7/16/2013
7/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/18/2013
7/16/2013
7/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013
F/16/2013

T/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013

DISCCUNT

BMOUNT

39.58CR

42.74CR

315.00CR

16.90Ck

3,899.86CR

325.00CR

54,15CR

42.Z24CR
44.25CR
75.84CR

17.2BCR

269.50CR
212.92CR
46.99CR

163.32CR

162, C00CR
231 .80CR

529.08CR

34.00CR

264 .25CR

114.00CR

CHECK

NO#

068683

063664

068665

Q6B6ER

068667

0680GE

UeBEES

06BEES
06BEE2
06AE69

06BEES

06EE70
06BE70
068670
068670

068671
068671

DEBETL

QERETZ

QEBBT3

068673

7

CHECK

AMCUNT

B9.58

42,74

315.00

16.580

3,B83.86

379.15

178.61

692.73

922.810

34.00

378.25



7/08/20613  5:00 PM
SACKET: 04047 JUL 2013 COUNCIL 2 7-16-13
VENDCR SET: 01
BANK 1 AP ASSOCIATEDR
VENDOR NAEME / I.D. DESC
4880 PSYCHOLOGICAL CONSULTANTS OF SREEN BRY S5C
I-201307082360 PSYCHOLOGICAL COMSULIANTS OF G
0220 QUILL CORP
I-3624850 QUILL CORP
1424 PAULA RAHN
I-201307082362 PAULA RAHN
0227 REINDERS INC
C-2613223-00 REINDERS INC
I-1437347-00 REINDERS IHNC
I-1440367-00 REINDERS INC
I-144124%-00 REINDERS INC
az28 RENT A FLASH OF WISCONSIN INC
1-32373 RENT A FLASH OF WISCONSIN INC
015g ROBERT E LEE & RSSOCTIATES INC
I-56544 ROBERT E LEE & ASSOCIRTES INC
1053 SCENIC VIEW LANDSCAPES
I-851 SCENIC VIEW LBNDSCREES
0238 JUDITH SCHMIDT LEHMEN
I—-201307082361 JUDITH SCHMINT LEHMAN
3458 SERQOGY'S CHOCOLATES
I-6l117B SEROOGY 'S CHOCOLARTES
6141 SHARPER EDGE LANDSCAPING LLC
I-29998 SHARPER EDGE LANDSCAPING LLC
I-29%9% SHARPER EDGE LANDSCAPING LLC
I-30008 SHARPER EDGE LANDSCAPING LLC
I-30140¢ SHARPER EDGE LANDSCAPING LLC
I-30159 SHARFER EDGE LANDSCAPING LLC
2953 SHERWIN TNDUSTRIES INC
I-35050982 SHERWIN INDUSTRIES INC
€782 SPEEDY CLEAN DRRTN AND SEWER

I-13-15 (1) SPEEDY CLERN DRRIN AND SEWER

CHECK

TYPE

wWoom oW m

(]

= oowoom A

A/ P CHECK REGISTER

CHECK

DATE

T/1€/2013

T/16/2013

T/16/2013

1/16/2013
/1672013
7/16/2013

7/16/2013

1/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013

7/16/2013

T/16/2013
T/16/2013
7/16/2013
T/16/2013

7/16/2013

1/16/2013

/1672013

BMOUNT

DISCOURT

450. 00CR

BB.94CR

174.58CR

Z,3060.81
2,300.81CR
66.7OCR

135.26CR

8620.00CR

11,076.56CR

3,000, 00CR

E4.76CR

36.00CR

67 . 50CR
90, GOCR
125.00CR
20, 00CR

90.00CR

456, 75CR

17,241.55CR

CHECK

NO#

negeT4

DBEETS

O6HETE

068677
06BETT
ne8677

068677

G6EeTB

068679

DEBEAD

068681

0Ege82

068683
06B6B3
068683
NEBER3

UGEGES

GeEe84

069685

PAGE: &

CEECK

EMOUNT

450.00

ge.54

174,59

B20.00

11,078.56

3,000.00

B4.7¢

36,00

472,50

456.75

17,241.55




T/08/2013 5:00 PM A/ P CHZCK REGISTER PRGE: a
BCRET 04047 JUL 2013 COUNCIL 2 7-16-13

VENDOR SET: 061

BANK 1 RP ASSOCIATED
CEECK  CHECK CHECK CHECK

VENDOR ~ NAME / I.D. DESC TYPE DRETE DISCOURT AMOUNT No# AMOUNT
1465 STEEN MRCEX PAPER COMPANY

1-702750 STEEN MACEK PAPER COMPARNY R 7/16/2013 124,35CR  06GGBE 124.35
a771 T G W INC OF WISCONSIN

1-22478 T G W INC OF WISCONSIN R O7/16/2013 158.00CR 0Q6BGBT 15B8.00
0268 TRUCK EQUIPMENT INC

I-559883 TRUCK EQUIPMENT INC R T/16/2013 43.43CR  0GBEBE 43.43
0272 UNIFORM SHOPPE INC

I-221715 UNIFORM SHOPPE THC R 7/16/2013 103.85CR 068639

1-221903 UNIFORM SHOPPE INC R 7/16/2013 18B.85CR 068689

I-2219B8 UNIFORM SHOPPE INC R 7/16/2013 424, 75CR 068683

I-222035 UNIFORM SHOPPE INC R 7/16/2013 184.B5CR 068680

1-z22291 UNIFORM SHOPPE INC R 7/16/2013 12.95CR 068689

1-222297 UNIFORM SHOPPE IHC R 7/16/2013 10.00CR  0ERERY

I-222376 UNTFORM SHOPPE INC R /1672013 89,95CR 068689

I-222379 UNIFORY SEOPPE INC R 7/16/2013 129.90CR 068699 1,145.20
1833 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE INC

1-70AEYE263 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE INC R 7/16/2013 48,80CR 068690 48.90
1229 UTILITY SRLES AND SERVICE INC

1-12672B-IN UTILITY SALES AND SERVICE INC R 7/16/2013 62.43CR 068691 62,43
0274 VELLEY POPCORN CO INC,

I-136354 VALLEY POPCORN CO INC. R 7/16/2013 326.B0CR 065692

I-137054 VALLEY POPCORN CO INC. R T/16/2013 155,65CR 068692 482,45
0278 VIKING MACHINE & DESIGN INC

I-4014 : VIKING MACHINE & DESIGH INC R /1672013 68.25CR 068693 68.25
0238 WAUSAU EQUIFMENT CO INC

I-154783 WAUSAU EQUIPMENT CO INC R 7/16/2013 98.01CR DAEEZY 9g.01
0282 WESCG DISTRIBUTION IRC

T-339476 WESCO DISTRIBUTION INC ® 7/16/2013 83.07CR 068695

I-344881 WESCO DISTRIBUTION INC R 7/16/2013 39.00CR 068695

I-346512 WESCO DISTRIBUTION TNC R 7/16/2013 1.61CR 068695 123,68

1860 WEYERS EQUIFMENT INC

I-01-37224 WEYERS EQUIPMENT INC R 7/16/2013 173.65CR O0EB68E 173.65



7/09/2013  5:00 PM 2/ P CHECK REGISTER
PACKET: 04047 JUL 2013 CQUNCIL 2 7-16-13
VENDOR SET: 01
BANK . AP ASSQCIATED
CHECK  CHECK
VENDOR  NBME / I.D. DESC TYEE DATE
0287 W1 DEPT OF RODMINISTRRTION
1-76052 W1 DEPT OF RDMINTSTRATION R 7/16/2013
0281 W1 DEPT OF JUSTICE TIME  MADIBON
I1-201307092370 WI DEPT OF JUSTICE TIME MADI R 7/16/2013
4 TOTALS + ¢ HO# DISCOUNTS
REGULAR CHECKS: 101 0. 060
HANDWRITTEN CHECKS: 0 0.00
PRE-WRITE CHECKS: o 0.00
DRAFTS: 0 0.00
VOID CEECKS: a 0.00
NON CHECKS: o 0.00
CCRRECTICNS: o 0,00
REGISTER TOTALS: 101 0.00
TOTAL ERRORS: o TOTAL WARNINGS: @

CHECK
DISCOUNT AMOUNT NO#
135.00CR 068637
126.00CKR 068696
CHECK AMT TOTREL APPLIED
346,956,682 346,856.62
79.00 0.00
0.00 0,00
G¢.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0. 00
¢.co 0.00
346, 956.62 346, 856.62

PAGE:

i0

CHECK

PMOUNT

135.40C

126.00



7/08/2013  5:00 PM

PACKET:

04047 JUL 2013 COUNCIL 2

VENDOR SET: ©1

BANK

VCNDOR

AP

NAME / I.D.

ASSOCIATED

NESC

7~16-13

b

P CHECK REGISTER

CHECK CHECK

TYPE DATE

+% pOSTING PERIOD RECAP

PERIOD

DISCOURT

W

100 /2013 76,533, 38CR
201 7/2013 523.96CR
208 7/2013 270.73CR
260 7/2013 60.00CR
290 7/2013 30, H0CR
408 /2013 256, 401.01CR
601 7/2013 9,103,20CR
€5C 742013 4,034 . 44CR
ALL 346, 956.62CR

AMOUNT

CHECK

HO#

PAGE:

11

CHECK

AMOUNT



CITY OF DE PERE - JULY 16, 2013

ITEM# [NAME |ADDRESS [cITy |sT] ZIP
TEMPORARY OPERATOR LICENSE APPLICATIONS
1 |DAUL, RACHEL A. [2054 MILL RD. IGREENLEAF | W1]|54126
PREVIOUSLY TABLED OPERATOR LICENSE APPLICATIONS

1 |SMITH, AMANDA R. 2860 PIONEER DR. |[GREEN BAY  |WI]| 54313
OPERATOR LICENSE APPLICATIONS FOR THE 2012-2014 LICENSING PERIOD

i |BECKS, TROY A. 1217 DELRAY GREEN BAY  [WI|54304
2 |CAMERON, JON R. 1585 PARK HAVEN RD. |DE PERE Wi 54115
5 |GUNDERSON, JAMES D, |368 COOLIDGE GREEN BAY | WI| 34301
4 [JIMENEZ, SERGIOZ B. 625 THELOSEN DR. KIMBERLY | WI|54126
5 |LANE, JESSICA M. 1348 EASTMAN AVE.  |GREEN BAY | WI| 54302
6 |MUNIZ, JOSEPH R. 208 N. SIXTH ST. DE PERE WI| 54115
7 |REZABEK, SAMANTHA S. |143 HAWTHORNE AVE. |LITTLE CIHUTE |W1| 54140
8 |ROTT,JOELD. 317 HARTUNG ST. GREEN BAY  [WI| 54302
9 |THOMPSON, TIFFANY D. |724 GRIGNON ST. GREEN BAY  |WI| 54301




	Agenda
	3.	Approval of the minutes of the July 2, 2013 regular meeting of the Common Council
	5. Recommendation from the Finance/Personnel Committee to approve funding for emergency repair to Legion Baby Pool 
	6.	Recommendation from the License Committee
	A.	Application for a Class “B” Beer & “Class B” Liquor License for Firehouse Bar & Grill, 338 Main Street
	B.	Application for a Premise Description Change for Pubhaus At 600, 600 George Street
	C.	Application for a Temporary Premise Description Change for Sidekicks Bar & Grill, 930 Main Avenue
	7.	Ordinance #13-13, Amending §14-29(7) De Pere Municipal Code Regarding Rezoning Protest Petitions And Time for Council Action on Rezoning Applications (second reading)
	8.	Resolution #13-91, A Resolution Authorizing And Providing For The Sale And Issuance Of
$5,745,000* General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013A,
And All Related Details
	9.	Resolution #13-92, A Resolution Authorizing And Providing For The Sale And Issuance Of
$2,610,000* Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2013B,
And All Related Details
	Moody's
	Fitch Ratings
	Springsted Official Statement (booklet handout)
	10.	Resolution #13-93, Authorizing Economic Development Grant To WJM Enterprise LLC (Firehouse Bar & Grill).
	11.	Resolution #13-94, Authorizing Sidewalk Café Permit For Pubhaus At 600 LLC
	12.	Resolution #13-95, Authorizing Amendment To Agreement Between The City Of De Pere And Stephen L. Seidl (James Street Wharf Extension)
	13.	Resolution #13-96, Authorizing Contracts With Orde Advertising For Riverwalk And Wildlife Viewing Pier Signage
	14.	Resolution #13-97, Approving Proposal/Contract Agreement For Antennas Between The City Of De Pere And Dixon Engineering, Inc. (Verizon Wireless Antenna Upgrade).
	15.	Discuss Classification and Compensation Study
	16.	Retiree Insurance Review
	17.	Discussion regarding the status of implementing Minute Traq Software
	18.	Voucher approval
	19.	Applications for Operator’s Licenses
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